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United States
Securities and Exchange Commission
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

(Mark One)
Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) efSkcurities Exchange Act of 1934
For the fiscal year endeBDecember 31, 2012

O Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File No1-3548
ALLETE, Inc.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Minnesota 41-0418150
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation oganization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.

30 West Superior Street, Duluth, Minnesota 55802-23
(Address of principal executive offices, includinig code)
(218) 279-5000

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area yode
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) afie Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange achwegistered
Common Stock, without par value New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) t¢fie Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405%0b#turities Act. Y€l No[O
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®acl5(d) of the Act. Ye&l No X
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @l filed all reports required to be filed by Seetk8 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4L88rin¢
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter petiatlithe registrant was required to file such reg)pand (2) has been subject to such filing negents fc
the past 90 days. Yé&$ No[O
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldmsnitted electronically and posted on its corporvegbsite, if any, every Interactive Data File regdito b
submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Régnl&-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such grgperiod that the registrant was require
submit and post such files). Y&k No[J
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiletrs pursuant to Iltem 405 of RegulatiorkSs not contained herein, and will not be contdin®e the best «
registrant’'s knowledge, in definitive proxy or imfioation statements incorporated by reference ihIRanf this Form 10-K or any amendment to thisrfol0-
K.
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, m-axcelerated filer or a smaller reporting comparsydefines
in Rule 12b-2 of the Act).

Large Accelerated Filexl Accelerated FileE] Non-Accelerated Filel] Smaller Reporting Compariy
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantdbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act)¥esd NokX
The aggregate market value of voting stock helddyaffiliates on June 30, 2012 , was $1,591,836,880
As of February 1, 2013 , there wer e 39,468,468eshaf ALLETE Common Stock, without par value, ¢arsling.
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Definitions

The following abbreviations or acronyms are usethitext. References in this report to “we,” “wsid “our” are to ALLETE, Inc. and i
subsidiaries, collectively.

Abbreviation or Acronym Term

AC Alternating Current

AFUDC Allowance for Funds Used During Constructiche cost of both debt and equity funds usedniantce utility
plant additions during construction periods

ALLETE ALLETE, Inc.

ALLETE Clean Energy
ALLETE Properties

ArcelorMittal

ALLETE Clean Energy, Inc.
ALLETE Properties, LLC and its subsidiaries
ArcelorMittal USA, Inc.

ARS Auction Rate Securities

ATC American Transmission Company LLC
Basin Basin Electric Power Cooperative

Bison 1 Bison 1 Wind Project

Bison 2 Bison 2 Wind Project

Bison 3 Bison 3 Wind Project

Bison Bison Wind Energy Center

BNI Coal BNI Coal, Ltd.

Boswell Boswell Energy Center

CAIR Clean Air Interstate Rule

CO. Carbon Dioxide

Company ALLETE, Inc. and its subsidiaries
CSAPR Cross-State Air Pollution Rule

DC Direct Current

EPA Environmental Protection Agency

ESOP Employee Stock Ownership Plan

FERC Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
Form 8-K ALLETE Current Report on Form 8-K
Form 10-K ALLETE Annual Report on Form 10-K
Form 10-Q ALLETE Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
GAAP Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the tddiStates
GHG Greenhouse Gases

Hibbard Hibbard Renewable Energy Center

IBEW International Brotherhood of Electrical Worke
Invest Direct ALLETE's Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinugant Plan
ltem__ Iltem___ of this Form 10-K

kv Kilovolt(s)

Laskin Laskin Energy Center

LIBOR London Inter Bank Offered Rate

MACT Maximum Achievable Control Technology
Magnetation Magnetation, Inc.

Manitoba Hydro
MATS

MBtu

Medicare Part D

Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board
Mercury and Air Toxics Standards
Million British thermal units

Medicare Part D provision of the Patient Protectiod Affordable Care Act of 2010
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Definitions (continued)

Mesabi Nugget Mesabi Nugget Delaware, LLC

Minnesota Power An operating division of ALLETHBgcl

Minnkota Power Minnkota Power Cooperative, Inc.

MISO Midwest Independent Transmission System Qpgrinc.
Moody’s Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.

MPCA Minnesota Pollution Control Agency

MPUC Minnesota Public Utilities Commission

MW / MWh Megawatt(s) / Megawatt-hour(s)

NAAQS National Ambient Air Quality Standards

NDPSC North Dakota Public Service Commission

NERC North American Electric Reliability Corporation

NOL Net Operating Loss

Non-residential Retail commercial, non-retail commercial, officedustrial, warehouse, storage and institutional
NO . Nitrogen Dioxide

NO x Nitrogen Oxides

Note Note  to the consolidated financieshents in this Form 10-K
NPDES National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
NYSE New York Stock Exchange

Oliver Wind | Oliver Wind | Energy Center

Oliver Wind Il Oliver Wind Il Energy Center

Palm Coast Park Palm Coast Park development project in Florida

Palm Coast Park District Palm Coast Park Commubéyelopment District
PolyMet PolyMet Mining Corporation

PPA Power Purchase Agreement

PPACA Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010
PSCW Public Service Commission of Wisconsin

Rainy River Energy Rainy River Energy Corporation - Wisconsin

RSOP Retirement Savings and Stock Ownership Plan

SEC Securities and Exchange Commission

SO Sulfur Dioxide

Square Butte Square Butte Electric Cooperative

Standard & Poor’s Standard & Poor’s Ratings Sewic

SWL&P Superior Water, Light and Power Company

Taconite Harbor Taconite Harbor Energy Center

Taconite Ridge Taconite Ridge Energy Center

Town Center Town Center at Palm Coast developmejéct in Florida
Town Center District Town Center at Palm Coast Community Developmentridis
u.s. United States of America

USS Corporation United States Steel Corporation
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Forward-Looking Statements

Statements in this report that are not statemehtsistorical facts are considered “forward-lookinghd, accordingly, involve risks a
uncertainties that could cause actual resultsfterdnaterially from those discussed. Although stmfward{ooking statements have been
in good faith and are based on reasonable assumptimere can be no assurance that the expecidtsredll be achieved. Any statements
express, or involve discussions as to, future espeos, risks, beliefs, plans, objectives, assionpt events, uncertainties, finan
performance, or growth strategies (often, but naiags, through the use of words or phrases suclamtcipates,” “believes,” “estimates,”
“expects,” “i plans,” “projects,” “likely,“will continue,” “could,” “may,” “potential,” “target,” “outlook” or words of similar meanin

” o " ou " ou ” ” o ” o

intends,
are not statements of historical facts and maybaérd-looking.

In connection with the safe harbor provisions & Brivate Securities Litigation Reform Act of 199¢% are providing this cautionary staten
to identify important factors that could cause aatual results to differ materially from those icatied in forwardeoking statements made
or on behalf of ALLETE in this Form 1B; in presentations, on our website, in responsguestions or otherwise. These statement
qualified in their entirety by reference to, ané accompanied by, the following important factansaddition to any assumptions and o
factors referred to specifically in connection withich forwardeoking statements that could cause our actualteetu differ materially fror
those indicated in the forward-looking statements:

» our ability to successfully implement our strategiijectives

e regulatory or legislative actions, including thasfethe United States Congress, state legislatihesFERC, the MPUC, the PSCW,
NDPSC, the EPA and various state, local and coueylators, and city administrators, that impaat allowed rates of return, capi
structure, ability to secure financing, industrdaate structure, acquisition and disposal of asaetl facilities, operation and construc
of plant facilities, recovery of purchased powepital investments and other expenses, includirggnt or prospective wholesale
retail competition and environmental matters;

e our ability to manage expansion and integrate aifipms

e our current and potential industrial and muratipustomersability to execute announced expansion p

» the impacts on our Regulated Operations of climmhtnge and future regulation to restrict the emissdf GHG

» effects of restructuring initiatives in the electimdustry

e economic and geographic factors, including politazed economic risk

» changes in and compliance with laws and regula]

* weather conditions, natural disasters and panddisézase:

e war, acts of terrorism and cyber atta

» wholesale power market conditio

* population growth rates and demographic patt

» effects of competition, including competition fatail and wholesale custome

e zoning and permitting of land held for resale, esthte development or changes in the real estateeh

e pricing, availability and transportation of fuelcaather commaodities and the ability to recoverabsts of such commoditie

» changes in tax rates or policies or in rates détith;

e project delays or changes in project cc

» availability and managemenof construction materials and skilled constructaor for capital project

» changes in operating expenses and capital expees

» global and domestic economic conditions affectiagpuour customel

» our ability to access capital markets and banknfiireg:

» changes in interest rates and the performanceedfrihncial market

e our ability to replace a mature workforce and retgialified, skilled and experienced personnel;

» the outcome of legal and administrative proceed{adgether civil or criminal) and settlemel

Additional disclosures regarding factors that cotagise our results or performance to differ fromsthanticipated by this report are discu
in Item 1A under the heading “Risk Factors” begingnon page 27 of t his Form 10-K. Any forwdabking statement speaks only as of
date on which such statement is made, and we wah#emo obligation to update any forwdeomking statement to reflect events
circumstances after the date on which that statemmanade or to reflect the occurrence of unantitgd events. New factors emerge from
to time, and it is not possible for management redjgt all of these factors, nor can we assessntipact of each of these factors on
businesses or the extent to which any factor, orlipation of factors, may cause actual resultsfferdmaterially from those contained in ¢
forward-looking statement. Readers are urged tefgly review and consider the various disclosuregle by us in this Form 1K-and in ou
other reports filed with the SEC that attempt tenitify the risks and uncertainties that may affestbusiness.
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Part |

Iltem 1. Business

Regulated Operationsincludes our regulated utilities, Minnesota Powed &WL&P, as well as our investment in ATC, a Wissia-base:
regulated utility that owns and maintains electramsmission assets in parts of Wisconsin, Michigdimnesota and lllinois. Minnesota Po\
provides regulated utility electric service in ri@astern Minnesota to approximately 143,000 retetomers. Minnesota Power's nafiiiated
municipal customers consist of 16 municipalitiesMimnesota and 1 private utility in Wisconsin. SWB&a whollyewned subsidiary
ALLETE, is also a private utility in Wisconsin adcustomer of Minnesota Power. SWL&P provides ragd electric, natural gas and w
service in northwestern Wisconsin to approximafiédy000 electric customers, 12,000 natural gas mest® and 10,00@/ater customers. O
regulated utility operations include retail and \dsale activities under the jurisdiction of statel éederal regulatory authorities

Investments and Otheris comprised primarily of BNI Coal, our coal miniogerations in North Dakota, ALLETE Properties, &lorida ree
estate investment, and ALLETE Clean Energy, ouinass aimed at developing or acquiring capital gutyj that create energy solutions
wind, solar, biomass, hydro, natural gas/liquithsls resources, clean coal and other clean enengyations. This segment also inclidethe
business development and corporate expenditusaaall amount of non-rate base generation, apprdeisné,100 acres of land in Minneso
and earnings on cash and investments.

ALLETE is incorporated under the laws of Minnesddaur corporate headquarters are in Duluth, MinreesBtatistical information is presen

as of December 31, 2012 , unless otherwise indic## subsidiaries are whollgwned unless otherwise specifically indicated. Reafees i
this report to “we,” “us” and “our” are to ALLETE its subsidiaries, collectively.

Year Ended December 31 201z 2011 201C

Consolidated Operating Revenue — Millions $961. $928.: $907.(

Percentage of Consolidated Operating Revenue

Regulated Operations 91% 92% 92%
Investments and Other 9% 8% 8%
10(% 10C% 10C%

For a detailed discussion of results of operatiand trends, see Item 7. Managememiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditior
Results of Operations. For business segment infitmmasee Note 1. Operations and Significant ActimgnPolicies and Note 2. Busin
Segments.

Regulated Operations

Electric Sales / Customers

Regulated Utility Electric Sales

Year Ended December 31 2012 % 2011 % 201C %

Millions of Kilowatt-hours
Retail and Municipals

Residential 1,132 9 1,15¢ 9 1,15( 9
Commercial 1,43¢ 11 1,43 11 1,43: 11
Industrial 7,502 57 7,36¢ 56 6,804 52
Municipals 1,02( 8 1,01z 7 1,00¢ 7
Total Retail and Municipals 11,09( 85 10,97( 83 10,39: 79
Other Power Suppliers 1,99¢ 15 2,20¢ 17 2,74¢ 21
Total Regulated Utility Electric Sales 13,08¢ 100 13,17¢ 100 13,13¢ 100

ALLETE 2012 Form 10-K
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Regulated Operations (Continued)

Seasonality

The operations of our industrial customers, whicdkenup a large portion of our sales portfolio aswahin the table above, are not typic
subject to significant seasonal variations. As sulte Minnesota Power is generally not subjectigmificant seasonal fluctuations in elec
sales; however, residential sales as comparedid 2@re down primarily due to unseasonably warmthexaduring the first four months

2012. Heating degree days in Duluth, Minnesota vapmoximately 22 percent lower than the first foonths of 2011.

Industrial Customers . In 2012 , our industrial customers representeghé&tent of total regulated utility kilowattur sales. Our industr
customers are primarily in the taconite miningniamncentrate, paper, pulp and wood products, gradife industries.

Industrial Customer Electric Sales

Year Ended December 31 201z % 2011 % 201c¢ %

Millions of Kilowatt-hours

Taconite/lron Concentrate 4,96¢ 66 4,87¢ 66 4,32¢ 64

Paper, Pulp and Wood Products 1,571 21 1,56( 21 1,57 23

Pipelines and Other Industrial 963 13 931 13 907 13
Total Industrial Customer Electric Sales 7,50z 100 7,36¢ 100 6,80¢ 100

Five Minnesota Power taconite customers produceoappately 75 percent of the iron ore produced hie U.S. according to the U.
Geological Survey 2011 Minerals Yearbook published in January 28h8es to taconite customers and iron concentte®mers represent
4,968 million kilowatt-hours, or 66 percent , ofrdatal industrial sales in 2012 . Taconite, amib@aring rock of relatively low iron content
abundantly available in northern Minnesota andmapoirtant domestic source of raw material for tleelsindustry. Taconite processing pl:
use large quantities of electric power to grinditba-bearing rock, and agglomerate and pelletieeitton particles into taconite pellets.

Minnesota Powes five taconite customers have the capability mdpce up to approximately 41 million tons of taderpellets annuall
Taconite pellets produced in Minnesota are prirpashipped to North American steel making facilitteat are part of the integrated s
industry. Steel produced from these North Ameritailities is used primarily in the manufacture aftomobiles, appliances, pipe and 1
products for the gas and oil industry, and in tbastruction industry. Historically, less than figercent of Minnesota taconite productio
exported outside of North America.

During 2012 , the domestic steel indussrproduction levels enabled Minnesota taconite yceds to operate at, or near, full capacity foi
entire year. According to the American Iron andeStastitute (AlSI), an association of North Amenc steel producers, U.S. raw s
production operated at approximately 75 percergphcity in 2012 , similar to 2011 levels of 75qat, and up from 70 percent in 2010.

ALLETE 2012 Form 10-K
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Regulated Operations (Continued)
Industrial Customers (Continued)

Annual taconite production in Minnesota remainadrgg at, or near, full production with 39 millioarts produced in both 2012 and 2011
from 35 million tons in 2010. The following tableflects Minnesota Power’s taconite customers’ petida levels for the past ten years.

Minnesota Power Taconite Customer Production
Year Tons (Millions)
2012* 39
2011 39
2010 35
2009 17
2008 39
2007 38
2006 39
2005 40
2004 39
2003 34
Source: Minnesota Department of Revenue DecemteX I2lining Tax Guide for years
2003 - 2011.
* Preliminary data from the Minnesota DepartmenRa&venue.

In addition to serving the taconite industry, Misota Power also serves a number of customers ipaper, pulp and wood products indus
which represented 1,571 million kilowatt-hours 2drpercent , of our total industrial sales in 20Edur major paper mills, which represent
majority of this load, reported operating at, oandull capacity for the majority of 2012 .

Large Power Customer Contracts.Minnesota Power has 9 Large Power Customer costraath serving requirements of 10 MW or mo
customer load. The customers consist of five taeopioducing facilities (two of which are owned tige company and are served unc
single contract), one iron nugget plant, and fapgr and pulp mills.

Large Power Customer contracts require MinnesoteePto have a certain amount of generating capasi@lable. In turn, each Large Po
Customer is required to pay a minimum monthly dednalmarge that covers the fixed costs associateu lwaving this capacity available
serve the customer, including a return on commantggMost contracts allow customers to establisb kevel of megawatts subject t
demand charge on a four-month basis and requiteatlpertion of their megawatt needs be committecadake-orpay basis for at leas
portion of the term of the agreement. In additiothte demand charge, each Large Power Customéleid &n energy charge for each kilowatt
hour used that recovers the variable costs incumegenerating electricity. Three of the Large Pov@eistomers have interruptible sen
which provides a discounted demand rate in exchémgthe ability to interrupt the customers durisgstem emergencies. Minnesota Pc¢
also provides incremental production service fastomer demand levels above the contractual talaprevels. There is no demand chi
for this service and energy is priced at an increnabove Minnesota Power’s cost. Incremental probdaervice is interruptible.

All contracts with Large Power Customers continastpthe contract termination date unless the redquadvance notice of cancellation
been given. The required advance notice of cariteilavaries from one to four years. Such contraisimize the impact on earnings t
otherwise would result from significant reductianskilowatt-hour sales to such customers. Large Power Custamnensequired to take all
their purchased electric service requirements fMimnesota Power for the duration of their contradise rates and corresponding reve
associated with capacity and energy provided utisese contracts are subject to change throughathe segulatory process governing all r
electric rates. (See Item 1. Business — Regulafmtalions — Regulatory Matters — Electric Rates.)

ALLETE 2012 Form 10-K
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Regulated Operations (Continued)
Large Power Customer Contracts (Continued)

Minnesota Power, as permitted by the MPUC, requiseaconiteproducing Large Power Customers to pay weekly fectdc usage based
monthly energy usage estimates. These customeriveeestimated bills based on Minnesota Powerisnas¢ of the customes’energy usag
forecasted energy prices, and fuel clause adjustmsiimates. Minnesota Power’s four tacomiteducing Large Power Customers t
generally predictable energy usage on a week-tdWwasis, and any differences that occur are tryethe following month.

Contract Status for Minnesota Power Large Power Cu®mers
As of February 1, 2013

Earliest

Customer Industry  Location Ownership Termination Date
ArcelorMittal — Minorca Ming(a) Taconite  Virginia, MN ArcelorMittal January 31, 201
Hibbing Taconite Co(a) Taconite Hibbing, MN 62.3% ArcelorMittal January 31, 201

23.0% Cliffs Natural Resources Inc.

14.7% USS Corporation
United Taconite LLQa) Taconite  Eveleth, MN Cliffs Natural Resources Inc. January 31, 201
USS Corporation Taconite Mt. Iron, MN and USS Corporation January 31, 201
(USS — Minnesota Orda,b) Keewatin, MN
Mesabi Nugget Iron NuggeiHoyt Lakes, MN 80% Steel Dynamics, Inc. December 31, 201

20% Kobe Steel USA
Boise White Paper, LLC Paper International FaHs| Boise Paper Holdings, LLC January 31, 201
UPM, Blandin Paper Mil{a) Paper Grand Rapids, MN UPM-Kymmene Corporation January 31, 201
NewPage Corporation — Duluth Paper and Duluth, MN NewPage Corporation December 31, 20z
Mill (c) Pulp
Sappi Cloquet LLQa) Paper and Cloquet, MN Sappi Limited January 31, 201

Pulp

(@) The contract will terminate four years from the elaf written notice from either Minnesota Poweltloe customer. No notice of contract cancellatios
been given by either party. Thus, the earliest déancellation is January 31, 2017.

(b) USS Corporation owns both the Minntac Plant in Maimlron, MN and the Keewatin Taconite Plant ineii&tin, MN.

(c) NewPage emerged from Chapter 11 bankruptcy in Deee@012. The Duluth mill operations continued withinterruption throughout the bankrup
proceedings and a new -year contract was approved by the MPUC in a DecenBe 2012 order. (See Note 1. Operations and 8aamit Accountin
Policies— Concentration of Credit Risk.)

Residential and Commercial Customersin 2012, our residential and commercial customers reptede?0 percent of total regulated uti
kilowatt-hour sales. Minnesota Power provides ratpd utility electric service in northeastern Misota to approximately 143,008sidentic
and commercial customers. SWL&P provides regulaiedtric, natural gas and water service in northe@rasWisconsin to approximate
15,000 electric customers, 12,000 natural gas mestoand 10,000 water customers.

Municipal Customers. In 2012 , our municipal customers represented 8guerof total regulated utility kilowatteur sales, which included
municipalities in Minnesota and 1 private utility Wisconsin. SWL&P is also a private utility in Wensin and a customer of Minnes
Power. The private noaffiliated utility in Wisconsin, which requires MW of average monthly demand, has submitted a ¢iatiom notice
with termination effective December 31, 2013. (8em 1. Business — Regulated Operations — Regylaatters.)

Other Power Suppliers.The Company also enters into off-system sales @ttier Power Suppliers. These sales are sold atatdaaked price
into the MISO market on a daily basis or throudhtkeral agreements of various durations.

Basin Power Sales AgreemeMinnesota Power entered into an agreement to 86IMW of capacity and energy to Basin for a y@ar perio
which began in May 2010. The capacity charge itham a fixed monthly schedule with a minimum ahmsgalation provision. The enel
charge is based on a fixed monthly schedule andgee for annual escalation based on our costalf fthe agreement allows us to recov
pro rata share of increased costs related to emns$hat may occur during the last five years efabntract.

ALLETE 2012 Form 10-K
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Regulated Operations (Continued)
Other Power Suppliers (Continued)

Minnkota Power Sales Agreemeln December 2009, Minnesota Power entered intovéepsales agreement with Minnkota Power. Unde
power sales agreement, Minnesota Power will spthréion of its output from Square Butte to Minnké&tawer, resulting in Minnkota Power’
net entittement increasing and Minnesota Powertsenéitiement decreasing until Minnesota Power’arghis eliminated at the end of 2025
(See Note 11. Commitments, Guarantees and Contiregeh

Power Supply

In order to meet our customers’ electric requiretsiane utilize a mix of Company generation and pased power. The Compasyjeneratio
is primarily coal-fired, but also includes approgitaly 91MW of hydroelectric generation from ten hydro sias in Minnesota, 317 MW
nameplate capacity wind generation, and 81 MW ofriaiss co-fired generation. Purchased power condistsgterm coal, wind and hyd
PPAs as well as market purchases. The followindetadflects the Company’s generating capabilitissoh December 31, 2012and tote
electrical output for 2012 . Minnesota Power haganual net peak load of 1,633 MW on July 2, 2012.

ALLETE 2012 Form 10-K
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Regulated Operations (Continued)
Power Supply (Continued)

Year Ended
Unit Year Net December 31, 2012
Regulated Utility Power Supply No. Installed Capability Generation and Purchases
MW MWh %
Coal-Fired
Boswell Energy Center 1 1958 68
in Cohasset, MN 2 1960 68
3 1973 362
4 1980 46€ (a)
96€ 6,484,091 48.6
Laskin Energy Center 1 1953 47
in Hoyt Lakes, MN 2 1953 5C
97 368,36: 2.8
Taconite Harbor Energy Center 1 1957 79
in Schroeder, MN 2 1957 7€
3 1967 84
23¢ 872,31 6.4
Total Coal 1,30z 7,724,777 57.8
Biomass/Coal/Natural Gas
Hibbard Renewable Energy Center in Duluth, MN 4& 1949, 1951 58 20,33: 0.2
Cloquet Energy Center in Cloquet, MN 5 2001 23 66,80: 0.5
Total Biomass/Coal/Natural Gas 81 87,13t 0.7
Hydro (b)
Group consisting of ten stations in MN Multiple  uNple 91 285,11¢ 2.1
Wind (c)
Taconite Ridge Energy Center in Mt. Iron, MN Mpla 2008 4 62,39: 0.5
Bison Wind Energy Center in Oliver and Morton Caest
ND Multiple  2010-2012 42 280,86 2.1
Total Wind 4€ 343,26. 2.6
Total Company Generation 1,52( 8,440,29: 63.2
Long-Term Purchased Power
Lignite Coal - Square Butte near Center, ND 1,630,771 12.2
Wind - Oliver County, ND 341,10! 2.6
Hydro - Manitoba Hydro in Winnipeg, MB, Canada 359,39! 2.7
Total Long-Term Purchased Power 2,331,271 175
Other Purchased Powgr) 2,577,64: 19.3
Total Purchased Power 4,908,92. 36.8
Total 1,52( 13,349,21 100.0

@)
(b)

(©

(d)

Boswell Unit 4 net capability shown above reflédisnesota Powe's ownership percentage of 80 percent. WPPI Enevgys®0 percent of Boswell U
4. (See Note 4. Jointly-Owned Facilities.)

In June 2012, record rainfall and flooding occurregar Duluth, Minnesota and surrounding areas intjpr Minnesota Pow(s hydro syster
particularly the Thomson Energy Center, which isrently offline due to damage to the forebay canal and flogda the facility. (See Item
Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial ConditiamdaResults of Operations - Outlook - Hydro Openadid

Taconite Ridge consists of 10 wind turbine generatots with a total nameplate capacity of 25 MWsds Wind Energy Center consists of 101 \
turbine generator units, with a total nameplate a&eipy of 292 MW. The net capability reflected ia thble is the actual accredited capacity of thelity,
which is the amount of net generating capabilitgasated with the facility for which capacity credias obtained using limited historical data. Asra
data is collected, actual accredited capacity magréase. Bison 1 was commissioned in December &0d January 2012 while Bison 2 and Bison 3\
commissioned in December 2012.

Includes shor-term market purchases in the MISO market and fraheOPower Supplier:
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Regulated Operations (Continued)

Fuel . Minnesota Power purchases low-sulfur, sitkminous coal from the Powder River Basin redmrated in Montana and Wyoming. C
consumption in 2012 for electric generation at Misota Power’s codired generating stations was approximately 4.6ioniltons. As @
December 31, 2012 , Minnesota Power had a coahtowe of 0.8 million tons. Minnesota Powertoal supply agreements have expire
dates through 2014. In 2013Minnesota Power expects to obtain coal underetitesl supply agreements and in the spot marketnésiot
Power also continues to explore other future coably options. We believe that adequate supplie®wfsulfur, subbituminous coal wi
continue to be available.

Minnesota Power also has transportation agreemiaentdace for the delivery of a significant portiaf its coal requirements. The

transportation agreements have expiration datesigfw 2015. The delivered costs of fuel for MinnasBbwers generation are recovers
from Minnesota Power’s utility customers through thel adjustment clause.

Coal Delivered to Minnesota Power

Year Ended December 31 201z 2011 201(
Average Price per Ton $29.5¢ $28.8¢ $25.4¢
Average Price per MBtu $1.64 $1.6( $1.42

Long-Term Purchased Power. Minnesota Power has contracts to purchase cgpacit energy from various entities, including otitfram
certain hydro and wind generating facilities.

Square Butte PPAJnder the longerm agreement with Square Butte, which expirdeeend of 2026, Minnesota Power is currently leatitc
50 percent of the output of a 455-MW cdiabéd generating unit located near Center, Nortlkda. (See Note 11. Commitments, Guarat
and Contingencies.) BNI Coal supplies lignite dmabquare Butte. This lignite supply is suffici¢mtprovide fuel for the anticipated useful
of the generating unit. Square Butte’s cost ofitgburned in 2012 was approximately $1.35 per MBtu

Minnkota Power PPAON December 12, 2012, Minnesota Power enteredaidtmgterm PPA with Minnkota Power. Under this agreer
Minnesota Power will purchase 50 MW of capacity #mel energy associated with that capacity overtéha June 1, 2016 through May
2020. The agreement includes a fixed capacity &angl energy pricing that escalates at a fixedaiateally over the term.

Oliver Wind | and Il PPAsin 2006 and 2007, Minnesota Power entered intolbmg-term wind PPAs with an affiliate of NextEra Energys.
to purchase the output from Oliver Wind | ( 50 M¥#Ad Oliver Wind 1l ( 48 MW) —wind facilities located near Center, North Dakdfact
agreement is for 25 years and provides for the ase of all output from the facilities at fixed eme prices. There are rfixed capacit
charges, and we only pay for energy as it is dedidéo us.

Manitoba Hydro PPAsMinnesota Power has a lomgrm PPA with Manitoba Hydro that expires in Ap2015. Under this agreeme
Minnesota Power is purchasing 50 MW of capacity tnedenergy associated with that capacity. Bottc#pacity price and the energy price
adjusted annually by the change in a governmentfiationary index.

Minnesota Power has a separate long-term PPA wisimitdba Hydro to purchase surplus energy throughil A922. This energynly
transaction primarily consists of surplus hydro rggeon Manitoba Hydro’s system that is deliveredMinnesota Power on a ndimm
basis. The pricing is based on forward market gritinder this agreement, Minnesota Power will pasehat least one million MWh of ene
over the contract term.

In May 2011, Minnesota Power and Manitoba Hydrmsija longerm PPA. The PPA calls for Manitoba Hydro to &80 MW of capacit
and energy to Minnesota Power for 15 years beginmn2020 and is subject to construction of addaiotransmission capacity betw:
Manitoba and the U.S., along with construction efvnhydroelectric generating capacity in Manitob@gStem 1. Business Regulate
Operations -Transmission and Distribution.) The capacity priceadjusted annually until 2020 by a change in gegumental inflationar
index. The energy price is based on a formulaittiides an annual fixed price component adjuste@ fthange in a governmental inflatior
index and a natural gas index, as well as marke¢gr
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Regulated Operations (Continued)
Transmission and Distribution

We have electric transmission drdistribution lines of 500 kV (8 miles), 345 kV92niles), 250 kV (465 miles), 230 kV (698 milesf11kV
(43 miles), 138 kV (128 miles), 115 kV (1,244 m)lesd less than 115 kV (6,233 miles). We own anerafe 170 substations with a t
capacity of 11,322 megavoltamperes. Some of oostnéssion and distribution lines interconnect vaither utilities.

CapX2020.Minnesota Power is a participant in the CapX202diaitive which represents an effort to ensure eiectransmission ar
distribution reliability in Minnesota and the suraling region for the future. CapX2020, which cstsbf electric cooperatives, municipal
investor-owned utilities, including Minnesaosalargest transmission owners, has assessed thEmission system and projected growt
customer demand for electricity through 2020. Stsdihow that the regiontransmission system will require major upgrades expansion
accommodate increased electricity demand as wellgort renewable energy expansion through 2020.

Minnesota Power is participating in thr@apX2020 projects: the Fargo, North Dakota to Sou@, Minnesota project, the Montice
Minnesota to St. Cloud, Minnesota project, whichetther total a 238 -mile, 348/ line from Fargo, North Dakota to Monticello, Miasote
and the 70 -mile, 230 kV line between Bemidji, Mésota and Minnesota PowgBoswell Energy Center near Grand Rapids, Minmesdi¢
28 -mile 345 kV line between Monticello and St. @lowas placed into service in December 2011 and/€hemile 230kV line betwee
Bemidji, Minnesota and Minnesota PoweBoswell Energy Center near Grand Rapids, Minesats placed into service in September Z
In June 2011, the MPUC approved the route permitife Minnesota portion of the Fargo to St. Cloudjgxt. The North Dakota permitti
process was completed on August 12, 2012. Theee?®i8 -mile, 345 kV line from Fargo to Monticellbbéxpected to be in service by 2015.

Based on projected costs of the three transmidgies and the allocation agreements among partingaitilities, Minnesota Power plans
invest between $100 million and $110 million in t@&ApPX2020 initiative through 2015. A total of $4&mlion was spent throug
December 31, 2012 , of which $37.3 million relatedhe Fargo, North Dakota to Monticello, Minnesptajects and $10.9 milliorelated ti
the Bemidji, Minnesota to Minnesota Power’'s Bosvisllergy Center project ( $27.8 million as of Decem®il, 2011 of whicl$20.4 millior
related to the Fargo, North Dakota to Monticelldnhesota projects and $7.4 million related to theeniglji, Minnesota to Minnesota Power’
Boswell Energy Center project). As future CapX2@6jects are identified, Minnesota Power may elegbarticipate on a project-kjyrojec
basis.

Great Northern Transmission LinAs a condition of the longerm PPA signed in May 2011 with Manitoba Hydronswuction of addition:
transmission capacity is required. (See Item 1l.if&ss — Regulated Operationdewer Supply.) In February 2012, Minnesota Powed
Manitoba Hydro proposed construction of the Greaitthern Transmission Line, a 500 kV transmissioe between Manitoba and Minneseta’
Iron Range, in order to strengthen the electrid,ggnhance regional reliability and promote a gneakchange of sustainable energy, whit
targeted to be in service in 2020. Total projedt@nd cost allocations are still to be determiniédte Great Northern Transmission Lin
subject to various federal and state regulatoryr@ams. In addition, Manitoba Hydro must obtain ukedory and governmental appros
related to new transmission lines and hydroelegeiteration development in Canada.

ATC Joint DevelopmenMinnesota Power and ATC are evaluating the joiretigpment of a 345 kV transmission line from Minogss Iror
Range to Duluth, Minnesota, for service after 20@nnecting to the Great Northern Transmission Lifleis is in addition to assess
transmission alternatives in Wisconsin that wouldvafor the movement of more renewable energyhia Upper Midwest while at the sa
time strengthening electric reliability in the regi Total project costs, ownership shares andattestation are still to be determined.

Investment in ATC

Rainy River Energy, our wholly-owned subsidiary,m@aapproximately 8 percent of ATC, a Wisconlsased utility that owns and mainte
electric transmission assets in parts of Wisconglichigan, Minnesota and lllinois. ATC rates areREEapproved and are based on a
percent return on common equity dedicated to yfgiant. We account for our investment in ATC unther equity method of accounting. As
December 31, 2012 , our equity investment in ATG Wa07.3 million ($98.9 million at December 31, 201 (See Note 6. Investment
ATC))
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Regulated Operations (Continued)
Investment in ATC (Continued)

In September 2012, ATC updated its yidar transmission assessment covering the yeagstB@dugh 2021 which identifies between $3.9
$4.8 billion in transmission system improvementsede investments by ATC are expected to be fundedigh a combination of interna
generated cash, debt and investor contributionpf®rtunities arise, we plan to make additionaégiments in ATC through general caj
calls based upon our pro rata ownership intereAflia.

In April 2011, ATC and Duke Energy Corporation annoed the creation of a joint venture, Dukmerican Transmission Co. (DATC) tl
intends to build, own and operate new electricanaission infrastructure in the U.S. and Canada. OAd subject to the rules and regulati
of the FERC, MISO, PJM Interconnection LLC and was other independent system operators and s@uatery authorities. In Septem!
2011, DATC announced its first set of proposeddnaission projects, which include seven new transionsline projects in five Midweste
states. The individual projects have a total costpproximately $4 billion. We intend to maintainrapproximate 8 percent ownership inte
in ATC.

Properties

We own office and service buildings, an energy aartenter, repair shops, and storerooms in variocalities. All of our electric plants ¢
subject to mortgages, which collateralize the amiding first mortgage bonds of Minnesota Power 8l &P. All of our generating plar
and most of our substations are located on regdgotp owned by us, subject to the lien of a morggaghereas most of our electric lines
located on real property owned by others with appabe easement rights or necessary permits fromergmental authorities. WPPI Ene
owns 20 percent of Boswell Unit 4. WPPI Energy tiesright to use our transmission line facilitiegriansport its share of Boswell generat
(See Note 4. Jointly-Owned Facilities.)

Regulatory Matters

We are subject to the jurisdictiarfi various regulatory authorities and other orgatians. The MPUC has regulatory authority over Miswt:
Powers service area in Minnesota, retail rates, retailises, capital structure, issuance of securidied other matters. The FERC
jurisdiction over the licensing of hydroelectricojgcts, the establishment of rates and chargeghirsale of electricity for resale ¢
transmission of electricity in interstate commeroertain accounting and recokdeping practices and ATC. The NERC has been ieettify
the FERC as the national electric reliability ongation and has jurisdiction over certain aspetth® Companys generation and transmiss
operations, including cybersecurity relating tdateility. The PSCW has regulatory authority over IS8’ s retail sales of electricity, natu
gas, water, issuances of securities, and otheersafthe NDPSC has jurisdiction over site and rpetenitting of generation and transmis:
facilities necessary for construction in North D&ko

Electric Rates.All rates and contract terms in our Regulated Ojmma are subject to approval by applicable reguaauthorities. Minnesao
Power designs its retail electric service ratesetdasn cost of service studies under which allooatiare made to the various classe
customers as approved by the MPUC. Nearly alllrstdés include billing adjustment clauses, whidjust electric service rates for change
the cost of fuel and purchased energy, recoverguofent and deferred conservation improvement mgrexpenditures and recovery
certain environmental, transmission and renewakperditures.

Information published by the Edison Electric Ingt ( Typical Bills and Average Rates Report — SummeR 20 Rankings — July 1, 201p
ranked Minnesota Power as having the fourth lowestage retail rates out of 169 utilities in th&UMinnesota Power had the lowest rate
Minnesota and second lowest in the region congistfiowa, Kansas, Minnesota, Missouri, North Dak@&outh Dakota and Wisconsin.

Minnesota Public Utilities Commission.The MPUC has regulatory authority over Minnesotav@ts service area in Minnesota, retail re
retail services, capital structure, issuance ofisees and other matters.

2010 Rate CaséMinnesota Power’s current retail rates are based 8611 MPUC retail rate order, effective JuneQl, 12, that allowed for
10.38 percent return on common equity and a 54e28emt equity ratio.
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Regulated Operations (Continued)
Regulatory Matters (Continued)

In February 2011, Minnesota Power appealed the MPlierim rate decision in the Compagsy2010 rate case to the Minnesota Cou
Appeals. The Company appealed the MP&Jfihding of exigent circumstances in the interiaterdecision with the primary arguments b
that the MPUC exceeded its statutory authority, enégldecision without the support of a body obrecevidence and that the decision viol;
public policy. The Company desires to resolve whethe MPUCS finding of exigent circumstances was lawful fpplcation in future rai
cases. In December 2011, the Minnesota Court okAlspconcluded that the MPUC did not err in findexggent circumstances and prop
exercised its discretion in setting interim rat@s. January 4, 2012, the Company filed a petitianréwiew at the Minnesota Supreme C
(Court). On February 14, 2012, the Court grantedpétition for review and oral arguments were Hudtbre the Court on October 9, 2017
decision is expected in early 2013; however, wanobpredict the outcome at this time.

PensionIn December 2011, the Company filed a petition whita MPUC requesting a mechanism to recover theafasapital associated w
the prepaid pension asset (or liability) createdh®y required contributions under the pension jiaexcess of (or less than) annual pen
expense. The Companywfther requested a mechanism to defer pension egpén excess of (or less than) those currentiygoeicovered |
base rates. On February 14, 2013, the MPUC dehee@bmpany's petition for recovery of the pensisgedand deferral of expenses outsic
a general rate case. The MPUC decision does natdntpe results of operations for the year endezkBéber 31, 2012.

ALLETE Clean Energyln August 2011, the Company filed with the MPUC #gproval of certain affiliated interest agreemdmtwee
ALLETE and ALLETE Clean Energy. These agreementateeto various relationships with ALLETE, includirthe accounting for cert¢
shared services, as well as the transfer of trasssom and wind development rights in North DakaiaALLETE Clean Energy. The
transmission and wind development rights are sépamad distinct from those needed by Minnesota Pdweneet Minnesota’ renewabl
energy standard requirements. On July 23, 2012MREIC issued an order approving certain adminisegatems related to accounting
shared services and the transfer of meteorolotpeadrs, while deferring decisions related to traission and wind development rights pent
the MPUC's further review of Minnesota Power’s figuetail electric service needs.

Bison Wind Energy CenteOur Bison Wind Energy Center in North Dakota catssif 292 MW of nhameplate capacity. The 82 MW Bid
wind facility was completed in two phases; thetfghase in 2010 and the second phase in Januag; 26& 105 MW Bison 2 and 105 M
Bison 3 wind facilities were completed in Decemp@t2. Total project costs for our Bison Wind Enefggnter were $473.3 million throu
December 31, 2012 . In September 2011 and Novegtddr, the MPUC approved Minnesota Powepetition seeking cost recovery
investments and expenditures related to Bison ZBaswh 3, respectively.

Current customer billing rates were approved byMiRJC in a November 2011 order and are based astments and expenditures assoc
with Bison 1. We anticipate filing a cost recovemstition with the MPUC in the first half of 2013 tgpdate customer billing rates for Bisa
and to include investments and expenditures adsodoieith Bison 2 and Bison 3.

Integrated Resource Plaln May 2011, the MPUC issued its final order appmgvour 2010 Integrated Resource Plan. As a candibf the
final order, a required baseload diversificationdst evaluating the impact of additional environna¢megulations over the next two dece
was filed on February 6, 2012. Minnesota Powertedrated Resource Plan to be filed on March 1, 2048 detail our “EnergyForward”
strategic plan (see Item 7. Management’s Discusginod Analysis of Financial Condition and Results @perations — Outlook-
EnergyForward), and will include an analysis ofaaiety of existing and future energy resource alitves and a projection of customer
impact by class.

Boswell Mercury Emissions Reduction PIMinnesota Power is required to implement a mereimnyssions reduction project for Boswell L
4 under the Minnesota Mercury Emissions Reductioth the Federal MATS rule. On August 31, 2012, Msuta Power filed its mercL
emissions reduction plan for Boswell Unit 4 witle tlMPUC and the MPCA. The plan proposes that MintaeBower install pollution contrc
by early 2016 to address both the Minnesota mereuamssions reduction requirements and the Federal $/rule. Costs to implement 1
Boswell Unit 4 mercury emissions reduction plan areluded in the estimated capital expenditures arel estimated to be betw
$350 million and $400 million. The MPCA has 180 gddag comment on the mercury emissions reduction, pldnich then is reviewed by 1
MPUC for a decision. We expect a decision by thdJ@PRon the plan in the third quarter of 2013. Afsgaproval by the MPUC we anticip.
filing a petition to include investments and expiéumgs in customer billing rates.
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Regulated Operations (Continued)
Regulatory Matters (Continued)

Transmission Investmentd/e have an approved cost recovery rider in placedaain transmission expenditures and the coetruse of ot
2009 billing factor was approved by the MPUC in M2A1. The billing factor allows us to charge oetiail customers on a current basis
the costs of constructing certain transmissionlifees plus a return on the capital invested. IneJ@011, we filed a request with the MPU(
approve an updated billing factor that includesitimtthl transmission expenditures, which we expedie approved in the first quarter of 20

Conservation Improvement Program (CIR)innesota requires electric utilities to spend aimum of 1.5 percent of gross operating reve
from service provided in the state on energy Chthe/ear. These investments are recovered fronh castomers through a combination of
conservation cost recovery charge included inlrbse rates and a conservation program adjustmith is adjusted annually through
CIP consolidated filing. The MPUC allows utilitié¢s accumulate, in a deferred account for futuret cesovery, all CIP expenditures, :
financial incentive earned for cost-effective pragrachievements, and a carrying charge on therddfaccount balance. Minnesaadlex
Generation Energy Act of 2007 introduced, in additto the minimum spending requirements, an ensayyag goal of 1.5 percent of gr
annual retail electric energy sales beginning ithgram year 2010. In June 2010, a triennial fikwvas submitted for 2011 through 2013,
was subsequently approved by the Minnesota DepattofeCommerce. Minnesota PoweICIP investment goal was $6.0 million for 2
($5.9 million for 2011; $4.6 million for 2010), viitactual spending of $6.8 million in 2012 ($6.3limil in 2011; $5.6 million in 2010).

In light of the changes in the Next Generation Bgekct of 2007, the MPUC adjusted the utility penfance incentive to recognize utilities
making progress toward and meeting the ensayngs goals established. This new incentive nréstrabecame effective beginning with
2010 program year. On March 30, 2012, Minnesotad?@aubmitted its 2011 CIP consolidated filing thatculated CIP financial incentiv
based upon the MPUEnew mechanism. The total requested incentive$#&as million in 2012 ($6.8 million in 2011 relatéd the 2010 ClI
consolidated filing). The requested CIP financialantive was approved by the MPUC in an order veckon November 27, 2012, and !
recorded as revenue and as a regulatory assetppmeved financial incentive will be billed in 2013

Rapids Energy CenteOn December 19, 2012, Minnesota Power filed with MPUC for approval to transfer the assets of Rafiderg
Center from non-rate base generation to MinnesoteelPs Regulated Operations. Rapids Energy Center &argtion facility that is located
the UPM, Blandin Paper Mill (Blandin). MinnesotaviRer and Blandin entered into a new electric seraigeeement in September 2012 wl
is also subject to MPUC approval. We expect a datisom the MPUC on these filings in mid-2013.

Federal Energy Regulatory CommissionThe FERC has jurisdiction over the licensing of togdectric projects, the establishment of rates
charges for transmission of electricity in intetstaommerce and electricity sold at wholesale (dicig the rates for our municipal custome
natural gas transportation, certain accounting r@ogrdkeeping practices, certain activities of our retpdautilities, and the operations
ATC. FERC jurisdiction also includes enforcementNERC mandatory electric reliability standards. Mitmns of FERC rules are potentit
subject to enforcement action by the FERC includingncial penalties up to $1 million per day pelation.

Minnesota Power’s non-affiliated municipal customeonsist of 16 municipalities in Minnesota anprilzate utility in Wisconsin. SWL&P,
wholly-owned subsidiary of ALLETE, is also a prieattility in Wisconsin and a customer of MinnesBtawer. Minnesota Power’s formula-
based contract with the City of Nashwauk is effexthpril 1, 2013 through June 30, 2024, and théated formulabased contracts with t
remaining 15 Minnesota municipal customers and S\WL&e effective through June 30, 2019. The ratelided in these contracts
calculated using a cobiased formula methodology that is set each Julysing estimated costs and a rate of return thagisal to oL
authorized rate of return for Minnesota retail ousérs (currently 10.38 percent). The formb&sed rate methodology also provides for a 'y
true-up calculation for actual costs incurred. Thatract terms include a termination clause rengia threeyear notice to terminate. Unt
the City of Nashwauk contract, no termination n®tinay be given prior to July 1, 2021. Under thdatesl contracts, no termination noti
may be given prior to June 30, 2016. A two -yearcedlation notice is required for the one privataffiliated utility in Wisconsin. Thi
customer submitted a cancellation notice with teation effective on December 31, 2013. ThevIW of average monthly demand provide:
this customer is expected to be used to supplyggrterprospective customers beginning in 2014.
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Regulatory Matters (Continued)

Public Service Commission of WisconsinThe PSCW has regulatory authority over SWL&IRetail sales of electricity, natural gas and w
issuances of securities and other matters.

During 2012, SWL&P’s retail rates were based orda@PSCW retail rate order, which was effectiveuday 1, 2011 . SWL&R 2013 reta
rates are based on a 2012 PSCW retail rate orflectiee January 1, 2013, and allows for a 19e9cent return on common equity. The

rates reflect an average overall increase of 2rdepe for retail customers (a 13.8 percent incréaseater rates, a 1.gercent increase
electric rates, and a 2.0 percent decrease inalaas rates). On an annualized basis, the ratease will generate approximaté$.7 millior
in additional revenue.

North Dakota Public Service CommissionThe NDPSC has jurisdiction over site and route [itimg of generation and transmission facili
in North Dakota.

Regional Organizations

Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator,rc. (MISO). Minnesota Power and SWL&P are members of MISO, giore
transmission organization. While Minnesota Powed &WL&P retain ownership of their respective traission assets, their transmiss
networks are under the regional operational cordfdlISO. Minnesota Power and SWL&P take and previcainsmission service under
MISO open access transmission tariff. MISO continiie efforts to standardize rates, terms, and

conditions of transmission service over its regiwhich encompasses all or parts of 11 states an€#madian province of Manitoba, and «
100,000 MW of generating capacity.

North American Electric Reliability Corporation (NE RC). The NERC has been certified by the FERC as themaltielectric reliabilit
organization. The NERC ensures the reliability aedurity of the North American bulk power systenheTNERC oversees eight regic
entities that establish requirements, approved gy EERC, for reliable operation and maintenancep@iver generation facilities a
transmission systems. Minnesota Power is subjeittese reliability requirements and can incur digant penalties for failing to comply wi
them.

Midwest Reliability Organization (MRO). Minnesota Poweis a member of the MRO, one of the eight regiomities overseen by t
NERC that is responsible for: (1) developing anglementing electricity reliability standards; (2)fercing compliance with those standa
(3) providing seasonal and long-term assessmerntediulk power systera’ability to meet demand for electricity; and (4pyding an appea
and dispute resolution process.

The MRO region spans the Canadian provinces ofdels&wan and Manitoba, all of North Dakota, Minnasdlebraska and the majority
South Dakota, lowa and Wisconsin. The region ingtuthore than 100 organizations that are involvetiénproduction and delivery of pov
to more than 20 million people. These organizationkide municipal utilities, cooperatives, invastavned utilities, a federal power market
agency, Canadian Crown corporations, independemépproducers and others who have interests ingliebility of the bulk power system.

Minnesota Legislation

Renewable Energln February 2007, Minnesota enacted a law requigiigoercent of Minnesota Powsrfotal retail and municipal enel
sales in Minnesota be from renewable energy solng@925. The law also requires Minnesota Powandet interim milestones of 12 perc
by 2012, 17 percent by 2016 and 20 percent by Z0R6.law allows the MPUC to modify or delay meetagnilestone if implementation w
cause significant ratepayer cost or technical bdifg issues. If a utility is not in compliance thia milestone, the MPUC may order the ut
to construct facilities, purchase renewable enengypurchase renewable energy credits. MinnesotaePowet the 2012 milestone and
developed a plan to meet the future renewable toiles which is included in its 2010 Integrated Rese Plan. The MPUC approved
Integrated Resource Plan in its order issued in RAyL. Minnesota Power will submit its next IntdégchResource Plan on March 1, 2013,
include an update on its plans and progress inintgetite Minnesota renewable energy milestones tir@025.
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Regulated Operations (Continued)
Minnesota Legislation (Continued)

Minnesota Power has taken several steps in execisimenewable energy strategy through key rentenatojects that will ensure we meet
identified state mandate at the lowest cost fotausrs. We have executed two loregm PPAs with an affiliate of NextEra Energy, Ifor
wind energy in North Dakota (Oliver Wind | and Ipther steps include Taconite Ridge, our 25 MW wiacility located in northeaste
Minnesota, and our 292 MW Bison Wind Energy Ceimédorth Dakota. Approximately 20 percent of then@any’s total retail and municip
energy sales will be supplied by renewable eneogyces in 2013.

Competition

Retail electric energy sales in Minnesota and Wisgoare made to customers in assigned servicgotexs. As a result, most retail elec
customers in Minnesota do not have the abilityitoose their electric supplier. Large energy usé& MW and above that are located out
of a municipality may be allowed to choose a swgplipon MPUC approval. Minnesota Power serves ¥9d Bower facilities over 10 M\
none of which have engaged in a competitive rategss. No other large commercial or small industiistomers in Minnesota Power’
service territory have attempted to seek a proviméside Minnesota Powaear’service territory since 1994. Retail electric avadural ga
customers in Wisconsin do not have the abilityHoase their energy supplier. In both states, howelectricity may compete with other for
of energy. Customers may also choose to genemitectivn electricity, or substitute other forms okegy for their manufacturing processes.

For the year ended December 31, 2012 , 8 percetiteoCompanys electric energy sales were to municipal custorrefdinnesota and
private non-affiliated utility in Wisconsin by coatt under a formul&ased rate approved by FERC. These customers hav@ght to seek ¢
energy supply from any wholesale electric servi@myidler upon contract expiration. (See Item 1. Bass — Regulated OperationRegulator
Matters.)

The FERC has continued with its efforts to pronmt@ore competitive wholesale market through opetess electric transmission and ¢
means. As a result, our electric sales to OtherdPduppliers and our purchases to supply our ratadl wholesale load are made in
competitive market.

Franchises

Minnesota Power holds franchises to construct aahta@in an electric distribution and transmissigatem in 94 cities. The remaining citi
villages and towns served by us do not requiraachise to operate. SWL&P serves customers witttredenatural gas and/or water systerr
1 city and 16 villages and towns.

Investments and Other

Investments and Other is comprised primarily of BMlal, our coal mining operations in North Dakaka] ETE Properties, our Florida re
estate investment, and ALLETE Clean Energy, ouinass aimed at developing or acquiring capital gutyj that create energy solutions
wind, solar, biomass, hydro, natural gas/liquidks|ls resources, clean coal and other clean enengyations. This segment also includ#sel
business development and corporate expenditusaaall amount of non-rate base generation, apprdeisné,100 acres of land in Minneso
and earnings on cash and investments.

BNI Coal

BNI Coal is a supplier of lignite in North Dakotaroducing about 4 million tons annually. Two elecigenerating cooperatives, Minnk
Power and Square Butte, presently consume virt@dlllgf BNI Coal’s production of lignite under a cost plus fixed @l supply agreeme
extending through 2026. (See Item 1. Business —uRtgyl Operations — Power Supply — Lofgrm Purchased Power and Note
Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies.) Thaegnprocess disturbs and reclaims between 200 88d@res per year. Laws require
the reclaimed land be at least as productive a&# prior to mining. As of December 31, 201BNI had a $11.0 million asset reclama
obligation ($10.3 million at December 31, 2011 ¢lided in other norurrent liabilities on our Consolidated Balance &h&hese costs ¢
included in the cost plus fixed fee contract, fdniethh an asset reclamation cost receivable was dedun other normurrent assets on ¢
Consolidated Balance Sheet. The asset reclamabitgation is guaranteed by surety bonds and arlefteredit. (See Note 11. Commitme!
Guarantees and Contingencies.) BNI Coal has lige&erves of an estimated 650 million tons.
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Investments and Other (Continued)
ALLETE Properties

ALLETE Properties represents our Florida real esimtestment. Our current strategy for the assets complete and maintain key entitlem
and infrastructure improvements without requiritgn#icant additional investment, sell the portfolivhen opportunities arise and reinves:
proceeds in our growth initiatives. ALLETE does imdend to acquire additional Florida real estate.

Our two major development projects are Town Cented Palm Coast Park. Another major project, Orm@naksings, is in the permitti
stage. The City of Ormond Beach, Florida, approaatbvelopment agreement for Ormond Crossings wihitHacilitate development of tt
project as currently planned. Separately, the L3kamp wetland mitigation bank was permitted on It was previously part of Ormc
Crossings. See Item 7. Management's DiscussiorAaaty/sis of Financial Condition and Results of Gyiems —Outlook for more informatic
on ALLETE Properties’ land holdings.

Seller Financing. ALLETE Properties occasionally provides seller finlg to certain qualified buyers. At December 2212, outstandin
finance receivables were $1.4 million, net of reesr with maturities through 2014. These finan@eirables accrue interest at markase:
rates and are collateralized by the financed piagzser

Regulation. A substantial portion of our development properiieBlorida are subject to federal, state and loegulations, and restrictions t
may impose significant costs or limitations on ability to develop the properties. Much of our pedy is vacant land and some is locate
areas where development may affect the naturaltdtabof various protected wildlife species or ims#gve environmental areas suct
wetlands.

ALLETE Clean Energy

In June 2011, we established ALLETE Clean Energyhally-owned subsidiary of ALLETE. ALLETE Clean Energy ogies independen
of Minnesota Power to develop or acquire capitalguts aimed at creating energy solutions via wandir, biomass, hydro, natural gas/ligt
shale resources, clean coal and other clean enengyations. ALLETE Clean Energy intends to martetelectric utilities, cooperative
municipalities, independent power marketers angel@nd-users across North America through l@mgy contracts or other sale arrangem
In August 2011, the Company filed with the MPUC é&mproval of certain affiliated interest agreemérgsveen ALLETE and ALLETE Cle;i
Energy. (See Item 1. Business — Regulated OpegatidRegulatory Matters.)

Non-Rate Base Generation

As of December 31, 2012 , non-rate base generationsists of 29 MW of generation at Rapids Energgt&e In 2012, we sold 0.1 millio
MWh of non-rate base generation (0.1 million in 2@&hd 0.1 million in 2010 ).

Net
Year Year Capability
Non-Rate Base Power Supply Unit No. Installed Acquired (MW)
Rapids Energy Centéa)
in Grand Rapids, MN
Steam — Biomasi) 6&7 1969, 1980 2000 28
Hydro — Conventional Run-of-River 4&5 1917, 1948 2000 1

(@) The net generation is primarily dedicated to thed®of one custome
(b) Rapids Energy Cent's fuel supply is supplemented by ¢

On December 19, 2012, Minnesota Power filed with MPUC for approval to transfer the assets of Rapidergy Center from namte bas
generation to Minnesota Power’s Regulated Operatfsee Iltem 1. Business — Regulated Operationgul&ery Matters.).
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Environmental Matters

Our businesses are subject to regulation of enwisgrial matters by various federal, state and lacahorities. Currently, a number
regulatory changes to the Clean Air Act, the Clgdater Act and various waste management requirermrartainder consideration by b
Congress and the EPA. Minnesota Powddssil fuel facilities will likely be subject toegulation under these proposals. Our intentioto
reduce our exposure to these requirements by rieghapr generation portfolio over time to reduce liance on coal.

We consider our businesses to be in substantiabiante with currently applicable environmentalukdions and believe all necessary per
to conduct such operations have been obtained. t®wexpected future restrictive environmental reguients imposed through legislat
and/or rulemaking, we anticipate that potential emdgitures for environmental matters will be mateaad will require significant capit
investments. Minnesota Power has evaluated varégmwéronmental compliance scenarios using possiatges of future environmen
regulations to project power supply trends and ictpan customers. (See Item 7. ManagersebBiscussion and Analysis of Finan
Condition and Results of Operations — Outlook —rGyEorward.)

We review environmental matters on a quarterly asccruals for environmental matters are recontbdn it is probable that a liability F
been incurred and the amount of the liability carrdasonably estimated, based on current law astinextechnologies. Accruals are adjut
as assessment and remediation efforts progress additional technical or legal information becoma@silable. Accruals for environmer
liabilities are included in the Consolidated Balarheet at undiscounted amounts and exclude cfainrecoveries from insurance or ot
third parties. Costs related to environmental coimtation treatment and cleanup are charged to eepenless recoverable in rates f
customers.

Air. The electric utility industry is heavily regulatédth at the federal and state level to addressmissions. Minnesota Powsrgeneratin
facilities mainly burn low-sulfur western sub-bitimaus coal. All of Minnesota Power’'s coi@ed generating facilities are equipped v
pollution control equipment such as scrubbers, lhagses and low NQ technologies. Under currently applicable environtakregulations
these facilities are substantially compliant wigiplicable emission requirements.

New Source Review (NS. In August 2008, Minnesota Power received a Notdit¥iolation (NOV) from the EPA asserting violatis of the
NSR requirements of the Clean Air Act at Boswellitdri, 2, 3 and 4 and Laskin Unit 2. The NOV assé#rat seven projects undertake
these coafired plants between the years 1981 and 2000 shuaNe been reviewed under the NSR requirementgreidhe Boswell Unit
Title V permit was violated. In April 2011, MinnesoPower received a NOV alleging that two projecidertaken at Rapids Energy Cente
2004 and 2005 should have been reviewed under 8 Mquirements and that the Rapids Energy Cenfétfe V permit was violate
Minnesota Power believes the projects specifiethénNOVs were in full compliance with the Clean Aict, NSR requirements and applice
permits. Resolution of the NOVs will likely resitt civil penalties, which we do not believe will beaterial to our results of operations, anc
installation of additional pollution control equiemt, some of which is already planned or which lkesn completed to comply with ot
regulatory requirements. We are engaged in disoossvith the EPA regarding resolution of these emaftbut we are unable to estimate
expenditures, or range of expenditures that mayeleired upon resolution. Any costs of installindd@ional pollution control equipme
would likely be eligible for recovery in rates owane subject to regulatory approval in a rate pemting.

Cross-State Air Pollution Rule (CSAPRhN July 2011, the EPA issued the CSAPR, whiclaegy the EPAS 2005 CAIR. However, on Augt
21, 2012, a three judge panel of the District ofu@tbia Circuit Court of Appeals vacated the CSABRIering that the CAIR remain in effi
while a CSAPR replacement rule is promulgated. ERA and other parties to the case have until A#jl12013, to request that the Supr
Court review the matter. The CSAPR would have megustates in the CSAPR region, including Minnestmtaignificantly improve air quali
by reducing power plant emissions that contribatezone and/or fine particle pollution in otherteta The CSAPR did not directly require
installation of controls. Instead, the rule woulalvd required facilities to have sufficient emissaltowances to cover their emissions oi
annual basis. These allowances would have beecatdld to facilities from each statednnual budget and would also have been able
bought and sold.

The CAIR regulations similarly require certain e&to improve air quality by reducing power plamtigsions that contribute to ozone an
fine particle pollution in other states. The CAlR@created an allowance allocation and tradingyqanm rather than specifying polluti
controls. Minnesota patrticipation in the CAIR waayed by EPA administrative action while the EPAnpteted a review of air quall
modeling issues in conjunction with the developnafd final replacement rule. While the CAIR rensin effect, Minnesota participation
the CAIR will continue to be stayed. It remains etain if emission restrictions similar to thosent@ned in the CSAPR will become effect
for Minnesota utilities due to the August 2012 Biettof Columbia Circuit Court of Appeals decision.
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Environmental Matters (Continued)
Air (Continued)

Since 2006, we have significantly reduced emiss@neur Laskin, Taconite Harbor and Boswell geniegatinits. Based on our expec
generation, these emission reductions would hatisfisd Minnesota Power's S@and NOx emission compliance obligations with respe:
the EPAallocated CSAPR allowances for 2012. Minnesota Pawil continue to track the EPA activity related promulgation of a CSAF
replacement rule. We are unable to predict anytadadl compliance costs we might incur if the CSARRreinstated or if a CSAF
replacement rule is promulgated.

Regional Hazt. The federal Regional Haze Rule requires statssihonit SIPs to the EPA to address regional hagibilify impairment in 15
federallyprotected parks and wilderness areas. Under theirase of the Regional Haze Rule, certain latgigosary sources, put in ple
between 1962 and 1977, with emissions contributngsibility impairment, are required to instathession controls, known as Best Availe
Retrofit Technology (BART). We have two steam uyrigeswell Unit 3 and Taconite Harbor Unit 3, theg aubject to BART requirements.

The MPCA requested that companies with BA&iGible units complete and submit a BART emissiaostrol retrofit study, which wi
completed for Taconite Harbor Unit 3 in Novembe®&0The retrofit work completed in 2009 at Boswidtiit 3 meets the BART requireme
for that unit. In December 2009, the MPCA approtieel Minnesota SIP for submittal to the EPA forrgsiew and approval. The Minnes
SIP incorporates information from the BART emissi@ontrol retrofit studies that were completedeagiested by the MPCA.

In December 2011, the EPA published in the Fedeegjister a proposal to approve the trading prograthe CSAPR as an alternative
determining BART. However, as a result of the Aug®12 District of Columbia Circuit Court of Appeadecision to vacate the CSAPR (
CSAPR), Minnesota Power is now evaluating whetigmriicant additional expenditures at Taconite Harkb/nit 3 will be required to comg
with BART requirements under the Regional Haze Rliladditional regional haze related controls altémately required, Minnesota Pov
will have up to five years from the final rule pralgation to bring Taconite Harbor Unit 3 into comaplce with the Regional Haze R
requirements. It is uncertain what controls woulimately be required at Taconite Harbor Unit 3 enthis scenario. On January 30, 2!
Minnesota Power announced “EnergyForward’,strategic plan for assuring reliability, protegti affordability and further improvit
environmental performance. The plan includes ragiffaconite Harbor Unit 3 in 2015, subject to MPajgproval. (See Item 7. Management’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebsults of Operations — Outlook — EnergyForward.)

Mercury and Air Toxics Standards (MATS) Rule (fatyjnknown as the Electric Generating Unit Maximuroh#evable Control Technolo
(MACT) Rule)Under Section 112 of the Clean Air Act, the EPAdgquired to set emission standards for hazardoyso#lutants (HAPS) fc
certain source categories. The EPA published tied MATS rule in the Federal Register on Februd@y2D12, addressing such emissions
coaldired utility units greater than 25 MW. There arerently 187 listed HAPs that the EPA is requireeévaluate for establishment of MA
standards. In the final MATS rule, the EPA estdldi categories of HAPSs, including mercury, traceatseother than mercury, acid ga
dioxin/furans, and organics other than dioxin/fieahhe EPA also established emission limits forfitst three categories of HAPs, and w
practice standards for the remaining categoriefecddéd sources must be in compliance with the bylépril 2015. States have the authorit
grant sources a one-year extension. Minnesota Pasaernotified by the MPCA that they have approveiirdsota Powes request of &
additional year extending the date of compliancettie Boswell Unit 4 retrofit to April 1, 2016. Cqaiiance at our Boswell Unit 4 to addr
the final MATS rule is expected to result in capiexpenditures totaling between $350 million andd@G#illion through 2016. O
“EnergyForward”plan also includes the conversion of Laskin Unitant 2 to natural gas addressing the MATS requingsngSee Item
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@dition and Results of Operations — Outlook — BpEoprward.)

EPA National Emission Standards for Hazardous AaliRants for Major Sources: Industrial, Commerciahd Institutional Boilers ar
Process Heater. In March 2011, a final rule was published in Fesleral Register for industrial boiler maximum aetaible control technolo
(Industrial Boiler MACT). The rule was stayed betBPA in May 2011, to allow the EPA time to considdditional comments received. ~
EPA reproposed the rule in December 2011. On Januar@®2,2he United States District Court for the Dittof Columbia ruled that ti
EPA stay of the Industrial Boiler MACT was unlawfeffectively reinstating the March 2011 rule asdaciated compliance deadlines. A f
rule based on the December 2011 proposal, whichrsagdes the March 2011 rule, was released on Dexe2ib 2012. Major sources hi
three years to achieve compliance with the finkd.rilinnesota Power is in the process of asseshmgnpact of this rule on our affected u
including the Hibbard Renewable Energy Center aagid® Energy Center. Costs for complying with tinalfrule cannot be estimated at
time.
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Environmental Matters (Continued)

Minnesota Mercury Emissions Reduction . Under the 2006 Minnesota Mercury Emissions RedocdAct, Minnesota Power is requirec
implement a mercury emissions reduction projectBoswell Unit 4 by December 31, 2018. On August 2112, Minnesota Power filed
mercury emissions reduction plan for Boswell Univith the MPUC and the MPCA. The plan proposes Mhiainesota Power install polluti
controls to address both the Minnesota mercury garis reduction requirements and the Federal MAIIS, which also regulates merc
emissions. Minnesota Power's request of an additipgar extending the date of compliance for thevigsl Unit 4 retrofit to April 1, 2016, wi
approved by the MPCA. Costs to implement the BokWwelit 4 mercury emissions reduction plan are ideld in the estimated cap
expenditures required for compliance with the MAT& discussed above.

Proposed and Finalized National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS). The EPA is required to review the NAAQS every fixgars. If th
EPA determines that a statedir quality is not in compliance with a NAAQSethtate is required to adopt plans describing homilli reduce
emissions to attain the NAAQS. These state platendhclude more stringent air emission limitatians sources of air pollutants than
NAAQS. Four NAAQS have either recently been revisedre currently proposed for revision, as degctibelow.

Ozone NAAQSThe EPA has proposed to more stringently controissions that result in ground level ozone. In Jan2910, the EP.
proposed to revise the 2008 eight-hour ozone stdrated to adopt a secondary standard for the groteof sensitive vegetation from ozone:
related damage. The EPA was scheduled to decide tg02008 eighkour ozone standard in July 2011, but has sincewamed that it
deferring revision of this standard until 2013.

Particulate Matter NAAQ<The EPA finalized the NAAQS Particulate Matter stards in September 2006. Since then, the EPA hablishel
a more stringent 24-hour average fine particulatg¢ten (PM.s) standard; the annual PMstandard and the 2deur coarse particulate ma
standard have remained unchanged. The United Siatas$ of Appeals for the District of Columbia Giitremanded the annual PMstandar
to the EPA, requiring consideration of lower anmatahdard values. The EPA proposed new.R&tandards on June 14, 2012.

On December 14, 2012, the EPA confirmed in a findd that the current annual PMstandard, which has been in place since 1997 be
lowered, while retaining the current 24-hour BMstandard. To implement the new lower annual RMtandard, the EPA is also revis
aspects of relevant monitoring, designations amchijpéng requirements. New projects and permits hoasnply with the new lower standa
and compliance with the NAAQS at the facility levglgenerally demonstrated by modeling. To bridgettansition to the lower standard,
EPA is finalizing a grandfathering provision to aresthat projects and pending permits already wnalgare not unduly delayed.

Under the final rule, states will be responsibleddditional PM.smonitoring, which will likely be accomplished byleeation or repurposir
of existing monitors. States are expected to predsinment designations by December 2013, basatt@ady available monitoring data. -
EPA believes that most U.S. counties currentlyaalyemeet the new standard and plans to finalizeggdasons of attainment by Decem
2014. For those counties that the EPA does nogdats as having already met the requirements afeestandard, specific dates for requ
attainment will depend on technology availabilgtate permitting goals, potential legal challengred other factors.

SO, and NO,; NAAQS.During 2010, the EPA finalized new one-hour NAAQ®8 £0,and NO,. Ambient monitoring data indicates t
Minnesota will likely be in compliance with thesewn standards; however, the one-hour SRAAQS also require the EPA to evalu
modeling data to determine attainment. The EPAnadi$ied states that their SIPs for attainmenthef standard will be required to be subm
to the EPA for approval by June 2013 but will netrequired to include the evaluation of modelintadantil 2017.

In late 2011, the MPCA initiated modeling activitithat included approximately 65 sources within hdisota that emit greater than 100 tor
SO, per year. However, on April 12, 2012, the MPCA fieti Minnesota Power that such modeling had bespended as a result of
EPA’s announcement that the June 2013 SIP submittalfdwo longer require modeling demonstrations fates, such as Minnesota, wt
ambient monitors indicate compliance with the néandard. The MPCA is awaiting updated EPA guidaarmt will communicate with affect
sources once the MPCA has more information on Hmwstate will meet the EPA'SIP requirements. Currently, compliance with ¢hesv
NAAQS is expected to be required as early as 20t&.costs for complying with the final standardsraat be estimated at this tinr
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Environmental Matters (Continued)

Climate Change. The scientific community generally accepts thatssioins of GHGs are linked to global climate char@émate chanc
creates physical and financial risk. Physical risgsld include, but are not limited to: increasedlecreased precipitation and water leve
lakes and rivers; increased temperatures; andnteaesity and frequency of extreme weather everties& all have the potential to affect
Companys business and operations. We are addressing elimiaange by taking the following steps that alssuen reliable ar
environmentally compliant generation resources ¢etour customers’ requirements:

e Expand our renewable energy sup

» Provide energy conservation initiatives for ourtougers and engage in other demand side el

» Support research of technologies to reduce carbmessens from generation facilities and carbon sstration efforts; ar

« Evaluating and developing less carbon intense éugenerating assets such as efficient and fleriéaral gas generating faciliti

EPA Regulation of GHG EmissionIn May 2010, the EPA issued the final PreventidnSmnificant Deterioration (PSD) and Title
Greenhouse Gas Tailoring Rule (Tailoring Rule). Tladoring Rule establishes permitting thresholeiguired to address GHG emissions
new facilities, at existing facilities that undergmjor modifications and at other facilities chaesized as major sources under the Cleal
Act’'s Title V program. For our existing facilities, thale does not require amending our existing Til@perating permits to include Gk
requirements. However, GHG requirements are likelpe added to our existing Title V operating pésny the MPCA as these permits
renewed or amended.

In late 2010, the EPA issued guidance to permittinthorities and affected sources to facilitateriporation of the Tailoring Rule permitti
requirements into the Title V and PSD permittinggrams. The guidance stated that the project-spetifp-down BACT determinatic
process used for other pollutants will also be usedetermine BACT for GHG emissions. Through sespecific white papers, the EPA &
provided examples and technical summaries of GHGsom control technologies and techniques the E@#siders available or likely to
available to sources. It is possible that thesérobtechnologies could be determined to be BACTagroject-by-project basis.

On March 28, 2012, the EPA announced its proposgkedto apply CQ emission New Source Performance Standards (NSR&wdossil fuel-
fired electric generating units. The proposed Napfly only to new or rgowered units and were open for public commentujinoJune 2!
2012. It is anticipated that the EPA will issue Sfor existing fossil fuel-fired generating units the future. We cannot predict what GO
control measures, if any, may be required by susR Sl

Legal challenges have been filed with respect €0oERAS regulation of GHG emissions, including the TaigrRule. On June 26, 2012,
United States District Court for the District of IBmbia upheld most of the EP&\proposed regulations, including the TailoringdRcttiteria
finding that the Clean Air Act compels the EPA tgulate in the manner the EPA proposed. Commentket@ermitting guidance we
submitted by Minnesota Power and others and maddesssed by the EPA in the form of revised guidatacuments.

We are unable to predict the GHG emission compliarasts we might incur; however, the costs coulchbterial. We would seek recovery
any additional costs through cost recovery ridelis @ general rate case.

Water. The Clean Water Act requires NPDES permits be obthifrom the EPA (or, when delegated, from indigidstate pollution contr
agencies) for any wastewater discharged into nalegaaters. We have obtained all necessary NPDESitse including NPDES storm wa
permits for applicable facilities, to conduct oyresations.

Clean Water Act - Aquatic Organismia. April 2011, the EPA published in the Federal R&y proposed regulations under Section 316(
the Clean Water Act that set standards applicableobling water intake structures for the protectaf aquatic organisms. The propc
regulations would require existing large power daand manufacturing facilities that withdraw gezahan 25 percent of water from adja
water bodies for cooling purposes and have a ddsigike flow of greater than 2 million gallons pgay to limit the number of aqua
organisms that are killed when they are pinnedregahe facility’s intake structure or that arewdnainto the facilitys cooling system. Tl
Section 316(b) standards would be implemented girddPDES permits issued to the covered facilitidse Section 316(b) proposed t
comment period ended in August 2011 and the ER¥ligated to finalize the rule by June 27, 2013. &ve unable to predict the complia
costs we might incur under the final rule; howewbe costs could be material. We would seek regowémany additional costs through c
recovery riders or in a general rate case.
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Environmental Matters (Continued)
Water (Continued)

Steam Electric Power Generating Effluent Guidelings late 2009, the EPA announced that it will beiewing and reissuing the fede
effluent guidelines for steam electric stationse3dare the underlying federal water discharges ithigt apply to all steam electric stations.
expected that the EPA will publish the proposed nele in April 2013 and a final rule in 2014. Asrpaf the review phase for this new n
the EPA issued an Information Collection RequeSR{l in June 2010, to most thermal electric genegastations in the country, including
five of Minnesota Powes' generating stations. The ICR was completed abdhisied to the EPA in September 2010, for Boswlediskin
Taconite Harbor, Hibbard and Rapids Energy Ceiitiee. ICR was designed to gather extensive informatiothe nature and extent of all wi
discharge and related wastewater handling at ppleets. The information gathered through the ICR form a basis for development of
eventual new rule, which could include more retitricrequirements on wastewater discharge, fluedgssilfurization and wet ash hand
operations. We are unable to predict the costs igatrincur to comply with potential future wateisdharge regulations at this time.

Solid and Hazardous Waste.The Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1@g6lates the management and disposal of soli
hazardous wastes. We are required to notify the &H#azardous waste activity and, consequentlytjimely submit the necessary reports tc
EPA.

Coal Ash Management FacilitieMinnesota Power generates coal ash at all fivasotaalfired electric generating facilities. Two facilig
store ash in onsite impoundments (ash ponds) wigineered liners and containment dikes. Anothdititiastores dry ash in a landfill with
engineered liner and leachate collection systeno fawilities generate a combined wood and coaltlahis either land applied as an appr¢
beneficial use or trucked to state permitted ldisdfin June 2010, the EPA proposed regulationcéa@ combustion residuals generated b
electric utility sector. The proposal sought comteem three general regulatory schemes for coal@simments on the proposed rule were
in November 2010. It is estimated that the findé nwill be published in 2013. We are unable to prethe compliance costs we might inc
however, the costs could be material. We would see@very of any additional costs through costvecpriders or in a general rate case.

Employees

At December 31, 2012, ALL ETE had 1,361 employeésyhich 1,322 were full-time.

Minnesota Power and SWL&P had an aggregate 593oym@é who are members of IBEW Local 31. The cutdabuar agreements with IBE
Local 31 expire on January 31, 2014.

BNI Coal had 162 employees, of which 117 are memloédBEW Local 1593. The current labor agreemestiveen BNI Coal and IBE'
Local 1593 expires on March 31, 2014.

Availability of Information
ALLETE makes its SEC filings, including its annuaport on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10c@rent reports on Formig-and an'

amendments to those reports filed or furnishedyansto Section 13(e) or 15(d) of the Securitieshiaxnge Act of 1934, available free
charge on ALLETES website, www.allete.com, as soon as reasonabbtipable after they are electronically filed withfurnished to the SE!
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

As of February 15, 2013, these are the execuffieeos of ALLETE:

Executive Officers Initial Effective Date

Alan R. Hodnik, Age 53

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officerl-t BTE May 10, 2011
President and Chief Executive Officer — ALLETE May 1, 2010
President — ALLETE May 1, 2009
Chief Operating Officer — Minnesota Power May 8, 2007

Robert J. Adams, Age 50
Vice President — Business Development and Chidf Rfficer May 13, 2008
Vice President — Utility Business Development February 1, 2004

Deborah A. Amberg, Age 47
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Segretar January 1, 2006

Steven Q. DeVinck, Age 53
Controller and Vice President — Business Support December 5, 2009
Controller July 12, 2006

David J. McMillan, Age 51

Senior Vice President — External Affairs — ALLETE January 1, 2012
Senior Vice President — Marketing, Regulatory antlie Affairs — ALLETE January 1, 2006
Executive Vice President — Minnesota Power January 1, 2006

Mark A. Schober, Age 57
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer July 1, 2006

Donald W. Stellmaker, Age 55
Vice President, Corporate Treasurer August 19, 2011
Treasurer July 24, 2004

All of the executive officers have been employedibyfor more than five years in executive positions
There are no family relationships between any efakecutive officers. All officers and directore alected or appointed annually.

The present term of office of the executive offcéisted above extends to the first meeting of Board of Directors after the next anr
meeting of shareholders. Both meetings are schedoidviay 14, 2013.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

The risks and uncertainties discussed below, ak agebther information set forth in this Form KQ-could materially affect our busine
financial condition and results of operations ahdwd be carefully considered by stakeholders. fi$les and uncertainties in this section
not the only ones we face. Additional risks andestainties that we are not presently aware ofhat we currently consider immaterial, n
also affect our business operations.

Our results of operations could be negatively impaed if our Large Power Customers experience an ecomic downturn, incur work
stoppages or fail to compete effectively.

Our 9 Large Power Customers accounted for apprari;n®3 percent of our 2012 consolidated operatangenue (34 percent in 2011,

percent in 2010). One of these customers accouoteti2.3 percent of consolidated revenue in 2012§ercent in 2011; 12.5 percent
2010). These customers are involved in cyclicaligtdes that by their nature are adversely impabtedconomic downturns and are subje

strong competition in the marketplace. Many of targe power customers also have unionized workfowmhich put them at risk for wc
stoppages. In addition, the North American papelr @uip industry also faces declining demand duthéoimpact of electronic substitution

print and changing customer needs.

Accordingly, if our customers experience an ecomodownturn, incur a work stoppage (including stsikack-outs or other events), fail
compete effectively in the economy, or incur deseelademand for their product, there could be nadtadverse effects on their operations
consequently, could have a negative impact on esults of operations if we are unable to remarkedirailar prices the energy that wo
otherwise have been sold to such Large Power Cestom

Our utility operations are subject to an extensivdegal and regulatory framework under federal and sate laws as well as regulatior
imposed by other organizations that may have a netjge impact on our business and results of operatits.

We are subject to an extensive legal and reguldtammework imposed under federal and state lawutfinly regulations administered by
FERC, the MPUC, the PSCW, the NDPSC and the EP#edisas regulations administered by other orgaiomatincluding the NERC. The
laws and regulations relate to allowed rates afrrgtcapital structure, financings, rate and ctrsicture, acquisition and disposal of assets
facilities, construction and operation of genemtitransmission and distribution facilities (incingl the ongoing maintenance and relii
operation of such facilities), recovery of purcthg®wer costs and capital investments, approvahteQrated resource plans and prese
prospective wholesale and retail competition, amotingr things. Our transmission systems and eteg&neration facilities are subject to
NERC mandatory reliability standards, including esgecurity standards. Compliance with these staisdaray lead to increased opera
costs and capital expenditures. If we were founddbbe in compliance with these mandatory religbfitandards or other statutes, rules
orders, we could incur substantial monetary pezmkiind other sanctions, which could adversely affac results of operation§See Item
Business — Regulated Operations — Regulatory Majter

These laws and regulations significantly influerze operations and may affect our ability to recowests from our customers. We
required to have numerous permits, licenses, apfs@nd certificates from the agencies and otlgairdrations that regulate our business
believe we have obtained the necessary permie)di&s, approvals and certificates for our existipgrations and that our business is condi
in accordance with applicable laws; however, weusr@ble to predict the impact on our operatingltegtom the future regulatory activities
any of these agencies. Changes in regulations eoiintiposition of additional regulations could hawe adverse impact on our results
operations.

Our ability to obtain rate adjustments to maintaurrent rates of return depends upon regulatonoraatnder applicable statutes
regulations, and we cannot provide assurance #tatadjustments will be obtained or current auteatirates of return on capital will
earned. Minnesota Power and SWL&P, from time tcetifile rate cases with, or otherwise seek cosivexy authorization from, federal ¢
state regulatory authorities. If Minnesota Powed S8WL&P do not receive an adequate amount of iiefiin rate cases, including if rates
reduced, if increased rates are not approved onealyt basis or costs are otherwise unable to bevexed through rates, or if cost recovel
not achieved at the requested level, we may expezian adverse impact on our financial conditiesults of operations and cash flows.
are unable to predict the impact on our businedsr@sults of operations from future legislationr@gulatory activities of any of these agen
or organizations.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors (Continued)
Our operations could be adversely impacted by thehysical risks associated with climate change.

The scientific community generally accepts thatssions of GHGs are linked to global climate chamje/sical risks of climate change, s
as more frequent or more extreme weather events)gas in temperature and precipitation patternangds to ground and surface w
availability, and other related phenomena, coulécaifsome, or all, of our operations. Severe weatheother natural disasters could
destructive, which could result in increased coAtsextreme weather event within our utility seevigreas can also directly affect our ca
assets, causing disruption in service to customeesto downed wires and poles or damage to otheratipg equipment. These all have
potential to adversely affect our business andaijmers.

Our operations could be adversely impacted by inititives designed to reduce the impact of GHG emissis such as CO, from our
generating facilities.

Proposals for voluntary initiatives to reduce GHsbsh as CQ, a byproduct of burning fossil fuels, have been discdssghin Minnesote
among a group of Midwestern states that includesneota and in the United States Congress. Caatiiently the primary fuel source for
percent of the energy produced by our generaticigitias.

There is significant uncertainty regarding whethew laws or regulations will be adopted to redu¢¢GS and what affect any such law:
regulations would have on us. Future limits on Get@issions would likely require us to incur sigrdiitt increases in capital expenditures
operating costs, which if excessive, could resuthie closure of certain cofifed energy centers, impairment of assets, orratise materiall
adversely affect our results of operations, paldity if implementation costs are not fully recoable from customers.

Our operations pose certain environmental risks thaicould adversely affect our results of operationand financial condition.

We are subject to extensive environmental laws @gtllations affecting many aspects of our presedt fature operations, including
quality, water quality, waste management, reclammathazardous wastes and natural resources. Thesednd regulations can resul
increased capital, environmental emission allowaraging, operating and other costs, as a resubwofpliance, remediation, containment
monitoring obligations, particularly with regardlews relating to power plant emissions, coal ashwater discharge.

These laws and regulations could restrict the duffusome existing facilities, limit the use of serfuels required for the production
electricity, require additional pollution contraj@pment, require participation in environmentaligsion allowance trading, and/or lead to o
environmental considerations and costs, which cbaite a material adverse impact on our businegsatipns and results of operations.

These laws and regulations generally require usbtain and comply with a wide variety of environredricenses, permits, inspections
other approvals. Both governmental authorities pridate parties may seek to enforce applicablerenuiental laws and regulations.
cannot predict the financial or operational outcavhany related litigation that may arise.

Existing environmental regulations may be revised mew regulations seeking to protect the envirantmey be adopted or become applic
to us. Revised or additional regulations which leisuincreased compliance costs or additional apieg restrictions, particularly if those cc
are not fully recoverable from customers, couldehawmaterial adverse effect on our results of djpers:

We cannot predict the amount or timing of all fet@xpenditures related to environmental matteralme of the uncertainty as to applici
regulations or requirements. There is also unggstan quantifying liabilities under environmentalws that impose joint and several liabi
on all potentially responsible parties. Violationiscertain environmental statutes, rules and reguia could expose ALLETE to third pa
disputes and potentially significant monetary ptes| as well as other sanctions for non-compliance
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Item 1A. Risk Factors (Continued)

We rely on access to financing sources and capitalarkets. If we do not have access to sufficient cagl in the amounts and at the time
needed, our ability to execute our business plansiake capital expenditures or pursue other strategiactions that we may otherwise rel
on for future growth could be impaired.

We rely on access to capital markets as sourckguidity for capital requirements not satisfied byr cash flow from operations. If we are
able to access capital on satisfactory terms, Hilityato implement our business plans may be askfgr affected. Market disruptions o
downgrade of our credit ratings may increase tret obborrowing or adversely affect our ability docess capital markets. Such disrupt
could include a severe prolonged economic downtine financial distress of naaffiliated industry leaders of other electric ayilcompanie
or the financial services sector, deteriorationapital market conditions, or volatility in commugdprices.

The operation and maintenance of our generating falities involve risks that could significantly increase the cost of doing business.

The operation of generating facilities involves maisks, including startyp operations risks, breakdown or failure of faieiti, the depender
on a specific fuel source, inadequate fuel suppigvailability of fuel transportation, or the inghaf unusual or adverse weather conditior
other natural events, as well as the risk of peréorce below expected levels of output or efficiertlag occurrence of any of which could re
in lost revenues, increased expenses or both. Aifisignt portion of Minnesota Power’'facilities were constructed many years agt
particular, older generating equipment, even if ntehed in accordance with good engineering presticnay require significant cap
expenditures to continue operating at peak effyerThis equipment is also likely to require peitodpgrades and improvements du
changing environmental standards and technologidahinces. Minnesota Power could be subject to @ssisciated with any unexpec
failure to produce power, including failure causgdbreakdown or forced outage, as well as repanliengage to facilities due to storms, nal
disasters, wars, sabotage, terrorist acts and athgstrophic events. Further, our ability to sse@dly and timely complete capi
improvements to existing facilities or other cabfieojects is contingent upon many variables argjesu to substantial risks. Should any <
efforts be unsuccessful, we could be subject titiadd! costs and/or the write-off of our investrhénthe project or improvement.

Our electrical generating operations may not have @ess to adequate and reliable transmission and thibution facilities necessary tc
deliver electricity to our customers.

Minnesota Power depends on its own transmissiondistdbution facilities, and facilities owned byher utilities, to deliver the electric
produced and sold to our customers, and to othenggrsuppliers. If transmission capacity is inadggguour ability to sell and deliver electric
may be hindered. We may have to forgo sales or haase to buy more expensive wholesale electricipt ik available in the capacity-
constrained area. In addition, any infrastructaikife that interrupts or impairs delivery of ekégty to our customers could negatively img
the satisfaction of our customers with our serwaeich could have a material impact on our businegsrations or results of operations.

The price of electricity and fuel may be volatile.
Volatility in market prices for electricity and fueould adversely impact our results of operatiand financial condition and may result from:

* severe or unexpected weather conditions and natisaster:

* seasonality

» changes in electricity usay

» transmission or transportation constraints, indpiéity or inefficiencies

» availability of competitively priced alternative engy source:

» changes in supply and demand for ene

» changes in power production capac

e outages at Minnesota Pow&generating facilities or those of our competi

e availability of fuel transportatio

» changes in production and storage levels of nagas| lignite, coal, crude oil and refined prodj
» wars, sabotage, terrorist acts or other catastcaplents; ar

» federal, state, local and foreign energy, enviromiale or other regulation and legislati

Since fluctuations in fuel expense related to egufated utility operations are passed on to custsrinrough our fuel clause, risk of volati
in market prices for fuel and electricity primaritppacts our sales to Other Power Suppliers.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors (Continued)

The inability to attract and retain a qualified workforce including, but not limited to, executive offcers, key employees and employe
with specialized skills, could have an adverse effeon our operations.

The success of our business heavily depends oleddership of our executive officers and key emeésyto implement our business strat
The inability to maintain a qualified workforce landing, but not limited to, executive officers, keynployees and employees with special
skills, may negatively affect our ability to ser@iour existing or new customers, or successfullpaga our business or achieve our bus
objectives. Personnel costs may increase due t@etitme pressures or terms of collective bargajraigreements with union employees.
believe we have good relations with our membertB&W Local 31 and IBEW Local 1593, and have corisan place through January
2014, and March 31, 2014, respectively.

Market performance and other changes could decreagbe value of pension and postretirement benefit ph assets, which may result i
significant additional funding requirements and inaeased annual expenses.

The performance of the capital markets affectsveilaes of the assets that are held in trust tefgdfiture obligations under our pension
postretirement benefit plans. We have significanltgations to these plans and the trusts hold Bagmit assets. These assets are subj
market fluctuations and will yield uncertain retsynvhich may fall below our projected rates of retuA decline in the market value of
pension and postretirement benefit plan assetsdioatease the funding requirements under our liteplehs if asset returns do not reco
Additionally, our pension and postretirement benpfan liabilities are sensitive to changes in lies rates. As interest rates decrease
liabilities increase, potentially increasing behefkpense and funding requirements. Our pension pastietirement benefit plan costs
generally recoverable in our electric rates aswadlb by our regulators. However, there is no cetyaihat regulators will continue to allc
recovery of these rising costs in the future.

Emerging technologies may adversely affect our buséss operations.

While the pace of technology development has baereasing, the basic structure of energy productate and delivery upon which «
business model is based has remained substantiatifanged. The development of new commercially lgidabchnology in areas such
distributed generation, energy storage and enayggarvation could fundamentally change demanddorcarrent products and services.

We may be vulnerable to cyber attacks.

We could be subject to computer viruses, terroribreft and sabotage, which may disrupt our opematand/or adversely impagtir results ¢
operations. Our generation plants, fuel storagéitias, and transmission and distribution facégimay be targets of cybmmorist activitie
that could disrupt our ability to produce or distrie some portion of our energy products. We opéraa highly regulated industtigat require
the continued operation of sophisticated informmatiechnology systems and network infrastructure. t©chnology systems may be vulner:
to disability, failures or unauthorized access ttukacking, viruses, acts of war or terrorism atitbocauses. If our technology systems we
fail or be breached and we were unable to recavex fimely manner, we may be unable to fulfill icat business functions and sensit
confidential and other data could be compromisduclvcould have a material adverse effect on osulte of operations, financial condit
and cash flows.

The results from any acquisitions of assets or busésses made by us, or strategic investments that wey make, may not achieve tt
results that we expect or seek and may adverselyfa€t our financial condition and results of operatons.

Acquisitions are subject to uncertainties. If we anable to successfully manage future acquisitwnstrategic investments it could have
adverse impact on our results of operations. Otuahcesults may also differ from our expectatidog to factors such as the ability to ob
timely regulatory or governmental approvals, inédigm and operational issues and the ability tainenanagement and other key personnel.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors (Continued)

We may not be able to successfully implement ourrsttegic objectives of growing load at the utility,due to the inability of current and
potential industrial customers to obtain necessargovernmental permits in order to successfully implment expansion plans.

As part of our longerm strategy, we pursue new wholesale and retadd in and around our service territory. Currerithgre are sevel
companies in northeastern Minnesota that are inptbeess of developing natural resource-based gisojhat represent lortgrm growitl
potential and load diversity for Minnesota Powee3e projects may include construction of new itéesl and restarts of old facilities, bott
which require permitting and/or approvals to beadi#d before the projects can be successfully imetged. If a project cannot
implemented due to certain governmental (includingironmental) permits and approvals not beingiobth our longterm strategy and th
our results of operations could be adversely imgzhct

Weak real estate market conditions in Florida may ontinue to adversely affect our strategy to sell auFlorida real estate.

ALLETE intends to sell its Florida land assets wio@portunities arise. However, if weak market ctinds continue, the impact on our fut
operations would be the continuation of little to sales while still incurring operating expenseshsas community development dist
assessments and property taxes which could resatiritinued annual net operating losses at ALLET&pé&rties. The properties could alsc
at risk for impairment which could adversely impact results of operations. (See Note 1. Operat#orts Significant Accounting Policies
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets.)

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

A discussion of our properties is included in It&nBusiness and is incorporated by reference herein

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
A discussion of material legal and regulatory pestings is included in Item 1. Business and is ipotated by reference herein.

United Taconite Lawsuiin January 2011, the Company was named as a defeimda lawsuit in the Sixth Judicial District ftine State ¢
Minnesota by one of our customer{United Taconite, LLC) property and businessriogtion insurers. In October 2006, United Tacc
experienced a fire as a result of the failure ataie electrical protective equipment. The equiptm&nissue in the incident was not owtr
designed, or installed by Minnesota Power, but Msota Power had provided testing and calibrationicss related to the equipment. -
lawsuit alleges approximately $20 million in damsgelated to the fire. The Company believes thag# strong defenses to the lawsuit
intends to vigorously assert such defenses. Anuateelated to any damages that may result fromlahesuit has not been recorded a
December 31, 2012because a potential loss is not currently prabablreasonably estimable; however, the Compariguesd it has adequi
insurance coverage for potential loss.

We are involved in litigation arising in the nornwurse of business. Also in the normal courseusfriess, we are involved in tax, regula
and other governmental audits, inspections, ingastins and other proceedings that involve statefaderal taxes, safety, compliance \
regulations, rate base and cost of service issumsng other things. We do not expect the outconthasfe matters to have a material effec
our financial position, results of operations osltflows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Information concerning mine safety violations ohert regulatory matters required by Section 1508{ahe DoddFrank Wall Street Refor

and Consumer Protection Act and Item 104 of Reguie®-K is included in Exhibit 95 to this Form 10-K
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Part Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities
Our common stock is listed on the NYSE under thmlzyl ALE. We have paid dividends, without interiiopt on our common stock sir
1948. A quarterly dividend of $0.475 per share onapmmon stock is payable on March 1, 2013, tcsttegeholders of record éiebruary 1£
2013.

The following table shows dividends declared parshand the high and low prices of our commonkstocthe periods indicated as repol
by the NYSE:

2012 2011

Price Range Dividends Price Range Dividends
Quarter High Low Declared High Low Declared
First $42.49 $39.98 $0.4¢ $39.36 $36.33 $0.44:
Second $41.99 $38.03 0.4¢ $41.43 $37.87 0.44¢
Third $42.66 $40.33 0.4¢€ $42.10 $35.51 0.44¢
Fourth $42.09 $37.73 0.4¢ $42.54 $35.14 0.44¢
Annual Total $1.8¢ $1.7¢

At February 1, 2013, there were approximately 26, 6@mmon stock shareholders of record.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

2012 2011 201¢( 200¢ 200¢
Millions
Operating Revenue $961.. $928.: $907.( $759.: $801.(
Operating Expenses 806.( 778.2 771.2 653.1 679.2
Net Income 97.1 93.¢ 74.¢ 60.7 83.C
Less: Non-Controlling Interest in Subsidiariés) — (0.2 (0.5 0.3 0.t
Net Income Attributable to ALLETE 97.1 93.¢ 75.% 61.C 82.t
Common Stock Dividends 69.1 62.1 60.¢ 56.5 50.4
Earnings Retained in Business $28.( $31.7 $14.5 $4.5 $32.1
Shares Outstanding — Millions
Year-End 39.4 37.t 35.¢ 35.2 32.€
Average(b)
Basic 37.€ 35.2 34.2 32.2 29.2
Diluted 37.€ 35.4 34.2 32.2 29.2
Diluted Earnings Per Share $2.5¢ $2.65 $2.1¢ $1.8¢ $2.82
Total Assets $3,253. $2,876.( $2,6009.. $2,393.: $2,134.4
Long-Term Debt 933.€ 857.¢ 771.¢ 695.¢ 588.%
Return on Common Equity 8.€% 9.1% 7.€% 6.€% 10.7%
Common Equity Ratio 54% 5€% 5€% 57% 58%
Dividends Declared per Common Share $1.8¢ $1.7¢ $1.7¢ $1.7¢ $1.72
Dividend Payout Ratio 71% 67% 8C% 93% 61%
Book Value Per Share at Year-End $30.5( $28.7" $27.2¢ $26.3¢ $25.3%
Capital Expenditures by Segment
Regulated Operations $418.. $228.( $256.¢ $299.: $317.(
Investments and Other 14.C 18.¢ 3.€ 4. 5.¢
Total Capital Expenditures $432.. $246.¢ $260.( $303.7 $322.¢

(@) In 2011, the remaining shares of the ALLETE Prdpemol-controlling interest were purchase

(b) Excludes unallocated ESOP shar
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjiorcivith our consolidated financial statements antes to those statements and the
financial information appearing elsewhere in thépart. In addition to historical information, thellbwing discussion and other parts of
report contain forward-looking information that oives risks and uncertainties. Readers are cautitme forwardooking statements shot
be read in conjunction with our disclosures in thism 10-K under the headings: “Forward-Lookingt&taents” located on page 6 ariRisk
Factors” located in Item 1A. The risks and uncettes described in this Form ¥are not the only ones facing our Company. Addaiorisk:
and uncertainties that we are not presently awfrerathat we currently consider immaterial, magoahffect our business operations.
business, financial condition or results of operadicould suffer if the concerns set forth in hism 10-K are realized.

Overview

Regulated Operationsincludes our regulated utilities, Minnesota Powed &WL&P, as well as our investment in ATC, a Wissia-base!
regulated utility that owns and maintains electramsmission assets in parts of Wisconsin, Michigdimnesota and lllinois. Minnesota Po\
provides regulated utility electric service in ri@astern Minnesota to approximately 143,000 retetomers. Minnesota Power's nafiiiated
municipal customers consist of 16 municipalitiedMimnesota and private utility in Wisconsin. SWL&P is also a prieautility in Wisconsil
and a customer of Minnesota Power. SWL&P providegulated electric, natural gas and water servicedrthwestern Wisconsin
approximately 15,000 electric customers, 12,00Qinaatgas customers and 10,0@8@ter customers. Our regulated utility operatiomsude
retail and wholesale activities under the jurisdictof state and federal regulatory authoriti¢See ltem 1. Business — Regulated Operations
Regulatory Matters.)

Investments and Otheris comprised primarily of BNI Coal, our coal miniogerations in North Dakota, ALLETE Properties, &lorida ree
estate investment, and ALLETE Clean Energy, ouinass aimed at developing or acquiring capital gutyj that create energy solutions
wind, solar, biomass, hydro, natural gas/liquidks|ls resources, clean coal and other clean enengyations. This segment also includ#sel
business development and corporate expenditusaaall amount of non-rate base generation, apprdeisné,100 acres of land in Minneso
and earnings on cash and investments.

ALLETE is incorporated under the laws of Minnesddaur corporate headquarters are in Duluth, MinreesBtatistical information is presen
as of December 31, 2012 , unless otherwise indic## subsidiaries are whollgwned unless otherwise specifically indicated. Refees i
this report to “we,” “us” and “our” are to ALLETE its subsidiaries, collectively.

2012 Financial Overview
The following net income discussion summarizesragarison of the year ended December 31, 2012hgetgear ended December 31, 2011 .

Consolidated net income attributable to ALLETE 2012 was $97.1 million , or $2.58 per diluted shammpared to $93.8 million , &2.6¢
per diluted share, for 2011Net income for 2011 included the reversal of &@$8illion, or $0.18 per share, deferred tax lidgpitelated to

revenue receivable Minnesota Power agreed to fasggart of a stipulation and settlement agreenmeit$ 2010 rate case. Net income for 2
also included the recognition of a $2.9 million,%.08 per share, income tax benefit related tdwR&C approval of our request to defer
retail portion of the tax charge taken in 2010 kasy from the PPACA. Net income for 2012 reflecteidher cost recovery rider revenue

renewable tax credits and increased sales to alustrial customers. These increases were partadfiset by increased operation
maintenance, depreciation and interest expenseglhas higher costs under our Square Butte PR#niEgs per share dilution was $0.16

result of additional shares of common stock outlitemin 2012 . (See Note 12. Common Stock and BgePer Share.)

Regulated Operationsnet income attributable to ALLETE was $96.1 million2012 , compared to $100.4 million in 201Met income fc
2011 included the reversal of a $6.2 million, orl¥per share, deferred tax liability related t@eenue receivable Minnesota Power agre
forgo as part of a stipulation and settlement ages# in its 2010 rate case. Net income for 2014 misluded the recognition of a $2.9 milli
or $0.08 per share, income tax benefit relatechéoMPUC approval of our request to defer the regtaition of the tax charge taken in 2
resulting from the PPACA. Net income for 2012 reféal higher cost recovery rider revenue and renkeaala credits, and increased sale
industrial customers. These increases were pgroffibet by increased operating and maintenangqaegdetion and interest expenses, as wi
higher costs under our Square Butte PPA.

Investments and Otherreflected net income attributable to ALLETE of $indllion for 2012 , compared to a net loss of $&illion in 2011.
The increase in 2012 was primarily due to lowetestacome tax and interest expense, partially bffgeincreased business developn
expenses.
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2012 Compared to 2011
(See Note 2. Business Segments for financial redylisegment.)
Regulated Operations

Operating Revenue increased $22.5 million , or 3 percent , from 2@tiinarily due to higher cost recovery rider reveane transmissic
revenue, partially offset by lower fuel adjustmelatuse recoveries, lower revenue from our muniaipatomers and a 0.7 percelecreas
in kilowatt-hours sold.

Cost recovery rider revenue increased $22.1 mildoe to higher capital expenditures related to Bison Wind Energy Center a
CapX2020 projects.

Transmission revenue increased $7.3 million pritpatiue to higher MISO Regional Expansion Criteriad 8Benefits (RECB) reven
related to our investment in CapXx2020.

Fuel adjustment clause recoveries decreased $1liormiue to lower fuel and purchased power codtebatable to our retail ar
municipal customers. (Sé&perating Expenses - Fuel and Purchased Power Eggn

Revenue from our municipal customers decreased ili&n primarily due to period-over-period fluctions in the truewp for actue
costs provisions of the contracts. The rates irezluith these contracts are calculated using alstd formula methodology that is s¢
July 1 each year using estimated costs and a pderwactual costs the following year.

Revenue from Regulated Operations decreased $llidmuue to a 0.7 percent reduction in kilowattdhsales. The decrease in kilowatt
hour sales was primarily due to lower sales todesstial customers and Other Power Suppliers. Resalesales, as compared to 2(
were down primarily due to unseasonably warm weatleing the first four months of 2012; heating aegdays in Duluth, Minnesc
were approximately 22 percent lower than in thet fiour months of 2011. Total kilowatt-hour salesOther Power Suppliers decreaSed
percent from 2011. Sales to Other Power Suppliezssald at markebased prices into the MISO market on a daily basishroug!
bilateral agreements of various durations. Theseedses were partially offset by higher sales timdustrial customers, which increa
1.9 percent over 2011.

Quantity %
Kilowatt-hours Sold 201z 2011 Variance Variance
Millions
Regulated Utility
Retail and Municipals
Residential 1,132 1,15¢ (27) (2.3
Commercial 1,43¢ 1,43: 3 0.2
Industrial 7,502 7,36t 137 1.¢
Municipals 1,02( 1,01: 7 0.7
Total Retail and Municipals 11,09( 10,97( 12C 1.1
Other Power Suppliers 1,99¢ 2,20t (20€) (9.3
Total Regulated Utility Kilowatt-hours Sold 13,08¢ 13,17¢ (86) (0.7)

Revenue from electric sales to taconite customezsumted for 26 percent of consolidated operatavgmue in 2012 (26 percent in 2011
Revenue from electric sales to paper, pulp and wwwoduct customers accounted for 9 percent of dm@ed operating revenue 2012
(9 percent in 201). Revenue from electric sales to pipelines anémimdustrials accounted for 6 percent of constéidaperating reven
in 2012 (7 percentin 2011 ).

Operating Expensesincreased $19.1 million, or 3 percent, from 2011.

Fuel and Purchased Power Expernisereased $2.1 million , or 1 percent , from 2@timarily due to a $3.2 million increase in the aaity
component of our Square Butte PPA; the capacitypoomant is not recovered through our fuel adjustnudgnise. Fuel and purcha
power expense related to our retail and municipatamers is recovered through the fuel adjustmientse (se®perating Revenug
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2012 Compared to 2011 (Continued)
Regulated Operations (Continued)

Operating and Maintenance Expensereased $8.5 million , or 3 percent , from 2Q&imarily due to increased salary, benefit,
transmission expenses. Benefit expenses increadethrfly due to higher pension expense resultingmfrlower discount rate
Transmission expenses increased primarily duegbeniMISO RECB expense. These increases were [paditset by lower plant outag
and maintenance expenses in 2012.

Depreciation Expensacreased $8.5 million , or 10 percent , from 2@dflecting additional property, plant and equipmiengervice.

Interest Expense increased $4.0 million , or 11 percent , from 2@tiinarily due to higher average loterm debt balances, partially off
by higher AFUDC - Debt.

Income Tax Expenseincreased $7.2 million , or 17 percent , from 2@titnarily due to the nomecurring tax benefits recorded in 2011
the reversal of a $6.2 million deferred tax lidyilielated to a revenue receivable Minnesota P@agezed to forgo as part of a stipula
and settlement agreement in its 2010 rate cas¢hangcognition of a $2.9 million income tax behediated to the MPUC approval of «
request to defer the retail portion of the tax gealaken in 2010 resulting from the PPACA. The 2ibtdme tax expense was impactel
increased renewable tax credits over 2011.

Investments and Other

Operating Revenue increased $10.5 million , or 14 percent , from 2@tinarily due to a $10.8 million increase in reverat BNI Coa
BNI Coal, which operates under a cost plus fixed é®ntract, recorded higher revenue as a resultighfer expenses in 2012. (:
Operating Expense}

ALLETE Properties 2012 2011
Revenue and Sales Activity Acres (a) Amount  Acres(a) Amount
Dollars in Millions

Revenue from Land Sales — — 3 $0.4
Other Revenuéb) $2.1 0.¢
Total ALLETE Properties Revenue $2.1 $1.2

(@) Acreage amounts are shown on a gross basis, ingudetlands

(b) For the year ended December 31, 2012, Other Reviesheles wetland mitigation bank credit sales dfi$nillion. For the year ended December
2011, Other Revenue includes a $0.4 million foefkitleposit due to the transfer of property backAtd ETE Properties by deed-lieu of
foreclosure, in satisfaction of amounts previousked under lon-term financing receivables.

Operating Expenses increased $8.7 million, or 10 percent, from 201flenting higher expenses at BNI Coal%8.4 million primarily du
to higher repairs, fuel costs and new equipmergelgathese costs are recovered through the cosfipld fee contract. (Se@perating
Revenue) The remaining increase was primarily due to aighusiness development expenses. These increaseguartially offset by
$1.7 million pretax impairment charge taken at AOIEEProperties in 2011.

Interest Expense decreased $2.1 million, or 27 percent, from 20litnarily due to an increase in the proportion of ATE interes
expense allocated to Minnesota Power. We recoeddst expense for our Regulated Operations basdtiroresota Powes rate base a
authorized capital structure, and allocate the neimg balance to Investments and Other. Interegérse also decreased due to the re\
of interest accrued in previous years related toungertain tax positions.

Income Tax Benefits increased $4.8 million, or 63 percent, from 201# ¢l lower state tax expense. State income taxrnsepeas lowe
in 2012 primarily due to North Dakota income tagdits attributable to our North Dakota capital istveent, and recognized as a resL
ALLETE’s expected generation of future taxable imeoin excess of that generated by our Regulatedafipes.
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2012 Compared to 2011 (Continued)
Income Taxes — Consolidated

For the year ended December 31, 2012 , the eftetsix rate was 28.1 percent (27.6 percent for #s gnded December 31, 201the
effective tax rate for the year ended December2811, was lowered by 4.8 percentage points duédmbnrecurring reversal of tl
deferred tax liability related to a revenue rechigahat Minnesota Power agreed to forgo as paat &fpulation and settlement agreer
in its 2010 rate case, and by 2.2 percentage pdirggo the nomecurring income tax benefit related to the MPU@rapal of our reque
to defer the retail portion of the tax charge take2010 resulting from the PPACA). The increasehia effective tax rate from the y
ended December 31, 2011, was primarily due to @il honrecurring items above, which were offset by inceslienewable tax crec
in 2012. The effective tax rate deviated from thegugory rate of approximately 41 percent primadiye to deductions for AFUDC -
Equity, investment tax credits, renewable tax ¢sednd depletion, and in 2011, for the menurring items discussed above. (See Not
Income Tax Expense.)

2011 Compared to 2010
(See Note 2. Business Segments for financial rebylisegment.)
Regulated Operations

Operating Revenue increased $16.4 million, or 2 percent, from 20libnarily due to increased sales to our retail andhicipal customer
increased cost recovery rider revenue, higher élmlise recoveries, increased financial incentivedeu the Minnesota Conserval
Improvement Program, and implementation of findhiterates. These increases were partially offseidwer sales to Other Pov
Suppliers.

Revenue and kilowattour sales to retail and municipal customers iregda$21.5 million and 5.6 percent, respectivelpmfr201(
primarily due to a 8.2 percent increase in kilowaitr sales to our industrial customers and the emphtation of final retail rate
Increased revenue from those sales was offset Bg0a5 million and a 19.7 percent decrease in revemud kilowatthour sale:
respectively, to Other Power Suppliers. Sales toe©Power Suppliers are sold at markased prices into the MISO market on a ¢
basis or through bilateral agreements of variouatthns.

Quantity %
Kilowatt-hours Sold 2011 201cC Variance Variance
Millions
Regulated Utility
Retail and Municipals
Residential 1,15¢ 1,15(C 9 0.&
Commercial 1,43: 1,43: — —
Industrial 7,36¢ 6,80¢ 561 8.2
Municipals 1,01: 1,00¢ 7 0.7
Total Retail and Municipals 10,97( 10,39: 577 5.€
Other Power Suppliers 2,20t 2,74¢ (540 (29.9)
Total Regulated Utility Kilowatt-hours Sold 13,17¢ 13,13¢ 37 0.3

Revenue from electric sales to taconite customezsumted for 26 percent of consolidated operatavgmue in 2011 (24 percent in 20:
Revenue from electric sales to paper, pulp and wwoduct customers accounted for 9 percent of d@ed operating revenue in 2(
(9 percent in 2010). Revenue from electric salgsfgelines and other industrials accounted for fequat of consolidated operating reve
in 2011 (6 percent in 2010).

Cost recovery rider revenue increased $12.2 mildae to higher capital expenditures primarily rethto our Bison 1 and CapX2(
projects.

Fuel adjustment clause recoveries increased $6l@mior 8 percent, from 2010 due to an increas&ilowatt-hour sales and higher fi
and purchased power costs attributable to ourd @atdi municipal customers.
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2011 Compared to 2010 (Continued)
Regulated Operations (Continued)

Financial incentives under the Minnesota Consesmalinprovement Program increased $5.9 million ity a shared savings mode
recognize utility progress toward meeting the epeaving goal of 1.5 percent established in thetMBeneration Energy Act of 2007.

Wholesale rate revenue increased $5.6 million céfig higher rates.
Operating Expenses were consistent with 2010 overall.

Fuel and Purchased Power Experdecreased $18.5 million, or 6 percent, from 20ltharily due to a 23 percent reduction in MV
purchased and lower purchased power prices. In,2fddltional purchased power was required to mieetned major outages at Bosv
and Square Butte. Also included in 2010 was a #$%ldon charge for the writeff of a deferred fuel clause regulatory assetteeldo thi
2008 rate case. Fuel and purchased power expelasedréo our retail and municipal customers is veced through the fuel adjustm
clause (se®perating Revenueand increased due to higher kilowatt-hour salebése customers.

Operating and Maintenance Experisereased $9.2 million, or 3 percent, from 2010raniily reflecting increased property tax and bet
expense. Property tax expense increased $5.5 mdlie to more taxable plant and higher rates vijeleefits increased $4.0 primarily
to increased pension costs as a result of lowepdi# rates.

Depreciation Expensacreased $9.3 million, or 12 percent, from 201ftecting additional property, plant and equipmeanservice.
Interest Expenseincreased $3.5 million, or 11 percent, from 20lignarily due to higher long-term debt balances.

Income Tax Expense decreased $8.4 million, or 16 percent, from 20litharily due to the reversal of a $6.2 million deéet tax liability
related to a revenue receivable Minnesota Powerealgto forgo as part of a stipulation and settldnagmeement in its 2010 rate c:
increased renewable tax credits of $3.2 million #rerecognition of a norecurring $2.9 million income tax benefit relatedthe MPUC(
approval of our request to defer the retail portafrthe tax charge taken in 2010 resulting from BRACA. Also contributing to tt
decrease was a naeeurring income tax charge of $3.6 million resugtifrom the PPACA in the first quarter of 2010. ¢Sdote £
Regulatory Matters.)

Investments and Other
Operating Revenue increased $4.8 million, or 7 percent, from 2010esfng a $5.6 million increase in revenue at BNiaC partially

offset by a $0.9 million decrease in revenue at BLE Properties. BNI Coal, which operates underst ptus fixed fee contract, recort
higher sales revenue as a result of higher expen2f 1. (See Operating Expense.)

ALLETE Properties 2011 2010

Revenue and Sales Activity Acres (@) Amount Acres (a) Amount
Dollars in Millions

Revenue from Land Sales 3 $0.4 — —
Other Revenuéb) 0.9 $2.2
Total ALLETE Properties Revenue $1.2 $2.2

(&) Acreage amounts are shown on a gross basis, ingudetlands

(b) For the year ended December 31, 2011, Other Revimlieded a $0.4 million forfeited deposit due be transfer of property back to ALLE
Properties by deein-lieu of foreclosure, in satisfaction of amoumieviously owed under lortgrm financing receivables. For the year er
December 31, 2010, Other Revenue included a $0Qlibmpretax gain due to the return of se-financed property from an entity which filed
Chapter 11 bankruptcy in June 2009. Also includedd10 were $0.3 million of forfeited deposits $d3 million related to a lawsuit settlement.
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2011 Compared to 2010 (Continued)
Investments and Other (Continued)

Operating Expenses increased $7.0 million, or 9 percent, from 2010e&fng higher expenses at BNI Coal of $5.1 millmmmarily due ti
higher fuel costs; these costs were recovered gfirtlie cost plus fixed fee contract. ($2gerating Revenug The remaining increase
2011 was primarily attributable to higher businégsselopment, interest and investmeglited expenses. Also contributing to the incrd
expenses was a $1.7 million pretax impairment ehéagen at ALLETE Properties. In the fourth quade?011, an impairment analysis
estimated future undiscounted cash flows was caeduand indicated that the cash flows were not aaeqto recover the carrying basi
certain properties not strategic to our three mdmrelopment projects. These increases were puartitiset by a reduction in operati
expenses at ALLETE Properties.

Income Taxes — Consolidated

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the effetdiveate was 27.6 percent (37.2 percent for ttee gaded December 31, 2010).

effective tax rate for the year ended December2B11, was lowered by 4.8 percentage points duédmobnrecurring reversal of tl
deferred tax liability related to a revenue rechigahat Minnesota Power agreed to forgo as paat gfpulation and settlement agreer
in its 2010 rate case, and by 2.2 percentage pdirgsto the income tax benefit related to the MPApBroval of our request to defer
retail portion of the tax charge taken in 2010 Hasy from the PPACA. The decrease in the effectiae rate from the year enc
December 31, 2010, was due to the 2011 reoHring items above, and an increase in renewakleredits. The effective tax rate devi:
from the statutory rate of approximately 41 pergemiarily due to deductions for depletion, investihtax credits, and renewable
credits. (See Note 14. Income Tax Expense.)

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements and reldisdosures in conformity with GAAP requires ma@agnt to make various estimates
assumptions that affect amounts reported in theal@ated financial statements. These estimatesiasamptions may be revised, which

have a material effect on the consolidated findrstetements. Actual results may differ from thesémates and assumptions. These po
are discussed with the Audit Committee of our BoafrdDirectors on a regular basis. The followingresgent the policies we believe are n
critical to our business and the understandinguofresults of operations.

Regulatory Accounting. Our regulated utility operations are accountedriaaccordance with the accounting standards foeffexts of certai
types of regulation. These standards require wvsfect the effect of regulatory decisions in omahcial statements. Regulatory assets repr
incurred costs that have been deferred as thepratmble for recovery in customer rates. Regulaliahyilities represent obligations to m:
refunds to customers and amounts collected in fatewhich the related costs have not yet beenriecu The Company assesses qual
whether regulatory assets and liabilities meettiteria for probability of future recovery or defal. This assessment considers factors sui
but not limited to, changes in the regulatory eowiment and recent rate orders to other regulatétiesrunder the same jurisdiction. If fut
recovery or refund of costs becomes no longer fniebdahe assets and liabilities would be recogniredurrent period net income or ot
comprehensive income. (See Note 5. Regulatory Ma}te
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Critical Accounting Policies (Continued)

Pension and Postretirement Health and Life Actuarih Assumptions.We account for our pension and postretirement lieokligations it
accordance with the accounting standards for defoenefit pension and other postretirement plahes& standards require the use of se
important assumptions, including the expected lmrg: rate of return on plan assets and the disc@iat among others, in determining
obligations and the annual cost of our pension@ogiretirement benefits. In establishing the exgddngterm rate of return on plan ass
we determine the lonterm historical performance of each asset clagsisathese for current economic conditions, andzirg the targe
allocation of our plan assets, forecast the exple@tag-term rate of return. Our pension asset ation at December 31, 2012was
approximately 54 percent equity securities, 28 @etrcebt, 13 percent private equity, and 5 pergeaitestate. Our postretirement health
life asset allocation at December 31, 2012 , wasaimately 56 percent equity securities, 35 percet, and 9 perceptivate equity. Equit
securities consist of a mix of market capitalizatizes with domestic and international securitie2012 we used expected lotegm rates ¢
return of 8.25 percent in our actuarial determoratif our pension expense and 6.60 percent tof&%nin our actuarial determination of ¢
other postretirement expense. The actuarial detation uses an asset smoothing methodology forabotturns to reduce the volatility
varying investment performance over time. We review expected longerm rate of return assumption annually and wijuadit to respond 1
changing market conditions. A one-quarter percaarehse in the expected lotggm rate of return would increase the annual espdn
pension and other postretirement benefits by apmately $1.4 million , pretax.

The discount rate is computed using a yield cudjasted for ALLETES projected cash flows to match our plan charastiesi The yield cun
is determined using high-quality, long-term corgierbond rates at the valuation date. In 2012 , sezl wliscount rates of 4.54 percent drit
percentin our actuarial determination of our pension atitep postretirement expense, respectively. We wewaier discount rate annually &
will adjust it to respond to changing market coiodis. A onequarter percent decrease in the discount rate wioatdase the annual expe
for pension and other postretirement benefits yr@pmately $2.2 million, pretax. (See Note 15. Pension and Other Posmetint Benef
Plans.)

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets.We review our longived assets, which include the real estate asded& | ETE Properties, for indicato
of impairment in accordance with the accountingdgaids for property, plant and equipment on a gugrbasis.

In accordance with the accounting standards fopgnty, plant and equipment, if indicators of impaént exist, we test our real estate asse
recoverability by comparing the carrying amountité asset to the undiscounted future net cash fepected to be generated by the a
Cash flows are assessed at the lowest level ofifidgdrle cash flows, which may be by each land parcombining various parcels into b
sales, or other combinations thereof. Our consiaeraf possible impairment for our real estateeéssequires us to make estimates of ft
cash flows on an undiscounted basis. The undisedunture net cash flows are impacted by trendsfactdrs known to us at the time they
calculated and our expectations related to managesngest estimate of future sales prices, the holgargpd and timing of sales, the met
of disposition and the future expenditures necgssardevelop and maintain the operations, includasgnmunity development distr
assessments, property taxes and normal operattbmaimtenance costs. These estimates and expestatie specific to, and may vary amc
each land parcel or bulk sale. If the excess ofsmodinted cash flows over the carrying value of@pprty is small, there is a greater risl
future impairment in the event of such changesamdresulting impairment charges could be material.

Taxation. We are required to make judgments regarding thenpied tax effects of various financial transaci@nd our ongoing operation:
estimate our obligations to taxing authorities. §éh&ax obligations include income, real estatesaiels/use taxes. Judgments related to in
taxes require the recognition in our financial estaénts of the largest tax benefit of a tax positiat is “more-likely-than-notto be sustaine
on audit. Tax positions that do not meet the “mikely-than-not” criteria are reflected as a tax liability in accamde with the accounti
standards for uncertainty in income taxes. We keovaluation allowance against our deferred tartago the extent it is more-likely-thaot
that some portion or all of the deferred tax asadtsiot be realized.

We are subject to income taxes in various jurisghiet. We make assumptions and judgments each imep@eriod to estimate our income
assets, liabilities, benefits, and expenses. Judtgmend assumptions are supported by historicad dad reasonable projections.
assumptions and judgments include projections offitture federal and state taxable income, an@ stpportionment, to determine our ab
to utilize NOL and credit carryforwards prior toeth expiration. Significant changes in assumpticegarding future federal and state tax
income could require valuation allowances whichldaasult in a material impact on our results oéigtions.
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Outlook

ALLETE is an energy company committed to earnirfgqnancial return that rewards our shareholdersyvadifor reinvestment in our busines
and sustains growth. The Company has a key teng-objective of achieving minimum average earsipgr share growth of 5 percent per-
(using 2010 as a base year) and maintaining a ditiupedividend payout. To accomplish this, Minngsdower will continue to purs
customer growth opportunities and cost recovergrrapproval for environmental, renewable and trassion investments, as well as w
with legislators and regulators to earn a fair @fteeturn. In addition, ALLETE expects to pursuganenergyeentric initiatives that provic
long-term earnings growth potential, while at tlae time reduce our exposure to industrial eléstrgales. The new energentric pursuit
will be in renewable energy, transmission and odmargy-related infrastructure or infrastructureises.

We believe that, over the lorigrm, less carbon intensive and more sustainaldeggrsources will play an increasingly importanerim oul
nation’s energy mix. Minnesota Power has developed rerlewabources which will be used to meet regulageewable supply requireme
and is considering additional investments. In addjtin June 2011, we established ALLETE Clean Byern whollyowned subsidiary
ALLETE. ALLETE Clean Energy operates independemfiyMinnesota Power to develop or acquire capitajguts aimed at creating ene
solutions via wind, solar, biomass, hydro, natgas/liquids, shale resources, clean coal and afkan energy innovations. ALLETE Cle
Energy intends to market to electric utilities, peratives, municipalities, independent power mamsetind large endsers across Nol
America through longerm contracts or other sale arrangements, andb&ikbubject to applicable state and federal reguylaapprovals. Fc
wind development, we intend to capitalize on ousting presence in North Dakota through BNI Coal; DC transmission line and our Bi
Wind Energy Center. We have a long-term busineassgmce and established landowner relationshipsithNDakota.

We plan to make investments in transmission oppiiiés that strengthen or enhance the transmisgiith or take advantage of ¢
geographical location between sources of renewabkrgy and end users. This includes the Great Bortfiransmission Line and 1
CapX2020 initiative, as well as investments to eweaour own transmission facilities, investmentstimer transmission assets (individuall:
in combination with others), and our investmentAiNC. Transmission investments could be made by Esota Power or a subsidiary
ALLETE. (See Regulated Operations — Transmission.)

North American energy trends continue to evolvel aray be impacted by emerging technological, emwirental, and demand changes.
believe this may create opportunity, and we arelogiyy investing in other energgentric businesses related to energy infrastrucéime
infrastructure services. Our investment criterigufees on investments with recurring or contracteaknues, differentiated offerings
reasonable barriers to entry. In addition, investim&ould typically support ALLETE’s investment geacredit metrics and dividend policy.

Regulated Operations.Minnesota Power’s lonterm strategy is to be the leading electric engugyider in northeastern Minnesota
providing safe, reliable and cosbmpetitive electric energy, while complying witmvwronmental permit conditions and renew:
requirements. Keeping the cost of energy productiompetitive enables Minnesota Power to effectivatynpete in the wholesale po
markets and minimizes retail rate increases to Ine$intain the viability of its customers. As paft maintaining cost competitivene
Minnesota Power intends to reduce its exposuressiple future carbon and GHG legislation by restmjis generation portfolio, over tin
to reduce its reliance on coal. We will monitor amedliew proposed environmental regulations and ofmllenge those that add consider
cost with limited environmental benefit. Minnesd®awer will continue to pursue customer growth opjdties and cost recovery ric
approval for environmental, renewable and transonsmvestments, as well as work with legislatansl aegulators to earn a fair rate of ret
We project that our Regulated Operations will ranindts allowed rate of return in 2013.

Regulatory Matters. Entities within our Regulated Operations segmeatuarder the jurisdiction of the MPUC, the FERC log PSCW. Se¢
Item 1. Business — Regulated Operatiofi®egulatory Matters for discussion of regulatory terat within our Minnesota, FERC, Wisconsin
North Dakota jurisdictions

Industrial Customers. Electric power is one of several key inputs in theonite mining, iron concentrate, paper, pulp wodd products, ar
pipeline industries. In 2012 , 57 percent (56 perée 2011 ) of our Regulated Utility kilowaltteur sales were made to our industrial custo
in these industries.

Minnesota Power provides electric service to figeonite customers capable of producing up to apmately 41 million tons of taconi
pellets annually. Taconite pellets produced in Mswta are primarily shipped to North American staaking facilities that are part of 1
integrated steel industry. Steel produced fromdhésrth American facilities is used primarily inettmanufacture of automobiles, applian
pipe and tube products for the gas and oil industng in the construction industry. Historicallgs$ than five percent of Minnesota tacc
production is exported outside of North America.
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Outlook (Continued)
Industrial Customers (Continued)

There has been a general historical correlatiowdr U.S. steel production and Minnesota taconieyxtion. The World Steel Associati
an association of approximately 170 steel prodyceaonal and regional steel industry associatiansl steel research institutes represe
around 85 percent of world steel production, prigiedJ.S. steel consumption in 2013 will be simt@r2012. The American Iron and St
Institute (AISI), an association of North Americsteel producers, reported that U.S. raw steel mtomtuoperated at approximately 75 per
of capacity in 2012 (75 percent in 2011, 70 perdéeri2010). Based on these projections, 2013 taeqmibduction levels in Minnesota
expected to be similar to 2012. The following tatdflects Minnesota Power’s taconite customerstipodion levels for the past ten years.

Minnesota Power Taconite Customer Production

Year Tons (Millions)

2012* 39

2011 39

2010 35

2009 17

2008 39

2007 38

2006 39

2005 40

2004 39

2003 34
Source: Minnesota Department of Revenue DecemtgX [9lining Tax Guide for years
2003 - 2011.
* Preliminary data from the Minnesota DepartmenR#venue.

Our taconite customers may experience annual i@m&in production levels due to such factors amemic conditions, shoterm deman
changes or maintenance outages. We estimate thia¢ anillion ton change in our taconite customgngiduction would change our ann
earnings per share by approximately $0.03, netosfep marketing sales at 2012 yesnd prices. Changes in wholesale electric pric
customer contractual demand nominations could ilng@s estimate. Lon¢germ reductions in production or a permanent shavtrd of ¢
taconite customer may lead us to file a rate casedover lost revenues.

Similar to our taconite customers, Minnesota Posveaur major paper mills ran at, or very near, @@pacity for the majority of 2012. Simi
levels are expected in 2013.

Northshore Mining Compan. In November 2012, Cliffs Natural Resources Immaunced an idling of two small production lines &l of
2013 at its Northshore Mining Company (Northshdeag)lity in Silver Bay, Minnesota. Northshore hassite generation supplying most of
power needs at the Silver Bay facility and therefehe production idling at Northshore will not leaan adverse effect on Minnesota Power
sales to taconite customers.

Prospective Additional Loat Minnesota Power is pursuing new wholesale andldetils in and around its service territory. Cuthgrsevere
companies in northeastern Minnesota continue tgrpss in the development of natural resource bagects that represent lotgem growtt
potential and load diversity for Minnesota Powehe3e potential projects are in the ferrous andfameus mining and steel industries
include PolyMet, Mesabi Nugget, USS CorporatiopXpansion at its Keewatin taconite facility, EsSteel Limited Minnesota (Essar),
Magnetation. We cannot predict the outcome of tha®gects, but if these projects are constructedhnilsota Power could serve ug
approximately 600 MW of new retail or wholesaledoa
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Outlook (Continued)
Industrial Customers (Continued)

PolyMet. Minnesota Power has executed a long-term congviht PolyMet, a new industrial customer plannilgstart a coppemnickel anc
precious metal (noferrous) mining operation in northeastern MinnesBtelyMet began work on a Supplemental Draft Envinental Impac
Statement (SDEIS) in 2010. The SDEIS will addrasgrenmental issues, including those dealing witlhrad exchange between PolyMet
the U.S. Forest Service (USFS), which is criticatite mine site development. The EPA and the USk&( as lead agencies in the SC
process. Release of the SDEIS is expected in tehfalf of 2013, to be followed by a public reviewd comment period. Assuming succe:
completion of the SDEIS process and subsequerdrissuof permits, Minnesota Power could begin tgpsupetween 45 MW and 70 MW
load as early as 2015 through a 10-year power gugpitract that would begin upon start-up of theimg operations.

Mesabi NuggetThe construction of the initial Mesabi Nugget fagilis complete and production began in January020esabi Nugg:
continues to pursue permits for taconite miningvéiets on lands formerly mined by Erie Mining Coany and LTV Steel Mining Compa
near Hoyt Lakes, Minnesota. Upon receipt of pertutsine, Mesabi Nugget could mine and selpply its own iron ore concentrate abao
year later, which would result in increased eleafrioads above our current 20 MW I-term power supply contract with Mesabi Nug¢
which lasts at least through 2017. In the meantiesabi Nugget will receive iron ore concentratenfra new Mining Resources, LLC facil
located near Chisholm, Minnesota.

Keewatin Taconiteln February 2008, USS Corporation announced ieninto restart a pellet line at its Keewatin TataKeetac) processi
facility. If restarted, this pellet line, which h&®en idle since 1980, could bring 3.6 million tafsadditional pellet making capability
northeastern Minnesota and could result in ovelM&® of additional load for Minnesota Power. Projpermits have been received and sh
the project be approved by USS CorporasoBoard of Directors, construction activities couddmmence immediately thereafter v
production expected to begin approximately twchree¢ years later.

City of NashwaukOn May 1, 2012, the Company entered into a new dtarhased wholesale electric sales agreement with the of
Nashwauk for all of the Ci's electric service requirements, effective April2013 through June 30, 2024. A new Essar tacoait#itf/ is
currently under construction in the city of NashwaWinnesota. This facility will result in approxately 110 MW of additional load f
Minnesota Power. Essar has indicated plans fot-gpain mid2013, with pellet production beginning during trecaend half of the yee
resulting in a minimal impact on our results of @i®ns until late 2013. ALLETE believes Essar wilbve towards full production capac
levels during 2014. Under the terms of a facilitmsstruction agreement, Minnesota Power is coctitigi a 230 kV transmission syst
upgrade to serve the Essar load. This upgradepiscéad to cost approximately $35 million and isesited to be in service in April 2013
which time the City of Nashwauk will begin to prdei electric service for Essarnew taconite facility. Expansions for additiomelle!
production, production of direct reduced iron amdduction of steel slabs are also being consideeéuture years. In addition, on Febru
11, 2013, Essar announced a ten year iron oret pélieake agreement with ArcelorMittal. Under terms lué agreement Essar will supply
million tons of pellets annually to ArcelorMittakhich is expected to begin in late 2013.

Magnetation.In December 2011, the MPUC approved Minnesota Pawelectric service agreement with Magnetation. Msagion,
company in northeastern Minnesota, produces irerconcentrate from lowrade natural ore tailing basins, already minedkgtites and new!
mined iron formations. Magnetatianfacility near Taconite, Minnesota is fully opépatl with equipment additions currently underwayhe
facility.

In October 2011, Magnetation and integrated steadmaAK Steel Corporation (AK Steel), announcediatj venture, Magnetation LLC, unc
which construction activities for two new facilésienear Calumet and Coleraine, Minnesota, are éxgp¢o commence in 2013. The Calu
facility could come on line in late 2014 and theleéZaine facility shortly thereafter to supply irone concentrate to Magnetatismew pelle
plant that is under construction in Reynolds, IndiaConstruction of these new iron ore concenfaatiities could result in approximately
MW of additional load for Minnesota Power.
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Outlook (Continued)

EnergyForward. On January 30, 2013, Minnesota Power announcedrgigRerward”, a strategic plan for assuring reliability, protag
affordability and further improving environmentanormance. The plan includes completed and plamegstments in wind and hydroelec
power, the addition of natural gas as a generdtiehsource, and the installation of emissions @riechnology. Significant elements of
“EnergyForward” plan include:

e Major wind investments in North Dakota. Includidget210 MW of wind generation commissioned in Decen#®12, our total Bisc
Wind Energy Center now has 292 MW of nameplate cpésee Renewable Energy).

* Planned installation of approximately $350 to $40illion in emissions control technology at our Ba&swJnit 4 to further reduc
emissions of SQ, particulates and mercury. (See Item 1. BusineRggulated Operations — Regulatory MatteBoswell Mercur
Emissions Reduction Plan.)

» Planning for the proposed Great Northern Transimiskine to deliver hydroelectric power from northéanitoba by 2020. (See It
1. Business — Regulated Operations — Transmissidrastribution.)

e The conversion of our Laskin Energy Center framal to cleaneburning natural gas in 20:

» Retiring Taconite Harbor Unit 3, one of three caits at our Taconite Harbor Energy Center, in 2

Our “EnergyForward” initiatives are subject to régary approval, and will be included in Minnes®&awers Integrated Resource Plan tc
filed with the MPUC on March 1, 2013 (see Item LisBiess — Regulated Operations — Regulatory Matters

Boswell Mercury Emissions Reduction Plan. Minnesota Power is required to implement a meramjssions reduction project for Bosv
Unit 4 under the Minnesota Mercury Emissions Reiducand the Federal MATS rule. On August 31, 20MRynesota Power filed its merct
emissions reduction plan for Boswell Unit 4 witle tlMPUC and the MPCA. The plan proposes that MintaeBower install pollution contrc
by early 2016 to address both the Minnesota mereumssions reduction requirements and the Federal $/rule. Costs to implement 1
Boswell Unit 4 mercury emissions reduction plan @reluded in the estimated capital expenditures argl estimated to be betw
$350 million and $400 million. The MPCA has 180 gdag comment on the mercury emissions reduction, pldnich then is reviewed by 1
MPUC for a decision. We expect a decision by thdJ@PRon the plan in the third quarter of 2013. Afsgproval by the MPUC we anticip.
filing a petition to include investments and expéumgs in customer billing rates.

Renewable Energy . In February 2007, Minnesota enacted a law requiggercent of Minnesota Powerotal retail and wholesale ene
sales in Minnesota be from renewable energy solng@925. The law also requires Minnesota Powandet interim milestones of 12 perc
by 2012, 17 percent by 2016 and 20 percent by Z0R6.law allows the MPUC to modify or delay meetagnilestone if implementation w
cause significant ratepayer cost or technical bdifg issues. If a utility is not in compliance thia milestone, the MPUC may order the ut
to construct facilities, purchase renewable enengypurchase renewable energy credits. MinnesotaePowet the 2012 milestone and
developed a plan to meet the future renewable toiles which is included in its 2010 Integrated Rese Plan. The MPUC approved
Integrated Resource Plan in its final order issimetlay 2011. Minnesota Power will submit its nertdgrated Resource Plan on Marc
2013, and include an update on its plans and pssgremeeting the Minnesota renewable energy roibest through 2025.

Minnesota Power has taken several steps in exgcigimenewable energy strategy through key renwainjects that will ensure we meet
identified state mandate at the lowest cost fotarasrs. We have executed two lotegm PPAs with an affiliate of NextEra Energy, |rfor
wind energy in North Dakota (Oliver Wind | and Iipther steps include Taconite Ridge, our 25 MW wiadility located in northeaste
Minnesota, and our 292 MW Bison Wind Energy Cemédorth Dakota. Approximately 20 percent of then@any’s total retail and municip
energy sales will be supplied by renewable eneogyces in 2013.

North Dakota Wind DevelopmeiMinnesota Power uses our 468k, 250 kV DC transmission line that runs fromn@s, North Dakota,
Duluth, Minnesota to transport increasing amourftsvimd energy from North Dakota while gradually ghay out coabased electricil
delivered to our system over this transmissionfioen Square Butte’s lignite coal-fired generatingt.

Our Bison Wind Energy Center in North Dakota cotssid 292 MW of nameplate capacity. The 82 MW Bidonind facility was completed
two phases; the first phase in 2010 and the sepbade in January 2012. The 105 MW Bison 2 and 19% Bison 3 wind facilities we!
completed in December 2012. Total project costsolar Bison Wind Energy Center were $473.3 millitmough December 31, 2012In
September 2011, and November 2011, the MPUC apgrulenesota Powes’ petition seeking cost recovery for investments expenditure
related to Bison 2 and Bison 3, respectively.
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Renewable Energy (Continued)

Current customer billing rates were approved byMiRJC in a November 2011 order and are based astments and expenditures assoc
with our Bison Wind Energy Center through that pedriwe anticipate filing a cost recovery petitioiththe MPUC in the first half of 2013
update customer billing rates for subsequent imvests and expenditures since 2011.

Our current capital expenditures plan includes timtthl wind energy investments in North Dakota B1@& and 2017 to meet Minnesata’
25 percent renewable energy mandate by 2025 (spadity and Capital Resources Gapital Requirements). On January 2, 2013,
American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 extended thailability of the production tax credit for renella energy facilities that commet
construction by December 31, 2013. As a resultameeevaluating the acceleration of these investsn@mthat construction would commenc
2013.

Manitoba Hydro.Minnesota Power has a long-term PPA with Manitolyard for the purchase of 3@W of capacity and energy associe
with that capacity, which expires in April 20150 addition, Minnesota Power signed a separate With Manitoba Hydro to purchase surg
energy through April 2022 . This energy-only traoigm primarily consists of surplus hydro energy Manitoba Hydro$ system that
delivered to Minnesota Power on a nimm basis. The pricing is based on forward magkétes. Under this agreement with Manitoba Hy
Minnesota Power will be purchasing at least ondianilMWh of energy over the contract term.

In May 2011, Minnesota Power and Manitoba Hydrmeiyan additional lonterm PPA. The PPA calls for Manitoba Hydro to 280 MW oi
capacity and energy to Minnesota Power for 15 ybaginning in 2020. The capacity price is adjustadually until 2020 by a change i
governmental inflationary index. The energy priedased on a formula that includes an annual fixe@ component adjusted for a change
governmental inflationary index and a natural gadek, as well as market prices. The agreementhgasuto construction of additior
transmission capacity between Manitoba and Minrésdton Range. In addition, we are exploring otlegiional grid enhancements that wc
allow for the movement of more renewable energh&Upper Midwest while at the same time strengtigealectric reliability in the region.

Integrated Resource Plan . In May 2011, the MPUC issued its final order appmgvour 2010 Integrated Resource Plan. As a camdibif the
final order, a required baseload diversificationdst evaluating the impact of additional environna¢megulations over the next two dece
was filed on February 6, 2012. Minnesota Powertedrated Resource Plan to be filed on March 1, 2048 detail our “EnergyForward”
strategic plan (seEnergyForward), and will include an analysis of a variety of @iig and future energy resource alternatives gombjactior
of customer cost impact by class.

Transmission . We plan to make investments in transmission oppdiiés that strengthen or enhance the transmiggidnor take advantage
our geographical location between sources of reblwvenergy and end users. This includes the GresthBrn Transmission Line and
CapX2020 initiative, as well as investments to eeaour own transmission facilities, investmentstimer transmission assets (individuall:
in combination with others), and our investmenfifC. See also Item 1. Business — Regulated Opesatio

Hydro Operations. On June 19 and 20, 2012, record rainfall and flegdiccurred near Duluth, Minnesota and surroundiegs. The floodir
impacted Minnesota Power’s hydro system, partityifdre Thomson Energy Center, which is currentli¢tliofe due to damage to the forel
canal and flooding at the facility.

The Company has property insurance coverage of $iilion per occurrence and a deductible of $500,per event, providing coverage
water damage, equipment damage, and other structamaage at covered facilities. Damage to coveaailities, which includes significa
electrical, mechanical and facility infrastructal@mage at the Thomson facility, is estimated tagg@oximately $10 million, net of insurance.

The policy does not cover damage to land and eastractures, which includes the majority of thendge to the forebay canal at the Thon
facility. Minnesota Power is continuing to assepsams for rebuilding the forebay canal and islimse contact with the appropriate regula
bodies which oversee the hydro system operatiociding dams and reservoirs. Until that assessisecomplete, we are not able to fi
estimate the capital cost and schedule for remglthe forebay canal and resuming generation; hewyéased on a preliminary evaluation,
capital rebuild cost is estimated to be approxitga$dl5 million to $25 million. Any expenditures tebuild the forebay canal would
capitalized. Minnesota Power is working towardsimeing to partial generation from the Thomson EpeZgnter by the end of 2013 and to
generation by the end of 2014.
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Outlook (Continued)
Hydro Operations (Continued)

The Thomson facility represents approximately sceet of total company electric generation capabiktdditional purchased power expe
required due to the Thomson facility outage willrbeovered through our fuel adjustment clause. Waedat believe that this event will hav
material impact on our financial position or resuf operations.

Investments and Other

BNI Coal. In 2012, BNI Coal sold 4.4 million tons of coal34million tons in 2011 ) and anticipates 2013 saldl be similar to 2012 BNI
continues to operate under a cost plus fixed feeeggent extending through 2026.

ALLETE Properties ALLETE Properties represents our Florida real estavestment. Our current strategy for the assets complete ar
maintain key entitlements and infrastructure imgments without requiring significant additional @stment, sell the portfolio wh
opportunities arise and reinvest the proceeds ingoowth initiatives. If weak market conditions ¢mue for an extended period of time,
impact on our future operations would be the carmtiion of little or no sales while still incurrirgperating expenses and carrying costs su
community development district assessments andepippaxes, or impairments. ALLETE does not intéachcquire additional Florida re
estate.

Our two major development projects are Town Cented Palm Coast Park. Another major project, Orm@nakssings, is in the permitti
stage. The City of Ormond Beach, Florida, approaatbvelopment agreement for Ormond Crossings wihitHacilitate development of tt
project as currently planned. Separately, the L3kamp wetland mitigation bank was permitted on IHred was previously part of Ormc
Crossings.

Summary of Development Projects (100% Owned) Residential Non-residential
Land Available-for-Sale Acres (a) Units (b) Sq. Ft.(b,c)
Current Development Projects
Town Center 96& 2,48¢ 2,246,20!
Palm Coast Park 3,88¢ 3,55¢ 3,096,80!
Total Current Development Projects 4,85: 6,03¢ 5,343,001

Planned Development Project

Ormond Crossings 2,91/ 2,95( 3,215,001
Other

Lake Swamp Wetland Mitigation Project 3,04¢ (d) (d)
Total of Development Projects 10,81: 8,98¢ 8,558,001

(a) Acreage amounts are approximate and shown on adyasis, including wetland

(b) Units and square footage are estimated. Densityudtl out may differ from these estimat

(c) Depending on the project, n-residential includes retail commercial, noatail commercial, office, industrial, warehoustgrage and institutiona

(d) The Lake Swamp wetland mitigation bank is a peechitregionally significant wetlands mitigation bar\Wetland mitigation credits will be used
Ormond Crossings and are available-for-sale to digyers of other projects that are located in thenka service area.

In addition to the three development projects &ednhitigation bank, ALLETE Properties has 1,96Ga®f other land available-for-sale.

ALLETE Clean Energyln August 2011, the Company filed with the MPUC #ggproval of certain affiliated interest agreemedmt$wee
ALLETE and ALLETE Clean Energy. These agreementateeto various relationships with ALLETE, includirthe accounting for cert¢
shared services, as well as the transfer of trasssom and wind development rights in North DakaiaALLETE Clean Energy. The
transmission and wind development rights are sépamad distinct from those needed by Minnesota Pdweneet Minnesota’ renewabl
energy standard requirements. On July 23, 2012MREIC issued an order approving certain adminiseatems related to accounting
shared services and the transfer of meteorolotpears, while deferring decisions related to traission and wind development rights pent
the MPUC's further review of Minnesota Power’s figtuetail electric service needs.
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Outlook (Continued)

Income Taxes.ALLETE's aggregate federal and muttiate statutory tax rate is approximately 41 pdréen2012. On an ongoing ba:
ALLETE has certain tax credits and other tax adjgsits that reduce the statutory rate to the effectax rate. These tax credits
adjustments historically have included items sustinzestment tax credits, renewable tax creditsyyBE-Equity, domestic manufacturer’
deduction, depletion, as well as other items. Tireual effective rate can also be impacted by stezhd as changes in income from opera
before noneontrolling interest and income taxes, state adér tax law changes that become effective dutiegyear, business combinati
and configuration changes, tax planning initiatiaesl resolution of prior yeartix matters. Due primarily to increased renewadpectedits &
a result of additional wind generation, we expeateffective tax rate to be approximately 20 perden2013. We also expect that our effec
tax rate will be lower than the statutory rate oWer next ten years due to production tax credit#atable to our wind generation.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity Position. ALLETE is well-positioned to meet the Company’suidity needs. As of December 31, 201%e had cash and c:
equivalents of $80.8 million , $406.4 million inahable consolidated lines of credit and a debtdpital ratio of 46 percent.

Capital Structure. ALLETE's capital structure for each of the lastabryears is as follows:

Year Ended December 31 201z % 2011 % 201 %

Millions

Common Equity $1,201.( 54 $1,079.: 56 $976.( 55

Non-Controlling Interest — — — — 9.C 1

Long-Term Debt (Including Current Maturities) 1,018.: 46 863.: 44 785.( 44

Short-Term Debt — — 11 — 1.C —
$2,219.: 100 $1,943. 100 $1,771.( 100

Cash Flows.Selected information from ALLETE’s Consolidated t8taent of Cash Flows is as follows:

Year Ended December 31 201z 2011 201(
Millions
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period $101.: $44.¢ $25.%
Cash Flows from (for)
Operating Activities 239.¢ 2417 228.1
Investing Activities (420.7) (240.9 (250.9
Financing Activities 160.2 55.4 41.4
Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (20.9) 56.2 19.2
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period $80.¢ $101.: $44.¢

Operating Activities. Cash from operating activities was $239.6 million 2012 ( $241.7 million for 2011 ; $228.7 millidor 2010). Casl
from operating activities was similar to 2011 asdo cash contributions to pension and other pastreent benefit plans ($8.8 million in 2C
and $24.7 million in 2011) were offset by highesttecovery rider receivables in 2012 and incomeeéunds received in 2011.

Cash from operating activities was higher in 20dnt2010 primarily due to higher 2011 net incomimarily from our Regulated Operatic
segment, decreased cash contributions to our peasio other postretirement employee benefit pl&84.7 million in 2011 and $39.3 milli
in 2010), and increased customer deposits, paridfitet by a decrease in accounts payable andhigkientory balances.

Investing Activities. Cash used for investing activities was $420.1 omlifor 2012 ( $240.9 million for 2011 ; $250.9 nwilt for 2010). The
increase in cash used for investing activities ywamarily due to higher capital expenditures in 2Qdrimarily related to our Bison Wi
Energy Center.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)
Investing Activities (Continued)

Cash used for investing activities in 2011 was lothan 2010 primarily due to lower capital expendis in 2011 and the redemption of #
for $6.7 million in January 2011.

Financing Activities. Cash from financing activities was $160.2 millicor 2012 ( $55.4 million for 2011 ; $41.4 millionrf@010). The
increase in cash from financing activities in 2@d&s primarily due to increased proceeds from largitdebt and common stock issuances.

Cash from financing activities was higher in 20binpared to 2010 primarily due to increased procéexs the issuances of common st
partially offset by lower net proceeds of long-tesebt in 2011.

Working Capital . Additional working capital, if and when neede@ngrally is provided by consolidated bank lines&dit or the sale

securities or commercial paper. As of December2®81?2 , we had available consolidated bank linesredlit aggregating $406.4 millionof
which $150.0 million expires in January 2014, a@8Ck0 million expires in June 2015. In addition, &ve 0.9 milliororiginal issue shares
our common stock available for issuance throughesiDirect, our direct stock purchase and dividegidvestment plan, and.5 million
original issue shares of common stock availablésswance through a Distribution Agreement with KA@Gc. The amount and timing of futt
sales of our securities will depend upon marketd@ns and our specific needs.

Securities. We entered into a distribution agreement with KQ€c., in February 2008, as amended most recamthAugust 3, 2012, wi
respect to the issuance and sale of up to an aajgref 9.6 million shares of our common stock, aithpar value, of which 4.5 millioremair
available for issuance. For the quarter ended Dbeefil, 2012 , 0.4 milliorshares of common stock were issued under this @
resulting in net proceeds of $17.9 million (for tipearter ended December 31, 2011, no shares waredy For the year end&gcember 3.
2012, 1.3 million shares of common stock wereadsunder this agreement, resulting in net proceé€&53.1 million ( 0.4 millionshares fc
net proceeds of $16.0 millidor the year ended December 31, 2011). The shssaed in 2012 were, and the remaining shares maffieeec
for sale, from time to time, in accordance with teems of the amended distribution agreement putsisaRegistration Statement Nos. 333
170289.

For the year ended December 31, 2012 , we issuethlaof 0.5 millionshares of common stock through Invest Direct, theplByee Stoc
Purchase Plan, and the Retirement Savings and Swdlership Plan, resulting in net proceeds of $23IBon . These shares of common st
were registered under Registration Statement N8&.186515, 333-105225, 333-183051 and 333-162&3pectively.

On July 2, 2012, we issued $160.0 million of therfpany’s First Mortgage Bonds (Bonds) in the private phaest market in two series. (¢
Note 10. Sho-Term and LongFerm Debt.) On July 16, 2012, we used a portiothef proceeds from the sale of the Bonds to rede@g
million of 6.50 percent Industrial Development Reue Bonds and to repay outstanding borrowings dfGtnillion on our $150.0 million lir
of credit. The remaining proceeds were used to fuilitly capital expenditures and for general cogie purposes.

Financial Covenants. See Note 10. Short-Term and Long-Term Debt ffarination regarding our financial covenants.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements Off-balance sheet arrangements are discussedtan .. Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies.
Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments. ALLETE has contractual obligations and other cdtmrants that will need to |

funded in the future, in addition to its capitalperditure programs. Following is a summarized tadfleontractual obligations and ot
commercial commitments at December 31, 2012 .
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Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Less than 1to3 4t05 After
As of December 31, 2012 Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Millions
Long-Term Debt $1,613.( $129.¢ $258.: $127.¢ $1,097.:
Pension 202.¢ 31.2 99.¢ 71.¢ —
Other Postretirement Benefit Plans 53.¢ 7.€ 26.¢€ 19.7 —
Operating Lease Obligations 87.¢ 11t 32.4 15.7% 27.¢
Uncertain Tax Position&) — — — — —
Unconditional Purchase Obligatior{b) 576.7 125.: 179.: 82.¢ 189.:
$2,533. $305.¢ $596.: $317.¢ $1,314.!
(@) Excludes $2.7 million of n-current unrecognized tax benefits due to uncenairgarding the timing of future cash paymentstesato uncertain te
positions.

(b) Excludes the agreement with Manitoba Hydro expiiim@022, as this contract is for surplus energyyolso excludes the agreement with Mani
Hydro expiring in 2035, as our obligation undergtiiontract is subject to the construction of a loygeneration facility by Manitoba Hydro and addital
transmission capacity. Also, excludes Oliver | dhdis we only pay for energy as it is deliveredut (See ltem 1. Business — Regulated Operation
Power Supply.

Long-Term DebtOur long-term debt obligations, including loterm debt due within one year, represent the graigamount of bonds, no
and loans which are recorded on our ConsolidatddnBa Sheet, plus interest. The table above asstimegshe interest rates in effec
December 31, 2012 , remain constant through thairéng term. (See Note 10. Short-Term and Long-TBeht.)

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Pl:Our pension and other postretirement benefit plaigations represent our current estimai
employer contributions. Pension contributions Ww#él dependent on several factors including realiset performance, future discount rate
other actuarial assumptions, IRS and other regylaemuirements, and contributions required to d\Enefit restrictions for the pension pl:
Funding for the other postretirement benefit plansimpacted by realized asset performance, futiseodnt rate and other actua
assumptions, and utility regulatory requirementsese amounts are estimates and will change basadteal market performance, change
interest rates and any changes in governmentalatigns. (See Note 15. Pension and Other Postmetine Benefit Plans.)

Unconditional Purchase Obligation&lnconditional purchase obligations represent owra8g Butte, Manitoba Hydro and Minnkota Po\
minimum purchase commitments under coal and raitraects, and purchase obligations for certain eapitpenditure projects. (See Note
Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies.)

Under Minnesota Power’s PPA with Square Butte éxatnds through 2026, we are obligated to pay owrgta share of Square Buteost
based on our entitlement to the output of SquarkeBu455 MW coal-fired generating unit near Centéorth Dakota. Minnesota Power’
payment obligation will be suspended if Square &diils to deliver any power, whether produced orchased, for a period of one yi
Square Buttes fixed costs consist primarily of debt serviceeThble above reflects our share of future debticerhased on our outy
entitlement of 50 percent. (See Note 11. CommitsidBtiarantees and Contingencies.)

We have a PPA with Manitoba Hydro that expires priA2015. Under this agreement, Minnesota Powg@uighasing 50 MW of capacity ¢
the energy associated with that capacity. Bothctymacity price and the energy price are adjustedialy by the change in a governme
inflationary index.

On December 12, 2012, Minnesota Power enteredaintmgierm PPA with Minnkota Power. Under this agreenmidimnesota Power wi
purchase 50 MW of capacity and the energy assakiatth that capacity over the term June 1, 2016ubh May 31, 2020. The agreerr
includes a fixed capacity charge and energy prittiag escalates at a fixed rate annually overgha.t
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Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)

Credit Ratings . Access to reasonably priced capital markets gedéent in part on credit and ratings. Our seasitiave been rated
Standard & Poor’'s and by Moody’s. Rating agencigs lioth quantitative and qualitative measures tardening a companyg’ credit rating
These measures include business risk, liquiditit, rompetitive position, capital mix, financial abtion, predictability of cash flow
management strength and future direction. Soméefquantitative measures can be analyzed througiv &ey financial ratios, while tl
qualitative ones are more subjective. The disclosiithese credit ratings is not a recommendatidsuy, sell or hold our securities. Ratings
subject to revision or withdrawal at any time b #issigning rating organization. Each rating shdaldevaluated independently of any o
rating.

Credit Ratings Standard & Poor’s Moody'’s
Issuer Credit Rating BBB+ Baal
Commercial Paper A-2 pP-2
Senior Secured

First Mortgage Bond&) A- A2

(@) Includes collateralized pollution control bonc

Common Stock Dividends. ALLETE is committed to providing a competitivevitiend to its shareholders while at the same tiomalihg it:
growth. The Company’s lonterm objective is to maintain a dividend payouioratmilar to our peers and provide for future demd increase
In 2012 , we paid out 71 percent (67 percent in12080 percent in 201Pof our per share earnings in dividends. On Jan@a&r 2013, oL
Board of Directors declared a dividend of $0.476gb&re, which is payable on March 1, 2013, toedhalders of record at the close of busi
on February 15, 2013.

Capital Requirements
ALLETE’s projected capital expenditures for the 22013 through 201d@re presented in the table below. Actual capitaleexitures me

vary from the estimates due to changes in foredgsnt maintenance, regulatory decisions or aggsp\uture environmental requireme
base load growth, capital market conditions or akiens of new business strategies.

Capital Expenditures 201z 201« 201t 201¢ 2017 Total
Millions
Regulated Utility Operations
Base and Other $171 $16¢ $147 $15E $13¢ $77¢
Cost Recovery(a)
Environmenta(b) 93 13z 87 3 — 31¢€
Renewabléc) 2 8 — 68 15¢ 23€
Transmissiorid) 3C 28 11 3 4C 112
Total Cost Recovery 12t 16¢ 98 74 19¢ 664
Regulated Utility Capital Expenditures 29¢ 337 24t 22¢ 33¢ 1,44
Other 14 25 11 9 3 62
Total Capital Expenditures $31( $362 $25¢ $23¢ $33¢ $1,50¢

(a) Estimated current capital expenditures recoverahleside of a rate cas

(b) Environmental capital expenditures primarily relate compliance with the MATS rule for Boswell Uhit(See Note 11. Commitments, Guarantee:
Contingencies.) Boswell Unit 4 capital expendituiredluded above reflect Minnesota Poveeownership percentage of 80 percent. WPPI Enevgy:
20 percent of Boswell Unit 4. (See Note 4. JoiBiyned Facilities.)

(c) Includes a total of $226 million in 2016 and 20FTated to additional wind generation of 100 MW. &amuary 2, 2013, the American Taxpayer Relie
of 2012 extended the availability of the producttam credit for renewable energy facilities thatmamence construction by December 31, 2013.
result, we are evaluating the acceleration of thesestments so that construction would commen2813.

(d) Transmission capital expenditures related to Ca2®8ére estimated at approximately $50 million otrer 2013 to 2015 period. Capital expenditure
$38 million are included related to commencemertooistruction of the Great Northern Transmissioneli(See ltem 1. Businesfegulated Operatiol
— Transmission and Distribution.)
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Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)
Capital Requirements (Continued)

We intend to finance capital expenditures from mloimation of internally generated funds and incretakdebt and equity proceeds. Base
our anticipated capital expenditures reflected abawe project our rate base to grow by approxingeBBlpercent through 2017. Other propc
environmental regulations could result in futureital expenditures that are not included in theeaibove. Currently, future CapX2(
projects are under discussion and Minnesota Powagratect to participate on a project by projectdas

Environmental and Other Matters

Our businesses are subject to regulation of enmissrial matters by various federal, state and lecdhorities. Due to future restrict
environmental requirements through legislation andilemaking, we anticipate that potential expamés for environmental matters will
material and will require significant capital inte®nts. We are unable to predict the outcome ofsthiges discussed in Note 11. Commitmu
Guarantees and Contingencies. (See Iltem 1. BusinEsgironmental Matters.)

Market Risk
Securities Investments

Available-for-Sale SecuritiesAt December 31, 2012 , our available-Bale securities portfolio consisted of securitigslelished to fund certe
employee benefits. (See Note 7. Investments.)

Interest Rate Risk. We are exposed to risks resulting from changéastérest rates as a result of our issuance ofbbrirate debt. We man:
our interest rate risk by varying the issuance rmaturity dates of our fixed rate debt, limiting thmount of variable rate debt, and contint
monitoring the effects of market changes in interates. We may also enter into derivative finahicistruments, such as interest rate sway
mitigate interest rate exposure. The table belossgmts the lonterm debt obligations and the corresponding weijlateerage interest rate
December 31, 2012 .

Expected Maturity Date
Interest Rate Sensitive Fair
Financial Instruments 201z 201¢ 201t 201¢ 2017 Thereafter Total Value
Dollars in Millions
Long-Term Debt

Fixed Rate $72.2 $19.¢ $1.7 $21.% $51.2 $707.: $873.¢ $999..
Average Interest Rate — % 5.2 6.€ 3.2 7.2 5.¢ 5.2 5.2
Variable Rate $12.2 $75.( $15.7 — — $41.c $144.; $144.:
Average Interest Rate — (&) 3.€ 1.2 0.2 — — 0.2 1.C

(@) Assumes rates in effectDecember 31, 201&main constant through remaining term. The $73ionilterm loan maturing in 2014 has an effectivest
rate of 1.825% due to an interest rate swap.

Interest rates on variable rate lorgm debt are reset on a periodic basis refleqinegailing market conditions. Based on the variahte det
outstanding at December 31, 201@nd assuming no other changes to our finanaiattsire, an increase of 100 basis points in intawegs:
would impact the amount of pretax interest expdns&0.7 million. This amount was determined by édesng the impact of a hypotheti
100 basis point increase to the average variabdegst rate on the variable rate debt outstandimaf ®ecember 31, 2012 .

Commodity Price Risk. Our regulated utility operations incur costs ffower and fuel (primarily coal and related transgtion) in Minnesot
and power and natural gas purchased for resal@rimegulated service territory in Wisconsin. Oumkiésota regulated utility’exposure 1
price risk for these commodities is significantlytigated by the current ratemaking process andla¢gty framework, which allows recove
of fuel costs in excess of those included in basesr Conversely, costs below those in base rasedt in a credit to our ratepayers. We sei
prudently manage our customeexXposure to price risk by entering into contradtgarious durations and terms for the purchaseogigry ani
coal and related transportation costs (MinnesotaelPoand natural gas (SWL&P).
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Market Risk (Continued)

Power Marketing . Our power marketing activities consist of: (1xghasing energy in the wholesale market to serveregulated servic
territory when retail energy requirements exceatkgation output; and (2) selling excess availabkergy and purchased power. From tim
time, our utility operations may have excess enéngy is temporarily not required by retail and neipal customers in our regulated sen
territory. We actively sell any excess energy ®wholesale market to optimize the value of ouregating facilities.

We are exposed to credit risk primarily through power marketing activities. We use credit policiesnanage credit risk, which incluc
utilizing an established credit approval process monitoring counterparty limits.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards.

New accounting standards are discussed in Notg@é&rafions and Significant Accounting Policies a§thorm 1¢-K.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures &out Market Risk

See Item 7. Management’s Discussion and AnalysiEirdncial Condition and Results of Operationglarket Risk for information related
guantitative and qualitative disclosure about miaris.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

See our consolidated financial statements as oémber 31, 2012 and 2011 , and for each of the §eaes in the period end&kcember 3:
2012 , and supplementary data, which are indexd&eim 15(a).

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accounté&on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of DisclosarControls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiomm@nagement, including our principal executiveaaffiand principal financial officer, as
December 31, 2012 , we conducted an evaluatiorhefeffectiveness of the design and operation of BLE's disclosure controls a
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) or15q@) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (ExgeaAct)). Based upon those evaluati
our principal executive officer and principal fir@al officer have concluded that, as of December2812, such disclosure controls ¢
procedures are effective to provide assurance ittiatmation required to be disclosed in ALLEEEteports filed or submitted under
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizeatl reggorted within the time periods specified in ®EC’s rules and forms and st
information is accumulated and communicated toroanagement, including our principal executive @ffiand principal financial officer,
allow timely decisions regarding required discl@sur

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingraaithtaining adequate internal control over finahoiorting, as such term is definec
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) or 18&(f). Under the supervision and with the partitip of our management, including our princ
executive officer and principal financial officave conducted an evaluation of the effectivenessuofinternal control over financial report
based on the framework in Internal Controlntegrated Framework issued by the Committee onSpiing Organizations of the Tready
Commission. Based on our evaluation under the fragrie in Internal Control 4ntegrated Framework, our management concludedatin
internal control over financial reporting was effee as of December 31, 2012 .

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal contosler financial reporting as of December 31, 2012has been audited
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent regisfmiblic accounting firm, as stated in their répdrich is included herein.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures (Continued)
Changes in Internal Controls

There has been no change in our internal contret mancial reporting that occurred during our imexent fiscal quarter that has materi
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, our internal control over financial reporting.

Iltem 9B. Other

Not applicable
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Part 1l
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

Unless otherwise stated, the information requingdhis Item is incorporated by reference hereimfrour Proxy Statement for the 20ABnua
Meeting of Shareholders ( 2013 Proxy Statementgutite following headings:

« Directors. The information regarding directors will be includi@ the “Election of DirectorsSection

e Audit Committee Financial Expert. The information regarding the Audit Committee fiogh expert will be included in the “Audit
Committee Report” section;

e Audit Committee Members. The identity of the Audit Committee members willibeluded in the “Audit Committee Reporéction
» Executive Officers.The information regarding executive officers islirted in Part | of this Form 1R: anc

e Section 16(a) ComplianceThe information regarding Section 16(a) compliawdébe included in the “Ownership of ALLETE
Common Stock — Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownerstepdrting Compliance” section.

Our 2013 Proxy Statement will be filed with the S&ithin 120 days after the end of our 2012 fisczduy
Code of Ethics.We have adopted a written Code of Ethics that apfid all of our employees, including our chief @ieve officer, chie
financial officer and controller. A copy of our Gedf Ethics is available on our website at wwwtalleom and print copies are availe
without charge upon request to ALLETE, Inc., Attent Secretary, 30 West Superior St., Duluth, Msota 55802. Any amendment to
Code of Ethics or any waiver of the Code of Ethiék be disclosed on our website at www.allete.cpromptly following the date of su
amendment or waiver.
Corporate Governance.The following documents are available on our webattwww.allete.com and print copies are availaiplen request:
e Corporate Governance Guidelir
*  Audit Committee Charte
» Executive Compensation Committee Charter;

» Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee €h

Any amendment to these documents will be disclasedur website at www.allete.com promptly followitige date of such amendment.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required for this Item is incorpm@ by reference herein from the “Compensation @ison and Analysis,the
“Compensation of Directors and Executive Officethé “Executive Compensation Committee Report” tired“Director Compensation 2012 "
sections in our 2013 Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter
The information required for this Item is incorpiae by reference herein from the “Ownership of AMECommon Stock Securities Owne

by Certain Beneficial Owners,” the “Ownership of IETE Common Stock — Securities Owned by Directard &anagementand thi
“Equity Compensation Plan Information” sectionsur 2013 Proxy Statement.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

The information required for this Item is incorpm@ by reference herein from the “Corporate Gowecea section in our 201®roxy
Statement.

We have adopted a Related Person Transaction Religh is available on our website at www.alletencd’rint copies are available with
charge, upon request. Any amendment to this pelitlybe disclosed on our website at www.allete.cpromptly following the date of su
amendment.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required for this Item is incorp@ by reference herein from the “Audit CommitteepBrt” section in our 201®roxy
Statement.
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Part IV

ltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedes

(a) Certain Documents Filed as Part of this Form 10-K.
Q) Financial Statements Page
ALLETE
Report of Independent Reqistered Public Accourfinm 64
Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2012t 65
For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2012
Consolidated Statement of Income 66
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 67
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 68
Consolidated Statement of Shareholt&uity 69
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 70
(2 Financial Statement Schedules
Schedule IEALLETE Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Ressv 113

All other schedules have been omitted eitheabse the information is not required to be repobedLLETE or because the
information is included in the consolidated finaiatatements or the notes.

3) Exhibits including those incorporated by reference.
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Exhibit Number

*3(a)l —  Articles of Incorporation amended and restatedféday 8, 2001 (filed as Exhibit 3(b) to the March, 2001,
Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).
*3(a)2 — Amendment to Articles of Incorporatiatated as of May 12, 2009 (filed as Exhibit 3 to Jhee 30, 2009, Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).
*3(a)3 — Amendment to Articles of Incorporation, dated asviafy 19, 2010 (filed as Exhibit 3(a) to the May 2810, Form 8-K, File No. 1-
3548).
*3(a)4 — Amendment to Certificate of Assumed Nafiled with the Minnesota Secretary of State ornyMa2001 (filed as
Exhibit 3(a) to the March 31, 2001, Form 10-Q, Rile. 1-3548).
*3(b) —  Bylaws, as amended effective May 11, 2010 (file&=isibit 3(b) to the May 14, 2010, Form 8-K, Fil®NL-3548).
*4(a)l — Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of Septemtk345, between Minnesota Power & Light Company(#d.LETE) and The Ban

of New York Mellon (formerly Irving Trust Compangnd Philip L. Watson (successor to Richard H. Wdst)stees (filed as Exhibit 7
(c), File No. 2-5865).

*4(a)2 —  Supplemental Indentures to ALLETE'’s Mortgage an@def Trust:
Number Dated as of Reference File Exhibit
First March 1, 1949 2-7826 7(b)
Second July 1, 1951 2-9036 7(c)
Third March 1, 1957 2-13075 2(c)
Fourth January 1, 1968 2-27794 2(c)
Fifth April 1, 1971 2-39537 2(c)
Sixth August 1, 1975 2-54116 2(c)
Seventh September 1, 1976 2-57014 2(c)
Eighth September 1, 1977 2-59690 2(c)
Ninth April 1, 1978 2-60866 2(c)
Tenth August 1, 1978 2-62852 2(d)2
Eleventh December 1, 1982 2-56649 4(a)3
Twelfth April 1, 1987 33-30224 4(a)3
Thirteenth March 1, 1992 33-47438 4(b)
Fourteenth June 1, 1992 33-55240 4(b)
Fifteenth July 1, 1992 33-55240 4(c)
Sixteenth July 1, 1992 33-55240 4(d)
Seventeenth February 1, 1993 33-50143 4(b)
Eighteenth July 1, 1993 33-50143 4(c)
Nineteenth February 1, 1997 1-3548 (1996 Form 10-K) 4(a)3
Twentieth November 1, 1997 1-3548 (1997 a0-K) 4(a)3
Twenty-first October 1, 2000 333-54330 4(c)3
Twenty-second July 1, 2003 1-3548 (June2B03 Form 10-Q) 4
Twenty-third August 1, 2004 1-3548 (Sept. 30, 2004 Form 10-Q) 4(a)
Twenty-fourth March 1, 2005 1-3548 (March 3005 Form 10-Q) 4
Twenty-fifth December 1, 2005 1-3548 (March 31, 2006 Form 10-Q) 4
Twenty-sixth October 1, 2006 1-3548 (2006 10-K) 4
Twenty-seventh February 1, 2008 1-3548 (2007 Form 10-K) 4(a)3
Twenty-eighth May 1, 2008 1-3548 (JuneZW8 Form 10-Q) 4
Twenty-ninth November 1, 2008 1-3548 (2008 Form 10-K) 4(a)3
Thirtieth January 1, 2009 1-3548 (2008 FAO¥K) 4(a)d
Thirty-first February 1, 2010 1-3548 (March 31, 2010 Form 10-Q) 4
Thirty-second August 1, 2010 1-3548 (Sept. 3,2Borm 10-Q) 4
Thirty-third July 1, 2012 1-3548 (July 2, 2012 Form 8-K) 4
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Exhibit Number

*4(b)1

*4(b)2

*4(c)1

*4(c)2

*4(d)

*4(e)
*10(a)

*10(b)

*10(c)

*10(d)1

*10(d)2

*10(e)

+*10(f)1
+*10(f)2
+*10(f)3
+*10(f)4

+10(H)5
+¥10(g)1

+*10(9)2

+*10(9)3

Indenture of Trust, dated as of August 1, 2004wben the City of Cohasset, Minnesota and U.S. Bdational Association, as Trustee
relating to $111 Million Collateralized Pollutioro@trol Refunding Revenue Bonds (filed as Exhibit)46 the September 30, 2004,
Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).

Loan Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2004, betweeCity of Cohasset, Minnesota and ALLETE relgtio $111 Million
Collateralized Pollution Control Refunding Reveands (filed as Exhibit 4(c) to the September 3M4£ Form 10-Q, File No. 1-
3548).

Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of March 43 1Between Superior Water, Light and Power CompartyChemical Bank &
Trust Company and Howard B. Smith, as Trustee$, ftceeded by U.S. Bank National Association,rast&e (filed as Exhibit 7(c),
File No. 2-8668).

Supplemental Indentures to Superior Water, Liglst Rawer Company’s Mortgage and Deed of Trust:

Number Dated as of Reference File Exhibit
First March 1, 1951 2-59690 2(d)(1)
Second March 1, 1962 2-27794 2(d)1
Third July 1, 1976 2-57478 2(e)1
Fourth March 1, 1985 2-78641 4(b)
Fifth December 1, 1992 1-3548 (1992 Form 10-K) 4(b)1
Sixth March 24, 1994 1-3548 (1996 Form 1)0-K 4(b)1
Seventh November 1, 1994 1-3548 (1996 Form 10-K) 4(b)2
Eighth January 1, 1997 1-3548 (1996 Forakk)L0 4(b)3
Ninth October 1, 2007 1-3548 (2007 Form 10-K) 4(c)3
Tenth October 1, 2007 1-3548 (2007 Fornk}0- 4(c)4
Eleventh December 1, 2008 1-3548 (2008 Form 10-K) 4(c)3

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 8, BB6B¥een ALLETE and Thrivent Financial for Lutherams The Northwestern
Mutual Life Insurance Company (filed as Exhibit 40{o the June 30, 2007, Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548

Term Loan Agreement, dated as of August 25, 20é&tlyden ALLETE, Inc. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, NaA Administrative Agent
(filed as Exhibit 4 to the August 31, 2011, ForrK 8File No. 1-3548).

Power Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as o2May098, between Minnesota Power, Inc. (now ALLE&Bd Square Butte
Electric Cooperative (filed as Exhibit 10 to thexd80, 1998, Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).

Credit Agreement, dated as of May 25, 2011, amonlgeN E, Inc., as Borrower, the lenders party therd@@Morgan Chase Bank, N.A.,
as Administrative Agent, and JPMorgan Securitie€ &s Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Book Runned(éke Exhibit 99 to the May 2
2011, Form 8-K, File No. 1-3548).

Credit Agreement, dated as of February 1, 2012 nandd LETE, Inc., as Borrower, the lenders partyréte, JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A., as Administrative Agent, and JPMorgan Se@sitLC, as Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Book Ruffiled as Exhibit 10 to the
February 6, 2012, Form 8-K, File No. 1-3548).

Financing Agreement between Collier County Indas@ievelopment Authority and ALLETE dated as of

July 1, 2006 (filed as Exhibit 10(b)1 to the Juie 3006, Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).

Amended and Restated Letter of Credit Agreemeng¢ddas of June 3, 2011, among ALLETE, the parttoigebanks and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agantl Issuing Bank (filed as Exhibit 10(b) to th@&30, 2011, Form 10-Q, File No.
1-3548).

Agreement dated December 16, 2005, among ALLETEcW®fisin Public Service Corporation and WPS InvestméLC (filed as
Exhibit 10(g) to the 2009 Form 10-K, File No. 1-8%4

ALLETE Executive Annual Incentive Plan, as amendad restated, effective January 1, 2011 (filed>dsti 10(h)1 to the 2010 Form
10-K, File No. 1-3548).

ALLETE Executive Annual Incentive Plan Form of AwlarEffective 2010 (filed as Exhibit 10(h)3 to tHg02

Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548).

ALLETE Executive Annual Incentive Plan Form of AwlarEffective 2011 (filed as Exhibit 10(h)4 to th&l® Form 10-K, File No. 1-
3548).

ALLETE Executive Annual Incentive Plan Form of AwlarEffective 2012 (filed as Exhibit 10(h)4 to th@l2 Form 10-K, File No. 1-
3548).

ALLETE Executive Annual Incentive Plan Form of AwlarEffective 2013.

ALLETE and Affiliated Companies Supplemental ExéoeiRetirement Plan (SERP [), as amended and eesteffective January 1,
2009 (filed as Exhibit 10(i)4 to the 2008 Form 10H{le No. 1-3548).

Amendment to the ALLETE and Affiliated Companiepgliemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP I),otiffe January 1, 2011
(filed as Exhibit 10(i)2 to the 2010 Form 10-K,d~No. 1-3548).

ALLETE and Affiliated Companies Supplemental ExéoaiRetirement Plan Il (SERP Il), as amended asthted, effective January 1,
2011 (filed as Exhibit 10(i)3 to the 2010 Form 10Hle No. 1-3548).
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Exhibit Number

++10(h)1
++10(h)2
++10(h)3
++10(h)4
++10(7)1
++10(7)2
++10(7)3
++10()4

+10())
+*10(k)1

++10(k)2
++10(k)3
+*10(k)4
+¥10(k)5
+*10(k)6
+*10(k)7
++10(k)8
+*10(k)9
+¥10(Kk)10
++10(k)11
+¥10(K)12
+*10(k)13

+10(k)14
+10(k)15
+10()1

+¥10(1)2

+10(1)3
+¥10(1)4
+10(1)5
+*10(1)6

Minnesota Power and Affiliated Companies Execuliwgestment Plan |, as amended and restated, eiecti
November 1, 1988 (filed as Exhibit 10(c) to the 8%F®rm 10-K, File No. 1-3548).

Amendments through December 2003 to the MinnesmteePand Affiliated Companies Executive Investment
Plan | (filed as Exhibit 10(v)2 to the 2003 FormHKQOFile No. 1-3548).

July 2004 Amendment to the Minnesota Power andiafiid Companies Executive Investment Plan | (fascExhibit 10(b) to the June
30, 2004, Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).

August 2006 Amendment to the Minnesota Power ariitigtéd Companies Executive Investment Plan kffies Exhibit 10(b) to the
September 30, 2006, Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).

Minnesota Power and Affiliated Companies Execubhweestment Plan I, as amended and restated, efeldovember 1, 1988 (filed as
Exhibit 10(d) to the 1988 Form 10-K, File No. 1-8%4

Amendments through December 2003 to the MinnesmigePand Affiliated Companies Executive Investment
Plan Il (filed as Exhibit 10(w)2 to the 2003 Forf-K, File No. 1-3548).

July 2004 Amendment to the Minnesota Power andiafiid Companies Executive Investment Plan Il ¢fiies Exhibit 10(c) to the June
30, 2004, Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).

August 2006 Amendment to the Minnesota Power ariitigtéd Companies Executive Investment Plan Ieffias Exhibit 10(c) to the
September 30, 2006, Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).

ALLETE Deferred Compensation Trust Agreement, asrased and restated, effective December 15, 2012.

ALLETE Executive Long-Term Incentive CompensatidarPas amended and restated effective Januan08, (@@®d as Exhibit 10 to
the May 16, 2005, Form 8-K, File No. 1-3548).

Amendment to the ALLETE Executive Long-Term IncgatCompensation Plan, effective January 1, 201dd(fis Exhibit 10(m)2 to
the 2010 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548).

Form of ALLETE Executive Long-Term Incentive Compation Plan Nonqualified Stock Option Grant Effeet2007 (filed as Exhibit
10(m)6 to the 2006 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548).

Form of ALLETE Executive Long-Term Incentive Compation Plan Performance Share Grant Effective Zlgd as Exhibit 10(m)7
to the 2006 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548).

Form of ALLETE Executive Long-Term Incentive Compation Plan Performance Share Grant Effective Zhi@gl as Exhibit 10(m)
10 to the 2007 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548).

Form of ALLETE Executive Long-Term Incentive Compation Plan Performance Share Grant Effective Zii@dl as Exhibit 10(m)
11 to the 2008 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548).

Form of ALLETE Executive Long-Term Incentive Comgation Plan Restricted Stock Unit Grant Effecti@®2 (filed as Exhibit 10
(m)12 to the 2008 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548).

Form of ALLETE Executive Long-Term Incentive Compation Plan Performance Share Grant Effective ZBle@d as Exhibit 10(m)8
to the 2009 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548).

Form of ALLETE Executive Long-Term Incentive Comgation Plan Restricted Stock Unit Grant Effecti@d @ (filed as Exhibit 10
(m)9 to the 2009 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548).

Form of ALLETE Executive Long-Term Incentive Compation Plan Performance Share Grant Effective Zfiletl as Exhibit 10(m)
11 to the 2010 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548).

Form of ALLETE Executive Long-Term Incentive Comgation Plan Restricted Stock Unit Grant Effecti@4 2 (filed as Exhibit 10
(m)12 to the 2010 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548).

Form of ALLETE Executive Long-Term Incentive Compation Plan Performance Share Grant Effective ZilE2l as Exhibit 10(m)
12 to the 2011 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548).

Form of ALLETE Executive Long-Term Incentive Comgation Plan Restricted Stock Unit Grant Effecti®42 (filed as Exhibit 10
(m)13 to the 2011 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548).

Form of ALLETE Executive Long-Term Incentive Compation Plan Performance Share Grant Effective 2013.
Form of ALLETE Executive Long-Term Incentive Compation Plan Restricted Stock Unit Grant Effectidd 2.

Minnesota Power (now ALLETE) Director Stock Plaffeetive May 9, 1995 (filed as Exhibit 10 to the
March 31, 1995, Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).

Amendments through December 2003 to the Minnesmt&eP(now ALLETE) Director Stock Plan (filed as
Exhibit 10(z)2 to the 2003 Form 10-K, File No. 1485.

July 2004 Amendment to the ALLETE Director StockiP(filed as Exhibit 10(e) to the June 30, 2004n¥d0-Q, File No. 1-3548).
January 2007 Amendment to the ALLETE Director StB&kn (filed as Exhibit 10(n)4 to the 2006 FormKL(ile No. 1-3548).

May 2009 Amendment to the ALLETE Director StockrP(éiled as Exhibit 10(b) to the June 30, 2009,iFd0-Q, File No. 1-3548).
May 2010 Amendment to the ALLETE Director StockrP(éled as Exhibit 10(a) to the June 30, 2010,nFA0-Q, File No. 1-3548).
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Exhibit Number

++10(1)7
++10(m)1
++10(m)2
++10(m)3
++10(n)1
+%10(n)2
++10(n)3
++10(n)4

+10(n)5
+*10(0)1

+10(0)2
+*10(p)1

+10(p)2
+*10(q)

12
21
23
31(a)
31(b)
32

95
99

101.INS

101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

October 2010 Amendment to the ALLETE Director St&tén (filed as Exhibit 10 to the September 30,0201
Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).

ALLETE Non-Management Director Compensation Sumnizfgctive May 1, 2010 (filed as Exhibit 10(b) teetMarch 31, 2010, Form
10-Q, File No. 1-3548).

ALLETE Non-Management Director Compensation Sumnedfgctive January 19, 2011 (filed as Exhibit 10(t9 the 2010 Form 1B;
File No. 1-3548).

ALLETE Non-Management Director Compensation Sumnadfgctive January 19, 2012 (filed as Exhibit 1@(jo the 2011 Form 10-
K, File No. 1-3548).

Minnesota Power (now ALLETE) Director Compensatizeferral Plan Amended and Restated, effective
January 1, 1990 (filed as Exhibit 10(ac) to the2B6rm 10-K, File No. 1-3548).

October 2003 Amendment to the Minnesota Power (AbWETE) Director Compensation Deferral Plan (filad Exhibit 10(aa)2 to the
2003 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548).

January 2005 Amendment to the ALLETE Director Congagion Deferral Plan (filed as Exhibit 10(c) te th
March 31, 2005, Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).

October 2006 Amendment to the ALLETE Director Comgagtion Deferral Plan (filed as Exhibit 10(d) te th
September 30, 2006, Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).

July 2012 Amendment to the ALLETE Director CompéimsaDeferral Plan.

ALLETE Non-Employee Director Compensation DefeiP&n Il, effective May 1, 2009 (filed as Exhibit(a)to the June 30, 2009,
Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).

ALLETE Non-Employee Director Compensation DefefP&dn 1l, as amended and restated, effective JulpQ@u2.

ALLETE Director Compensation Trust Agreement, efifiee October 11, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10(a) te th
September 30, 2004, Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).

ALLETE Director Compensation Trust Agreement, aeaded and restated, effective December 15, 2012.

ALLETE and Affiliated Companies Change in Contrev8rance Plan, as amended and restated, effective
January 19, 2011 (filed as Exhibit 10(q) to the@&brm 10-K, File No. 1-3548).

Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking.

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification by the CltgEcutive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of theb&nes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification by the Chigfancial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of tlaebnes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Section 1350 Certification of Annual Report by @leief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offidearsuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Mine Safety.

ALLETE News Release dated February 15, 2013, arsingrearnings for the year ended December 31, 20h#s exhibit has been
furnished and shall not be deemed “filed” for purpcses of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Actl&34, nor shall it be
deemed incorporated by reference in any filing undethe Securities Act of 1933, except as shall bepessly set forth by specific
reference in such filing.)

XBRL Instance
XBRL Schema
XBRL Calculation
XBRL Definition
XBRL Label

XBRL Presentation
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ALLETE or its subsidiaries are obligors under vasoongterm debt instruments, including but not limited {&) $38,995,000 origin
principal amount, of City of Cohasset, Minnesotayigble Rate Demand Revenue Refunding Bonds (ALLHE®&nerly Minnesota Power
Light Company, Project) Series 1997A, Series 198iB Series 1997C ($27,455,000 remaining principkdrze) that, pursuant to Regula
SK, ltem 601(b)(4)(iii), (2) $6,370,000 of City ofuperior, Wisconsin, Collateralized Utility RevenRefunding Bonds Series 2007A
$6,130,000 of City of Superior, Wisconsin, Collalezed Utility Revenue Bonds Series 2007B; andotBler longterm debt instruments th
pursuant to Regulation &; Item 601(b)(4)(iii), are not filed as exhibitedause the total amount of debt authorized undsr ebthese omitte
instruments does not exceed 10 percent of our ¢otedolidated assets. We will furnish copies oséhimstruments to the SEC upon its request

* Incorporated herein by reference as indicated.

+ Management contract or compensatory plan or arranget pursuant to Item 15(b).
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 18{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

ALLETE, Inc.

Dated: February 15, 2013 By /sl Alan R. Hodnik
Alan R. Hodnik
Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bblpthe following persons on behalf of
registrant and in the capacities and on the datéisated.

Signature Title Date
Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer and February 15, 2013

/s/ Alan R. Hodnik Director

Alan R. Hodnik (Principal Executive Officer)
/sl Mark A. Schober Senior Vice President ahieCFinancial Officer February 15, 2013

Mark A. Schober (Principal Financial Officer)

/sl Steven Q. DeVinck Controller and Vice Pdesit — Business Support February 15, 2013

Steven Q. DeVinck (Principal Accounting Officer)
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Signatures (Continued)

Signature Title Date
/sl Kathleen A. Brekken Director Februaby 2013
Kathleen A. Brekken
/sl Kathryn W. Dindo Director February P§13
Kathryn W. Dindo
/sl Heidi J. Eddins Director February 1612
Heidi J. Eddins
/sl Sidney W. Emery, Jr. Director Februaby 2013
Sidney W. Emery, Jr.
/sl George G. Goldfarb Director February 2613
George G. Goldfarb
/sl James S. Haines, Jr. Director Febru&ry2013
James S. Haines, Jr.
/sl James J. Hoolihan Director February?08,3
James J. Hoolihan
/sl Madeleine W. Ludlow Director Februa#, 2013
Madeleine W. Ludlow
/sl Douglas C. Neve Director February 18,2
Douglas C. Neve
/sl Leonard C. Rodman Director February218,3
Leonard C. Rodman
/sl Bruce W. Stender Director February (8.3

Bruce W. Stender
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of ALEEThc:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated fmahstatements listed in the index appearing urtian 15(a)(1) present fairly, in

material respects, the financial position of ALLETEc. and its subsidiaries (the Company) at Deaan3i, 2012 and 2011, and the resul
their operations and their cash flows for eachhefthree years in the period ended December 32 iBGdbnformity with accounting principl
generally accepted in the United States of Ameticaaddition, in our opinion, the financial statemhechedule listed in the indeppearin
under Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly, in all mater@spects, the information set forth therein whead in conjunction with the relal
consolidated financial statements. Also in our apinthe Company maintained, in all material respeeffective internal control over financ
reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on @itestablished ifnternal Control - Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisg@SO). The Company’'management is responsible for these financitdratents an
financial statement schedule, for maintaining dffecinternal control over financial reporting afat its assessment of the effectivenes
internal control over financial reporting, includedManagemen$ Report on Internal Control over Financial Repagytappearing under lte
9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions oasth financial statements, on the financial stat¢msemedule, and on the Compasynterna
control over financial reporting based on our im&gd audits. We conducted our audits in accordasittethe standards of the Public Comp
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Thas@dards require that we plan and perform the audibbtain reasonable assurance ¢
whether the financial statements are free of materisstatement and whether effective internal mdmver financial reporting was maintair
in all material respects. Our audits of the finahdtatements included examining, on a test basiglence supporting the amounts

disclosures in the financial statements, asseshm@ccounting principles used and significantestés made by management, and evalu
the overall financial statement presentation. Quditaof internal control over financial reportingciuded obtaining an understanding of inte
control over financial reporting, assessing thé isat a material weakness exists, and testing ewaduating the design and opera
effectiveness of internal control based on the sk risk. Our audits also included performing sattter procedures as we considt
necessary in the circumstances. We believe thaaadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranagiregthe reliability of financi:
reporting and the preparation of financial stateimidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeealcepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgddnose policies and procedures that (i) pertaithéomaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assur
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withosizations of management
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readsleaassurance regarding prevention or timely deteaf unauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of

evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
February 15, 2013
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ALLETE Consolidated Balance Sheet

As of December 31 201z 2011
Millions
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $80.¢ $101.:
Accounts Receivable (Less Allowance of $1.0 an@)50. 89.C 79.7
Inventories 69.¢ 69.1
Prepayments and Other 33.¢ 27.1
Total Current Assets 273.% 277.(
Property, Plant and Equipment — Net 2,347.¢ 1,982.°
Regulatory Assets 340.: 345.¢
Investment in ATC 107.: 98.¢
Other Investments 143t 132.:
Other Non-Current Assets 41.F 39.2
Total Assets $3,253. $2,876.1
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable $90.t $71.¢
Accrued Taxes 30.z 26.¢
Accrued Interest 15.€ 12.¢
Long-Term Debt Due Within One Year 84.t 5.4
Notes Payable — 1.1
Other 62.€ 45.¢
Total Current Liabilities 283.¢ 163.]
Long-Term Debt 933.¢ 857.¢
Deferred Income Taxes 423.¢ 373.¢
Regulatory Liabilities 60.1 43.F
Defined Benefit Pension and Other PostretirememnieBePlans 228.2 253t
Other Non-Current Liabilities 123.c 105.1
Total Liabilities 2,052.¢ 1,796.°
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 11)
Equity
Common Stock Without Par Value, 80.0 Shares Autieaki 39.4 and 37.5
Shares Outstanding 784.1 705.¢
Unearned ESOP Shares (21.9) (29.0
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss (22.0 (28.9)
Retained Earnings 459.¢ 431.¢
Total Equity 1,201.( 1,079.
Total Liabilities and Equity $3,253. $2,876.(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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ALLETE Consolidated Statement of Income

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Millions Except Per Share Amounts
Operating Revenue $961.: $928.: $907.(
Operating Expenses

Fuel and Purchased Power 308.7 306.¢ 325.1

Operating and Maintenance 397.1 381.C 365.¢

Depreciation 100.z 90.4 80.t

Total Operating Expenses 806.( 778.2 771.2

Operating Income 155.2 150.( 135.¢
Other Income (Expense)

Interest Expense (45.5) (43.€) (39.2)

Equity Earnings in ATC 19.4 18.4 17.¢

Other 6.C 4.4 4.€

Total Other Expense (20.]) (20.9) (16.7)

Income Before Non-Controlling Interest and Income Bxes 135.1 129.2 119.]
Income Tax Expense 38.C 35.€ 44.:
Net Income 97.1 93.€ 74.¢

Less: Non-Controlling Interest in Subsidiaries — (0.2 (0.5)
Net Income Attributable to ALLETE $97.1 $93.¢ $75.:
Average Shares of Common Stock

Basic 37.€ 35.¢ 34.2

Diluted 37.€ 35.4 34.c
Basic Earnings Per Share of Common Stock $2.5¢ $2.6¢€ $2.2(
Diluted Earnings Per Share of Common Stock $2.5¢ $2.6¢ $2.1¢
Dividends Per Share of Common Stock $1.8¢ $1.7¢ $1.7¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part okteEgements.
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ALLETE Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incme

Comprehensive Income (Loss) 2012 2011 2010
Millions
Net Income $97.1 $93.¢ $74.¢
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Securities
Net of Income Taxes of $0.8, $(0.1) and $0.6 1.2 0.9 0.8
Unrealized Loss on Derivatives
Net of Income Taxes of $(0.1), $(0.2) and $— (0.2 (0.9 —
Defined Benefit Pension and Other PostretiremeneBePlans
Net of Income Taxes of $3.9, $(3.6), and $— 5.¢ (5.0 —
Total Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 6.C (5.7) 0.€
Total Comprehensive Income $104.( $87.¢ $75.¢
Less: Non-Controlling Interest in Subsidiaries — (0.2 (0.5
Comprehensive Income Attributable to ALLETE $104.( $88.1 $76.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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ALLETE Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011 201C
Millions
Operating Activities
Net Income $97.1 $93.¢ $74.¢
Allowance for Funds Used During Construction — Egjui (5.2 (2.5) (4.2
Income from Equity Investments, Net of Dividends (3.7 (3.2 (3.2
Gain on Real Estate Foreclosure — (0.5 (0.7)
Loss (Gain) on Sale of Assets 0.2 (0.9 —
Loss on Impairment of Assets — 1.7 —
Depreciation Expense 100.2 90.4 80.t
Amortization of Debt Issuance Costs 1.C 0.¢ 0.¢
Deferred Income Tax Expense 37.t 35.¢ 66.C
Share-Based Compensation Expense 2.1 1.€ 2.2
ESOP Compensation Expense 7.7 7.4 7.1
Defined Benefit Pension and Other PostretirememeBeExpense 27.k 23.€ 18.C
Bad Debt Expense 1.C 1.2 11
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities
Accounts Receivable (10.0) 18.€ 17.¢
Inventories (0.7) (9.2 (3.0
Prepayments and Other (6.5) 1.t 4.9
Accounts Payable (1.5 (9.5 5.E
Other Current Liabilities 21.¢ 15.4 5.2
Cash Contributions to Defined Benefit Pension atite©OPostretirement Plans (8.9 (24.9) (39.9
Changes in Regulatory and Other Non-Current Assets (20.9 (7.5 4.2
Changes in Regulatory and Other Non-Current Litddi 0.8 7.S (0.9
Cash from Operating Activities 239.¢ 241, 228.7
Investing Activities
Proceeds from Sale of Available-for-sale Securities 1kt 7.8 0.€
Payments for Purchase of Available-for-sale Seegrit (1.9 (2.3 (2.3
Investment in ATC 4.7 (2.0 (1.€)
Changes to Other Investments (9.6) (7.4 1.3
Additions to Property, Plant and Equipment (405.9 (239.9) (248.9
Proceeds from Sale of Assets 0.2 2.2 —
Cash for Investing Activities (420.7) (240.9 (250.9
Financing Activities
Proceeds from Issuance of Common Stock 77.C 39.1 20.t
Proceeds from Issuance of Long-Term Debt 180.€ 81.4 155.(
Changes in Notes Payable (1.7 0.1 (0.9)
Reductions of Long-Term Debt (25.9) (3.2 (71.0
Debt Issuance Costs 1.3 — (1.4)
Dividends on Common Stock (69.7) (62.1) (60.€)
Cash from Financing Activities 160.2 55.4 41.¢
Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (20.9) 56.2 19.2
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 101.1 44.¢ 251
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period $80.¢ $101.: $44.¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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ALLETE Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equiy

Accumulated

Total Other Unearned
Shareholders’ Retained Comprehensive ESOP Common
Equity Earnings Income (Loss) Shares Stock
Millions
Balance as of December 31, 2009 $929.t $385.4 $(24.0) $(45.3) $613.¢
Comprehensive Income
Net Income 74.¢ 74.¢
Other Comprehensive Income — Net of Tax
Unrealized Gain on Securities — Net 0.8 0.8
Total Comprehensive Income 75.€
Non-Controlling Interest in Subsidiaries 0.5 0.t
Comprehensive Income Attributable to ALLETE 76.1
Common Stock Issued — Net 227 22.7
Dividends Declared (60.¢) (60.¢)
ESOP Shares Earned 8.5 8.5
Balance as of December 31, 2010 976.( 399.¢ (23.29) (36.§) 636.1
Comprehensive Income
Net Income 93.€ 93.€
Other Comprehensive Income — Net of Tax
Unrealized Loss on Securities — Net (0.9 (0.9
Unrealized Loss on Derivatives — Net (0.3 (0.3
Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans — Net (5.2 (5.7
Total Comprehensive Income 87.¢
Non-Controlling Interest in Subsidiaries 0.2 0.2
Comprehensive Income Attributable to ALLETE 88.1
Common Stock Issued — Net 69.5 69.t
Dividends Declared (62.7) (62.7)
ESOP Shares Earned 7.8 7.8
Balance as of December 31, 2011 1,079. 431.¢ (28.9) (29.0 705.€
Comprehensive Income
Net Income 97.1 97.1
Other Comprehensive Income — Net of Tax
Unrealized Gain on Securities — Net 1.2 1.2
Unrealized Loss on Derivatives — Net (0.2 (0.2
Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans — Net 5.9 5.9
Total Comprehensive Income Attributable to
ALLETE 104.(
Common Stock Issued — Net 79.1 79.1
Dividends Declared (69.7) (69.7)
ESOP Shares Earned 7.7 7.7
Balance as of December 31, 2012 $1,201.( $459.¢ $(22.0) $(21.3) $784.7

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC IES

Financial Statement Preparation.References in this report to “we,” “us,” and “owafe to ALLETE and its subsidiaries, collectivelye
prepare our financial statements in conformity watitounting principles generally accepted in thé@ddinStates of America. These princij
require management to make informed judgments,dstshates, and assumptions that affect the reparteunts of assets, liabilities, revel
and expenses. Actual results could differ from ¢hestimates.

Subsequent EventsThe Company performed an evaluation of subsequaatite for potential recognition and disclosure tigto the time ¢
the financial statements issuance.

Principles of Consolidation.Our consolidated financial statements include tteants of ALLETE and all of our majoritgwned subsidial
companies. All material intercompany balances amuasactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Business Segment®Our Regulated Operations and Investments and Gtbgments were determined in accordance with théagoé o
segment reporting. Segmentation is based on thenendn which we operate, assess, and allocate me=ouo the business. We mea
performance of our operations through budgetingranditoring of contributions to consolidated netame by each business segment.

Regulated Operationsincludes our regulated utilities, Minnesota Powed &WL&P, as well as our investment in ATC, a Wissia-base!
regulated utility that owns and maintains electramsmission assets in parts of Wisconsin, Michigdimnesota and lllinois. Minnesota Po\
provides regulated utility electric service in ri@astern Minnesota to approximately 143,000 retetomers. Minnesota Power's nafiiiated
municipal customers consist of 16 municipalitiedMimnesota and private utility in Wisconsin. SWL&P is also a prieautility in Wisconsil
and a customer of Minnesota Power. SWL&P providegulated electric, natural gas and water servicedrthwestern Wisconsin
approximately 15,000 electric customers, 12,00Qimaatgas customers and 10,08@ter customers. Our regulated utility operatiomsde
retail and wholesale activities under the jurisgdictof state and federal regulatory authorities

Investments and Otheris comprised primarily of BNI Coal, our coal miniogerations in North Dakota, ALLETE Properties, &lorida ree
estate investment, and ALLETE Clean Energy, ouinass aimed at developing or acquiring capital gutyj that create energy solutions
wind, solar, biomass, hydro, natural gas/liquitigle resources, clean coal and other clean enengyations. This segment also includes ¢
business development and corporate expenditusaaall amount of non-rate base generation, apprdeisné,100 acres of land in Minneso
and earnings on cash and investments.

BNI Coal, a wholly-owned subsidiary, mines andsséithnite coal to two North Dakota mimaeuth generating units, one of which is Sq
Butte. In 2012 , Square Butte supplied 50 perce2®1.5 MW) of its output to Minnesota Power unddomagterm contract. (See Note !
Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies.) Cted age recognized when delivered at the costadymtion plus a specified profit per-
of coal delivered.

ALLETE Properties represents our Florida real esimtestment. Our current strategy for the assets complete and maintain key entitlem
and infrastructure improvements without requiritgn#icant additional investment, sell the portfolivhen opportunities arise and reinves:
proceeds in our growth initiatives. ALLETE does imdend to acquire additional Florida real estate.

Full profit recognition is recorded on sales uptosing, provided that cash collections are at |@@spercenof the contract price and the ot
requirements under the guidance for sales of iateeare met. In certain cases, where there digatbns to perform significant developm
activities after the date of sale, we recognizdipom a percentage-afempletion basis. From time to time, certain castBawith custome
allow us to receive participation revenue from Iaates to third parties if various formula-baseteda are achieved.

In certain cases, we pay fees or construct imprevesnto mitigate offsite traffic impacts. In retume receive traffic impact fee credits ¢
result of some of these expenditures. We recogeizenue from the sale of traffic impact fee crediten payment is received.
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NOTE 1. OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC IES (Continued)

Land inventories are accounted for in accordandh thie accounting standards for property, plant equipment, and are included in Of
Investments on our Consolidated Balance Sheet. &ale costs include the cost of land acquirdasesyuent development costs and cos
improvements, capitalized development period irstierecal estate taxes and payroll costs of certamiployees devoted directly to
development effort. These real estate costs indiare capitalized to the cost of real estate patzased upon the relative sales value of pe
within each development project in accordance withaccounting standards for real estate. Theafosl estate sold includes the actual ¢
incurred and the estimate of future completionsafibcated to the real estate sold based uporebhive sales value method. Whenever e\
or circumstances indicate that the carrying valuthe real estate may not be recoverable, impaitsnare recorded and the related asse
adjusted to their estimated fair value. (See Nolevestments.)

ALLETE Clean Energy, a whollpwned subsidiary of ALLETE, operates independenflyMinnesota Power to develop or acquire ca
projects aimed at creating energy solutions viadwsolar, biomass, hydro, natural gas/liquids, eshhakources, clean coal and other ¢
energy innovations. ALLETE Clean Energy intendsiarket to electric utilities, cooperatives, munaifies, independent power marketers
large end-users across North America through tenigr contracts or other sale arrangements, andwifubject to applicable state and fec
regulatory approvals.

Non-Controlling Interest in Subsidiaries. In August 2011, ALLETE purchased the remaining ebaof the ALLETE Properties non-
controlling interest at book value for $8.8 milliby issuing 0.2 milliorshares of ALLETE common stock. This was accounted$ an equi
transaction, and no gain or loss was recognizegirincome or comprehensive income.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsWe consider all investments purchased with originaturities of three months or less to be cashvadgnts.

Supplemental Statement of Cash Flow Information

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31 201z 2011 201(
Millions
Cash Paid During the Period for Interest — Net ofolints Capitalized $42.7 $43.2 $35.7
Cash Received During the Period for Income T4ags — $(11.4) $(54.2)
Noncash Investing and Financing Activities
Increase in Accounts Payable for Capital Additiam®roperty, Plant and Equipment $20.2 $5.¢ $7.5
Capitalized Asset Retirement Costs $17.1 $0.2 $2.¢
AFUDC — Equity $5.1 $2.5 $4.2
ALLETE Common Stock Contributed to the Pension Plan — $(20.0) —

(@) Due to bonus depreciation provisions in 2009 andi®federal legislation, NOLs were generated whigsutted in little or no estimated tax payments,
refunds were received from NOL carrybacks againstryears’ taxable income.

Accounts ReceivableAccounts receivable are reported on the balancet stet of an allowance for doubtful accounts. Thanance is base
on our evaluation of the receivable portfolio underrent conditions, overall portfolio quality, iew of specific problems and such ol
factors that, in our judgment, deserve recognitioestimating losses.

Accounts Receivable

As of December 31 201z 2011
Millions
Trade Accounts Receivable
Billed $70.¢ $63.7
Unbilled 17.4 15.€
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 1.C 0.c
Total Trade Accounts Receivable 86.¢ 78.2
Income Taxes Receivable 2.2 3
Total Accounts Receivable - Net $89.( $79.%
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NOTE 1. OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC IES (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk. Financial instruments that subject us to concentratof credit risk consist primarily of accouneeivable
Minnesota Power sells electricity to 9 Large Po@estomers. Receivables from these customers tofdl&ds million atDecember 31, 20:
( $9.3 million at December 31, 20}1Minnesota Power does not obtain collateral fapsut utility receivables, but monitors the cresténding
of major customers. In addition, our taconit®ducing Large Power Customers, which are a gastioRegulated Operations segment, are
weekly billing cycle, which allows us to closely name collection of amounts due. One of these cust®raccounted for 12.3 perceoft
consolidated revenue in 2012 ( 12.8 percent in 2025 percent in 2010). In the third quarter 012, one of Minnesota PowsrLarge Powse
Customers, NewPage Corporation (NewPage), filecCfuapter 11 bankruptcy protection. In Septembef208ewPage submitted a motior
the bankruptcy court to approve amended and relsteevice agreements and payment of thepetgion amount, which was approved
October 16, 2012. The agreement was subsequernilpay by the MPUC in a December 10, 2012 ordeichvhesulted in the prpetitior
receivable of $3.2 million being paid as of Decentik 2012 . Throughout the bankruptcy proceedihgscustomes operations continu
without interruption and we continued to providecattic and steam service to this customer.

Long-Term Finance ReceivablesLong-term finance receivables relating to our real estgerations are collateralized by property satdru
interest at markdbased rates and are net of an allowance for dduftitounts. We assess delinquent finance receiwdiylecomparing tf
balance of such receivables to the estimated fdirevof the collateralized property. If the faidua of the property is less than the fing
receivable, we record a reserve for the differel¢e.estimate fair value based on recent propexrtasaessed values or current appraisals
Note 7. Investments

Available-for-Sale Securities.Available-forsale securities are recorded at fair value wittealized gains and losses included in accumt
other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax. blired losses that are other than temporary a@grézed in earnings. We use the spe
identification method as the basis for determirtimg cost of securities sold. Our policy is to rewvigvailable-forsale securities for other tr
temporary impairment on a quarterly basis by agsgssich factors as the share price trends andrtpact of overall market conditions. (¢
Note 7. Investments

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or markmounts removed from inventory are recordedwoaverage cost basis.

Inventories

As of December 31 201z 2011
Millions

Fuel $28.( $28.¢
Materials and Supplies 41.¢ 40.5
Total Inventories $69.¢ $69.1

Property, Plant and Equipment. Property, plant and equipment are recorded atraigiost and are reported on the balance sheatf
accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for additiosignificant replacements, improvements and mpjant overhauls are capitaliz
maintenance and repair costs are expensed asddc@ains or losses on neake base property, plant and equipment are rezednvhen the
are retired or otherwise disposed. When regulatiitly yoroperty, plant and equipment are retiredatherwise disposed, no gain or los
recognized in accordance with the accounting staisdfar Regulated Operations. Our Regulated Opmrsittapitalize AFUDC, which includ
both an interest and equity component. AFUDC raprissthe cost of both debt and equity funds usdihémce utility plant additions duril
construction periods. AFUDC amounts capitalized iaduded in rate base and are recovered from m&t® as the related property
depreciated. The MPUC has approved cost recovergefeeral large capital projects recently, at whiake the recognition of AFUDC ceas
(See Note 3. Property, Plant and Equipment.)

We believe that longtanding ratemaking practices approved by appkcabdte and federal regulatory commissions haweved for thi
recovery of the remaining basis of retired plarstess. In January 2013 we announced the retirenfiéraamnite Harbor Unit 3 and convers
of Laskin Energy Center to natural gas in 2015,clvhis subject to MPUC approval. Accordingly, werdd expect any loss as a result of
retirement of Taconite Harbor Unit 3 or conversidrLaskin Energy Center.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets.We review our longdived assets, which include the real estate asded& | ETE Properties, for indicato

of impairment in accordance with the accountingdgaids for property, plant and equipment on a gqugrbasis.
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NOTE 1. OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC IES (Continued)

In accordance with the accounting standards fopgnty, plant and equipment, if indicators of impaént exist, we test our real estate asse
recoverability by comparing the carrying amountité asset to the undiscounted future net cash fexpected to be generated by the a
Cash flows are assessed at the lowest level ofifidgdrle cash flows, which may be by each land parcombining various parcels into b
sales, or other combinations thereof. Our consiaeraf possible impairment for our real estateeéssequires us to make estimates of f
cash flows on an undiscounted basis. The undisedunture net cash flows are impacted by trendsfactdrs known to us at the time they
calculated and our expectations related to: managésnbest estimate of future sales prices; holdingodeand timing of sales; method
disposition; and future expenditures necessaret@ldp and maintain the operations, includobognmunity development district assessm
property taxes and normal operation and maintenaosts. These estimates and expectations are ispec#gach land parcel or various k
sales, and may vary among each land parcel ordaékif the excess of undiscounted cash flows over dreying value of a property is sm.
there is a greater risk of future impairment in évent of such changes and any resulting impaircieartges could be material.

Weak market conditions for real estate in Floridaenrequired us to review our land inventoriesifigpairment. Our undiscounted cash f
analysis was estimated using managensetiirrent intent for disposition of each propertich is an estimated selling period of five to
years based on a December 2011 asset managematisposition plan“Plan”). The Plan is reviewed annually for adjustment or ification
and we have concluded that the estimates and asismsipemain appropriate in 201As such, we continue to utilize the Plan whenusatinc
our land inventory for impairment. Future sellingcps have been estimated through managemdmst estimate of future sales price
collaboration and consultation with outside adwscand based on the best use of the properties theeexpected period of sale. -
undiscounted cash flow analysis assumes two s@=mnasgtail land sales followed by project bulk sabeer a five year period and retail :
sales over a ten year period. Our analysis asstimeasnost likely case of retail land sales follovisdproject bulk sales over a five year per
however, under both scenarios, except as notedvb#ie undiscounted cash flows exceeded carryihgegalf our major development proje
are sold in one bulk sale or if the propertiessaie differently than anticipated in the Plan, #wtual results could be materially different fi
our undiscounted cash flow analysis.

The results of the impairment analysis are pawityldependent on the estimated future sales prinethod of disposition, and holding pel
for each property. The estimated holding periobdased on managemesntturrent intent for the use and disposition othepiwperty, whic
could be subject to change in future periods ifithentions of the Company as set by managemenappibved by the Board of Directors w
to change.

In the event that projected future undiscountedh ¢asvs are not adequate to recover the carryingevaf an asset, impairment is indicated
may require a write down to the assdtiir value. Fair value is determined based om &esilable evidence including comparable saleseon
appraised values, property tax assessed valuesdiaodunted cash flow analysis. If fair value issléhan cost, the carrying value of
investments is reduced and an impairment chargeederded in the current period. In 2012, impairmantlysis’ of estimated futui
undiscounted cash flows were conducted and indiditat the cash flows were adequate to recovecdlmying basis of our land inventory.
a result, there was no impairment recorded foryts& ended December 31, 2012 . For the year end@eéritber 31, 2011 , $1.7 millior
impairment charge was recorded.

Derivatives. ALLETE is exposed to certain risks relating to besiness operations that can be managed througlustheof derivativ
instruments. ALLETE may enter into derivative instrents to manage interest rate risk related t@icevariable-rate borrowings.

Accounting for Stock-Based CompensationWe apply the fair value recognition guidance foargtbased payments. Under this guidance

recognize stock-based compensation expense fehatbbased payments granted, net of an estimated fordeiite. (See Note 16. Emplo
Stock and Incentive Plans.)

Prepayments and Other Current Assets

As of December 31 201z 2011
Millions

Deferred Fuel Adjustment Clause $22.F $17.t
Other 11.1 9.€
Total Prepayments and Other Current Assets $33.¢ $27.1
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NOTE 1. OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC IES (Continued)

Other Current Liabilities

As of December 31 201z 2011
Millions

Customer Deposit@) $28.¢ $16.%
Other 33.¢ 29.2
Total Other Current Liabilities $62.¢ $45.¢

(a) Customer deposits were higher in 2012 primarily thueustomer security deposits for capital expemdi relating to a transmission proje

Other Non-Current Liabilities

As of December 31 201z 2011
Millions

Asset Retirement Obligation $77.¢ $57.(
Other 45.4 48.1
Total Other Non-Current Liabilities $123.: $105.:

Environmental Liabilities. We review environmental matters for disclosure oguarterly basis. Accruals for environmental mattare
recorded when it is probable that a liability haem incurred and the amount of the liability carrdmsonably estimated, based on curren
and existing technologies. These accruals are tdjymriodically as assessment and remediatiomteffowogress or as additional technice
legal information becomes available. Accruals favieonmental liabilities are included in the balansheet at undiscounted amounts
exclude claims for recoveries from insurance omeptiird parties. Costs related to environmentaitamination treatment and cleanup
charged to operating expense unless recoverabdges from customers. (See Note 11. Commitmentardhtees and Contingencies.)

Revenue RecognitionRegulated utility rates are under the jurisdictidrMinnesota, Wisconsin and federal regulatory arities. Custome
are billed on a cycle basis. Revenue is accrueddnrice provided but not billed. Regulated utikfectric rates include adjustment clauses
(2) bill or credit customers for fuel and purchasegrgy costs above or below the base levels ens@tedules; (2) bill retail customers for
recovery of conservation improvement program exjiares not collected in base rates; and (3) bitomers for the recovery of cert
transmission and renewable energy expenditured.dfukpurchased power expense is deferred to ntlaécperiod in which the revenue
fuel and purchased power expense is collected frostomers pursuant to the fuel adjustment clausé.rBcognizes revenue when coe
delivered.

Minnesota Power participates in MISO. MISO tranisaxst are accounted for on a net hourly basis irh edcthe day-ahead and rdahe
markets. Minnesota Power records net sales in @pgrRevenue and net purchases in Fuel and Purdtmeer Expense on our Consolid:
Statement of Income. The revenues and chargesNHB8O related to serving retail and municipal electustomers are recorded on a net |
as Fuel and Purchased Power Expense.

Unamortized Discount and Premium on DebtDiscount and premium on debt are deferred and ézedrover the terms of the related ¢
instruments using the straight-line method whicpragimates the effective interest method.

Income Taxes. ALLETE and its subsidiaries file a consolidateddeal income tax return and combined and separate stcome tax returr
We account for income taxes using the liability Inoet in accordance with the accounting standardsnftome taxes. Under the liabil
method, deferred income tax assets and liabiléresestablished for all temporary differences i ltbok and tax basis of assets and liabil
based upon enacted tax laws and rates applicabite foeriods in which the taxes become payable.tDtige effects of regulation on Minnes
Power and SWL&P, certain adjustments made to dmleincome taxes are, in turn, recorded as regyladssets or liabilities. Fede
investment tax credits have been recorded as éeferedits and are being amortized to income taemse over the service lives of the rel
property. In accordance with the accounting stadgléor uncertainty in income taxes, we are requicetecognize in our financial stateme
the largest tax benefit of a tax position thatriete-likely-than-not'to be sustained on audit, based solely on the teahmerits of the positic
as of the reporting date. The term “more-likelyrtireot” means more than 50 percent likely. (See Ndtdncome Tax Expense.)
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NOTE 1. OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC IES (Continued)

Excise TaxesWe collect excise taxes from our customers levigddvernment entities. These taxes are stated aehaon the billing to tt
customer and recorded as a liability to be remittethe government entity. We account for the @ik and payment of these taxes on ¢
basis.

New Accounting Standards.

There are no recently issued accounting standatdtap applicable for our adoption in future periods

NOTE 2. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Regulated Operations includes our regulated edljtMinnesota Power and SWL&P, as well as our imvest in ATC, a Wisconsibase!
regulated utility that owns and maintains electransmission assets in parts of Wisconsin, Michigddimnesota and lllinois. Investments i
Other is comprised primarily of BNI Coal, our coaining operations in North Dakota, ALLETE Propestieur Florida real estate investm
and ALLETE Clean Energy, our business aimed atldpirey or acquiring capital projects that creatergy solutions via wind, solar, biome
hydro, natural gas/liquids, shale resources, cleaal and other clean energy innovations. This segnaso includes other busin
development and corporate expenditures, a smaluataf non-rate base generation, approximately @,40res of land in Minnesota, ¢
earnings on cash and investments. For a descripfioor reportable business segments, see Iterndingss.

Regulated Investments
Consolidated  Operations and Other
Millions
2012
Operating Revenue $961. $874.« $86.¢
Fuel and Purchased Power Expense 308.7 308.1 —
Operating and Maintenance Expense 397.1 310.( 87.1
Depreciation Expense 100.2 93.¢ 6.2
Operating Income (Loss) 155.2 161.¢ (6.€)
Interest Expense (45.5) (39.9) (5.7
Equity Earnings in ATC 19.4 19.4 —
Other Income 6.C 5.1 0.€
Income (Loss) Before Non-Controlling Interest anddme Taxes 135.1 146.5 (11.9
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) 38.C 50.4 (12.9)
Net Income 97.1 96.1 1.C
Less: Non-Controlling Interest in Subsidiaries — — —
Net Income Attributable to ALLETE $97.1 $96.1 $1.C
Total Assets $3,253. $2,962. $291.(
Capital Additions $432.: $418.: $14.(
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NOTE 2. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (Continued)

Regulated  Investments and
Consolidated Operations Other
Millions
2011
Operating Revenue $928.. $851.¢ $76.5
Fuel and Purchased Power Expense 306.¢ 306.¢ —
Operating and Maintenance Expense 381.2 301t 79.7%
Depreciation Expense 90.4 85.4 5.C
Operating Income (Loss) 150.( 158.¢ (8.9)
Interest Expense (43.€) (35.9) (7.8
Equity Earnings in ATC 18.4 18.4 —
Other Income 4.4 2.€ 1.8
Income (Loss) Before Non-Controlling Interest anddme Taxes 129.2 143.¢ (14.9
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) 35.¢ 43.Z (7.€)
Net Income (Loss) 93.€ 100.¢ (6.€)
Less: Non-Controlling Interest in Subsidiaries (0.2 — (0.2
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to ALLETE $93.¢ $100.¢ $(6.6)
Total Assets $2,876.( $2,579.1 $296.:
Capital Additions $246.¢ $228.( $18.¢
Regulated Investments
Consolidated  Operations and Other
Millions
2010
Operating Revenue $907.( $835.t $71.t
Fuel and Purchased Power Expense 325.1 325.1 —
Operating and Maintenance Expense 365.¢ 292.: 73.%
Depreciation Expense 80.t 76.1 4.4
Operating Income (Loss) 135.¢ 142.( (6.2)
Interest Expense (39.9) (32.9) (6.9
Equity Earnings in ATC 17.¢ 17.¢ —
Other Income 4.€ 3.8 0.&
Income (Loss) Before Non-Controlling Interest anddme Taxes 119.1 131.¢ (12.9)
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) 44.: 51.€ (7.9
Net Income (Loss) 74.¢ 79.¢ (5.0
Less: Non-Controlling Interest in Subsidiaries (0.5 — (0.5
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to ALLETE $75.¢ $79.¢ $(4.5)
Total Assets $2,609. $2,375.¢ $233.7
Capital Additions $260.( $256.¢ $3.€
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NOTE 3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, Plant and Equipment

As of December 31 2012 2011
Millions
Regulated Utility $3,232.¢ $2,794.1
Construction Work in Progress 151.¢ 155.(
Accumulated Depreciation (1,202.9 (1,024.9)
Regulated Utility Plant - Net 2,281.¢ 1,925..
Non-Rate Base Energy Operations 118.( 106.4
Construction Work in Progress 4.2 2.3
Accumulated Depreciation (56.7) (51.9
Non-Rate Base Energy Operations Plant - Net 65.5 57.2
Other Plant - Net 0.2 0.2
Property, Plant and Equipment - Net $2,347.1 $1,982.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-linehod over the estimated useful lives of the varidasses of assets.

Estimated Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipent

Regulated Utility — Generation 3 to 35 years NRate Base Operations 3to 61 years
Transmission 42 to 61 years Other Plant 5 to 25 years
Distribution 14 to 65 years

Asset Retirement ObligationsWe recognize, at fair value, obligations associatét the retirement of certain tangible, loliged assets th
result from the acquisition, construction or depeh@nt and/or normal operation of the asset. Assttement obligations (ARO) rele
primarily to the decommissioning of our cdaied and wind generating facilities and land rewddion at BNI Coal, and are included in o
non-current liabilities on our Consolidated BalaiSteeet. The associated retirement costs are dapiads part of the related lofiged asse
and depreciated over the useful life of the adRetnoval costs associated with certain distribueaal transmission assets have not

recognized, as these facilities have indeterminagdul lives.

Conditional asset retirement obligations have bielentified for treated wood poles and remainingypblorinated biphenyl and asbestos
containing assets; however, removal costs havebeeh recognized because they are considered imatdierour consolidated financ
statements.

Long-standing ratemaking practices approved by appkcatidte and federal regulatory commissions hawsvall provisions for future ple
removal costs in depreciation rates. These planbval cost recoveries are classified either as ABOa&s a regulatory liability for noARO
obligations. To the extent annual accruals for ptamoval costs differ from accruals under approdegreciation rates, a regulatory asse
been established in accordance with the guidanc&R®s. (See Note 5. Regulatory Matters.)

Asset Retirement Obligation

Millions

Obligation as of December 31, 2010 $50.:
Accretion Expense 6.4
Additional Liabilities Incurred in 2011 0.3
Obligation as of December 31, 2011 57.C
Accretion Expense 3.€
Additional Liabilities Incurred in 2012 17.1
Obligation as of December 31, 2012 $77.¢
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NOTE 4. JOINTLY-OWNED FACILITIES

Following are our investments in jointly-owned fii@s and the related ownership percentages &soémber 31, 2012 :

Accumulated Construction Work

Regulated Utility Plant Plant in Service Depreciation in Progress % Ownership

Millions

Boswell Unit 4 $413.2 $188.: $25.( 80

CapX2020 22.¢ 0.4 25.¢ 9.3-14.7
Total $435.¢ $188.! $50.¢

We own 80 percent of the 588W Boswell Unit 4. While we operate the plant, eémtdecisions about the operations of Boswell Unitre
subject to the oversight of a committee on whichamd WPPI Energy, the owner of the remaining 2@egmrof Boswell Unit 4, have eqt
representation and voting rights. Each of us mustide our own financing and is obligated to pay ownership share of operating costs.
share of direct operating expenses of Boswell 4nig included in operating expense on our Cons@itlsstatement of Income. We ar
participant in the CapX2020 initiative to ensurdiatde electric transmission and distribution ire tregion surrounding our rategulate:
operations in Minnesota, along with other eleatdoperatives, municipals, and investor-owned igditWe are currently participating tinree
CapX2020 projects with varying ownership percensage

NOTE 5. REGULATORY MATTERS
Electric Rates.Entities within our Regulated Operations segmdatfir periodic rate revisions with the MPUC, theRC or the PSCW.

2010 Minnesota Rate Casklinnesota Powes current retail rates are based on a 2011 MPU4il rette order, effective June 1, 2011,
allowed for a 10.38 percent return on common ecpiity a 54.29 percent equity ratio.

In February 2011, Minnesota Power appealed the MPlUiEerim rate decision in the Compagsy2010 rate case to the Minnesota Cou
Appeals. The Company appealed the MP&Jfihding of exigent circumstances in the interiaterdecision with the primary arguments b
that the MPUC exceeded its statutory authority, enégldecision without the support of a body obrecevidence and that the decision viol;
public policy. The Company desires to resolve wbethe MPUCS finding of exigent circumstances was lawful fpplcation in future rai
cases. In December 2011, the Minnesota Court okAlspconcluded that the MPUC did not err in findexggent circumstances and prop
exercised its discretion in setting interim rat@s. January 4, 2012, the Company filed a petitianréwiew at the Minnesota Supreme C
(Court). On February 14, 2012, the Court grantedpétition for review and oral arguments were Hudtbre the Court on October 9, 20172
decision is expected in early 2013; however, wenobpredict the outcome at this time.

FERC-Approved Wholesale Ratellinnesota Power’s non-affiliated municipal customeonsist of 16 municipalities in Minnesota ahd
private utility in Wisconsin. SWL&P, a whollgwned subsidiary of ALLETE, is also a private tyilin Wisconsin and a customer of Minne:
Power. Minnesota Power’s formutmsed contract with the City of Nashwauk is effex#pril 1, 2013 through June 30, 2024, and théatet
formula-based contracts with the remaining 15 Minnesotaicial customers and SWL&P are effective througheJB0, 2019. The ral
included in these contracts are calculated usingstbased formula methodology that is set each Julysihg estimated costs and a rat
return that is equal to our authorized rate of metfor Minnesota retail customers (currently 1088rcent ). The formuldased rai
methodology also provides for a yearly tug-calculation for actual costs incurred. The caettterms include a termination clause requiri
three year notice to terminate. Under the City of Nashkvaantract, no termination notice may be given ptm July 1, 2021. Under t
restated contracts, no termination notices mayibengprior to June 30, 2016. A twgear cancellation notice is required for the onggbe
non-affiliated utility in Wisconsin, and on December, 3011, this customer submitted a cancellationceotiith termination effective «
December 31, 2013. The MW of average monthly demand provided to this comgpis expected to be used to supply energy topprtive
customers beginning in 2014.

2012 Wisconsin Rate CaseDuring 2012, SWL&PS retail rates were based on a 2010 PSCW retal oader, which was effecti
January 1, 2011 . SWL&P’s 2013 retail rates areethasn a 2012 PSCW retail rate order, effective dgna, 2013, and allows for B0.¢
percent return on common equity. The new ratescefin average overall increase of 2.4 percenetfail customers (a 13 ercent increase
water rates, a 1.2 percent increase in electrasrand a 2.percent decrease in natural gas rates). On an Ezedibasis, the rate increase
generate approximately $1.7 million in additioreenue.
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NOTE 5. REGULATORY MATTERS (Continued)

Rapids Energy Center.On December 19, 2012, Minnesota Power filed with MPUC for approval to transfer the assets of Rafiderg
Center from non-rate base generation to MinnesoteelPs Regulated Operations. Rapids Energy Center &argtion facility that is located
the UPM, Blandin Paper Mill (Blandin). MinnesotaviRer and Blandin entered into a new electric seraigeeement in September 2012 wl
is also subject to MPUC approval. We expect a datisom the MPUC on these filings in mid-2013.

ALLETE Clean Energy. In August 2011, the Company filed with the MPUC &pproval of certain affiliated interest agreemdvesvee
ALLETE and ALLETE Clean Energy. These agreemenistedo various relationships between the pariiedyuding the accounting for cert;
shared services, as well as the transfer of trasssom and wind development rights in North DakaiaALLETE Clean Energy. The
transmission and wind development rights are sépamad distinct from those needed by Minnesota Pdweneet Minnesota’ renewabl
energy standard requirements. On July 23, 2012MREIC issued an order approving certain adminiseatems related to accounting
shared services and the transfer of meteorolotpeadrs, while deferring decisions related to traission and wind development rights pent
the MPUC's further review of Minnesota Power’s figuetail electric service needs.

Boswell Mercury Emissions Reduction PlanMinnesota Power is required to implement a meramyssions reduction project for Bosv
Unit 4 under the Minnesota Mercury Emissions Reiducand the Federal MATS rule. On August 31, 2(MBnesota Power filed its merct
emissions reduction plan for Boswell Unit 4 witlke tlMPUC and the MPCA. The plan proposes that MintaeBower install pollution contrc
by early 2016 to address both the Minnesota mereurtissions reduction requirements and the Federal $rule. Costs to implement 1
Boswell Unit 4 mercury emissions reduction planiactuded in the estimated capital expendituresireq for compliance with the MATS rt
and are estimated to be between $350 million a®® $dillion . The MPCA has 180 days to comment on the meramigsons reduction pla
which then is reviewed by the MPUC for a decisidfe expect a decision by the MPUC on the plan irtitivel quarter of 2013. After appro'
by the MPUC we anticipate filing a petition to indk investments and expenditures in customer ¢itkrtes.

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 210 (PPACA).In March 2010, the PPACA was signed into law. Ohthe provision
changed the tax treatment for retiree prescriptiomg expenses by eliminating the tax deductionexpenses that are reimbursed u
Medicare Part D, beginning January 1, 2013. Basethis provision, we are subject to additional taxe the future and were requirec
reverse previously recorded tax benefits whichltedun a non-recurring charge to net income oD$illion in 2010. In October 2010, \
submitted a filing with the MPUC requesting deféwfithe retail portion of the tax charge taken2iilO resulting from the PPACA. In M
2011, the MPUC approved our request for deferrtl the next rate case and as a result we recordedcome tax benefit of $2.9 milliand :
related regulatory asset of $5.0 million in thess®tquarter of 2011.

Pension.In December 2011, the Company filed a petition wlith MPUC requesting a mechanism to recover theafasapital associated w
the prepaid pension asset (or liability) createdh®y required contributions under the pension jiaaxcess of (or less than) annual pen
expense. The Company further requested a mechdaisiefer pension expenses in excess of (or lesg thase currently being recoveret
base rates On February 14, 2013, the MPUC denied the Conipastition for recovery of the pension asset agférdal of expenses outs
of a general rate case. The MPUC decision doesnpztct the results of operations for the year eridecember 31, 2012.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities.Our regulated utility operations are subject to #wveounting guidance for Regulated Operations
capitalize incurred costs which are probable obvecy in future utility rates as regulatory ass&egulatory liabilities represent amour
expected to be refunded or credited to customenat@s. No regulatory assets or liabilities argently earning a return.
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NOTE 5. REGULATORY MATTERS (Continued)

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

As of December 31 2012 2011
Millions
Current Regulatory Assets(a)
Deferred Fuel $22.5 $17.5
Total Current Regulatory Assets 22.k 17.t

Non-Current Regulatory Assets
Future Benefit Obligations Under

Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretiremesmi$°| 260.7 292.¢
Income Taxes 36.C 28.€
Asset Retirement Obligation 12.1 9.€
Cost Recovery Ridel®) 18.t 0.7
PPACA Income Tax Deferral 5.C 5.C
Conservation Improvement Program 2 4.€
Other 3.7 4.4

Total Non-Current Regulatory Assets 340.: 345.¢

Total Regulatory Assets $362.¢ $363.¢

Non-Current Regulatory Liabilities

Income Taxes $19.t $21.¢
Plant Removal Obligations 18.1 15.C
Wholesale and Retail Contra AFUDC 15.t 1t
Other 7.C 5.1

Total Non-Current Regulatory Liabilities $60.1 $43.t

(a) Current regulatory assets are included in prepayts@md other on our Consolidated Balance Sk
(b) The increase in cost recovery rider regulatory &s&e 2012 is primarily due to revenues relatedtw Bison Wind Energy Cente

NOTE 6. INVESTMENT IN ATC

Investment in ATC. Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Rainy River Energy,rsaapproximately 8 percent of ATC, a Wisconsased utility the
owns and maintains electric transmission assqaiits of Wisconsin, Michigan, Minnesota, and IlisATC rates are FER@pproved and a
based on a 12.2 percaeturn on common equity dedicated to utility plaie account for our investment in ATC under theiggmethod o
accounting. As of December 31, 2012 , our equiteestiment in ATC was $107.3 million ( $98.9 milliah December 31, 2011 On Januat
30, 2013, we invested an additional $0.4 milliorAiRC. In total, we expect to invest approximateB&Gmillion throughout 2013 .

ALLETE’s Interest in ATC

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011
Millions

Equity Investment Beginning Balance $98.¢ $93.:
Cash Investments 4.7 2.C
Equity in ATC Earnings 19.4 18.2
Distributed ATC Earnings (15.7) (14.9)
Equity Investment Ending Balance $107.: $98.¢
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NOTE 6. INVESTMENT IN ATC (Continued)

ATC Summarized Financial Data

Balance Sheet Data

As of December 31 2012 2011
Millions

Current Assets $63.1 $58.7
Non-Current Assets 3,274, 3,053.°
Total Assets $3,337. $3,112.
Current Liabilities $251.t $298.t
Long-Term Debt 1,550.( 1,400.(
Other Non-Current Liabilities 95.¢ 82.€
Members’ Equity 1,440.! 1,331.c
Total Liabilities and Members’ Equity $3,337. $3,112.
Income Statement Data

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Millions

Revenue $603.: $567.: $556."
Operating Expense 281.( 261.€ 251.1
Other Expense 84.¢ 81.7 85.¢
Net Income $237. $223.¢ $219.7
ALLETE's Equity in Net Income $19. $18. $17.¢

NOTE 7. INVESTMENTS

Investments.At December 31, 2012 , our lorigrm investment portfolio included the real estsets of ALLETE Properties, debt and ec
securities consisting primarily of securities hiddund employee benefits, and other assets camgigtimarily of cash equivalents and lan

Minnesota.

Investments

As of December 31 2012 2011
Millions

ALLETE Properties $91.1 $91.¢
Available-for-sale Securities 26.¢ 24.i
Other 25.€ 16.2
Total Investments $143.¢ $132.:
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NOTE 7. INVESTMENTS (Continued)

ALLETE Properties

As of December 31 2012 2011
Millions
Land Inventory Beginning Balance $86.( $86.(
Deeds to Collateralized Property 0.t 1.8
Land Impairment — 2.7
Cost of Sales (0.2 (0.9
Capitalized Improvements and Other 0.2 0.2
Land Inventory Ending Balance 86.t 86.C
Long-Term Finance Receivables (net of allowancek0ds and $0.6) 14 2.C
Other 3.2 3.2
Total Real Estate Assets $91.1 $91.:

Land Inventory. Land inventory is accounted for as held for use mnrecorded at cost, unless the carrying valudetermined not to |
recoverable in accordance with the accounting statsdfor property, plant and equipment, in whickecthe land inventory is written dowr
fair value. Land values are reviewed for impairmenta quarterly basis. In 2012, impairment analysisstimated future undiscounted c
flows was conducted and indicated that the cashisflovere adequate to recover the carrying basisuofamd inventory. Consequently, th
was no impairment recorded for the year ended Dbeef3il, 2012 . For the year ended December 31, 28117 millionimpairment charg
was recorded.

Long-Term Finance Receivableé\s of December 31, 2012 , long-term finance neaiglies were $1.4 million net of allowance ( $2.0lion ne!

of allowance as of December 31, 2011 ). The deerisggrimarily the result of the transfer of prapes back to ALLETE Properties by deed-in
lieu of foreclosure, in satisfaction of amounts iwasly owed under long-term finance receivablesngterm finance receivables
collateralized by property sold, accrue interest nadrketbased rates and are net of an allowance for ddulastfgounts. As «
December 31, 2012 , we had allowance for doubtfabants of $0.6 million ( $0.6 million as of Deceent31, 2011 ).

If a purchaser defaults on a sales contract, thal leemedy is usually limited to terminating thentract and retaining the purchasedeposi
The property is then available for resale. Contqaatchasers may incur significant costs during dilgence, planning, designing ¢
marketing the property before the contract clogesefore they may have substantially more atthisk the deposit.

Available-for-Sale Investments. We account for our available-feale portfolio in accordance with the guidancedertain investments
debt and equity securities. Our availabledate securities portfolio consisted of securitisiglglished to fund certain employee benefits
auction rate securities. Our auction rate secsrife$6.7 million were redeemed at carrying valoelanuary 5, 2011.

Available-For-Sale Securities

Millions Gross Unrealized
As of December 31 Cost Gain (Loss) Fair Value
2012 $27.4 $0.5 $(1.2) $26.8
2011 $27.3 $0.1 $(2.7) $24.7
2010 $27.4 $0.2 $(2.4) $25.2
Net Unrealized
Net Gross Realized Gain (Loss) in Other

Year Ended December 31 Proceeds Gain (Loss) Comprehensive Income
2012 $1.5 — — $1.2

2011 $7.8 — — $(0.3)

2010 $0.6 — — $0.8
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NOTE 8. DERIVATIVES

During the third quarter of 2011, we entered intvaaiable-tofixed interest rate swap (Swap), designated assh flaw hedge, in order
manage the interest rate risk associated with a0$THlion Term Loan. The Term Loan has a variailkerest rate equal to the omentt
LIBOR plus 1.00 percent , has a maturity of Augeist 2014, and represents approximately 8 percetiteo€Company’s outstanding loterr
debt as of December 31, 2012 . (See Note 10. Seonr and LongFerm Debt.) The Swap agreement has a notional atrequel to th
underlying debt principal and matures on AugustZBL4. The Swap agreement involves the receiptigible rate amounts in exchange
fixed rate interest payments over the life of tgeeement without an exchange of the underlyingomati amount. The variable rate of the S
is equal to the one-month LIBOR and the fixed fatequal to 0.825 percenCash flows from the interest rate swap are exggetd be highl
effective in offsetting the variable interest experf the debt attributable to fluctuations in dmemonth LIBOR interest rate over the life
the Swap. If it is determined that a derivativen@ or has ceased to be effective as a hedge, dhgp&hy prospectively discontinues he
accounting with respect to that derivativEhe shortcut method is used to assess hedge eéfeeis. At inception, all shortcut met|
requirements were satisfied; thus changes in vafillkee Swap designated as the hedging instrumdhb&deemed 100 percent effective. /
result, there was no ineffectiveness recordedhferyear ended December 31, 2012. The markddket fluctuation on the cash flow hedge
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive incamthe Consolidated Balance Sheet. As of Decenbe?@®12, the fair value of the sw.
was a $0.7 million liability (a $0.4 million lialiiy as of December 31, 2011 ) and is included lreononeurrent liabilities on the Consolidar
Balance Sheet. Cash flows from derivative actigitee presented in the same category as the iteng bedged on the Consolidated Statel
of Cash Flows. Amounts recorded in other comprekieriscome related to cash flow hedges will be gmiped in earnings when the hed
transactions occur or when it is probable thatttedged transactions will not occur. Gains or logse#nterest rate hedging transactions
reflected as a component of interest expense o@adhsolidated Statement of Income.

NOTE 9. FAIR VALUE

Fair value is the price that would be receiveddiban asset or paid to transfer a liability incaderly transaction between market participar
the measurement date (exit price). We utilize madetda or assumptions that market participants dvasle in pricing the asset or liabil
including assumptions about risk and the risksri@hein the inputs to the valuation technique. Bhieputs can be readily observable, me
corroborated, or generally unobservable. We priagpply the market approach for recurring fairuemeasurements and endeavor to u
the best available information. Accordingly, weligé valuation techniques that maximize the uselsfervable inputs and minimize the us
unobservable inputs. These inputs, which are usetetsure fair value, are prioritized through thie ¥alue hierarchy. The hierarchy gives
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices iriveciarkets for identical assets or liabilities yee1 measurement) and the lowest priorit
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). The tleneels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows

Level 1 —Quoted prices are available in active markets deniical assets or liabilities as of the reportatedActive markets are those
which transactions for the asset or liability ocousufficient frequency and volume to provide prizinformation on an ongoing basis. 1
category includes primarily mutual fund investmemitd to fund employee benefits.

Level 2 —Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices invactharkets, but are either directly or indirectlyservable as of the repor
date. The types of assets and liabilities incluohetlevel 2 are typically either comparable to aelwtraded securities or contracts, suc
treasury securities with pricing interpolated froacent trades of similar securities, or priced witbdels using highly observable inputs, ¢
as commodity options priced using observable fodwanices and volatilities. This category includefedred compensation, fixed inco
securities, and derivative instruments consistihgash flow hedges.

Level 3 —Significant inputs that are generally less obsdes&ilom objective sources. The types of assetdliahidities included in Level 3 a
those with inputs requiring significant managemjedgment or estimation, such as the complex angestibe models and forecasts use
determine the fair value. This category includedSAd®nsisting of guaranteed student loans.

The following tables set forth by level within tHigir value hierarchy, our assets and liabilitieattivere accounted for at fair value ¢
recurring basis as of December 31, 2012 and Dece®ihe011. Each asset and liability is classified basedhenldwest level of input that
significant to the fair value measurement. Our sssent of the significance of a particular inputthe fair value measurement requ
judgment, which may affect the valuation of failue assets and liabilities and their placement iwithe fair value hierarchy levels. 1
estimated fair value of cash and cash equivaléstedl on the Consolidated Balance Sheet approxgrhtecarrying amount and therefore
excluded from the recurring fair value measurethintables below.
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NOTE 9. FAIR VALUE (Continued)

Fair Value as of December 31, 2012

Recurring Fair Value Measures Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Millions
Assets:
Investments
Available-for-sale Securities — Equity Securities $18.( — — $18.C
Available-for-sale Securities — Corporate Debt 3ities — $8.¢€ — 8.¢
Cash Equivalents 20.7 — — 20.%
Total Fair Value of Assets $38.7 $8.¢ — $47.5
Liabilities:
Deferred Compensation — $14.C — $14.C
Derivatives — Interest Rate Swap — 0.7 — 0.7
Total Fair Value of Liabilities — $14.7 — $14.7
Total Net Fair Value of Assets (Liabilities) $38.7 $(5.9) — $32.¢

There was no activity in Level 3 during the yeadeth December 31, 2012.

Fair Value as of December 31, 2011

Recurring Fair Value Measures Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Millions
Assets:
Investments
Available-for-sale Securities — Equity Securities $17.¢ — — $17.€
Available-for-sale Securities — Corporate Debt 3ities — $8.2 — 8.2
Cash Equivalents 11.¢ — — 11.¢
Total Fair Value of Assets $29.( $8.2 — $37.2
Liabilities:
Deferred Compensation — $12.¢ — $12.€
Derivatives — Interest Rate Swap — $0.4 — $0.4
Total Fair Value of Liabilities — $13.2 — $13.2
Total Net Fair Value of Assets (Liabilities) $29.( $(5.0) — $24.(

Debt Securities
Issued by States

Recurring Fair Value Measures of the United

Activity in Level 3 States (ARS)

Millions

Balance as of December 31, 2010 $6.7
Redeemed During the Periéal (6.7)

Balance as of December 31, 2011 $—

(a) The ARS were redeemed at carrying value on Jarfe2@11.
The Companyg policy is to recognize transfers in and transéertsas of the actual date of the event or changér¢umstances that caused

transfer. For the years ended December 31, 2012@ht, there were no transfers in or out of Letel® or 3.
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NOTE 9. FAIR VALUE (Continued)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. With the exception of the items listed in the tabklow, the estimated fair value of all finan
instruments approximates the carrying amount. Hievialue for the items below were based on quatadket prices for the same or sim
instruments (Level 2).

Financial Instruments Carrying Amount Fair Value
Millions
Long-Term Debt, Including Current Portion
December 31, 2012 $1,018.: $1,143.
December 31, 2011 $863.: $966.

NOTE 10. SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Short-Term Debt. Total short-term debt outstanding as of Decembe2812 , was $84.5 million ( $6.5 million at Decesni31, 2011) anc
consisted of long-term debt due within one year aatks payable. As of December 31, 2012, steon debt increased from December
2011, primarily due to $60.0 million of long-terrelet maturing in April 2013.

As of December 31, 2012 , we had bank lines of itradgregating $406.4 million ( $256.4 million ate@mber 31, 201}, of whict
$150.0 million expires in January 2014, and $2%0illon expires in June 2015. These bank linesreflit are available to provide shaetr
bank loans and liquidity support for ALLETE’s comroial paper program and to issue up to $50.0 miliio letters of credit. We hada
outstanding draws on our lines of credit as of Dewer 31, 2012 ( $1.1 million at December 31, 2011 )

On February 1, 2012, ALLETE entered into a $150ilan credit agreement (Agreement) with JPMorgan Chasi&kB4.A., as administrati
agent, and several other lenders that are pahtistb. The Agreement is unsecured and has a tyadate of January 31, 2014, which ma;
extended for one year, subject to bank approvatsiaAces under the Agreement may be used for generpbrate purposes, to prov
liquidity support for ALLETE’s commercial paper gn@m and to issue up to $10.0 million in lettersmdit.

Long-Term Debt. Total long-term debt outstanding as of Decembe2812 , was $933.6 million ( $857.9 million at Dedzer 31, 201). The
aggregate amount of long-term debt maturing dugieg3 is $84.5 million ( $94.8 million in 2014 ; $&7million in 2015 ; $21.7 milliorin
2016 ; $51.2 million in 2017 ; and $748.5 millithereafter). Substantially all of our electric glas subject to the lien of the mortg:
collateralizing outstanding first mortgage bondfieTmortgages contain ndimancial covenants customary in utility mortgagesluding
restrictions on our ability to incur liens, dispagfeassets, and merge with other entities.

On July 2, 2012, we issued $160.0 million of themany’s First Mortgage Bonds (Bonds) in the private ptaeet market in two series
follows:

Issue Date Maturity Date Principal Amount Interest Rate
July 2, 2012 July 15, 2026 $75 Million 3.20%
July 2, 2012 July 15, 2042 $85 Million 4.08%

We have the option to prepay all or a portion & $120 percent Bonds at our discretion at any time pieodanuary 15, 2026, subject t
makewhole provision, and at any time on or after Japudy, 2026, at par, including, in each case, actare unpaid interest. We also h
the option to prepay all or a portion of the 4.08rcent Bonds at our discretion at any time pigodanuary 15, 2042, subject to a makesle
provision, and at any time on or after January?l8,2, at par, including, in each case, accrueduapaid interest. The Bonds are subject t(
additional terms and conditions of our utility mgage. In July 2012, we used a portion of the prdedeom the sale of the Bonds to red:
$6.0 million of our 6.50 percent Industrial Devealognt Revenue Bonds and to repay $14.0 millionoutstanding borrowings on ¢
$150.0 millionline of credit. The remaining proceeds were useéuia utility capital expenditures and for genecalporate purposes. T
Bonds were sold in reliance on an exemption frogisteation under Section 4(a)(2) of the Securittes of 1933, as amended, to cer
institutional accredited investors.
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NOTE 10. SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Long-Term Debt

As of December 31 2012 2011
Millions
First Mortgage Bonds
4.86% Series Due 2013 $60.( $60.(
6.94% Series Due 2014 18.C 18.C
7.70% Series Due 2016 20.C 20.C
8.17% Series Due 2019 42.C 42.(
5.28% Series Due 2020 35.C 35.(
4.85% Series Due 2021 15.C 15.C
4.95% Pollution Control Series F Due 2022 111.C 111.(
6.02% Series Due 2023 75.C 75.C
4.90% Series Due 2025 30.C 30.C
5.10% Series Due 2025 30.C 30.(
3.20% Series Due 2026 75.C —
5.99% Series Due 2027 60.C 60.(
5.69% Series Due 2036 50.C 50.(
6.00% Series Due 2040 35.C 35.(
5.82% Series Due 2040 45.C 45.(
4.08% Series Due 2042 85.C —
SWL&P First Mortgage Bonds 7.25% Series Due 2013 10.C 10.C
Senior Unsecured Notes 5.99% Due 2017 50.C 50.C
Variable Demand Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2987 and C Due 2013 — 2020 27.t 28.2
Industrial Development Revenue Bonds 6.5% Due 2025 — 6.C
Industrial Development Variable Rate Demand RefngdRevenue Bonds Series 2006 Due 2025 27.¢ 27.¢
Unsecured Term Loan Variable Rate Due 2014 75.C 75.C
Other Long-Term Debt, 1.0% — 8.0% Due 2013 — 2037 41.¢ 40.:
Total Long-Term Debt 1,018.: 863.:
Less: Due Within One Year 84. 5.4
Net Long-Term Debt $933.¢ $857.¢

Financial Covenants.Our longtierm debt arrangements contain customary covenémtaddition, our lines of credit and letters o&dil
supporting certain lonterm debt arrangements contain financial coven@us.compliance with financial covenants is noteatggent on de
ratings. The most restrictive covenant requires BILE to maintain a ratio of its Indebtedness to T@apitalization (as the amounts
calculated in accordance with the respective largytdebt arrangements) of less than or equal t6 t6l.00measured quarterly. As
December 31, 2012 , our ratio was approximatel$ ©41.00. Failure to meet this covenant would give risamoevent of default if not cur
after notice from the lender, in which event ALLETay need to pursue alternative sources of fund@ogie of ALLETES debt arrangemel
contain “cross-defaultprovisions that would result in an event of defafiithere is a failure under other financing arramgnts to me
payment terms or to observe other covenants thatdaresult in an acceleration of payments due. fBacember 31, 2012ALLETE was ir
compliance with its financial covenants.

NOTE 11. COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENCIES

Power Purchase AgreementsOur longterm PPAs have been evaluated under the accoumtiignce for variable interest entities. We t
determined that either we have no variable inteéreshe PPAs, or where we do have variable interesé are not the primary beneficic
therefore, consolidation is not required. Thesecheaions are based on the fact that we do not batte control over activities that are r
significant to the entity and an obligation to attstmsses or receive benefits from the engitgerformance. Our financial exposure relatir
these PPAs is limited to our capacity and energynaants.
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NOTE 11. COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
Power Purchase Agreements (Continued)

Square Butte PPAViinnesota Power has a PPA with Square Butte thiznels through 2026 (Agreement). It provides a ltergs supply ¢
energy to customers in our electric service tawind enables Minnesota Power to meet reservdreagents. Square Butte, a North Dal
cooperative corporation, owns a 455 MW cfigdd generating unit (Unit) near Center, North D&k The Unit is adjacent to a generating
owned by Minnkota Power, a North Dakota cooperatiwgporation whose Class A members are also mendfesgjuare Butte. Minnka
Power serves as the operator of the Unit and alsthpses power from Square Bultte.

Minnesota Power is obligated to pay its pro ratarslof Square Butte’s costs based on Minnesota Pewatitlement to Unit output. C
output entittement under the Agreement is 50 perfmmthe remainder of the contract, subject to thevisions of the Minnkota Power sa
agreement described below. Minnesota Pasvpayment obligation will be suspended if SquaréteBinils to deliver any power, whetl
produced or purchased, for a period of one yearaf@gButtes costs consist primarily of debt service, opetpind maintenance, deprecia
and fuel expenses. As of December 31, 2012 , Sduatte had total debt outstanding of $416.9 milliocknnual debt service for Square BI

is expected to be approximately $44 million in eathe next five years, 2013 through 2017 , ofakhMinnesota Power’s obligation &
percent . Fuel expenses are recoverable througfueliadjustment clause and include the cost of poechased from BNI Coal, under a long
term contract.

Minnesota Power’s cost of power purchased from BgBatte during 2012 was $67.1 million ( $61.2 faillin 2011 ; $55.2 million in 201
This reflects Minnesota Power’s pro rata shareotdl tSquare Butte costs based on the 50 peméput entitlement. Included in this ama
was Minnesota Power’s pro rata share of interegérse of $11.1 million in 2012 ( $11.1 million iA2L ; $10.2 million in 201(. Minnesot
Power’s payments to Square Butte are approvedpaschased power expense for ratemaking purposbsthythe MPUC and the FERC.

Minnkota Power Sales Agreemeln December 2009, Minnesota Power entered intovéepsales agreement with Minnkota Power. Unde
power sales agreement, Minnesota Power will spthréion of its output from Square Butte to Minnké&awer, resulting in Minnkota Power’
net entitlement increasing and Minnesota Powertengtlement decreasing until Minnesota Powerarslis eliminated at the end of 2025 .

No power will be sold under the 2009 agreement iitinkota Power has placed in service a new A@dnaission line, which is anticipatec
occur in late 2013 This new AC transmission line will allow Minnkofower to transmit its entittement from Square 8uirectly to it
customers, which in turn will enable Minnesota Pothe ability to transmit additional wind generation the existing DC transmission line.

Minnkota Power PPAON December 12, 2012, Minnesota Power enteredaidtmgterm PPA with Minnkota Power. Under this agreer
Minnesota Power will purchase 30W of capacity and the energy associated with dagacity over the term June 1, 2016 through Ma
2020. The agreement includes a fixed capacity &angl energy pricing that escalates at a fixedaiateally over the term.

Oliver Wind | and Il PPAsin 2006 and 2007, Minnesota Power entered intolbmg-term wind PPAs with an affiliate of NextEra Energys.
to purchase the output from Oliver Wind | ( 50 M\&Ad Oliver Wind Il ( 48 MW)—wind facilities located near Center, North Dakdtact
agreement is for 25 years and provides for the ase of all output from the facilities at fixed eme prices. There are rfixed capacit
charges and we only pay for energy as it is detiddo us.

Manitoba Hydro PPAsMinnesota Power has a long-term PPA with Manitobalid that expires in April 2015 Under this agreeme
Minnesota Power is purchasing BIW of capacity and the energy associated with thgiacity. Both the capacity price and the energpefare
adjusted annually by the change in a governmentfiationary index.

Minnesota Power has a separate long-term PPA wiimitdba Hydro to purchase surplus energy throughl 2022 . This energpnly
agreement primarily consists of surplus hydro epesg Manitoba Hydro’'s system that is delivered tanivdsota Power on a ndinm
basis. The pricing is based on forward market pritinder this agreement, Minnesota Power will pasehat least one milliodWh of energ
over the contract term.

ALLETE 2012 Form 10-K
87




NOTE 11. COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
Power Purchase Agreements (Continued)

In May 2011, Minnesota Power and Manitoba Hydramsifjan additional PPA. The PPA calls for Manitohaltd to sell 250MW of capacit'
and energy to Minnesota Power for ¥&ars beginning in 2020 and is subject to condtmobf additional transmission capacity betw
Manitoba and the U.S., along with construction eWrhydroelectric generating capacity in Manitobhe Tapacity price is adjusted annu
until 2020 by a change in a governmental inflatrgnemdex. The energy price is based on a formukt thcludes an annual fixed pr
component adjusted for a change in a governmentitationary index and a natural gas index, as a&lnarket prices.

In February 2012, Minnesota Power and Manitoba Blydroposed construction of the Great Northern Trassion Line, a 500kV
transmission line between Manitoba and Minnesott@n Range in order to strengthen the electiiat, gnhance regional reliability and prorr
a greater exchange of sustainable energy, whidhrggeted to be in service in 2020. Total projecitcand cost allocations are still to
determined.The Great Northern Transmission Lirgulgect to various federal and state regulatory@mts. In addition, Manitoba Hydro m
obtain regulatory and governmental approvals rdlegenew transmission lines and hydroelectric gati@n development in Canada.

North Dakota Wind Development. Minnesota Power uses the 465 -mile, R%0DC transmission line that runs from Center, [Kddakota, t
Duluth, Minnesota to transport increasing amourftavimd energy from North Dakota while gradually gy out coabased electricil
delivered to our system over this transmission finen Square Butte’s lignite coal-fired generatingt.

Our Bison Wind Energy Center in North Dakota cotssif 292 MW of nameplate capacity. Bison 1 is a8V wind facility in North Dakote
which was completed in two phases. The first plese completed in 2010, and the second phase wagletth in January 2012. The pro
also included construction of a 22 -mile, 230 k\ansmission line. Bison 1 had a total project cost$@74.9 million througt
December 31, 2012 , including additional coststeeldo land restoration and completion of remairasgociated upgrades to the 260DC
transmission line.

The 105MW Bison 2 and 105 MW Bison 3 wind facilities in Nlo Dakota were completed in December 2012. Tatajept costs for Bison
and Bison 3 were $148.6 million and $149.8 milliorespectively, through December 31, 2018 September 2011 and November 2011
MPUC approved Minnesota Powerpetitions seeking cost recovery for investmemtd axpenditures related to Bison 2 and Bisa
respectively.

Current customer billing rates were approved byMiRJC in a November 2011 order and are based astments and expenditures assoc
with Bison 1. We anticipate filing a cost recovemstition with the MPUC in the first half of 2013 tgpdate customer billing rates for Bisa
and to include investments and expenditures adsodoieith Bison 2 and Bison 3.

Coal, Rail and Shipping Contracts. We have coal supply agreements providing for thechmse of a significant portion of our c
requirements with expiration dates through 2014.al¢e have coal transportation agreements in fftadie delivery of a significant portion
our coal requirements with expiration dates thro@§ii5. Our minimum annual payment obligation unterse supply and transportal
agreements is $51.4 million for 2013 and $0.8 omllifor 2014. Our minimum annual payment obligation will incseawhen annu
nominations are made for coal deliveries in futyears. The delivered costs of fuel for Minnesotav@tds generation are recoverable fi
Minnesota Power’s utility customers through thd agjustment clause.

Leasing AgreementsBNI Coal is obligated to make lease payments falragline totaling $2.8 milliorannually for the lease term wh
expires in 2027. BNI Coal has the option at the ehthe lease term to renew the lease at fair ntariklkeie, to purchase the dragline at
market value, or to surrender the dragline andg&8.0 milliontermination fee. We also lease other propertieseapuipment under operati
lease agreements with terms expiring through 20h6.aggregate amount of minimum lease paymentalffaperating leases #&11.5 millior
in 2013, $11.7 million in 2014 , $11.4 million 2015 , $9.3 million in 2016 , $8.5 million in 20AAd $35.0 milliorthereafter. Total rent a
lease expense was $11.5 million in 2012 ( $9.4ionilin 2011 ; $9.4 million in 2010 ).

Transmission . We continue to make investments in Upper Midweahsmission opportunities that strengthen or eobahe region
transmission grid. This includes the CapX2020 aiie, investments in our own transmission asgeigestments in other regional transmis:
assets (individually or in combination with othem)d our investment in ATC.
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NOTE 11. COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
Transmission (Continued)

Transmission Investmenté/e have an approved cost recovery rider in placecéotain transmission investments and expenditares thi
continued use of our 2009 billing factor was apgbby the MPUC in May 2011. The billing factor all® us to charge our retail customer:
a current basis for the costs of constructing aettansmission facilities plus a return on theitdpnvested. In June 201 .we filed an update
billing factor that includes additional transmigsiexpenditures, which we expect to be approveterfitst quarter of 2013.

CapX2020.Minnesota Power is a participant in the CapX202diative which represents an effort to ensure eiectransmission ar
distribution reliability in Minnesota and the suraling region for the future. CapX2020, which cstsbf electric cooperatives, municipal
investor-owned utilities, including Minnesaosalargest transmission owners, has assessed thEmission system and projected growt
customer demand for electricity through 2020. Stsdihow that the regiontransmission system will require major upgrades expansion
accommodate increased electricity demand as wellgort renewable energy expansion through 2020.

Minnesota Power is participating in thr@apX2020 projects: the Fargo, North Dakota to Sou@, Minnesota project, the Montice
Minnesota to St. Cloud, Minnesota project, whichetther total a 238 -mile, 348/ line from Fargo, North Dakota to Monticello, Miasote
and the 70 -mile, 230 kV line between Bemidji, Mésota and Minnesota PowgBoswell Energy Center near Grand Rapids, Minmesdi¢
28 -mile 345 kV line between Monticello and St. @lowas placed into service in December 2011 and/€hemile 230kV line betwee
Bemidji, Minnesota and Minnesota PoweBoswell Energy Center near Grand Rapids, Minesats placed into service in September Z
In June 2011, the MPUC approved the route permitife Minnesota portion of the Fargo to St. Cloudjgxt. The North Dakota permitti
process was completed on August 12, 2012. Theee?®i8 -mile, 345 kV line from Fargo to Monticellbbéxpected to be in service by 2015.

Based on projected costs of the three transmidgies and the allocation agreements among partingaitilities, Minnesota Power plans
invest between $100 million and $110 million in t@&ApPX2020 initiative through 2015. A total of $4&mlion was spent throug
December 31, 2012 , of which $37.3 million relatedhe Fargo, North Dakota to Monticello, Minnesptajects and $10.9 milliorelated ti
the Bemidji, Minnesota to Minnesota Power’'s Bosvisllergy Center project ( $27.8 million as of Decem®il, 2011 of whicl$20.4 millior
related to the Fargo, North Dakota to Monticelldnhesota projects and $7.4 million related to theeniglji, Minnesota to Minnesota Power’
Boswell Energy Center project). As future CapX2@6jects are identified, Minnesota Power may elegbarticipate on a project-kjyrojec
basis.

Environmental Matters

Our businesses are subject to regulation of enwisgrial matters by various federal, state and lacahorities. Currently, a number
regulatory changes to the Clean Air Act, the Clgdater Act and various waste management requirermrartainder consideration by b
Congress and the EPA. Minnesota Powddssil fuel facilities will likely be subject toegulation under these proposals. Our intentioto
reduce our exposure to these requirements by rieghapr generation portfolio over time to reduce liance on coal.

We consider our businesses to be in substantiabiante with currently applicable environmentalukdgions and believe all necessary per
to conduct such operations have been obtained. t®wexpected future restrictive environmental reguients imposed through legislat
and/or rulemaking, we anticipate that potential endgitures for environmental matters will be mateaad will require significant capit
investments. Minnesota Power has evaluated varégmwéronmental compliance scenarios using possialges of future environmen
regulations to project power supply trends and ictgpan customers.

We review environmental matters on a quarterly hasccruals for environmental matters are reconddn it is probable that a liability F
been incurred and the amount of the liability carrdasonably estimated, based on current law astingxktechnologies. Accruals are adjut
as assessment and remediation efforts progress additional technical or legal information beconagsilable. Accruals for environmer
liabilities are included in the Consolidated Balargheet at undiscounted amounts and exclude claimecoveries from insurance or ot
third parties. Costs related to environmental ammtation treatment and cleanup are charged to esgpenless recoverable in rates f
customers.

Air. The electric utility industry is heavily regulatbdth at the federal and state level to addressnaissions. Minnesota Powsrgeneratin
facilities mainly burn low-sulfur western sub-bitimaus coal. All of Minnesota Power's cd@led generating facilities are equipped v
pollution control equipment such as scrubbers, hagses and low NQ technologies. Under currently applicable environtakregulations
these facilities are substantially compliant wigiplicable emission requirements.
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NOTE 11. COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
Environmental Matters (Continued)

New Source Review (NS. In August 2008, Minnesota Power received a Notit¥iolation (NOV) from the EPA asserting violatis of the
NSR requirements of the Clean Air Act at Boswellitdri, 2, 3 and 4 and Laskin Unit 2. The NOV assé#rat seven projects undertake
these coafired plants between the years 1981 and 2000 shuaNe been reviewed under the NSR requirementsreidhe Boswell Unit
Title V permit was violated. In April 2011, MinnesoPower received a NOV alleging that two projecidertaken at Rapids Energy Cente
2004 and 2005 should have been reviewed under 8RR Mquirements and that the Rapids Energy Cenfétfe V permit was violate
Minnesota Power believes the projects specifiethénNOVs were in full compliance with the Clean Aict, NSR requirements and applice
permits. Resolution of the NOVs could result inilcpenalties, which we do not believe will be mééto our results of operations, and
installation of additional pollution control equiemt, some of which is already planned or which lesn completed to comply with ot
regulatory requirements. We are engaged in disoossvith the EPA regarding resolution of these emaftbut we are unable to estimate
expenditures, or range of expenditures that mayeleired upon resolution. Any costs of installindd@ional pollution control equipme
would likely be eligible for recovery in rates owane subject to regulatory approval in a rate pemting.

Cross-State Air Pollution Rule (CSAPRhN July 2011, the EPA issued the CSAPR, whiclaegy the EPAS 2005 CAIR. However, on Augt
21, 2012, a three judge panel of the District ofu@tbia Circuit Court of Appeals vacated the CSABRIering that the CAIR remain in effi
while a CSAPR replacement rule is promulgated. ERA and other parties to the case have until A#jl12013, to request that the Supr
Court review the matter. The CSAPR would have megustates in the CSAPR region, including Minnestaignificantly improve air quali
by reducing power plant emissions that contribatezone and/or fine particle pollution in otherteta The CSAPR did not directly require
installation of controls. Instead, the rule woulavl required facilities to have sufficient emissallowances to cover their emissions o1
annual basis. These allowances would have beecatdld to facilities from each stateannual budget and would also have been able
bought and sold.

The CAIR regulations similarly require certain s&to improve air quality by reducing power plamtigsions that contribute to ozone an
fine particle pollution in other states. The CAlR@created an allowance allocation and tradinganm rather than specifying polluti
controls. Minnesota participation in the CAIR waayed by EPA administrative action while the EPAnpteted a review of air qual
modeling issues in conjunction with the developnaa final replacement rule. While the CAIR rensin effect, Minnesota participation
the CAIR will continue to be stayed. It remains ertain if emission restrictions similar to thosent@ined in the CSAPR will become effect
for Minnesota utilities due to the August 2012 Bttof Columbia Circuit Court of Appeals decision.

Since 2006, we have significantly reduced emiss@neur Laskin, Taconite Harbor and Boswell geniegatinits. Based on our expec
generation, these emission reductions would hatisfisd Minnesota Power's S@and NOx emission compliance obligations with respe:
the EPAallocated CSAPR allowances for 2012. Minnesota Pawvil continue to track the EPA activity related promulgation of a CSAF
replacement rule. We are unable to predict anytaddl compliance costs we might incur if the CSARRreinstated or if a CSAF
replacement rule is promulgated.

Regional Hazt. The federal Regional Haze Rule requires statssihonit SIPs to the EPA to address regional hagbilify impairment in 15
federallyprotected parks and wilderness areas. Under theirase of the Regional Haze Rule, certain latggosary sources, put in ple
between 1962 and 1977, with emissions contributngsibility impairment, are required to instathession controls, known as Best Availe
Retrofit Technology (BART). We have two steam uynigeswell Unit 3 and Taconite Harbor Unit 3, theg aubject to BART requirements.

The MPCA requested that companies with BA&ifiible units complete and submit a BART emissiaostrol retrofit study, which wi
completed for Taconite Harbor Unit 3 in Novembe®&0The retrofit work completed in 2009 at Boswviditiit 3 meets the BART requireme
for that unit. In December 2009, the MPCA approtteel Minnesota SIP for submittal to the EPA forrggsiew and approval. The Minnes
SIP incorporates information from the BART emissi@ontrol retrofit studies that were completedeaigiested by the MPCA.
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NOTE 11. COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
Environmental Matters (Continued)

In December 2011, the EPA published in the Fedeegjister a proposal to approve the trading prograthe CSAPR as an alternative
determining BART. However, as a result of the Augt®12 District of Columbia Circuit Court of Appeadecision to vacate the CSAPR (
CSAPR), Minnesota Power is now evaluating whetigriicant additional expenditures at Taconite Harknit 3 will be required to comg
with BART requirements under the Regional Haze Rliladditional regional haze related controls altémately required, Minnesota Pov
will have up to five years from the final rule pralgation to bring Taconite Harbor Unit 3 into comaplce with the Regional Haze R
requirements. It is uncertain what controls woulimately be required at Taconite Harbor Unit 3 enthis scenario. On January 30, 2!
Minnesota Power announced “EnergyForward’,strategic plan for assuring reliability, protegti affordability and further improvit
environmental performance. The plan includes rggifiaconite Harbor Unit 3 in 2015, subject to MP&l§proval.

Mercury and Air Toxics Standards (MATS) Rule (fatynknown as the Electric Generating Unit Maximuroh#evable Control Technolo
(MACT) Rule)Under Section 112 of the Clean Air Act, the EPAdgquired to set emission standards for hazardoyso#lutants (HAPS) fc
certain source categories. The EPA published tied MATS rule in the Federal Register on Februa@y2D12, addressing such emissions
coalfired utility units greater than 25 MW. There arerently 187 listed HAPs that the EPA is requireeévaluate for establishment of MA
standards. In the final MATS rule, the EPA estdldis categories of HAPSs, including mercury, traceatseother than mercury, acid ga
dioxin/furans, and organics other than dioxin/feahhe EPA also established emission limits forfitst three categories of HAPs, and w
practice standards for the remaining categoriefecddéd sources must be in compliance with the bylépril 2015. States have the authorit
grant sources a one-year extension. Minnesota Pasaernotified by the MPCA that they have approveiirdsota Powes request of &
additional year extending the date of compliancettie Boswell Unit 4 retrofit to April 1, 2016. Cqaiiance at our Boswell Unit 4 to addr
the final MATS rule is expected to result in capiexpenditures totaling between $350 million andd@4million through 2016. O
“EnergyForward” plan also includes the conversibhaskin Units 1 and 2 to natural gas addressiegMATS requirements.

EPA National Emission Standards for Hazardous AaliRants for Major Sources: Industrial, Commerciahd Institutional Boilers ar
Process Heater. In March 2011, a final rule was published in Fesleral Register for industrial boiler maximum aetaible control technolor
(Industrial Boiler MACT). The rule was stayed bytBPA in May 2011, to allow the EPA time to considdditional comments received. -
EPA reproposed the rule in December 2011. On Januar@®2,2he United States District Court for the Dittof Columbia ruled that ti
EPA stay of the Industrial Boiler MACT was unlawfeffectively reinstating the March 2011 rule asdaciated compliance deadlines. A f
rule based on the December 2011 proposal, whickrsages the March 2011 rule, was released on Dece2ib 2012. Major sources hi
three years to achieve compliance with the finld.rivlinnesota Power is in the process of asseshmgmpact of this rule on our affected u
including the Hibbard Renewable Energy Center aafid® Energy Center. Costs for complying with timalfrule cannot be estimated at
time.

Minnesota Mercury Emissions Reduction . Under the 2006 Minnesota Mercury Emissions RedocdAct, Minnesota Power is requirec
implement a mercury emissions reduction projectBoswell Unit 4 by December 31, 2018. On August 2112, Minnesota Power filed
mercury emissions reduction plan for Boswell Univith the MPUC and the MPCA. The plan proposes Miainesota Power install polluti
controls to address both the Minnesota mercury gatis reduction requirements and the MATS rule cihilso regulates mercury emissis
Minnesota Power's request of an additional yearadihg the date of compliance for the Boswell Unitetrofit to April 1, 2016, was approv
by the MPCA. Costs to implement the Boswell Unitnércury emissions reduction plan are included & @ktimated capital expenditu
required for compliance with the MATS rule discussdove.

Proposed and Finalized National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS). The EPA is required to review the NAAQS every fixgars. If th
EPA determines that a staeiir quality is not in compliance with a NAAQSethtate is required to adopt plans describing homilli reduce
emissions to attain the NAAQS. These state platenahclude more stringent air emission limitatiars sources of air pollutants than
NAAQS. Four NAAQS have either recently been revisedre currently proposed for revision, as desctibelow.

Ozone NAAQSThe EPA has proposed to more stringently controissions that result in ground level ozone. In Jan&010, the EP.
proposed to revise the 2008 eight-hour ozone stdratzd to adopt a secondary standard for the groteof sensitive vegetation from ozone:
related damage. The EPA was scheduled to decide tq@2008 eighktour ozone standard in July 2011, but has sincewarued that it
deferring revision of this standard until 2013.
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NOTE 11. COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
Environmental Matters (Continued)

Particulate Matter NAAQ<The EPA finalized the NAAQS Particulate Matter stards in September 2006. Since then, the EPA hablishel
a more stringent 24-hour average fine particulatg¢ten (PM.s) standard; the annual PMstandard and the 2deur coarse particulate ma
standard have remained unchanged. The United Siatas$ of Appeals for the District of Columbia Giitremanded the annual PMstandar
to the EPA, requiring consideration of lower anmatahdard values. The EPA proposed new,R&tandards on June 14, 2012.

On December 14, 2012, the EPA confirmed in a findd that the current annual PMstandard, which has been in place since 1997 be
lowered, while retaining the current 24-hour BMstandard. To implement the new lower annual RMtandard, the EPA is also revis
aspects of relevant monitoring, designations amthijpéng requirements. New projects and permits hoasnply with the new lower standa
and compliance with the NAAQS at the facility levglgenerally demonstrated by modeling. To bridgettansition to the lower standard,
EPA is finalizing a grandfathering provision to aresthat projects and pending permits already wnalgare not unduly delayed.

Under the final rule, states will be responsibleddditional PM,smonitoring, which will likely be accomplished byleeation or repurposir
of existing monitors. States are expected to predsinment designations by December 2013, basatt@ady available monitoring data. -
EPA believes that most U.S. counties currentlyaalyemeet the new standard and plans to finalizeggdasons of attainment by Decem
2014. For those counties that the EPA does nogdatd as having already met the requirements afeestandard, specific dates for requ
attainment will depend on technology availabilgtate permitting goals, potential legal challengred other factors.

SO, and NO,; NAAQS.During 2010, the EPA finalized new one-hour NAAQ@®8 £0,and NO,. Ambient monitoring data indicates t
Minnesota will likely be in compliance with thesewn standards; however, the one-hour SRAAQS also require the EPA to evalu
modeling data to determine attainment. The EPAnadi$ied states that their SIPs for attainmenthef standard will be required to be subm
to the EPA for approval by June 2013 but will netrequired to include the evaluation of modelintadantil 2017.

In late 2011, the MPCA initiated modeling activitithat included approximately 65 sources within hdisota that emit greater than 100 tor
SO ; per year. However, on April 12, 2012, the MPCA fieti Minnesota Power that such modeling had beaspended as a result of
EPA’s announcement that the June 2013 SIP submittalfdwo longer require modeling demonstrations fates, such as Minnesota, wt
ambient monitors indicate compliance with the néandard. The MPCA is awaiting updated EPA guidaame will communicate with affect
sources once the MPCA has more information on Hawvstate will meet the EPA'SIP requirements. Currently, compliance with ¢hesv
NAAQS is expected to be required as early as 20t&.costs for complying with the final standardsraat be estimated at this tinr

Climate Change. The scientific community generally accepts thatssioins of GHGs are linked to global climate char@émate chanc
creates physical and financial risk. Physical risgald include, but are not limited to: increasedlecreased precipitation and water leve
lakes and rivers; increased temperatures; andnteaesity and frequency of extreme weather everties& all have the potential to affect
Companys business and operations. We are addressing elimi@ange by taking the following steps that alssuen reliable ar
environmentally compliant generation resources ¢éetour customers’ requirements:

» Expand our renewable energy sup

* Provide energy conservation initiatives for ourtougers and engage in other demand side ef

* Support research of technologies to reduce carbesseons from generation facilities and carbon sstration efforts; ar

» Evaluating and developing less carbon intense éugenerating assets such as efficient and flexiéiferal gas generating faciliti

EPA Regulation of GHG EmissionIn May 2010, the EPA issued the final PreventidnSanificant Deterioration (PSD) and Title
Greenhouse Gas Tailoring Rule (Tailoring Rule). Tladoring Rule establishes permitting thresholeguired to address GHG emissions
new facilities, at existing facilities that undergmjor modifications and at other facilities chaesized as major sources under the Cleal
Act’'s Title V program. For our existing facilities, thale does not require amending our existing Til@perating permits to include Gk
requirements. However, GHG requirements are likelpe added to our existing Title V operating pésnly the MPCA as these permits
renewed or amended.
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NOTE 11. COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
Environmental Matters (Continued)

In late 2010, the EPA issued guidance to permitiinthorities and affected sources to facilitateiporation of the Tailoring Rule permitti
requirements into the Title V and PSD permittingggrams. The guidance stated that the project-spetifp-down BACT determinatic
process used for other pollutants will also be usedetermine BACT for GHG emissions. Through sesfecific white papers, the EPA &
provided examples and technical summaries of GHG%om control technologies and techniques the EB#siders available or likely to
available to sources. It is possible that thesdrobtechnologies could be determined to be BACTagroject-by-project basis.

On March 28, 2012, the EPA announced its proposkedio apply CQ emission New Source Performance Standards (NSR@wdossil fuel-
fired electric generating units. The proposed N&p@8y only to new or rgowered units and were open for public commentuijinoJune 2!
2012. It is anticipated that the EPA will issue Sfor existing fossil fuel-fired generating units the future. We cannot predict what GO
control measures, if any, may be required by susR 8l

Legal challenges have been filed with respect &BRA' regulation of GHG emissions, including the TaiigrRule. On June 26, 2012,
United States District Court for the District of IGmbia upheld most of the EP&\proposed regulations, including the TailoringdRaliteria
finding that the Clean Air Act compels the EPA tgulate in the manner the EPA proposed. Commentket@ermitting guidance we
submitted by Minnesota Power and others and maddeessed by the EPA in the form of revised guidatazuments.

We are unable to predict the GHG emission compéiatasts we might incur; however, the costs coulthbeerial. We would seek recovery
any additional costs through cost recovery rideris @ general rate case.

Water. The Clean Water Act requires NPDES permits be obthifrom the EPA (or, when delegated, from indigidstate pollution contr
agencies) for any wastewater discharged into nalegaaters. We have obtained all necessary NPDESitse including NPDES storm wa
permits for applicable facilities, to conduct oyresations.

Clean Water Act - Aquatic Organismia. April 2011, the EPA published in the Federal R&y proposed regulations under Section 316(
the Clean Water Act that set standards applicableobling water intake structures for the protectaf aquatic organisms. The propc
regulations would require existing large power daand manufacturing facilities that withdraw gegahan 25 percent of water from adja
water bodies for cooling purposes and have a ddsigke flow of greater than 2 million gallons peay to limit the number of aqua
organisms that are killed when they are pinnedregahe facility’s intake structure or that arewdnainto the facilitys cooling system. Tl
Section 316(b) standards would be implemented girddPDES permits issued to the covered facilitidse Section 316(b) proposed t
comment period ended in August 2011 and the ER¥ligated to finalize the rule by June 27, 2013. &ve unable to predict the complia
costs we might incur under the final rule; howewbe costs could be material. We would seek regowémany additional costs through c
recovery riders or in a general rate case.

Steam Electric Power Generating Effluent Guidelings late 2009, the EPA announced that it will beiewing and reissuing the fede
effluent guidelines for steam electric stationse3dare the underlying federal water discharges ithigt apply to all steam electric stations.
expected that the EPA will publish the proposed nele in April 2013 and a final rule in 2014. Asrpaf the review phase for this new n
the EPA issued an Information Collection RequeSR{l in June 2010, to most thermal electric genegastations in the country, including
five of Minnesota Powes' generating stations. The ICR was completed abdhisied to the EPA in September 2010, for Boswlediskin
Taconite Harbor, Hibbard and Rapids Energy Ceiitiee. ICR was designed to gather extensive informatiothe nature and extent of all wi
discharge and related wastewater handling at ppleets. The information gathered through the ICR form a basis for development of
eventual new rule, which could include more resitricrequirements on wastewater discharge, fluedgssilfurization, and wet ash hand
operations. We are unable to predict the costs ightrimcur to comply with potential future wateisdharge regulations at this time.

Solid and Hazardous Waste.The Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of Ir@galates the management and disposal of soli
hazardous wastes. We are required to notify the &H#azardous waste activity and, consequenthtjrely submit the necessary reports tc
EPA.
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NOTE 11. COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
Environmental Matters (Continued)

Coal Ash Management FacilitiesMinnesota Power generates coal ash at all fivesotaalfired electric generating facilities. Two facilig
store ash in onsite impoundments (ash ponds) wigineered liners and containment dikes. Anothdititiastores dry ash in a landfill with
engineered liner and leachate collection systeno faeilities generate a combined wood and coaltlaahis either land applied as an appr¢
beneficialuse or trucked to state permitted landfills. IneJ@010, the EPA proposed regulations for coal catidau residuals generated by
electric utility sector. The proposal sought comteein three general regulatory schemes for coal@simments on the proposed rule were
in November 2010. It is estimated that the findé nwill be published in 2013. We are unable to prethe compliance costs we might inc
however, the costs could be material. We would see@very of any additional costs through costvecpriders or in a general rate case.

Other Matters

BNI Coal. As of December 31, 2012 , BNI Coal had surety bamastanding of $29.8 milliorelated to the reclamation liability for clos
costs associated with its mine and mine facilitidthough the coal supply agreements obligate tistamers to provide for the closing cc
additional assurance is required by federal ani segulations. In addition to the surety bonds,| BMal has secured a letter of credit \
CoBANK ACB for an additional $2.6 million to prowedfor BNI Coal’s total reclamation liability, whiak currently estimated at $32.4 million
BNI Coal does not believe it is likely that anytbése outstanding surety bonds or the letter afitvéll be drawn upon.

ALLETE Properties. As of December 31, 2012ALLETE Properties, through its subsidiaries, Isagety bonds outstanding and letter
credit to governmental entities totaling $10.2 ol primarily related to development and maintenandéations for various projects. T
estimated cost of the remaining development woripigroximately $7.4 million , of which $0.6 millias the contractual obligation of la
purchasers. ALLETE Properties does not believe likely that any of these outstanding surety bamdstters of credit will be drawn upon.

Community Development District Obligations.In March 2005, the Town Center District issued $28illion of tax-exempt, 6percent capiti
improvement revenue bonds and in May 2006, the Radast Park District issued $31.8 million of tavempt, 5.7 percent special assessn
bonds. The capital improvement revenue bonds aadspiecial assessment bonds are payable ovge&s (by May 1, 2036 and 20
respectively) and secured by special assessmertedrenefited land. The bond proceeds were uspdytdor the construction of a portion
the major infrastructure improvements in each itiseind to mitigate traffic and environmental imgacrhe assessments were billed tc
landowners beginning in November 2006 for Town €eand November 2007 for Palm Coast Park. To tihenéxhat we still own land at t
time of the assessment, we will incur the cost of portion of these assessments, based upon ouersinp of benefited property.

December 31, 2012 , we owned 73 percent of thesaable land in the Town Center District ( 73 eetat December 31, 2011 ) a8d
percent of the assessable land in the Palm Ceaakt Bistrict ( 93 percent at December 31, 201At these ownership levels, our anr
assessments are approximately $1.4 million for T@enter and $2.1 milliofor Palm Coast Park. As we sell property, the dilan to pa
special assessments will pass to the new landowlrer@ccordance with accounting guidance, thesel®a@me not reflected as debt on
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Legal Proceedings.In January 2011, the Company was named as a defeida lawsuit in the Sixth Judicial District féhe State ¢
Minnesota by one of our customerUnited Taconite, LLC) property and businessriagtion insurers. In October 2006, United Tacc
experienced a fire as a result of the failure ataie electrical protective equipment. The equiptm&nissue in the incident was not owtr
designed, or installed by Minnesota Power, but Msota Power had provided testing and calibrationicss related to the equipment. -
lawsuit alleges approximately $20.0 milliondamages related to the fire. The Company bedi¢hat it has strong defenses to the lawsui
intends to vigorously assert such defenses. Anuateelated to any damages that may result fromlahesuit has not been recorded a
December 31, 2012because a potential loss is not currently prabablreasonably estimable; however, the Comparigues it has adequi
insurance coverage for any potential loss.

Other. We are involved in litigation arising in the nornm@urse of business. Also in the normal courseusiress, we are involved in t
regulatory and other governmental audits, inspastignvestigations and other proceedings that irevaitate and federal taxes, safety,
compliance with regulations, rate base and cosenfice issues, among other things. While the wtisol of such matters could have a mat
effect on earnings and cash flows in the year sdltgion, none of these matters are expected termally change our present liquidity positi
or have a material adverse effect on our finaraaldition.
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NOTE 12. COMMON STOCK AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

Summary of Common Stock Shares Equity
Thousands Millions
Balance as of December 31, 2009 35,22 $613.¢
Employee Stock Purchase Program 19 0.€
Invest Direct 34¢ 11.7
Options and Stock Awards 51 4.4
Equity Issuance Program 18C 6.C
Balance as of December 31, 2010 35,81% $636.:
Employee Stock Purchase Program 20 0.€
Invest Direct 437 17.2
Options and Stock Awards 10¢ 6.7
Equity Issuance Program 40C 16.C
Purchase of Non-Controlling Interest 22z 8.¢
Contributions to Pension 50¢ 20.C
Balance as of December 31, 2011 37,51 $705.¢
Employee Stock Purchase Program 20 0.t
Invest Direct 474 19.2
Options and Stock Awards 95 6.C
Equity Issuance Program 1,27¢ 53.1
Balance as of December 31, 2012 39,37: $784.7

Equity Issuance Program.We entered into a distribution agreement with KCk., in February 2008, as amended most recem
August 3, 2012 , with respect to the issuance ahel &f up to an aggregate of 9.6 millishares of our common stock, without par valu
which 4.5 million remain available for issuancer Hwe year ended December 31, 2012 , 1.3 milioares of common stock were issued u
this agreement resulting in net proceeds of $53lliom. During 2011 , 0.4 milliorshares of common stock were issued for net procef
$16.0 million . The shares issued in 2012 and 20&de, and the remaining shares may be, offereddts, from time to time, in accordal
with the terms of the amended distribution agredmensuant to Registration Statement No. 333-170289

Earnings Per Share.The difference between basic and diluted earnirggsspare, if any, arises from outstanding stockoopt nonvestel
restricted stock, and performance share awardgegtamder our Executive and Director Long-Term inise Compensation Plans. In 2012
accordance with accounting standards for earniegsipare, 0.2 milliomptions to purchase shares of common stock wergded from th
computation of diluted earnings per share becaws®ption exercise prices were greater than theageemarket prices; therefore, their ef
would have been anti-dilutive ( 0.3 million shavesre excluded in 2011 and 0.5 million in 2010 ).

Purchase of Non-Controlling Interest.In 2011 , the remaining shares of the ALLETE Prapsrnoneontrolling interest were purchasec
book value for $8.8 million by issuing 0.2 milliaamregistered shares of ALLETE common stock. This wacounted for as an eqt
transaction, and no gain or loss is recognizecetrintome or comprehensive income.

Contributions to Pension.In 2011 , ALLETE contributed approximately 0.5 il shares of ALLETE common stock to its pension
These shares of ALLETE common stock were contribittereliance upon an exemption available purst@i@ection 4(a)(2) of the Securit
Act of 1933 and had an aggregate value of $20.0omivhen contributed.
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NOTE 12. COMMON STOCK AND EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

Reconciliation of Basic and Diluted

Earnings Per Share Dilutive

Year Ended December 31 Basic Securities Diluted
Millions Except Per Share Amounts

2012

Net Income Attributable to ALLETE $97.1 $97.1
Average Common Shares 37.€ — 37.€
Earnings Per Share $2.5¢ $2.5¢
2011

Net Income Attributable to ALLETE $93.¢ $93.¢
Average Common Shares 35.2 0.1 35.¢
Earnings Per Share $2.6¢€ $2.65
2010

Net Income Attributable to ALLETE $75.2 $75.:
Average Common Shares 34.z 0.1 34.:
Earnings Per Share $2.2( $2.1¢
NOTE 13. OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Millions

AFUDC - Equity $5.1 $2.5 $4.2
Investment and Other Income 0.¢ 1.¢ 0.4
Total Other Income $6.C $4.4 $4.€
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NOTE 14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income Tax Expense

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Millions
Current Tax Expense (Benefit)
Federala) — $1.4 $(23.0)
State(a) $0.5 (1.6 g
Total Current Tax Expense (Benefit) 0.t (0.2 (21.9)
Deferred Tax Expense
Federalb) 38.1 27.2 61.2
State(b) 2.7 9.t 5.2
Change in Valuation Allowandg) 2.C (0.7 0.2
Investment Tax Credit Amortization (0.9 (0.9 (0.9
Total Deferred Tax Expense 37.t 35.¢ 66.(
Total Income Tax Expense $38.( $35.€ $44.%

(a) For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011fettezal and state current tax expense (benefif swe to NOLs which resulted primarily from
bonus depreciation provision of the Tax Relief, tdpyment Insurance Reauthorization, and Job Coeafict of 2010. The 2012 and 2011 federal
state NOLs will be carried forward to offset futuexable income. For the year ended December 31028 federal current tax benefit was recorded
result of tax planning initiatives and the bonugieiation provision in the Small Business Jobs@#@010. The 2010 federal NOL was partially utit

by carrying it back against prior years’ income lvthe remainder carried forward to offset futuresg income.

(b) For the year ended December 31, 2012, the staterrdef tax benefit 6$1.7 millionis due to state renewable tax credits earned whithbe carriec
forward to offset future state income tax expefié® year ended December 31, 2011, included an iadem benefit for the reversal of$6.2 millior
deferred tax liability related to a revenue recdil@that Minnesota Power agreed to forgo as paraatipulation and settlement agreement in its :
rate case and a benefit of $2.9 millimlated to the MPUC approval of our request to déifie retail portion of the tax charge taken in B0ds a result
the PPACA. Included in the year ended Decembe2@10, was a charge of $4.0 million as a resulthef PPACA. (See Note 5. Regulatory Matters.)

(c) For the year ending December 31, 2012, the changdks valuation allowance is due to state renewadkecredits earned in 2012 which are not expe

to be utilized within their allowable tax carryfoand period.

Reconciliation of Taxes from Federal Statutory
Rate to Total Income Tax Expense

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Millions
Income Before Non-Controlling Interest and Inconaxds $135.: $129.: $119.:
Statutory Federal Income Tax Rate 35% 35% 35%
Income Taxes Computed at 35 percent Statutory BeBaite $47.< $45.2 $41.7
Increase (Decrease) in Tax Due to:
State Income Taxes — Net of Federal Income Tax #ene 1.2 6.C 4.t
Impact of the PPACA — — 4.C
Deferred Accounting for Retail Portion of the PPACA — (2.9 —
2010 Rate Case Stipulation Agreement - DeferredReversal — (6.2 —
Regulatory Differences for Utility Plant (2.2 1.2 (2.0
Production Tax Credits (7.€) 4.3 (1.6
Other (0.7 (2.0) (2.9
Total Income Tax Expense $38.( $35.¢ $44.¢
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NOTE 14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The effective tax rate on income was 28.1 percen2D12 ( 27.6 percent for 2011 ; 37.2 percent20t0). The 2012 effective rate w
primarily impacted by renewable tax credits andtiwy deduction for AFUD@&quity (included in Regulatory Differences for Wil Plant
above). The 2011 effective tax rate was primaritipacted by the deduction for AFUDEuity, the reversal of a deferred tax liabilityated tc
a revenue receivable that Minnesota Power agreéatdo as part of a stipulation and settlement egyent in its 2010 rate case, renewabls
credits, and the MPUG’approval of our request to defer the retail porof the tax charge taken in 2010 as a resubh@fPACA. The 201
effective tax rate was primarily impacted by theARRA eliminating the tax deduction for expenses #a& reimbursed under Medicare Pai
the deduction for AFUDC-Equity, and renewable teedits.

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

As of December 31 2012 2011
Millions
Deferred Tax Assets
Employee Benefits and Compensation $120.: $132.7
Property Related 59.¢ 56.4
NOL Carryforwards 90.¢ 61.7
Tax Credit Carryforwards 28.c 12.2
Other 24.€ 20.¢
Gross Deferred Tax Assets 323.% 283.¢
Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance (2.9 (0.9
Total Deferred Tax Assets $321.: $283.(
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Property Related $577.: $482.7
Regulatory Asset for Benefit Obligations 104.: 117.¢
Unamortized Investment Tax Credits 11.¢ 12.¢
Partnership Basis Differences 28.€ 242
Other 30.1 24.(
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities $752.( $661.¢
Net Deferred Income Taxes $430.% $378.¢
Recorded as:
Net Current Deferred Tax Liabilitigg) $6.€ $5.2
Net Long-Term Deferred Tax Liabilities 423.¢ 373.¢
Net Deferred Income Taxes $430.% $378.¢
(@) Included in Other Current Liabilities
NOL and Tax Credit Carryforwards
Year Ended December 31 2012 2011
Millions
Federal NOL carryforward&) $244.. $162.(
Federal tax credit carryforwards $16.0 $8.4
State NOL carryforward@) (b) $90.6 $73.1
State tax credit carryforwards) $10.3 $3.8

(@) Pretax amount
(b) Net of$0.4 millionvaluation allowance
(c) Net of$2.0 millionvaluation allowance
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NOTE 14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

In 2012, we generated federal and various state\#dld tax credit carryforwards primarily due to biomus depreciation provisions of the '
Relief, Unemployment Insurance Reauthorization, dotd Creation Act of 2010. The 2012 federal NOU Wwé utilized by carrying it forwa
to offset future yeardghcome. The federal NOL and tax credit carryforwpetiods expire between 2019 and 2032; includeterfederal NO
carryforward are charitable contribution carryfords which expire between 2014 and 2016. We expedulty utilize the federal NOI
charitable contributions, and federal tax credityfarwards; therefore no valuation allowance hasrbrecognized as of December 31, 2012.

The state NOLs and tax credits will be carried famdvto future tax years. We have established aatialu allowance against certain state I
and tax credits that we do not expect to utilizeofeetheir expiration. The state NOL and tax creditryforward periods expire between 2
and 2032; included in the state NOL carryforwangscahnaritable contribution carryforwards which ergbetween 2014 and 2016.

Gross Unrecognized Income Tax Benefits 2012 2011 2010
Millions

Balance at January 1 $11.¢ $12.¢ $9.5
Reductions for Tax Positions Related to the Curyarsr — — (0.2
Additions for Tax Positions Related to Prior Years — — 4.4
Reductions for Tax Positions Related to Prior Years (8.7 (0.9 —
Reductions for Settlements — — (0.3
Reductions for Expired Statute of Limitations — — (1.7
Balance as of December 31 $2.7 $11.¢ $12.¢

Unrecognized tax benefits are the differences betveetax position taken or expected to be takentax return and the benefit recognized
measured pursuant to the “more-likely-than-notiteria. The unrecognized tax benefit balanceuidets permanent tax positions, whic
recognized would affect the annual effective tate.rtn addition, the unrecognized tax benefit bedgamcludes temporary tax positions
which the ultimate deductibility is highly certaiut for which there is uncertainty about the timafgsuch deductibility. A change in the pel
of deductibility would not affect the effective taate but would accelerate the payment of cashedaxing authority to an earlier period.

The gross unrecognized tax benefits as of DeceBhe2012 , includes $0.5 millioof net unrecognized tax benefits that, if recogajzeoulc
affect the annual effective income tax rate. Therelese in the unrecognized tax benefit balancéaf Sillionin 2012 was due to the remo
of our uncertain tax position for our tax accougtmethod change for deductible repairs. During 2812 IRS issued a directive from its La
Business and International Division to its locahemnation teams that led to the removal of theirspacertain tax position in 2012.

As of December 31, 2012 , we had $0.5 million (L$hillion for 2011 and $0.7 million for 201)00of accrued interest related to unrecogn
tax benefits included in our Consolidated Balanbee®. We classify interest related to unrecognizedbenefits as interest expense and ta
related penalties in operating expenses in our @mladed Statement of Income. In 2012 , we recagphia $0.6 milliondecrease in intere
expense (interest expense of $0.4 million for 2@btl a reduction of interest expense of $0.2 million2010 ). There were npenaltie
recognized in 2012 , 2011 or 2010 .

ALLETE and its subsidiaries file a consolidatedded income tax return as well as combined andragpatate income tax returns in vari
jurisdictions. ALLETE is currently under examinatiby the IRS for the tax years 2005 through 2009.ATE is no longer subject to fede
or state examination for years before 2005.

During the next 12 months it is reasonably possibéeamount of unrecognized tax benefits coulddaiced by $2.5 milliomlue to statu
expirations and anticipated audit settlements. @hisunt is primarily due to temporary tax positions
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NOTE 15. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT P LANS

We have noncontributory union and noenion defined benefit pension plans covering elggimployees. The plans provide defined ber
based on years of service and final average pagOLk? , we made total contributions of $7.3 millipi$33.8 million in 2011, of whict
$20.0 millionwas contributed in shares of ALLETE common stotig also have a defined contribution pension plaredog substantially &
employees. The 201glan year employer contributions, which are madeuph the employee stock ownership plan portiorthef RSOF
totaled $7.7 million ( $7.3 million for the 20Hlan year.) (See Note 12. Common Stock and EarriegsShare and Note 16. Employee S
and Incentive Plans).

In 2006, the nomunion defined benefit pension plan was amendedgpend further crediting of service to the plan emdlose the plan to ne
participants. In conjunction with those amendmeaotsitributions were increased to the RSOP. In 2816 Minnesota Power union defir
benefit pension plan was amended to close thetplaaw participants beginning February 1, 2011.

We have postretirement health care and life instggrlans covering eligible employees. In 2010, mstretirement health plan was amer
to close the plan to employees hired after Jan84ar2011. The full eligibility requirement was alamended in 2010, to age 55 with 10 y
of participation in the plan. The postretirementltte plans are contributory with participant cobtitions adjusted annually. Postretiren
health and life benefits are funded through a coaion of Voluntary Employee Benefit Associationsts (VEBAS), established under sec
501(c)(9) of the Internal Revenue Code, and arvacable grantor trust. In 2012 , $1.5 million wasributed to the VEBAs. In 2011we
contributed $10.9 million to the VEBAs. There wexecontributions made to the grantor trust in 2848 2011 .

Management considers various factors when makimglifig decisions such as regulatory requirementsjagally determined minimu
contribution requirements, and contributions reegito avoid benefit restrictions for the pensicemgl Contributions are based on estimate
assumptions which are subject to change. We doerpéct to make any contributions to the definedeliemension plan in 2013 In
January 2013, we contributed $4.8 million to thérdel benefit postretirement health and life plahwhich $2.0 millionwas contributed to :
irrevocable grantor trust and $2.8 million was cilmited to the VEBAs. We do nepect to make any additional contributions todké&nec
benefit postretirement health and life plan in 2013

Accounting for defined benefit pension and postestient benefit plans requires that employers rezegon a prospective basis the fun
status of their defined benefit pension and otlostnetirement plans on their Consolidated BalarweSand recognize as a component of |
comprehensive income, net of tax, the gains oressd prior service costs or credits that arisenduhe period but are not recognizet
components of net periodic benefit cost.

The defined benefit pension and postretirementtiheald life benefit costs recognized annually by regulated companies are expected |
recovered through rates filed with our regulatanyisdictions. As a result, these amounts that arpired to otherwise be recognizec
accumulated other comprehensive income have bemgmzed as a lontgrm regulatory asset on our Consolidated Balanoeet it
accordance with the accounting standards for Regil@perations. The defined benefit pension anttgtdement health and life benefit cc
associated with our other non-rate base operatimmsecognized in accumulated other comprehensoagnie.
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NOTE 15. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT P LANS (Continued)

Pension Obligation and Funded Status

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011

Millions

Accumulated Benefit Obligation $598.7 $550.¢

Change in Benefit Obligation
Obligation, Beginning of Year $597.¢ $525.¢
Service Cost 9.1 7.€
Interest Cost 26.4 27.4
Actuarial Loss 38.t 54.¢
Benefits Paid (30.9 (28.6)
Participant Contributions 11t 10.¢
Obligation, End of Year $652.. $597.*

Change in Plan Assets
Fair Value, Beginning of Year $432. $382.(
Actual Return on Plan Assets 38.7 33.2
Employer Contribution 19.¢ 45.¢
Benefits Paid (30.9 (28.6)
Fair Value, End of Year $460.. $432.

Funded Status, End of Year $(192.0) $(165.1)

Net Pension Amounts Recognized in Consolidated Balee Sheet Consist of:
Current Liabilities $(1.1) $(1.1)
Non-Current Liabilities $(190.9) $(164.0)

The pension costs that are reported as a companiénin our Consolidated Balance Sheet, reflectedoimgterm regulatory assets ¢
accumulated other comprehensive income, conststedfollowing:

Unrecognized Pension Costs

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011
Millions

Net Loss $286.¢ $269.(
Prior Service Cost 0.7 1.1
Total Unrecognized Pension Costs $287.t $270.:

Components of Net Periodic Pension Expense

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Millions

Service Cost $9.1 $7.€ $6.2
Interest Cost 26.4 27.4 26.2
Expected Return on Plan Assets (35.9 (34.6) (33.9)
Amortization of Loss 17.t 12.1 6.€
Amortization of Prior Service Cost 0.3 0.3 0.t
Net Pension Expense $17.¢ $12.¢ $5.¢
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NOTE 15. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT P LANS (Continued)

Other Changes in Pension Plan Assets and Benefit @dmtions Recognized in
Other Comprehensive Income and Regulatory Assets

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011
Millions
Net Loss $35.2 $56.1
Amortization of Prior Service Cost 0.3 0.3
Amortization of Loss (17.5) (12.2)
Total Recognized in Other Comprehensive IncomeRegllatory Assets $17.¢ $43.¢
Information for Pension Plans with an Accumulated Enefit Obligation in Excess of Plan Assets
Year Ended December 31 2012 2011
Millions
Projected Benefit Obligation $652.. $597.*
Accumulated Benefit Obligation $598.7 $550.¢
Fair Value of Plan Assets $460.. $432.«
Postretirement Health and Life Obligation and Fundel Status
Year Ended December 31 2012 2011
Millions
Change in Benefit Obligation
Obligation, Beginning of Year $210.¢ $204.:
Service Cost 4.2 3.8
Interest Cost 9.4 10.€
Actuarial Gain (43.2) (2.9
Participant Contributions 2.€ 2.5
Plan Amendments (5.3 —
Benefits Paid (9.5 (7.7)
Obligation, End of Year $168.¢ $210.¢
Change in Plan Assets
Fair Value, Beginning of Year $121.( $114.°
Actual Return on Plan Assets 14.2 —
Employer Contribution 2.3 11.4
Participant Contributions 2.5 2.5
Benefits Paid (9.2 (7.6)
Fair Value, End of Year $131.( $121.(
Funded Status, End of Year $(37.8) $(89.6)
Net Postretirement Health and Life Amounts Recognigd in Consolidated Balance Sheet Consist of:
Current Liabilities $(0.8) $(0.9)
Non-Current Liabilities $(37.0) $(88.7)

According to the accounting standards for retiretrimefits, only assets in the VEBAs are treateglas assets in the above table for
purpose of determining funded status. In additmthe postretirement health and life assets repgant¢éhe previous table, we h&@2.1 millior
in irrevocable grantor trusts included in Other dstments on our Consolidated Balance Sheet at Dme3d, 2012 ( $20.3 milliomi

December 31, 2011 ).
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NOTE 15. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT P LANS (Continued)

The postretirement health and life costs that apanted as a component within our Consolidated ie&&heet, reflected in regulatory long
term assets and accumulated other comprehensiom@consist of the following:

Unrecognized Postretirement Health and Life Costs

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011
Millions

Net Loss $23.t $78.5
Prior Service Credit (13.0) (9.5
Transition Obligation — 0.1
Total Unrecognized Postretirement Health and Lifst€ $10. $69.1

Components of Net Periodic Postretirement Health ashLife Expense

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Millions

Service Cost $4.2 $3.€ $4.¢
Interest Cost 9.4 10.€ 10.¢
Expected Return on Plan Assets (9.9 (9.7 (9.5
Amortization of Prior Service Credit 2.7 2.7 (0.2
Amortization of Loss 7.5 8.5 4.¢
Amortization of Transition Obligation 0.1 0.1 2.5
Net Postretirement Health and Life Expense $9.€ $11.¢ $13.4

Other Changes in Postretirement Benefit Plan Assetsnd Benefit Obligations
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income and Regutay Assets

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011
Millions

Net (Gain) Loss $(47.5) $6.¢
Prior Service Credit Arising During the Period (5.9 —
Amortization of Prior Service Credit 1.7 1.7
Amortization of Transition Obligation (0.7 (0.2
Amortization of Loss (7.5) (8.5
Total Recognized in Other Comprehensive IncomeRegllatory Assets $(58.7) —

Estimated Future Benefit Payments
Postretirement

Pension Health and Life
Millions
2013 $31.2 $7.€
2014 $32.1 $8.2
2015 $33.2 $8.¢
2016 $34.¢ $9.¢
2017 $35.¢ $9.7
Years 2018 — 2022 $189.¢ $52.(
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NOTE 15. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT P LANS (Continued)

The pension and postretirement health and lifescostorded in regulatory lortgrm assets and accumulated other comprehensieené
expected to be recognized as a component of netiggeand postretirement benefit costs for the ysating December 31, 201,3are a

follows:
Postretirement
Pension Health and Life
Millions
Net Loss $21.4 $1.€
Prior Service Cost (Credit) 0.3 (2.5
Total Pension and Postretirement Health and Lifst Q0redit) $21.7 $(0.9)
Weighted-Average Assumptions Used to Determine BefiteObligation
As of December 31 2012 2011
Discount Rate
Pension 4.10% 4.54%
Postretirement Health and Life 4.13% 4.56%
Rate of Compensation Increase 4.3-4.6% 4.3 -4.6%
Health Care Trend Rates
Trend Rate 9.25% 10%
Ultimate Trend Rate 5% 5%
Year Ultimate Trend Rate Effective 2019 2018
Weighted-Average Assumptions Used to Determine N&eriodic Benefit Costs
Year Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Discount Rate 4.54 - 456% 5.36 - 5.40% 5.81%
Expected Long-Term Return on Plan Assets
Pension 8.25% 8.5% 8.5%
Postretirement Health and Life 6.6 - 8.25% 6.8 - 8.5% 6.8 - 8.5%
Rate of Compensation Increase 4.3 -4.6% 4.3 -4.6% 4.3 -4.6%

In establishing the expected long-term rate ofrretin plan assets, we determine the lterga historical performance of each asset clagasi
these for current economic conditions, and utitiZine target allocation of our plan assets, foreibesexpected long-term rate of return.

The discount rate is computed using a yield cudjested for ALLETES projected cash flows to match our plan charasttesi The yield cun
is determined using high-quality lorigrm corporate bond rates at the valuation date.bélieve the adjusted discount curve used in

comparison does not materially differ in duratiow @ash flows from our pension obligation.

Sensitivity of a One-Percentage-Point Change in Hiéh Care Trend Rates

One Percent

One Percent

Increase Decrease
Millions
Effect on Total of Postretirement Health and Ligr\dce and Interest Cost $2.C $(1.6)
Effect on Postretirement Health and Life Obligation $18.2 $(15.1)
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NOTE 15. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT P LANS (Continued)

Actual Plan Asset Allocations
Postretirement

Pension Health and Life (a)
2012 2011 2012 2011
Equity Securities 54% 52% 56% 51%
Debt Securities 28% 27% 35% 39%
Private Equity 13% 16% 9% 10%
Real Estate 5% 5% — —
10C% 10C% 10C% 10C%

(@) Includes VEBASs and irrevocable grantor trus

There were no shares of ALLETE common stock indlude pension plan equity securities at Decembef812 ( $20.0 million,
approximately 0.5 million shares, in 2011 ).

To achieve strong returns within managed risk, werdify our asset portfolio to approximate thegtrallocations in the table below. Eq!
securities are diversified among domestic compawiéis large, mid and small market capitalizatioas,well as investments in internatic
companies. The majority of debt securities are mgef investment grade bonds.

Plan Asset Target Allocations
Postretirement

Pension Health and Life (a)
Equity Securities 52% 48%
Debt Securities 30% 34%
Real Estate 9% 9%
Private Equity 9% 9%
10C% 10(%

(@) Includes VEBAs and irrevocable grantor trus

Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be receivedeiban asset or paid to transfer a liability in@derly transaction between market participar
the measurement date (exit price). We utilize madega or assumptions that market participants dvasle in pricing the asset or liabil
including assumptions about risk and the risksiiehein the inputs to the valuation technique. Ehieputs can be readily observable, me
corroborated, or generally unobservable. We prinapply the market approach for recurring fairuemeasurements and endeavor to u
the best available information. Accordingly, welimé valuation techniques that maximize the uselifervable inputs and minimize the us
unobservable inputs. These inputs, which are usetetsure fair value, are prioritized through thie alue hierarchy. The hierarchy gives
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices irivectarkets for identical assets or liabilities yee1 measurement) and the lowest priorit
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). The tleneels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows

Level 1 —Quoted prices are available in active markets dentical assets or liabilities as of the reportatedActive markets are those
which transactions for the asset or liability ocousufficient frequency and volume to provide précinformation on an ongoing basis. 1
category includes various U.S. equity securitiedlip mutual funds, and futures. These instrumangsvalued using the closing price from
applicable exchange or whose value is quoted amllyetraded daily.

Level 2 —Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices invactharkets, but are either directly or indirectlyservable as of the repor
date. The types of assets and liabilities incluohetievel 2 are typically either comparable to aelywtraded securities or contracts, suc
treasury securities with pricing interpolated froecent trades of similar securities, or priced witbdels using highly observable inputs. -
category includes various bonds and non-public $umdose underlying investments may be level 1w@ll2 securities.
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NOTE 15. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT P LANS (Continued)
Fair Value (Continued)

Level 3 —Significant inputs that are generally less obsdevéiom objective sources. The types of assetdliabdities included in Level 3 a
those with inputs requiring significant managemjexdgment or estimation, such as the complex angestize models and forecasts use
determine the fair value. This category includeisgte equity funds and real estate valued througbreal appraisal processes. Valua
methodologies incorporate pricing models, discodingesh flow models, and similar techniques whidlizetcapitalization rates, discount ra
cash flows and other factors.

Pension Fair Value

Fair Value as of December 31, 2012

Recurring Fair Value Measures Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Millions
Assets:
Equity Securities:
U.S. Large-cajga) $43.( $36.( — $79.C
U.S. Mid-cap Growtha) 18.2 15.2 — 33.¢
U.S. Small-caga) 18.2 15.2 — 33.¢
International 50.t 45.¢ — 96.4
Debt Securities:
Mutual Funds 72.t — — 72.5
Fixed Income 10.4 50.¢ — 61.2
Other Types of Investments:
Private Equity Funds — — $58.¢ 58.¢
Real Estate — — 24.¢ 24.¢
Total Fair Value of Assets $213.( $163.: $83.¢ $460.:

(@) The underlying investments classified under U.SuitEdecurities consist of money market funds (LeEvand activelymanaged funds (Level 2), wh
are combined with futures, and settle daily, incat@ble alpha program to achieve the returns of th&. Equity Securities Large-cap, Midp Growth
and Small-cap funds. Our exposure with respedtiésd investments includes both the futures andrttierlying investments.

Recurring Fair Value Measures
Private Equity

Activity in Level 3 Funds Real Estate
Millions

Balance as of December 31, 2011 $69.( $21.7
Actual Return on Plan Assets (9.9 3.4
Purchases, sales, and settlements, net (0.9 (0.2
Balance as of December 31, 2012 $58.¢ $24.¢
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NOTE 15. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT P LANS (Continued)
Fair Value (Continued)

Fair Value as of December 31, 2011

Recurring Fair Value Measures Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Millions
Assets:
Equity Securities:
U.S. Large-cajga) $32.1 $37.3 — $69.4
U.S. Mid-cap Growtha) 13.t 15.¢ — 29.%
U.S. Small-caga) 13.1 15.2 — 28.%
International — 75.1 — 75.1
ALLETE 21.c — — 21z
Debt Securities:
Mutual Funds 72.¢ — — 72.¢
Fixed Income — 45t — 45t
Other Types of Investments:
Private Equity Funds — — $69.C 69.(
Real Estate — — 21.7 21.7
Total Fair Value of Assets $152.¢ $188.¢ $90.7 $432.

(@) The underlying investments classified under U.SuitEdecurities consist of money market funds (LeEvand activelymanaged funds (Level 2), wh
are combined with futures, and settle daily, incatable alpha program to achieve the returns of th&. Equity Securities Large-cap, Midp Growth
and Small-cap funds. Our exposure with respedteésd investments includes both the futures andrttierlying investments.

Recurring Fair Value Measures
Equity Securities  Private Equity

Activity in Level 3 (ARS) Funds Real Estate
Millions

Balance as of December 31, 2010 $6.7 $50.7 $20.1
Actual Return on Plan Assets — 30.¢ 3.t
Purchases, sales, and settlements, net (6.7) (12.¢) (1.9
Balance as of December 31, 2011 — $69.C $21.5
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NOTE 15. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT P LANS (Continued)

Fair Value (Continued)

Postretirement Health and Life Fair Value

Fair Value as of December 31, 2012

Recurring Fair Value Measures Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Millions
Assets:
Equity Securities:
U.S. Large-cajga) $16.7 — — $16.7
U.S. Mid-cap Growtha) 13.2 — — 13.2
U.S. Small-caga) 13.2 — — 13.c
International 30.2 — — 30.:
Debt Securities:
Mutual Funds 25t — — 25t
Fixed Income 0.2 $18.2 — 18.5
Other Types of Investments:
Private Equity Funds — — $13.5 13.5
Total Fair Value of Assets $99.2 $18.: $13.t $131.(

(@) The underlying investments classified under U.SitiE@ecurities consist of mutual funds (Level 1).

Recurring Fair Value Measures
Activity in Level 3

Private Equity Funds

Millions
Balance as of December 31, 2011
Actual Return on Plan Assets

Purchases, sales, and settlements, net

$14.(
0.2
(0.7

Balance as of December 31, 2012

$13.f

Fair Value as of December 31, 2011

Recurring Fair Value Measures Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Millions
Assets:
Equity Securities:
U.S. Large-cafa) $15.¢ — — $15.¢
U.S. Mid-cap Growthla) 11t — — 11t
U.S. Small-caga) 11.2 — — 11.2
International 25.1 — — 25.1
Debt Securities:
Mutual Funds 24.1 — — 24.1
Fixed Income 2 $18.¢ — 19.2
Other Types of Investments:
Private Equity Funds — — $14.C 14.
Total Fair Value of Assets $88.1 $18.¢ $14.( $121.(

(@) The underlying investments classified under U.SitiE@ecurities consist of mutual funds (Level 1).
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NOTE 15. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT P LANS (Continued)
Fair Value (Continued)

Recurring Fair Value Measures

Activity in Level 3 Private Equity Funds
Millions

Balance as of December 31, 2010 $12.¢
Actual Return on Plan Assets 1.1
Purchases, sales, and settlements, net 0.t
Balance as of December 31, 2011 $14.(

Accounting and disclosure requirements for the Maai Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernimathct of 2003 (Act) provic
guidance for employers that sponsor postretirenmeatth care plans that provide prescription drugefiss. We provide a fully insur
postretirement health benefit, including a presmipdrug benefit, which qualifies us for a fedesabsidy under the Act. The federal subsic
reflected in the premiums charged to us by therarste company.

NOTE 16. EMPLOYEE STOCK AND INCENTIVE PLANS

Employee Stock Ownership PlanWe sponsor a leveraged ESOP within the RSOP. Higiimployees may contribute to the RSOP plan
their date of hireln 1990, the ESOP issued a $75.0 million note (teanto exceed 25 years at 10.25 percent) to userasideration for 2
million shares (1.9 million shares adjusted forckteplits) of our newly issued common stock. Theenwas refinanced in 2006 at 6 percéfie
make annual contributions to the ESOP equal toBS®PS debt service less available dividends receivedheyESOP. The majority
dividends received by the ESOP are used to pay sibice, with the balance distributed to partinisa The ESOP shares were initi
pledged as collateral for the debt. As the delb¢psid, shares are released from collateral andatd to participants based on the propa
of debt service paid in the year. As shares asaseld from collateral, we report compensation es@equal to the current market price of
shares less dividends on allocated shares. Divdlemdallocated ESOP shares are recorded as a imedadtretained earnings; availa
dividends on unallocated ESOP shares are recosladeduction of debt and accrued interest. ES@ipensation expense was $7.7 millian
2012 ( $7.4 million in 2011 ; $7.1 million in 20}0

According to the accounting standards for stock pemsation, unallocated shares of ALLETE commonkstaerently held and purchased
the ESOP will be treated as unearned ESOP sharksi@nconsidered outstanding for earnings per shamputations. ESOP shares
included in earnings per share computations dfiy re allocated to participants.

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Millions
ESOP Shares
Allocated 2.2 2.2 2.2
Unallocated 0.7 1.C 1.2
Total 2.¢ 3.2 3.t
Fair Value of Unallocated Shares $28. $42.( $48.¢

Stock-Based CompensationStock Incentive PlanUnder our Executive Long-Term Incentive Compensaftdan (Executive Plan), share-
based awards may be issued to key employees thraugtoad range of methods, including repralified and incentive stock optio
performance shares, performance units, restridimek sstock appreciation rights and other awardeer& are 1.2 milliorshares of commic
stock reserved for issuance under the Executive, Riith 0.6 million of these shares available fguance as of December 31, 2012 .

We had a Director Long-Term Stock Incentive Plair¢Etor Plan) which expired on January 1, 2006.gxants have been made since
under the Director Plan. The 1,293 remaining oggtiontstanding at December 31, 2011, were exerdaddg 2012. There were raptions
outstanding under the Director Plan at DecembeG12 .
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NOTE 16. EMPLOYEE STOCK AND INCENTIVE PLANS (Contin ued)
We currently have the following types of share-lblegeards outstanding:

Non-Qualified Stock OptionsThese options allow for the purchase of sharesnfmon stock at a price equal to the market vafusu
common stock at the date of grant. Options becaoxeecesable beginning one year after the grant daitty, onethird vesting each ye
over three years. Options may be exercised umtyears following the date of grant. In the casqudlified retirement, death or disabil
options vest immediately and the period over witloh options can be exercised is three years. Erapoypave up to three month:
exercise vested options upon voluntary terminatiomvoluntary termination without cause. All opt®are canceled upon termination
cause. All options vest immediately upon retiremel#tath, disability or a change of control, as i in the award agreement.
determine the fair value of options using the Bi&dholes optiorpricing model. The estimated fair value of optionsjuding the effect
estimated forfeitures, is recognized as expendb@straight-line basis over the optioms'sting periods, or the accelerated vesting pef
the employee is retirement eligible. Stock optibase not been granted under our Executive Plare £668.

The riskiree interest rate for periods within the contratiife of the option is based on the U.S. Treasteyd curve in effect at the gre
date. Expected volatility is estimated based onhiseoric volatility of our stock and the stock ofir peer group companies. We uti
historical option exercise and employee pesting termination data to estimate the optioe. lifhe dividend growth rate is based L
historical growth rates in our dividends.

Performance Share&lnder the performance share awards plan, the nuofbgrares earned is contingent upon attainingipegarke:
goals over a thregear performance period. Market goals are meadwaedtal shareholder return relative to a group@ér companies.

the case of qualified retirement, death or disgbiliuring a performance period, a pro rata portérthe award will be earned at

conclusion of the performance period based on tagket goals achieved. In the case of terminatioaroployment for any reason ot
than qualified retirement, death or disability, anward will be earned. If there is a change in adn# pro rata portion of the award will
paid based on the greater of actual performande thge date of the change in control or targetgrernce. The fair value of these awi
is determined by the probability of meeting theatathareholder return goals. Compensation cosedsgnized over the thregeal
performance period based on our estimate of thebeuwf shares which will be earned by the awargpiewats.

Restricted Stock UnitdJnder the restricted stock units plan, shares éirement eligible participants vest monthly ovetheee yeal
period. For non-retirement eligible participantsaies vest at the end of the thyear period. In the case of qualified retiremeegtt o
disability, a pro rata portion of the award will barned. In the case of termination of employmentainy reason other than qualif
retirement, death or disability, no award will berreed. If there is a change in control, a pro patdion of the award will be earned. ~
fair value of these awards is equal to the grate tair value. Compensation cost is recognized tiverthreeyear vesting period based
our estimate of the number of shares which wilebmed by the award recipients.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESRider our ESPP, eligible employees may purchaseEAIH common stock at a percent discou
from the market price. Because the discount iggnedter than 5 percentve are not required to apply fair value accountmthese awarc

RSOP. The RSOP is a contributory defined contributidenpsubject to the provisions of the Employee Retient Income Security Act
1974, as amended, and qualifies as an employek stacership plan and profit sharing plan. The R§@&Vvides eligible employees
opportunity to save for retirement.

The following share-based compensation expense mtsiatere recognized in our Consolidated Statenmfelmcome for the periods presented.

Share-Based Compensation Expense

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Millions

Stock Options — — $0.1
Performance Shares $1.4 $1.1 1.t
Restricted Stock Units 0.7 0.t 0.€
Total Share-Based Compensation Expense $2.1 $1.€ $2.2
Income Tax Benefit $0.¢ $0.7 $0.¢
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NOTE 16. EMPLOYEE STOCK AND INCENTIVE PLANS (Contin ued)

There were no capitalized stock-based compensetisis at December 31, 2012 , 2011 , or 2010 .

As of December 31, 2012the total unrecognized compensation cost forgbdormance share awards and restricted stock uoitsye
recognized in our Consolidated Statements of Incevas $1.3 million and $0.6 million respectively. These amounts are expected

recognized over a weighted-average period of larsylor performance share awards and 1.7 yeargsticted stock units.

Nor-Qualified Stock Optiong.he following table presents information regarding outstanding stock options as of December 31220

2012 2011 2010

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average

Number of Exercise Number of Exercise Number of Exercise

Options Price Options Price Options Price

Outstanding as of January 1, 460,23: $41.6¢ 560,88’ $40.6¢ 646,23! $40.0¢
Granted(a) — — — — — —
Exercised 49,07t $35.8¢ 80,79¢ $34.2¢ 40,76¢ $27.7¢
Forfeited 15,48: $44.8¢ 19,85t $43.9¢ 44,57¢ $43.1¢
Outstanding as of December 31, 395,67¢ $42.2¢ 460,23¢ $41.6¢ 560,88° $40.6¢
Exercisable as of December 31, 395,67¢ $41.7: 460,23: $41.5¢ 523,49: $39.7¢

(@) Stock options have not been granted since 2008wElghted-average grant-date intrinsic value ofiops granted in 2008 was $6.18

Cash received from non-qualified stock options esed was less than $0.1 million in 201Phe intrinsic value of a stock award is the ant
by which the fair value of the underlying stock egds the exercise price of the award. The totaingit value of options exercised v
$0.3 million during 2012 ( $0.5 million in 2011 0.8 million in 2010 ).

Range of Exercise Price
$23.79to  $37.76 to $41.35$44.15 to $48.65

As of December 31, 2012 $26.91

Options Outstanding and Exercisable:
Number Outstanding and Exercisable 1,34( 236,05: 158,28t
Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life (Years) 0.1 B 3.€
Weighted Average Exercise Price $23.7¢ $39.6- $46.3¢

Performance ShareThe following table presents information regardouy non-vested performance shares as of Decemb@032 .

2012 2011 2010
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average

Number of Grant Date Number of Grant Date Number of Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Non-vested as of January 1, 128,33: $36.5¢ 122,48 $38.1¢ 121,82! $41.9¢
Granted (a) 38,76« $44.7( 39,31 $41.0( 49,30: $35.4¢
Awarded (41,009 $34.2¢ (32,369 $48.1( — —
Unearned Grant Award (17,57Y $34.2¢ — — (22,909 $54.5(
Forfeited (614) $34.4¢ (1,100 $34.3¢ (25,729 $36.4¢
Non-vested as of December 31, 107,89 $40.7: 128,33 $36.5¢ 122,48 $38.1¢

(8) Shares granted includes accrued dividends.
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NOTE 16. EMPLOYEE STOCK AND INCENTIVE PLANS (Contin ued)
There were 33,525 and 41,332 performance sharesegrin January 2012 and 2013, for the thsesar performance periods ending in 2
and 2015, respectively. The ultimate issuance istimgent upon the attainment of certain future reargoals of ALLETE during tt

performance periods. The grant date fair valudeferformance shares granted was $1.5 milliorf2r@i million , respectively.

There were 41,009 and 18,605 performance shareslesvin February 2012 and 2013, for the thyemar performance periods ending in 2
and 2012, respectively. The grant date fair vafubh® shares awarded was $1.4 million and $0.7anil respectively.

Restricted Stock UnitThe following table presents information regarding available restricted stock units as of Decendie2012 .

2012 2011 2010
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average

Number of  Grant Date Number of  Grant Date Number of  Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Available as of January 1, 63,464 $32.57 43,80: $30.6: 28,98 $29.4:
Granted(a) 18,16: $40.8: 20,13¢ $36.7¢ 26,58¢ $31.8:
Awarded (24,70)) $29.4: (215) $30.3( (3,09)) $29.7¢
Forfeited (509 $31.8( (260) $29.4: (8,679 $30.6:
Available as of December 31, 56,41°" $36.6: 63,46¢ $32.57 43,80:¢ $30.6:

(@) Shares granted includes accrued dividends.

There were 16,355 and 19,188stricted stock units granted in January 2012 203, for the vesting periods ending in 2014 and5:
respectively. The grant date fair value of therfetstd stock units granted was $0.7 million and%@illion , respectively.

There were 24,707 restricted stock units awarda@dir?2. The grant date fair value of the shares dethwas $0.7 million .

There were 20,939 restricted stock units awarddeehruary 2013. The grant date fair value of tteeehawarded was $0.7 million .

NOTE 17. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Information for any one quarterly period is not @sgarily indicative of the results which may beextpd for the year.

Quarter Ended Mar. 31 Jun. 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
Millions Except Earnings Per Share
2012
Operating Revenue $240.( $216.« $248.¢ $256.(
Operating Income $38.¢ $23.¢ $45.¢ $47.¢
Net Income Attributable to ALLETE $24.¢ $14. $29.¢ $28.¢
Earnings Per Share of Common Stock
Basic $0.6¢ $0.3¢ $0.7¢ $0.7¢
Diluted $0.6¢ $0.3¢ $0.7¢ $0.7¢
2011
Operating Revenue $242.; $219.¢ $226.¢ $239..
Operating Income $50.¢ $26.1 $38.¢ $34.2
Net Income Attributable to ALLETE $37.2 $17.( $20. $19.1
Earnings Per Share of Common Stock
Basic $1.07 $0.4¢ $0.57 $0.5:
Diluted $1.07 $0.4¢ $0.57 $0.5¢
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Schedule Il
ALLETE

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves

Balance at Additions Deductions  Balance at End
Beginning of  Charged to from of
Period Income Other Charges Reserveqa) Period
Millions
Reserve Deducted from Related Assets
Reserve For Uncollectible Accounts
2010 Trade Accounts Receivable $0.¢ $1.1 — $1.1 $0.¢
Finance Receivables — Long-Term $0.4 $0.€ — $0.4 $0.¢
2011 Trade Accounts Receivable $0.¢ $1.5 — $1.3 $0.¢
Finance Receivables — Long-Term $0.¢ $0.1 — $0.3 $0.€
2012 Trade Accounts Receivable $0.¢ $1.C — $0.¢ $1.C
Finance Receivables — Long-Term $0.€ — — — $0.€
Deferred Asset Valuation Allowance
2010 Deferred Tax Assets $0.2 $0.2 — — $0.E
2011 Deferred Tax Assets $0.£ $(0.1) — — $0.4
2012 Deferred Tax Assets $0.£ $2.C — — $2.4

(@) Includes uncollectible accounts written «
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Exhibit 10(f)5

ALLETE Executive Annual Incentive Plan
Form of Award
Effective 2013

[Eligible Executive Employees]

Target Award Opportunity

Base Salary $
Times

Award Opportunity (percent of base salary) _ %
Equals

Target Award $

Performance Levels and Award Amounts

Payout as Percent of

Goal Performance Level Target Award Award Amount
Superior 200% $
Target 100% $
Threshold 37.5% $
Below Threshold —% $

Goals
Goal
Weighting
Financial Goals

Net Income 50%

Cash from Operating Activities 25%

Strategic & Operational Positioning Goals 25%

100%

Compensation Subject to Compensation Recovery Polic

Annual Incentive Plan Compensation is subject toupment as defined in the Compensation Recovéiyypo






Exhibit 10()

ALLETE, INC. AMENDED AND RESTATED
DEFERRED COMPENSATION TRUST AGREEMENT

Effective December 15, 2012




ALLETE, INC. AMENDED AND RESTATED
DEFERRED COMPENSATION TRUST AGREEMENT

This Grantor Trust Agreement (th&'fust Agreement”) is made this 1%'day of December, 2012 by and between
ALLETE, INC. (“the Company”) andWELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION (“the Trustee”) anc
hereby amends and restates the Minnesota Powekfalmted Companies Deferred Compensation Trustef&gnent
(the “ Original Trust Agreement ), effective January 1, 1990, for the participamtsler such agreement who have
consented to this amended and restated Trust AgragiiConsenting Participants”). The Original Trust Agreement
will continue to be effective for the participamtsthe Arrangements to whom benefit payments aredoat the time the
Trust Agreement is adopted who have not consentéds amended and restated Trust AgreemeNb(-consenting
Participants ”).

Recitals

(a) WHEREAS , the Company has adopted the nonqualified def@wetpensation plans and agreements (the “
Arrangements”) attached hereto as Attachment A, which may beraded from time to time;

(b) WHEREAS , the Company has incurred or expects to incuiliiplunder the terms of such Arrangements with
respect to the individuals participating in suclaligements or beneficiaries designated by sucicipants
who are entitled to receive benefits under the sesfrsuch arrangements as the result of the dédltie o
participant (collectively, the Participants”);

(c) WHEREAS , the Company hereby establishes a Trust (fheust ”) and shall contribute to the Trust assets
shall be held therein, subject to the claims ofGoenpany's creditors in the event of the Compangslvency,
as herein defined, until paid to Participants ialsmanner and at such times as specified in thengements
and in this Trust Agreement;

(d) WHEREAS , it is the intention of the parties that this Trsisall constitute an unfunded arrangement and shal
not affect the status of the Arrangements as anngi&d plan maintained for the purpose of providiatgrred

compensation for a select group of managemenighiyhcompensated employees for purposes of Tilfete
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974,

2




(e) WHEREAS , it is the intention of the parties that this Trslkall be interpreted in all respects to complghwi
Internal Revenue Code Section 409A (IRC SectiorA3@nd applicable authorities promulgated thereuade
may change from time to time; and

(H WHEREAS , it is the intention of the Company to make cdmittions to the Trust to provide itself with a sa
of funds (“theFund ") to assist it in satisfying its liabilities und#dre Arrangements.

NOW, THEREFORE , the parties do hereby establish the Trust anelestipat the Trust shall be comprised, held and
disposed of as follows:

Section 1. Establishment of The Trust

(a) The Trust is intended to be a Grantor Trust, ofolwlihe Company is the Grantor, within the meaningubpart
E, part |, subchapter J, chapter 1, subtitle Aheflnternal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended haticbe
construed accordingly.

(b) The Company shall be considered a Grantor for tlipgses of the Tru:
(c) Subject to Section 1(i), the Trust hereby establisis irrevocabl

(d) The Company hereby deposits with the Trustee thesets previously held under the Original Truste&gnent
attributable to the Consenting Participants, wlaiskets are listed in Attachment B hereto (theidhit
Contribution”) which shall become the principaltbis Trust to be held, administered and disposdadhe
Trustee as provided in this Trust Agreement.

(e) The principal of the Trust, and any earnings thergmall be held separate and apart from other fohtise
Company and shall be used exclusively for the asdspurposes of Participants and general crecitoleerein
set forth. Participants shall have no preferreaclan, or any beneficial ownership interest in, asgets of the
Trust. Any rights created under the Arrangementsthis Trust Agreement shall be unsecured contahcights
of Participants against the Company. Any assets ihethe Trust will be subject to the claims of general
creditors of the Company under federal and stataridhe event the Company is Insolvent, as defineslectiol
3(a) herein.

() The Company, in its sole discretion, may at ame, or from time to time, make additional dejposf cash or
other property acceptable to the Trustee in thetltruaugment the principal to be held, administened
disposed of by the Trustee as provided in this fT/Agseement. Prior to a Change in Control (as aefim
Section 15) or, if earlier, a Potential Change anttol (as defined in Section 15) (afiggering Event, ” as
such term is more fully defined in Section 15) tinei the Trustee nor any Participant shall haverayht to
compel additional deposits.




(9) In addition to the Initial Contribution, the Compashall make such other contributions as shall ftione to

time be authorized by due corporate action. Amhquayments made by the Company may be in casletiey |
of credit or, prior to the date as of which a Teggg Event, occurs, in such property (includinghaut
limitation, securities issued by the Company) as@ompany may determine. The Company shall keajraiec
books and records with respect to the interestol é&xecutive in any Arrangement and shall procmges of
such books and records to the Trustee at any tintleeaTrustee shall request.

(h) Upon a Triggering Event, the Company shall, as ssopossible, but in no event longer than thir@) (kays

(i)

()

following the occurrence of the Triggering Evengke a contribution to the Trust in an amount thaifficient
(taking into account the Trust assets, if any, ltegufrom prior contributions) to fund the Trust an amount
equal to no less than 100% of the Required Funaimbthe Expense Reserve. The Required Fundinglshall
eqgual to the amount necessary to pay each Partidipa benefits to which Participants would betéedi
pursuant to the terms of the Arrangements as odlaibe on which the Triggering Event occurred. TRpdase
Reserve shall be equal to the greater of: 1) thmated trustee and recokeeper expenses and fees for one
or 2) fifty thousand dollars ($50,000). AnnuallgetCompany shall recalculate the Required Fundiwigtlae
Expense Reserve as of December 31 of the precgdarcand, if the assets of the trust are lessttimsum of
the Required Funding and the Expense Reserve,dhmpény shall make a contribution to the Trust in an
amount equal to no less than 100% of the RequivedliRg and the Expense Reserve.

In the event a Change in Control does not oedgthin two years of a Potential Change in Contmlearlier if,
within such two year period, the Chief Executivdi€r of the Company determines that the Pote@i@nge i
Control no longer exists in accordance with Seclib(b), the Company shall have the right to recavsr
amounts contributed to and remaining on hand iMTtiist pursuant to a payment made upon the ocatereha
Potential Change in Control in accordance with iBact(h).

At the direction of the Company, the Trustbalsestablish separate subtrusts for separatenéeraents or
groups of Participants covered by the Trust. Atdiseretion of the Company, such subtrusts magcet
segregation of particular assets or may refleatrativided interest in the assets of the Trustrequiring any
segregation of assets. If a Triggering Event ogadhesTrustee shall establish a separate subtiustlfthen-
existing Participants in the Arrangement (or, atwritten direction of either the Company or theftoyee
Benefit Plans Committee (theCommittee "), for each Participant in the Arrangement whoasered by the
Trust). The subtrust established for all then-exgsParticipants upon a Triggering Event shall regju
segregation of particular assets. However, ind@idwbtrusts established for each Participant refigat an
undivided interest in the assets of the subtrusalidhen-existing Participants and shall not iegjgegregation
of particular assets among particular individuddtausts. Whenever separate subtrusts are estahligteethen-
existing assets of the Trust or affected portiardbf shall be allocated, as directed by the Cotemiin
proportion to the vested accrued benefits, anah, tiie
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any assets remain, the unvested (if any) accrueefite of the Participants affected thereby, irhbastances as
of the end of the month immediately preceding saltdtation. With respect to any new contributionsite
Trust by the Company after separate subtrusts ewe established, the Company shall designatautiteust
for which such contributions are made. Except asiged in Section 5(b) herein, after separate sskdrare
established, assets allocated to one subtrust otayerutilized to provide benefits under any othdstrust until
all benefits payable under such subtrust have pahin full. Payments to general creditors in¢kent of the
Company becoming Insolvent shall be charged agtiessubtrusts in proportion to their account bedsn
except that payment of benefits to a Participarat gsneral creditor shall be charged against th&sst for that
Participant.

(k) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions or anyestprovision of the Arrangements, no contributibalsbe
required or made if such contribution would viol#te provisions of IRC Section 409A and any apjpliea
authorities promulgated thereunder.

Section 2Payments to Participant:

(a) Prior to a Triggering Event, any distributions froine Trust shall be made by the Trustee to Paaintgat the
direction of the Company. Prior to a Triggering Biygéhe entitlement of a Participant to benefitdemthe
Arrangements shall be determined by the Committed,any claim for such benefits shall be considaret
reviewed under the procedures set out in the Agarants. Prior to a Triggering Event, the Company ma
appoint a third-party administrator TPA ") to direct the Trustee with respect to the amaamd timing of such
payments. After a Triggering Event, the TPA pregigwappointed by the Company shall continue urdess
until the Trustee shall appoint a new TPA to acitemehalf in directing the Trustee with respectite amount
and timing of payments from the Trust.

(b) The Company may direct the Trustee to make paynwdritenefits to Participants, or the Company majena
payments of benefits directly to Participants &ythecome due under the terms of the Arrangementsnay
obtain full or partial reimbursement for such bengdéyments from the Trust (or offset required citmitions to
the Trust) within twelve (12) months following thate such payments are made. In addition, if thecipal of
the Trust, and any earnings thereon, are not serfititco make payments of benefits in accordanchk thig terms
of the Arrangements, the Company shall make thansal of each such payment as it falls due in aecoel
with the Arrangements. The Trustee shall notify@mempany when principal and earnings are not safftao
make payments the Trustee has been directed to Inyatke Company, the Committee, or the TPA. Nothing
this Agreement shall relieve the Company of itbiliaes to pay benefits due under the Arrangementsept to
the extent such liabilities are met by applicatbmassets of the Trust.




(c) The Company shall deliver to the Trustee a scheafubenefits, to include state and federal tax kolding
guidelines, due under the Arrangements on an atrasid. Immediately, as soon as administrativedgicable
after a Potential Change in Control and before angbk in Control, the Company shall deliver to tinestee an
updated schedule of benefits due under the Arrapgesn
After a Triggering Event, the Trustee shall paydiga (unless Company pays pursuant to Sectior) &( in
accordance with such schedule. After a Triggeringri, the TPA shall make the determination of biémeiue
to Participants and shall provide the Trustee aithupdated schedule, to include state and federal t
withholding guidelines, of benefits due; providemiever, a Participant may make application to thesiee for
an independent decision as to the amount or fortheaf benefits due under the Arrangements. In ngakiny
determination required or permitted to be madehleyTirustee under this Section, the Trustee sihadlach such
case, reach its own independent determinatioins ialisolute and sole discretion, as to the Paatitip
entitlement to a payment hereunder. In makingetgmination, the Trustee may consult with and nsalah
inquiries of such persons, including the Partictpre Company, legal counsel, actuaries or oteesqms, as tt
Trustee may reasonably deem necessary. Any redsar@its incurred by the Trustee in arriving at its
determination shall be reimbursed by the Compauly tmthe extent not paid by the Company within a
reasonable time, shall be charged to the Trust.Cldrepany waives any right to contest any amourt paer
by the Trustee hereunder pursuant to a good fetiérchination made by the Trustee notwithstandingcem
by or on behalf of the Company (absent a legaktioh or manifest abuse of discretion by the Tre)steat sucl
payments should not be made.

(d) The Trustee agrees that it will not itself ins&t@ny action at law or at equity, whether in theireaof an
accounting, interpleading action, request for datatory judgment or otherwise, requesting a court
administrative or quasi-judicial body to make tleedmination required to be made by the Trusteeutinls
Section 2 in the place and stead of the Trustee.Tfastee may (and, if necessary or appropriatdl) shstitute
an action to collect a contribution due the Tradibfving a Triggering Event or in the event that fhrust shoul
ever experience a short-fall in the amount of @ssetessary to make payments pursuant to the tériing
Arrangements.

Section 3.  Trustee Responsibility Regarding Paymen
To The Trust Beneficiary When The Company Is Insolent

(a) The Trustee shall cease payment of benefits tackemts if the Company is Insolvent. The Compamgilsbe
considered ‘Insolvent” for purposes of this Trust Agreement if (i) ther@pany is unable to pay its debts as
they become due, or (ii) the Company is subjeet pending proceeding as a debtor under the Unitgd<S
Bankruptcy Code.

(b) At all times during the continuance of this Trukg principal and income of the Trust shall be sabjo claims
of general unsecured creditors of the Company ufedieral and state law as set forth below.




Q) The Board of Directors and the Chief Executive €#fiof the Company shall have the duty to infore
Trustee in writing that the Company is Insolveht person claiming to be a creditor of the Company
alleges in writing to the Trustee that the Complhay become Insolvent, the Trustee shall determine
whether the Company

is Insolvent and, pending such determination, thestBe shall discontinue payment of benefits t
Participants.

(2) Unless the Trustee has actual knowledge tlga€bmpany is Insolvent, or has received noticen fitoe
Company or a person claiming to be a creditor allgthat the Company is Insolvent, the Trusteelshal
have no duty to inquire whether the Company isliresd. The Trustee may in all events rely on such
evidence concerning the Company's solvency as mdyrhished to the Trustee and that provides the
Trustee with a reasonable basis for making a détetiman concerning the Company's solvency.

3) If at any time the Trustee has determinedtt@iCompany is Insolvent, the Trustee shall disoae
payments to Participants and shall hold the asdete Trust for the benefit of the Company's gaher
creditors. Nothing in this Trust Agreement shalamy way diminish any rights of Participants toque
their rights as general creditors of the Comparthh vaspect to benefits due under the Arrangements o
otherwise.

4) The Trustee shall resume the payment of bsnefiParticipants in accordance with Section thisf
Trust Agreement only after the Trustee has detexchthat the Company is not Insolvent (or is no é&ang
Insolvent).

(c) Provided that there are sufficient assets, if thestee discontinues the payment of benefits framltust
pursuant to Section 3(b) hereof and subsequerglymmes such payments, the first payment followirgpsu
discontinuance shall include the aggregate amduait payments due to Participants under the teshibe
Arrangements for the period of such discontinuatess the aggregate amount of any payments made to
Participants by the Company in lieu of the paymentsided for hereunder during any such period of
discontinuance.

Section 4Payments When a Shor-Fall of The Trust Assets Occur

(a) If there are not sufficient assets for the paynoémurrent and expected future benefits pursuaBeiction 2 or
Section 3(c) hereof and the Company does not otkemwake such payments within a reasonable tinee aft
demand from the Trustee, the Trustee shall allat&td rust assets among the Participants of acpéati
subtrust in the following order of priority:




(1) vested Patrticipants (regardless of whether thepetreely employed); ar
(2) nonvested Participants (regardless of whether thepeieely employed

(b) Within each category, assets shall be allocatedgieowith respect to the total present value okfienexpecte
for each within the category, and payments due tindeterms of the Arrangements to each Participhall be
made to the extent of the assets allocated to Raditipant. For purposes
of the foregoing, calculations of the present valsigall be performed within normal actuarial pi@egiand
within the most recent Actuarial Standards of Rcact

(c) Upon receipt of a contribution from the Companyessary to make up for a short-fall in the payments, the
Trustee shall resume payments to all the Partitspamder the Arrangements. Following a Triggerinvgii, the
Trustee shall have the right and duty to comperdrdoution to the Trust from the Company to malefar any
short-fall.

Section 5. Payments to the Company

(a) Except as provided in Section 1(i), Section 2, Bac3, Section 5(b), and Section 8 hereof, the Comshall
have no right or power to direct the Trustee tameto the Company or to divert to others any efThust asse
before all payment of benefits have been made itiic@nts pursuant to the terms of the Arrangement

(b) In the event that the Company, prior to a Trigggfivent, or the Trustee in its sole and absolgerdiion, afte
a Triggering Event, determines that the Trust asseteed one-hundred twenty-five percent (125%hef
anticipated benefit obligations and administragxpenses that are to be paid under the Arrangeraedtthat
all of the subtrusts' assets exceed one-hundregme({100%) of the anticipated benefit obligatians!
administrative expenses that are to be paid um#eAtrangements, the Trustee, at the written doeacif the
Company, prior to a Triggering Event, or the Tregteits sole and absolute discretion, after agaetqg Event,
shall distribute to the Company such excess podifofrust assets. For purposes of the foregointherevent
that the Company, prior to a Triggering Event,la Trustee in its sole and absolute discretioey aft
Triggering Event, determines that the Trust agsedsparticular subtrust exceed one-hundred pe(d&@o) of
the anticipated benefit obligations and administea¢xpenses that are to be paid under the Arraagenirom
such subtrust, such excess amounts may be allowattker subtrusts whose assets are less thahuntred
percent (100%) of the anticipated benefit obligagiand administrative expenses that are to beypaidr the
Arrangements from such subtrust.

Section 6. Investment Authority

(a) Prior to a Triggering Event, the Company shall hdneeright, subject to this Section, to direct Tmastee with
respect to investments.




(1)

(@)

3)

(4)

The Company may direct the Trustee to segeeglabr a portion of the Fund in a separate innesit
account or accounts and may appoint one or moestment managers and/or an investment committe
established by the Company to direct the investrardtreinvestment of each such investment accar
accounts. In such event, the Company shall ndigyTrustee of the appointment of each such inved
manager and/or investment committee. No such imexst manager shall be related, directly or
indirectly, to the Company, but members of the streent committee may be employees of the
Company.

Thereatfter, until a Triggering Event, the Taesshall make every sale or investment with respesuch
investment account as directed in writing by theeBtment manager or investment committee. It sfeall
the duty of the Trustee to act strictly in accoawith each direction. The Trustee shall be under
duty to question any such direction of the investhmeanager or investment committee, to review any
securities or other property held in such investnaegount or accounts acquired by it pursuant ¢t su
directions or to make any recommendations to thiestment managers or investment committee with
respect to such securities or other property.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee, withobtaining prior approval or direction from
investment manager or investment committee, shwadist cash balances held by it from time to time in
short term cash equivalents including, but nottiahito, through the medium of any short term commol
collective, or commingled trust fund established araintained by the Trustee subject to the instnime
establishing such trust fund, U.S. Treasury Bdtsnmercial paper (including such forms of commercia
paper as may be available through the Trustee's Department), certificates of deposit (including
certificates issued by the Trustee in its separatporate capacity), and similar type securitiah &
maturity not to exceed one year; and, furthermse#,such short term investments as may be negessa
to carry out the instructions of an investment ngagnar investment committee regarding more
permanent type investment and directed distribstion

The Trustee shall neither be liable nor resgaa for any loss resulting to the Fund by reasioany sale
or purchase of an investment directed by an inveistrmanager or investment committee nor by reaso
of the failure to take any action with respectny avestment which was acquired pursuant to ay su
direction in the absence of further directionswaflsinvestment manager or investment committee.

a. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to tloatrary, the Trustee shall be indemnified .
saved harmless by the Company from and againstmdhyall personal liability to which the
Trustee may be subjected by carrying out any doestof an investment manager or investmen
committee issued pursuant hereto or for failuradioin the absence of directions of the
investment manager or investment committee inclydihexpenses reasonably incurred in its
defense in the event the Company fails to provisén slefense; provided, however, the Trustee
shall not be so indemnified if it participates knogly in, or knowingly undertakes to conceal, ar
act or omission of an investment manager or investroommittee, having actual knowledge the
such act or omission is a breach of a fiduciarydotovided further, however, that the Trustee
shall not be deemed to have knowingly
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participated in or knowingly undertaken to conaaakct or omission of an investment manager
or investment committee with knowledge that sudlbaomission was a breach of fiduciary duty
by merely complying with directions of an investrheranager or investment committee or for
failure to act in the absence of directions ofrarestment manager or investment committee. Tt
Trustee may rely upon any order, certificate, rgtairection or other documentary confirmation
purporting to have been issued by the investmemiagper or investment committee which the
Trustee believes to be genuine and to have beeeddsy the investment manager or investmen
committee. The Trustee shall not be charged wittwkadge of the termination of the
appointment of any investment manager or investroemmittee until it receives written notice
thereof from the Company.

b. The Company, prior to a Triggering Event, magat the Trustee to invest in securities
(including stock and the rights to acquire stoakdhbligations issued by the Company.

C. All rights associated with respect to any investiieid by the Trust, including but not limited
exercising or voting of proxies, in person or byigel or limited proxy, shall be in accordance
with and as directed in writing by the Companytsrauthorized representative.

(b) Following a Triggering Event, the Trustee shallé#ve power in investing and reinvesting the Fumidlsi sole
discretion, unless otherwise provided below:

(1)

To invest and reinvest in any readily markktaimmmon and preferred stocks (including any stwck
security of the Company), bonds, notes, deben{ureliding convertible stocks and securities bttt no
including any stock or security of the Trustee othean a de minimus amount held in a mutual fund),
certificates of deposit or demand or time depdsitduding any such deposits with the Trustee)ijtkich
partnerships or limited liability companies, pr@gtlacements and shares of investment companigs, a
mutual funds, without being limited to the claseeproperty in which the Trustees are authorized to
invest by any law or any rule of court of any statel without regard to the proportion any such ertyp
may bear to the entire amount of the Fund. Withiouitation, the Trustee may invest the Trust in any
investment company (including any investment comggarcompanies for which Wells Fargo Bank,
N.A. or an affiliated company acts as the investnaglvisor {Special Investment Companies”}) or, any
insurance contract or contracts issued by an inseraompany or companies in each case as the &rus
may determine provided that the Trustee may ieate discretion keep such portion of the Trustashc
or cash balances for such reasonable periods asramyime to time be deemed advisable pending
investment or in order to meet contemplated paysehbenefits;
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(2)

3)

(4)
(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)
(9)

To invest and reinvest all or any portiontod Fund collectively through the medium of any pietary
mutual fund that may be established and maintaoyettie Trustee;

To commingle for investment purposes all or anytiporof the Fund with assets of any other simitasi
or trusts established by the Company with the EBeufbr the purpose of safeguarding deferred
compensation or retirement income benefits ofipleyees and/or directors;

To retain any property at any time received byThestee

To sell or exchange any property held by puatblic or private sale, for cash or on creditgtant and
exercise options for the purchase or exchangedhdreexercise all conversion or subscription tsgh
pertaining to any such property and to enter imip @venant or agreement to purchase any property i
the future;

To participate in any plan of reorganizatioansolidation, merger, combination, liquidationotiner
similar plan relating to property held by it andctansent to or oppose any such plan or any action
thereunder or any contract, lease, mortgage, psegtsale or other action by any person;

To deposit any property held by it with anpfective, reorganization or similar committee, &bedjate
discretionary power thereto, and to pay part ofekigenses and compensation thereof for any
assessments levied with respect to any such pyojoebe deposited,;

To extend the time of payment of any obligatiordhay it;

To hold uninvested any moneys received hyittout liability for interest thereon, but only in
anticipation of payments due for investments, regtments, expenses or disbursements;
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(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

To exercise all voting or other rights, a threction of the Company, with respect to anypprty held
by it and to grant proxies, discretionary or othisay

For the purposes of the Trust, to borrow money faihers, to issue its promissory note or notesetoe,
and to secure the repayment thereof by pledgingpeoperty held by it;

To employ suitable contractors and counskh may be counsel to the Company or to the Trustee,
to pay their reasonable expenses and compensatiortiie Fund to the extent not paid by the Compar

To register investments in its own name dhaginame of a nominee; and to combine certificates
representing securities with certificates of thesassue held by it in other fiduciary capacities$oo
deposit or to arrange for the deposit of such seesiwith any depository, even though, when so
deposited, such securities may be held in the rartiee nominee of such depository with other sdias
deposited therewith by other persons, or to depoga arrange for the deposit of any securitisaesl or
guaranteed by the United States government, oagegcy or instrumentality thereof, including
securities evidenced by book entries rather thaceotjficates, with the United States Departmerthef
Treasury or a Federal Reserve Bank, even thougén wb deposited, such securities may not be held
separate from securities deposited therein by q@&esons; provided, however, that no securitieg imel
the Fund shall be deposited with the United StBtgsartment of the Treasury or a Federal Reservé& Be
or other depository in the same account as anyithal property of the Trustee, and provided, farth
that the books and records of the Trustee shall eines show that all such securities are pathef
Trust Fund,

To settle, compromise or submit to arbitnatamy claims, debts or damages due or owing tooon the
Trust, respectively, to commence or defend suitegal proceedings to protect any interest o
the Trust, and to represent the Trust in all smitegal proceedings in any court or before any
other body or tribunal; provided, however, that Tmastee shall not be required to take any
such action unless it shall have been indemnifiethe Company to its reasonable satisfactio
against liability or expenses it might incur theoef;

Subject to Section 7, to hold and retainges of life insurance, annuity contracts, and ofiteperty of
any kind which policies are contributed to the Timgthe Company or any subsidiary of the
Company or are purchased by the Trustee;

To hold any other class of assets which neagdntributed by the Company and that is deemed
reasonable by the Trustee, unless expressly ptelliberein;
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(17) Toloan any securities at any time held kp ibrokers or dealers upon such security as malebmed
advisable, and during the terms of any such logetmit the loaned securities to be
transferred into the name of and voted by the egror others; and

(18) Generally, to do all acts, whether or notregply authorized, that the Trustee may deem nagess
desirable for the protection of the Fund.

(c) Following a Triggering Event, the Trustee shalldéve sole and absolute discretion in the manageohdine
Trust assets and shall have all the powers sét torder this Section 6(c). In investing the Trissteds, the
Trustee shall consider:

(1) the needs of the Arrangemel
(2) the need for matching of the Trust assets witHi#tlities of the Arrangements; a
(3) the duty of the Trustee to act solely in the betgrests of the Participar

(d) In no event may the Trustee invest in offshore sees or any other investments prohibited by IR€®N
409A.

(e) The Trustee shall have the right, in its sole @Ban, to delegate its investment responsibilitamanvestment
manager who may be an affiliate of the Trusteg¢hénevent the Trustee shall exercise this riglet,Thustee she
remain, at all times responsible for the acts oha&estment manager. The Trustee shall have tihe tiog
purchase an insurance policy or an annuity to thedoenefits of the Arrangements.

() The Company shall have the right at any timeubstitute assets (other than securities issyégebT rustee or
the Company) of equal fair market value for anyeaibeld by the Trust, provided, however, that nchsu
substitution shall be permitted unless the Trudtermines that the fair market values of the sibstl assets
are equal (which determination shall be made amely basis).

Section 7. Insurance Contracts

(a) To the extent that the Trustee is directed by tbm@any prior to a Triggering Event to invest parab of the
Trust Fund in insurance contracts, the type anduatnibiereof shall be specified by the Company. Thestee
shall be under no duty to make inquiry as to tloppety of the type or amount so specified.
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(b) Each insurance contract issued shall provide teaftustee shall be the owner thereof with the pdave
exercise all rights, privileges, options and etatdigranted by or permitted under such contraahder the rule
of the insurer. The exercise by the Trustee ofinagents of ownership under any contract shaigrgo a
Triggering Event, be subject to the direction & @ompany. After a Triggering Event, the Trustealdiave all
such rights.

(c) The Trustee shall have no power to name a bensgfiofahe policy other than the Trust, to assiga plolicy (as
distinct from conversion of the policy to a diffatédorm) other than to a successor Trustee, avda to any
person the proceeds of any borrowing against amanse policy held in the Trust Fund.

(d) No insurer shall be deemed to be a party to thetTmd an insurer's obligations shall be measuréd
determined solely by the terms of contracts andratlgreements executed by the insurer.

Section 8. Disposition of Income

(a) Prior to a Triggering Event, all income receivedthy Trust, net of expenses and taxes, may benestuo the
Company or accumulated and reinvested within thestlat the direction of the Company.

(b) Following a Triggering Event, all income receivedthe Trust, net of expenses and taxes payablbebyrust,
shall be accumulated and reinvested within thetTrus

Section 9. Accounting by The Trustee

The Trustee shall keep accurate and detailed readrall investments, receipts, disbursements airather
transactions required to be made, including suekiBp records as shall be agreed upon in writiagpMeen the
Company and the Trustee. Within forty-five (45) sldgilowing the close of each calendar year andiwitorty-five
(45) days after the removal or resignation of thesiee, the Trustee shall deliver to the Companyitten account of
its administration of the Trust during such yeadoring the period from the close of the last pd&tg year to the date
of such removal or resignation setting forth alldeatments, receipts, disbursements and other ttimsa effected by it,
including a description of all securities and inwesnts purchased and sold with the cost or netgaids of such
purchases or sales (accrued interest paid or @deiveing shown separately), and showing all csestyrities and
other property held in the Trust at the end of syedr or as of the date of such removal or resignaas the case may
be. The Company may approve such account by amiment in writing delivered to the Trustee. In #iesence of the
Company's filing with the Trustee objections to angh account within one hundred and eighty (189¥safter its
receipt, the Company shall be deemed to have soaggh such account. In such case, or upon theanrépproval by
the Company of any such account, the Trustee shalge extent permitted by law, be discharged fediniability to the
Company for its acts or failures to act describgduch account. The foregoing, however, shall netlpde the Truste
from having its accounting settled by a court ahpetent jurisdiction. The Trustee shall be entitletiold and to
commingle the assets of the Trust in one Fundnfeestment purposes but at the direction of the Gomprior to a
Change in Control, the Trustee shall create omaaye sub-accounts.
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Section 10. Responsibility of The Trustee

(a) The Trustee shall act with the care, skill, prugeand diligence under the circumstances then pieydhat a
prudent person acting in like capacity and famivah such matters would use in the conduct of r@emrise of
a like character and with like aims, provided, hegrethat the Trustee shall incur no liability toygperson for
any action taken pursuant to a direction, requeapproval given by the Company which is contengaldiy,
and in conformity with, the terms of the Arrangertseor this Trust and is given in writing by the Quamy. In
the event of a dispute between
the Company and a party, the Trustee may applyctug of competent jurisdiction to resolve thepdite,
subject, however to Section 2(d) hereof.

(b) The Company hereby indemnifies the Trustee aghkiases, liabilities, claims, costs and expense®immection
with the administration of the Trust, unless raaglfrom the negligence or willful misconduct ofubtee. The
Trustee hereby indemnifies the Company againsiitiab, claims, costs and expenses resulting fragligence
or willful misconduct of the Trustee. The Trustéalsnot be liable under any circumstances forricti
incidental, consequential, punitive, or special dgas in connection with the administration of thisst. To the
extent the Company fails to make any payment oowtoof an indemnity provided in this Section 10{h)a
reasonably timely manner, the Trustee may obtagmpat from the Trust. If the Trustee undertakedejends
any litigation arising in connection with this Ttus to protect a Participant's rights under theaAgements, the
Company agrees to indemnify the Trustee againsithstee's costs, reasonable expenses and liedbiliti
(including, without limitation, attorneys' fees aexipenses) relating thereto and to be primarilyiéidor such
payments. If the Company does not pay such cogienses and liabilities in a reasonably timely neginthe
Trustee may obtain payment from the Trust.

(c) The Trustee may consult with legal counsel (who ailag be counsel for the Company generally) witipeet
to any of its duties or obligations hereunder.

(d) The Trustee may hire agents, accountants, actyanestment advisors, financial consultants oeoth
professionals to assist it in performing any ofiigies or obligations hereunder and may rely gn an
determinations made by such agents and informatiovided to it by the Company.

(e) The Trustee shall have, without exclusion, all p@reonferred on the Trustee by applicable law, ssle
expressly provided otherwise herein.
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() Notwithstanding any powers granted to the Trustesyant to this Trust Agreement or to applicable e
Trustee shall not have any power that could giveThust the objective of carrying on a business @iniding
the gains therefrom, within the meaning of sec80a.7701-2 of the Procedure and Administrative Regns
promulgated pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code.

Section 11. Compensation and Expenses of The Trustee

The Trustee's compensation shall be as agreedtingvirom time to time by the Company and the Tees The
Company shall pay all administrative expenses hadtustee's fees and shall promptly reimbursdthstee for any
fees and expenses of its agents. If not so patldmihirty (30) days of being invoiced, the feesl @xpenses shall be
paid from the Trust.

Section 12. Resignation and Removal of The Trustee

(a) Prior to a Triggering Event, the Trustee may resigany time by written notice to the Committeejahirshall
be effective sixty (60) days after receipt of saclice unless the Committee and the Trustee aghesvase.
Following a Triggering Event, the Trustee may radigrty-six (36) months or more after the TriggeyiEvent
by written notice to the Committee, which shalldffective sixty (60) days after receipt of suchic®br upon
shorter notice as the Committee and the Trustemea@r, following a Triggering Event, the Trusteaymesign
twenty-four (24) months or more after the TrigggriEvent if a successor Trustee has been appoigtdteb
Committee in accordance with Section 13 or the fBubas received written consent from a Majorityhef
Participants as defined in Section 15.

(b) Prior to a Triggering Event, the Trustee may beaesd by the Committee on sixty (60) days writtetigeoor
upon shorter notice accepted by the Trustee. Afferiggering Event, the Trustee may be removedby t
Committee with written consent from a Majority betParticipants.

(c) If the Trustee resigns following a Triggering Evand if the Committee fails to appoint a succe3sastee
within a reasonable period of time following suekignation, the Trustee shall apply to a courtoofijgetent
jurisdiction for the appointment of a successorstea which satisfies the requirements of SectioarX8r
instructions.

(d) Upon resignation or removal of the Trustee and app@nt of a successor Trustee, all assets shadlesently
be transferred to the successor Trustee. The @nasiséll be completed within sixty (60) days afesreipt of
notice of resignation, removal or transfer, unkkesCommittee extends the time limit.

(e) If the Trustee resigns or is removed, a successmtde shall be appointed by the Committee, inraerwe witl
Section 13 hereof, by the effective date of redigneor removal under paragraph(s) (a) or (b) & gection. If
no such appointment has been made, the Trusteeppdy to a court of competent jurisdiction for appiment
of a successor or for instructions. All expensethefTrustee in connection with the proceedinglsiehllowed
as administrative expenses of the Trust.

16




Section 13. Appointment of Successor

(a) If the Trustee resigns or is removed in accordavitie Section 12 hereof, the Committee may appaimbject tc
Section 12, any third party national banking asstomi with a market capitalization exceeding $26,000 to
replace the Trustee upon resignation or removad.skitcessor Trustee shall have all of the righdspavers of
the former Trustee, including ownership rightshia Trust. The former Trustee shall execute anyunstnt
necessary or reasonably requested by the Comroittie successor Trustee to evidence the transfer.

(b) The successor Trustee need not examine the reanddsacts of any prior Trustee and may retain qragis of
existing Trust assets, subject to Section 9 andet8of. The successor Trustee shall not
be responsible for and the Company shall indemamiy defend the successor Trustee from any claimkolity
resulting from any action or inaction of any prioustee or from any other past event, or any cadéxisting
at the time it becomes successor Trustee.

Section 14Amendment or Termination

(a) The Company's Board of Directors and the Trusteg an@end this Trust Agreement at any time by a amitt
instrument executed by both parties, provided, vandahat such amendment shall not become effeatitié
the Company has receive the written consent of jiti\aof the Participants. Notwithstanding thedgoing,
Participant consent need not be obtained for ntastantive or minor administrative changes, coroaj or
clarifications. No such amendment shall conflicthathe terms of the Arrangements or shall makeTtist
revocable, except as provided in Section 14(c)adendment made under this Section may violate the
provisions of IRC Section 409A.

(b) Following a Triggering Event, the Trust shall netmhinate until the date on which Participants haeeived all
of the benefits due to them under the terms anditions of the Arrangements, except as provide8antion 14
(c). Notwithstanding the foregoing, after individisabtrusts have been created, an individual sabimay be
terminated on the date on which all Participanigehaceived all of the benefits due to them unkdertérms and
conditions of the Arrangements covered by suchraabt

(c) Upon written approval of all Participants entitledpayment of benefits pursuant to the terms of the

Arrangements, the Company's Board of Directors teayinate this Trust prior to the time all bengfityments
under the Arrangements have been made. All agsétg iTrust at termination shall be returned toGbenpany.
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Section 15. Definitions

(a) For purposes of this Trust, the following termslsba defined as set forth belc

(1) “ Potential Change in Control” shall mear

the purchase or other acquisition by any pereatity or group of persons, within the meaning
of Section 13(d) or 14(d) of the Securities ExchleaAgt of 1934 (“Act”), or any comparable
successor provisions, other than the trustee ob#mr trust or plan maintained for the benefit
of employees of the Company, of beneficial owngrghiithin the meaning of Rule 13d-3
promulgated under the Act) of 20% or more of eitineroutstanding shares of common stoc
the combined voting power of the Company's thestantling voting securities entitled to vote
generally;

. the announcement by any person of an intentioake &ctions which might reasonably resu

a business combination between the Company andtay which has a market capitalization
equal to or greater than 80% of the Company;

the issuance of a proxy statement by the Compathyrespect to an election of directors for
which there is proposed one or more directors whaat recommended by the Board of

Directors of the Company or its nominating comneiftehere the election of such proposed
director or directors would result in a Change on€ol as defined in Section 15(a)(2)(iii); or

submission to the individuals who, as of the da&te=bf, constitute the Board of Directors, of
nominations which, if approved, would change thedttive Officer configuration of the
Company (at the Executive Vice President level @valve) by 50% or more.

(2) “Change in Control” shall mean the earliest

the date any one person, or more than one pexsing as a group (as the term “group” is use:
in Treasury Regulations section 1.409A-3(i)(5)(V)(Excquires ownership of stock of the
Company that, together with stock previously heidhe acquirer, constitutes more than fifty
(50%) percent of the total fair market value oateting power of Company stock. If any one
person, or more than one person acting as a giapnsidered to own more than fifty (50%)
percent of the total fair market value or totalingtpower of Company stock, the acquisition o
additional stock by the same person or personsgas a group does not cause a Change in
Control. An increase in the percentage of stockemhoy any one person, or persons acting as
group, as a result of a transaction in which Commaguires its stock in exchange for prope

is treated as an acquisition of stock;
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ii. the date any one person, or more than oneopeasting as a group (as the term “group” is use
in Treasury Regulations section 1.409A-3(i)(5)(Y)(Ecquires (or has acquired during the
twelve (12) month period ending on the date ofrtfest recent acquisition by that person or
persons) ownership of Company stock possessiraast thirty (30%) percent of the total vol
power of Company stock;

iii. the date a majority of the members of the Camys Board of Directors is replaced during any
twelve (12) month period by directors whose appoaerit or election is not endorsed by a
majority of the members of the Board of Directon®pto the date of appointment or election;
or

iv. the date any one person, or more than one persiting as a group (as the term “group” is usec
in Treasury Regulations section 1.409A-3(i)(5)(V)(Excquires (or has acquired during the
twelve (12) month period ending on the date ofrtieest recent acquisition by that person or
persons) assets from the Company that have artogsldair market value equal to at least fort
(40%) percent of the total gross fair market vadtiall the Company's assets immediately prio
to the acquisition or acquisitions. For this pugdgross fair market value” means the value c
the corporation's assets, or the value of the sbs#ng disposed of, without regard to any
liabilities associated with these assets.

In determining whether a Change in Control occilns attribution rules of Internal Revenue
Code Section 318 apply to determine stock ownerdiip stock underlying a vested option is
treated as owned by the individual who holds thetaek option, and the stock underlying an
unvested option is not treated as owned by theithgial who holds the unvested option.

For purposes of this Section 15(a), the individuwdi®, as of the date hereof, constitute the
Board of Directors, by a majority vote, shall h&ke power to determine on the basis of
information known to them (a) the number of shdreseficially owned by any person, entity
group; (b) whether there exists an agreement, @eraent or understanding with another as to
matters referred to in this Section 15(a); (c) Wkepersons are acting as a group (as the tern
“group” is used in Treasury Regulations sectiord@4+3(i)(5)(v)(B)); and (d) such other
matters with respect to which a determination isessary under this Section 15(a).
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3) “ Majority of the Participants ” shall mean Participants whose combined vestediandsted
account balance(s) and accrued benefits withithengements exceed 67% of the total Trust
liability.

4) “Triggering Event ” shall mean a Change in Control or, if earlieRa@ential Change in Control.
However, a Potential Change in Control will ceasbéd a Triggering Event and the Trust Agreemer
will be interpreted as if no such Triggering Evlat occurred, if a Change in Control does not occ
within two years of the Potential Change in Contnoif, within such two year period, the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company determines thatRiotential Change in Control no longer exists |
accordance with Section 15(b).

(b) The Chief Executive Officer of the Company shalld¢he specific authority to determine whether teRial
Change in Control or Change in Control has traespiand to determine whether the Potential Chamge i
Control no longer exists under the guidance of 8@stion 15 and shall be required to give the Brigbtice of
a Potential Change in Control, of a Change in Gxdndr if a Potential Change in Control no longgists. The
Trustee shall be entitled to rely upon such notice,if the Trustee receives notice of a Poter@iznge in
Control or Change in Control from another sourbe, Trustee shall make its own independent detetioma

Section 16. Confidentiality

(a) This Trust Agreement and certain information relgtio the Trust is “Confidential Information” puest to
applicable federal and state law, and as suctalt BB maintained in confidence and not disclosised or
duplicated, except as described in this sectiomidfnecessary for the Trustee to disclose Centiid
Information to a third party in order to perfornetiirustee’s duties hereunder, the Trustee shalbdesonly
such Confidential Information as is necessary tmwhshird party to perform its obligations to theuStee and
shall, before such disclosure is made, ensuresthdithird party understands and agrees to thaedsontfality
obligations set forth herein. The Trustee and tbm@any shall maintain an appropriate informatiocusity
program and adequate administrative and physiéagjsards to prevent the unauthorized disclosursyse,
alteration or destruction of Confidential Infornwatj and shall inform the other party as soon asibplesof any
security breach or other incident involving possibhauthorized disclosure of or access to Confidient
Information. Confidential Information shall be rated to the disclosing party upon request. Confiden
Information does not include information that isigeally known or available to the public or thahat treated
as confidential by the disclosing party, provideodwever, that this exception shall not apply to paklicly
available information to the extent that the disal@ or sharing of the information by one or badrtips is
subject to any limitation, restriction, consentpeotification requirement under any applicable fedler state
information privacy law or regulation. If the reeigig party is required by law, according to theiadwf
competent counsel, to disclose Confidential Infdrama the receiving party may do so without breagtthis
section, but shall first, if feasible and legallgrmissible, provide the disclosing party with pramptice of sucl
pending disclosure so that the disclosing party sk a protective order or other appropriate rgnoedvaive
compliance with the provisions of this section.
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Section 17. Miscellaneous

(a) Any provision of this Trust Agreement prohibited lay shall be ineffective to the extent of any such
prohibition, without invalidating the remaining pisions hereof.

(b) The Company hereby represents and warrants thait thié Arrangements have been established, maedain
administered in accordance with all applicable lamwsluding without limitation, ERISA. The Compahgreby
indemnifies and agrees to hold the Trustee harnfilessall liabilities, including attorney's feeglating to or
arising out of the establishment, maintenance andirastration of the Arrangements. To the exteet th
Company does not pay any of such liabilities ieraspbnably timely manner, the Trustee may obtaimgay
from the Trust.

(c) Benefits payable to Participants under this Trugte&ment may not be anticipated, assigned (eitlaweor in
equity), alienated, pledged, encumbered or sulgjgctattachment, garnishment, levy, execution beolkegal ©
equitable process.

(d) This Trust Agreement shall be governed by and coedtin accordance with the laws of North Caro
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF , this Amended and Restated Deferred Compensatigst Agreement has been executed
on behalf of the parties hereto on the day and fpestrabove written.

ALLETE, INC. WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION as TRUSTEE

By: /s/ Alan R. Hodnik By: /s/ Michael D. Hill

Its: Chairman, President & Chief Executive Officer Its:  Senior Vice President

ATTEST: ATTEST:

By: /s/ Deborah A. Amberg By: /s/ Tonya M. Inscore

Its: Senior Vice President, General Counsel & Secretary Its:  Senior Vice President
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Attachment A

The following Arrangements are covered by this Trus
ALLETE and Affiliated Companies Supplemental ExeoeiRetirement Plan
ALLETE and Affiliated Companies Supplemental ExeoeiRetirement Plan 11
Minnesota Power and Affiliated Companies Execuliwgestment Plan |

Minnesota Power and Affiliated Companies Execuliwgestment Plan Il
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Attachment B
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Exhibit 10(k)14

ALLETE
EXECUTIVE LONG-TERM INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN
PERFORMANCE SHARE GRANT

Effective 2013
[Eligible Executive Employees]

Name

In accordance with the terms of ALLETE's Execuliamg-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, as amenithed (
"Plan"), as determined by and through the Execu@isenpensation Committee of ALLETE's Board of Dioest
ALLETE hereby grants to you (the "Participant”) fdéemance Shares, as set forth below, subject ttettmes and
conditions set forth in this Grant including Annex& and B hereto and all documents incorporatedihday reference:

Number of Performance Shares Granted:

Date of Grant:

Performance Period:

Performance Goals: See Annex B

This Grant is made in accordance with the Plan.

Further terms and conditions of the Grant are@#h in Annex A hereto and Performance Goals aréost in Annex
B hereto, which are integral parts of this Grant.

All terms, provisions and conditions applicabléhie Performance Shares set forth in the Plan angetdorth herein
are incorporated by reference. To the extent aayigion hereof is inconsistent with a provisiortioé Plan, the
provisions of the Plan will govern.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, ALLETE has caused this Granbéocexecuted by its Chairman, President & Chiefchkee
Officer as of the date and year first above written

ALLETE

By:

Chairman, President & CEO

Attachments: Annex A and Annex B




ANNEX A
TO
ALLETE
EXECUTIVE LONG-TERM INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN
PERFORMANCE SHARE GRANT

The Grant of Performance Shares evidenced by thet@ which this is annexed is subject to theofeihg
additional terms and conditions:

1. Dividend Equivalent3.he Participant shall receive Dividend Equivaleniih respect to the number of
Performance Shares subject to the Grant. Dividendvalents shall be calculated and credited tdPheticipant at the
end of the Performance Period. The Dividend Egeival shall be in the form of additional Performa8bares, which
shall be added to the number of Performance Skatgsct to the Grant, and which shall equal thelremof Shares
(including fractional Shares) that could be purellgn the dividend payment dates, based on thingleale price as
reported in the consolidated transaction repordygiem on that date, with cash dividends that whaice been paid on
Performance Shares, if such Performance SharesShares.

2. _Satisfaction of Goalét the end of the Performance Period, the Execi@iempensation Committee (the
“Committee”) shall determine the extent to whick ferformance Goals have been met. The Particpdmiot be
credited with any Performance Shares if the thriesleeel has not been met. Subject to the provsminSection 4
hereof and to provisions in the Plan for changeointrol, percentages of the Performance Share ghatitbe credited
to the Participant as follows: If the thresholddekias been met, 50% of the Performance Shar@scfaased by the
Dividend Equivalents) shall be credited to the iegrant. If the target level has been met, 100%hefPerformance
Shares (as increased by the Dividend Equivalehtd) Be credited to the Participant. If the supelével has been met,
200% of the Performance Shares (as increased Wyividend Equivalents) shall be credited to thetibigrant. Straight
line interpolation will be used to determine earagdrds based on achievement of goals betweehrishbld, target
and superior levels.

3. _PaymentSubject to the provisions of subsection (d) heasaf to provisions in the Plan for change in
control, Performance Shares as determined by tihen@ibee according to Section 2 hereof shall be patdl00% (as
increased by the Dividend Equivalents) within twwl@ne half months after the end of the Perform&wsed and
after the Committee has determined the extent iohwlerformance Goals have been met. Paymentishatiade, afte
withholding Performance Shares equal in value ¢oRérticipant's income tax obligation via a deposSALLETE
common stock into an Invest Direct account. Pertoroe Share awards shall not vest until paid.

4. _Payment Upon Death, Retirement or Disabiftyrfeiture of Unvested Performance Shares Upon
Demotion, Unsatisfactory Job Performance or Ottegra®ation from Service.

4.1 If during a Performance Period the Partitigg Retires, (ii) dies while employed by a Relat
Company, or (iii) becomes Disabled, the Particiganthe Participant's beneficiary or estate) stesleive a
payment of any Performance Shares (as increastllyividend Equivalents) after the end of the &enfance
Period, promptly after the Committee has determthedextent to which Performance Goals have bedénThe
payment shall be prorated based upon the numbhehae calendar months within the Performance Period
which had elapsed as of the date of death, RetmeoreDisability in relation to the number of cadkm




months in the full Performance Period. A whole nimastcounted in the calculation if the Participasais in the
position as of the 1%o0f the month.

4.2 If after the end of a Performance Periad defore any or all Performance Shares have baieln p
as specified in Section 4.1 above, the Participaatires, dies or becomes Disabled, the Particifmarthe
Participant's beneficiary or estate) shall be leatito a full payout of all Performance Sharesirfaseased by th
Dividend Equivalents), which shall be paid outreg hext scheduled performance share payment date.

4.3 If prior to payment of all Performance Slsatbe Participant is demoted, or ALLETE or a Bess
Unit determines, in its sole discretion, that tlatieipant's job performance is unsatisfactory, AIIE reserves
the right to cancel or amend the Participant'stgiating to any unpaid Performance Shares, aghrésult the
some portion or all of the Participant's unpaidiétenance Shares will be forfeited.

4.4 If the Participant has a Separation fronvierfor any reason other than those specified in
subsection 4.1 above, all Performance Shares #atédeDividend Equivalents to the extent not yetshall be
forfeited on the date of such Separation from Servexcept as otherwise provided by the Committee.

5. _Compensation Recovery Policyhe Grant is subject to the terms of any compensaecovery policy or
policies established by ALLETE as may be amendewh fiime to time (“Compensation Recovery Policy”LILATE
hereby incorporates into the Grant the terms of2bmpensation Recovery Policy.

6. _Ratification of ActionsBy receiving the Grant or other benefit under tlenPthe Participant and each
person claiming under or through Participant sbaltonclusively deemed to have indicated the Raatit's acceptanc
and ratification of, and consent to, any actioretakinder the Plan or the Grant by ALLETE, the Baarthe
Committee.

7. _NoticesAny notice hereunder to ALLETE shall be addressedltLETE, 30 West Superior Street, Dult
Minnesota 55802, Attention: Manager - Compensadioth Benefits, Human Resources, and any notice heeedo the
Participant shall be directed to the Participaaddress as indicated by ALLETE's records, subgethé right of either
party to designate at any time hereafter in wrisnge other address.

8. _Governing Law and Severabilitjo the extent not preempted by the Federal lawGiant will be
governed by and construed in accordance with the t the State of Minnesota, without regard tadasflicts of law
provisions. In the event any provision of the Grstmdll be held illegal or invalid for any reasdme illegality or
invalidity shall not affect the remaining partstbé Grant, and the Grant shall be construed armteed as if the illegal
or invalid provision had not been included.

9. _DefinitionsCapitalized terms not otherwise defined hereinldteale the meanings given them in the Plar
The following definitions apply to the Grant andstAnnex A:




9.1 “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, asytlmaamended from time to time.
9.2 “Disability ” or “ Disabled” means a physical or mental condition in which Baeticipant is:

(@) unable to engage in any substantial gainfiNiacby reason of any medically determinable
physical or mental impairment that can be expetdedsult in death or can be expected tc
for a continuous period of not less than twelve) fhanths;

(b) by reason of any medically determinable phglsic mental impairment which can be
expected to result in death or can be expecteastddr a continuous period of not less than
twelve (12) months, receiving income replacemengelhits for a period of not less than three
(3) months under the Employer's accident and heddit

(©) determined to be totally disabled by the Socialu@gc Administration; o

(d) disabled pursuant to an Employer-sponsoreabdity insurance arrangement provided that
the definition of disability applied under suchabdity insurance program complies with the
foregoing definition of Disability.

9.3 *“Related Company” means ALLETE, Inc. and all persons with whom &le_ETE, Inc. would
be considered a single employer under Code se¢fid(b) (employees of controlled group of corponagio and
all persons with whom such person would be conediarsingle employer under Code section 414(c)
(employees of partnerships, proprietorships, atader common control); provided that in applyingd€o
sections 1563(a)(1), (2), and (3) for purposesedéinining a controlled group of corporations undede
section 414(b), the language “at least 50 perdenised instead of “at least 80 percent” each ptaagpears in
Code sections 1563(a)(1), (2), and (3), and inyapglTreasury Regulations section 1.414(c)-2 fappges of
determining trades or businesses (whether or ©otporated) that are under common control for psegaf
Code section 414(c), “at least 50 percent” is usstbad of “at least 80 percent” each place it app
Treasury Regulations section 1.414(c)-2.

9.4 “Retirement” or “ Retires” means Separation from Service, for reasons dttzer death or
Disability, on or after attaining normal retiremexgfe or early retirement age as defined in the aygslicable
qualified retirement plan sponsored by the Rel@ethpany that employed the Participant immediately
preceding the Separation from Service, without réga whether the Participant is a participantunbsplan, or
if the employer Related Company does not sponsdr stirement plan, on or after attaining Normatifeenent
Age or Early Retirement Age as defined in the ALIEEand Affiliated Companies Retirement Plan A, witho
regard to whether the Participant is a participarater the ALLETE and Affiliated Companies RetiremBran
A.

9.5 “Separation from Service” means that the Participant terminates employmethimihe meanin
of Treasury Regulations section 1.4024y) and other applicable guidance with all Reld@@ednpanies. Wheth
a termination of employment has occurred is deteechunder the facts and circumstances, and a tatiomnof
employment shall occur if all Related Companies thiedParticipant reasonably anticipate that nd&urt
services shall be performed after a certain datkairthe level of bona fide services the Particifsall perforn
after such




date (as an employee or an independent contrasttall) permanently decrease to no more than 20 peot¢he
average level of bona fide services performed (ndreds an employee or an independent contracter)tbe
immediately preceding 3@onth period (or the full period of services to Belated Companies if the Particig
has been providing services to the Related Compadess than 36 months). A Participant shall natdoesidere:
to separate from service during a bona fide ledabdsence for less than six (6) months or longtraf
Participant retains a right to reemployment witly Related Company by contract or statute. Witheesfo
disability leave, a Participant shall not be coasidl to separate from service for 29 months urnhess
Participant otherwise terminates employment oelisitnated by all Related Companies.




ANNEX B
TO
ALLETE
Executive Long Term Incentive Compensation Plan
Performance Share Grant
Effective 2013
[Eligible Executive Employees]

Financial Measure
Total Shareholder Return (TSR) computed over theetyear period.

Performance Share Award:

If ALLETE's TSR ranking is 4th or higher among apgroup of 27 companies (superior performance)%20f the
Performance Share Grant will be earned. If ALLETESR performance ranks f4mong the peer group (target
performance), 100% of the Grant will be earnedUEETE's TSR performance ranks T@hreshold performance),
50% of the Grant will be earned. If TSR performaiscieelow threshold, no Performance Shares witkdmmed.
Straight-line interpolation will be used to detenmiearned awards based on the TSR ranking betlwesshold, target
and superior.

TSR Rank Perf. Level Payout %
200%
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200%
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Exhibit 10(k)15
ALLETE
EXECUTIVE LONG-TERM INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN
RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT GRANT
Effective 2013

[Eligible Executive Employees]

Name

In accordance with the terms of ALLETE's Executiemg-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, as amentthed (
"Plan"), as determined by and through the Execu@iempensation Committee of ALLETE's Board of Dioest
ALLETE hereby grants to you (the "Participant”) Riesed Stock Units (“RSU's”) as set forth belovaypble in the
form of ALLETE Common Stock, subject to the termsl @onditions set forth in this Grant, includingriax A hereto,
and all documents incorporated herein by reference:

Number of Restricted Stock Units:

Date of Grant:

Vesting Period:
This Grant is made in accordance with the Plan.
Further terms and conditions of the Grant area#h in Annex A hereto, which is an integral pdrtros Grant.
All terms, provisions and conditions set forthte tPlan and not set forth herein are incorporayedterence.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, ALLETE has caused this Granbécexecuted by its Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer as of the date and year firstabaritten.

ALLETE

By:

Chairman, President & CEO

Attachment: Annex A




ANNEX A
TO
ALLETE
EXECUTIVE LONG-TERM INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN
RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT GRANT

The grant of restricted stock units (each , a “RAWider the ALLETE Executive Long-Term Incentive
Compensation Plan (the “Plan”), evidenced by then®to which this is annexed, is subject to thiofaihg additional
terms and conditions:

1. Form and Timing of Paymerfbubject to the provisions hereof, each RSU wilph#l in the form of one share of
ALLETE common stock (each, a “Share”), plus accrdetitiend equivalents, which shares will be demukinto an
account for the Participant in the ALLETE Investéit plan. Except as otherwise provided in sect®aad 4, below,
payment will be made during the period ending sddys after the end of the vesting period; provjdedvever, the
Participant will not be permitted, directly or inglctly, to designate the taxable year of the digtron. Payment will be
subject to withholding Shares equal in value toRBeticipant's income tax obligation.

2. Dividend Equivalents The Participant will receive Dividend Equivalemsconnection with the RSU's granted.
Dividend Equivalents will be calculated and credlite the Participant at the time the underlying RSide paid.
Dividend Equivalents shall be in the form of aduhial RSU's, which shall be added to the numberSi#'R subject to
the grant, and which shall equal the number of &éncluding fractional Shares) that could havenbgurchased on
the dividend payment dates based on the clositg ps reported in the consolidated transactiornrtiegcesystem on
that date with cash dividends that would have lpzed on the RSU's, if such RSU's were Shares.

3. Payment Upon Retirement, Death or Disability; Fibufe Upon Other Termination of Employment or
Unsatisfactory Job Performance

3.1 Subject to Section 3.4 below, if during the vesiiegiod the Participant (i) Retires, (ii) dies vehil
employed by ALLETE or any Related Company, or fgcomes Disabled, a portion of the unvested RSU's
subject to the Grant will vest and be paid to thgiBipant (or the Participant's beneficiary omaés) during the
period ending sixty days after such event; provideavever, the Participant will not be permittenledtly or
indirectly, to designate the taxable year of trstrdiution. Except as otherwise provided in SecipRayment
pursuant to this Section 3.1 shall be prorateéy @fiving effect to the accumulation of Dividendualents,
based on the number of whole calendar months wiki@rvesting period that had elapsed as of theafate
Retirement, death or Disability in relation to thember of calendar months in the vesting period.pooposes
of this calculation, the Participant will be cretitwith a whole month if the Participant was emptbyn the 15
" of the month.




3.2 Except as otherwise provided in Section 4, if dyitime vesting period or prior to payment of all RSthe
Participant has a Separation from Service for aagaon other than those specified in Section 3.¢eglzdl
unvested or unpaid RSU's subject to the Grantbeilforfeited on the date of such Separation fromiSe.

3.3 If during the vesting period or prior to paymentatifShares the Participant is demoted, or if ALIEET
determines, in its sole discretion, that the Piiat's job performance is unsatisfactory, ALLETByntancel o
amend the Participant's grant relating to any uhp&U's, resulting in the forfeiture of some paortar all of the
Participant's unpaid RSU's.

3.4 Notwithstanding anything herein to the contraryheé Participant becomes entitled to a paymertief t
RSU's by reason of the Participant's Retirementfatheé Participant is a Specified Employee ondhage of suc
Retirement, payment shall not be made until thikezanf: (i) the expiration of the six-month peribeginning
on the date of Participant's Retirement, or (i tlate of the Participant's death. The paymentiowa
Specified Employee would otherwise be entitled miyithis six-month period shall be paid, togethaghwi
dividend equivalents that have accrued duringdixisnonth delay, during the seventh month followihg date
of the Participant's Retirement, or, if earliee thate of the Participant's death.

4. Change in ContralUpon a Change in Control, unless the Committegiges otherwise prior to the Change in
Control, outstanding unvested RSU's shall be pedréds described below) and such prorated RSUlssinaediately
vest and be payable to the Participant during gre@ ending sixty days after the Change in Contrbe RSU's will
not be subject to proration and immediately vestydver, if and to the extent that the Grant is;annection with the
Change in Control, fully assumed by the successqracation or parent thereof; in such case, the 'BRShahll be
prorated and immediately vest upon a Participaataination of employment by the successor corpmrdbr reasons
other than cause within 18 months following the @Jein Control and be payable to the Participannduhe period
ending sixty days after the termination of emplopmé&ny payment on account of or in connection vatGhange in
Control will be prorated, after giving effect tecetaccumulation of Dividend Equivalents, based etimber of whole
calendar months within the three-year vesting pethat had elapsed as of the date of the ChanGenitrol or
termination of employment, as applicable, in relatio the number of calendar months in the thres-yesting period.
For purposes of this calculation, the Participatfitie credited with a whole month if the Partiaipavas employed on
the 15" of the month. In no event will the Participant mamitted, directly or indirectly, to designate th@able year of
the distribution on account of or in connectionhnat Change in Control.

5. Compensation Recovery Policfhe Grant is subject to the terms of any comp@nsaecovery policy or policies
established by ALLETE as may be amended from tortenie (“Compensation Recovery Policy”). ALLETE bby
incorporates into the Grant the terms of the Corspgon Recovery Policy.




6. Section 409A Complianc&o the extent that any provision of the Grant watddse a conflict with the
requirements of Section 409A or would cause theimidtration of the Grant to fail to satisfy Sectid@9A, such
provision shall be deemed null and void to the mixpeermitted by applicable law. Nothing herein sbalconstrued as
guarantee of any particular tax treatment.

7. Ratification of ActionsBY receiving the Grant or other benefit under thenPthe Participant and each person
claiming under or through Participant shall be dosizely deemed to have indicated the Participatteptance and
ratification of, and consent to, any action takeder the Plan or the Grant by ALLETE, the Boardther Committee.

8. Notices.Any notice hereunder to ALLETE shall be addressedliLETE, 30 West Superior Street, Duluth,
Minnesota 55802, Attention: Manager - Compensadioth Benefits, Human Resources, and any notice heeedo the
Participant shall be directed to the Participaaddress as indicated by ALLETE's records, subgethé right of either
party to designate at any time hereafter in wrisnge other address.

9. Governing Law and Severabilityo the extent not preempted by the Federal lawGitzat will be governed by
and construed in accordance with the laws of th&eSif Minnesota, without regard to its conflictdaav provisions. In
the event any provision of the Grant shall be fikddal or invalid for any reason, the illegality imvalidity shall not
affect the remaining parts of the Grant, and than@Gshall be construed and enforced as if thealleginvalid provisiol
had not been included.

10. Definitions.Capitalized terms not otherwise defined hereinldteale the meanings given them in the Plan. The
following definitions apply to the Grant and thisdex A:

10.1 *“ Change in Control” means the earliest of:

® the date any one Person, or more than one@Rearding as a group (as the term “group” is used i
Treasury Regulations section 1.409A-3(i)(5)(v)(Bquires ownership of stock of the Company
that, together with stock previously held by thguarer, constitutes more than fifty (50%) percent
of the total fair market value or total voting pave¢ Company stock. If any one Person, or more
than one Person acting as a group, is consideradrianore than fifty (50%) percent of the total
fair market value or total voting power of Compatgck, the acquisition of additional stock by the
same Person or Persons acting as a group doeauss a Change in Control. An increase in the
percentage of stock owned by any one Person, soRe@lcting as a group, as a result of a
transaction in which Company acquires its stockxchange for property, is treated as an
acquisition of stock;

(i) the date any one Person, or more than onsdReacting as a group (as the term “group” is used
Treasury Regulations section 1.409A-3(i)(5)(v)(BXquires (or has acquired during the twelve
(12) month period ending on the date of the mastntacquisition by that Person or Persons)
ownership of Company stock possessing at leasy 30%) percent of the total voting power of
Company stock;




(iii)

(iv)

the date a majority of the members of then@pany's board of directors is replaced during any
twelve (12) month period by directors whose appoentt or election is not endorsed by a majority
of the members of the board of directors prioht® date of appointment or election; or

the date any one Person, or more than ongoRexcting as a group (as the term “group” is uised
Treasury Regulations section 1.409A-3(i)(5)(v)(Bquires (or has acquired during the twelve
(12) month period ending on the date of the mastneacquisition by that Person or Persons)
assets from the Company that have a total grossnfaiket value equal to at least forty (40%)
percent of the total gross fair market value ottal Company's assets immediately prior to the
acquisition or acquisitions. For this purpose, Sy air market value” means the value of the
corporation's assets, or the value of the assetg desposed of, without regard to any liabilities
associated with these assets.

In determining whether a Change in Control occtls attribution rules of Code section 318 applddétermine
stock ownership. The stock underlying a vestedoogs treated as owned by the individual who htheésvested
option, and the stock underlying an unvested opsigrot treated as owned by the individual who balee
unvested option. The term “Person” used in thignd@n means any individual, corporation (inclugiany non-
profit corporation), general, limited or limitedbility partnership, limited liability company, jai venture, estate,
trust, firm, association, organization or otheritgrdar any governmental or quasi-governmental atity,o
organization, agency or body.

10.2

10.3

“ Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, asytlmeaamended from time to time

“ Disability " or “ Disabled” means a physical or mental condition in which Baticipant is:

unable to engage in any substantial gainfulagtoy reason of any medically determinable
physical or mental impairment that can be expetdedsult in death or can be expected to last fc
a continuous period of not less than twelve (12htns;

by reason of any medically determinable phgkar mental impairment which can be expected tc
result in death or can be expected to last fomairmaeous period of not less than twelve (12)
months, receiving income replacement benefits feergod of not less than three (3) months unde
the Employer's accident and health plan;

determined to be totally disabled by the Socialu@gcAdministration; o




Iv. disabled pursuant to an Employer-sponsoreahidity insurance arrangement provided that the
definition of disability applied under such disalyiinsurance program complies with the
foregoing definition of Disability.

10.4 * Related Company” means the ALLETE, Inc. and all persons with whitrea ALLETE, Inc. would be
considered a single employer under Code sectio(bl}{dmployees of controlled group of corporatiors)d all
persons with whom such person would be considestage employer under Code section 414(c) (em@sy
partnerships, proprietorships, etc., under comnamtrol); provided that in applying Code section§3&)(1),
(2), and (3) for purposes of determining a congbljroup of corporations under Code section 414{(b),
language “at least 50 percent” is used insteacbligast 80 percent” each place it appears in Gedions 1563
(@)(1), (2), and (3), and in applying Treasury Ratjons section 1.414(@-for purposes of determining trade
businesses (whether or not incorporated) that mderucommon control for purposes of Code sectiagt{@1“at
least 50 percent” is used instead of “at leastéd@gnt” each place it appears in Treasury Regulasection
1.414(c)-2.

10.5 *“ Retirement” or “ Retires” means Separation from Service, for reasons dhi@r death or Disability,
on or after attaining normal retirement age oryegetirement age as defined in the most applicqb#ified
retirement plan sponsored by the Related Compaatyetinployed the Participant immediately precedngy t
Separation from Service, without regard to whetherParticipant is a participant in such planfdne
employer Related Company does not sponsor suckmetnt plan, on or after attaining Normal Retiretrisge
or Early Retirement Age as defined in the ALLETE &ffiliated Companies Retirement Plan A, withoegjarc
to whether the Participant is a participant unlerALLETE and Affiliated Companies Retirement PRan

10.6 “ Section 409A" means Section 409A of the Code and Treasury Reiguk section 1.409A-et seq., a
they both may be amended from time to time, orroglugdance issued by the Treasury Department aednial
Revenue Service thereunder.

10.7 * Separation from Service” means that the Participant terminates employmathin the meaning of
Treasury Regulations section 1.409A-1(h) and odippticable guidance with all Related Companies. thérea
termination of employment has occurred is deterchimader the facts and circumstances, and a terimmet
employment shall occur if all Related Companies thiedParticipant reasonably anticipate that nd&urt
services shall be performed after a certain datkairthe level of bona fide services the Particifsall perforn
after such date (as an employee or an independatractor) shall permanently decrease to no mane 20
percent of the average level of bona fide servieformed (whether as an employee or an independent
contractor) over the immediately preceding 36-maa@hod (or the full period of services to the Reta
Companies if the Participant has been providingises to the Related Companies less than 36 momths)
Participant shall not be considered to separata gervice during a bona fide leave of absencesks than six
(6) months or longer if the Participant retainsghtrto reemployment with any Related Company hytiaxt or
statute. With respect to disability leave, a Paréint shall not be considered to separate fromcefor 29
months unless the Participant otherwise terminatgsloyment or is terminated by all Related Companie




10.8 *“ Specified Employe€ means an Participant who is subject to the sixitinalelay rule described in
Code section 409A(2)(B)(i), determined in accordawith guidelines adopted by the Board from timérnee a:
permitted by Section 409A of the Code and TreaRegulations section 1.409A-1 et seq., as they tmaty be
amended from time to time, and other guidance ébyahe Treasury Department and Internal Reverunei&

thereunder.



Exhibit 10(n)5

AMENDMENT TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED
ALLETE DIRECTOR COMPENSATION DEFERRAL PLAN

The Amended and Restated ALLETE Director Compeosddeferral Plan, dated effective January 1, 1898mende

as follows:
1. Effective July 24, 2012, Section 5.1 is amendedeietethe following

Any annuity provided under this section shall bé&wated using a 7.5% interest rate, or such othtr a
approved by the Board. Notwithstanding the foregpannuities under this section shall be calculatdg ai
8% interest rate in any circumstance in which dnhe following conditions applies: (i) the Directieft service
prior to January 1, 2007; or (ii) the Director pied official notice of retirement to the Companyop to
January 1, 2007 with an effective retirement datewobefore April 1, 2007.

2. Effective July 24, 2012, Section 5.1 is furtharended to adihe following

Any annuity provided in this section shall be cédted by crediting to or debiting from the Deferfaicount al
notional gains and losses associated with the imayg funds selected by the Director from amongabigon:
provided by the Company until all amounts credite®eferral Account have been distributed.

ALLETE, Inc.

By: /s/ Alan R. Hodnik

Alan R. Hodnik
Chairman, President & Chief Executive Officer

ATTEST:

By: /s/ Deborah A. Amberg

Deborah A. Amberg
Senior Vice President, General Counsel & Secretary
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ALLETE, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED

NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR COMPENSATION DEFERRAL PLAN Il

Effective July 24, 2012
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ALLETE, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED
NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR COMPENSATION DEFERRAL PLAN II

Effective July 24, 2012

ARTICLE 1
Establishment and Purpose

This document includes the terms of the ALLETE, lAmended and Restated Non-Employee Director
Compensation Deferral Plan 11, the purpose of widwo provide Directors an opportunity to electleger his or her
Annual Retainer. The Plan is a successor to theEAIE Director Compensation Deferral Plan (the “Poedsor Plan):
On December 31, 2004, the Company froze the Predec®lan, and on January 1, 2005, the Companylistid the
Plan to govern amounts initially deferred after &aber 31, 2004 and investment earnings thereom Bamuary 1,
2005 to the effective date hereof, the Companyaipdrand administered the Plan in all materialeetspn good faith
compliance with the applicable requirements of i8act09A, the final and proposed Treasury RegutetidRS Notice
2005-1, and all other IRS guidance. Effective Janda2009, the Company amended and restated ameirPlts
entirety to comply with Section 409A. Effective May2009, the Company amended the Plan to expaniypes of
compensation that Directors may defer. Effectig 24, 2012, the Company further amends the Plalitanate the
fixed crediting rate. Capitalized terms, unlessothse defined herein, shall have the meaning gdeaVin Article 12.

ARTICLE 2
Administration

2.1  Administrator . The Executive Compensation Committee of the Bohadl administer the Plan.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Administratoryntielegate any of its duties to such other persgesons
from time to time as it may designate. MembersefEExecutive Compensation Committee may participate
the Plan; however, any Director serving on the E¥ge Compensation Committee shall not vote oroacany
matter relating solely to himself or herself.

2.2  Duties. The Administrator has the authority to construe iatekpret all provisions of the Plan, to resolvy a
ambiguities, to adopt rules and practices concgrtiie administration of the Plan, to make any deitegitions
and calculations necessary or appropriate herepaddy to the maximum extent permitted by Secti@®” the
authority to remedy any errors, inconsistenciesmoissions. The Company shall pay all expensesiahilities
incurred in connection with Plan administration.

2.3  Agents. The Administrator may engage the services of adamus, attorneys, actuaries, investment consult
and such other professional personnel as are deeetvedsary or advisable to assist in fulfilling the
Administrator's responsibilities. The Administrattire

Company and the Board may rely upon the adviceniops or valuations of any such persons.




2.4  Binding Effect of Decisions. The decision or action of the Administrator witlspect to any question arising
out of or in connection with the administrationteirpretation and application of the Plan and thesrand
regulations promulgated hereunder shall be fir@ictusive and binding upon all persons having atgrest in
the Plan. Neither the Administrator, its delegates,the Board shall be personally liable for angpdfaith
action, determination or interpretation with redgedhe Plan, and each shall be fully protectedheyCompany
in respect of any such action, determination aerptetation.

2.5 Company Information . To enable the Administrator to perform its duttbg Company shall supply full and
timely information to the Administrator on all maits relating to the Annual Retainer, the Directtrs,date and
circumstances of a Director's Separation from $enand other pertinent information as the Admiatst may
reasonably require.

ARTICLE 3
Participation

Directors may participate in the Plan. Each Plaary@the Administrator shall notify Directors of theligibility
to participate in the Plan and defer compensabdretpaid on account of services as a Directondutie next Service
Period. A Director who is eligible to participatkall become a participant by completing an eladiiom on which the
Director elects to defer some or all of his or Aanual Retainer and delivering the completed foorthe Company as
specified in the Plan. The terms of this Plan statitinue to govern a Director's Accounts until #eeounts are paid i
full.

ARTICLE 4
Deferral Elections

4.1  Annual Deferral Election . Each Plan Year, a Director may elect: (i) to defene or all of the Director's
Annual Cash Retainer, the Annual Stock Retainebotin, attributable to the next Service Period; @ndo the
extent permitted by this Plan, the time and forndisfribution of Cash Deferrals and Stock Deferrglections
become irrevocable no later than the date spedifyeithie Administrator, but in any event before lieginning o
the Plan Year with which or during which occurs 8exvice Period to which the elections relate. Aeblor's
election will become effective only if the formgrered by the Administrator have been properly cletga and
signed by the Director, timely delivered to, andegated by, the Administrator. A Director who fdisfile the
election before the required date will be treatetiaving elected not to defer any portion of thedal Retainer
for the following Service Period.

4.2 |Initial Deferral Election. A Director who first becomes eligible to participan the Plan during a Plan Year
may elect to defer some or all of the Director'sidal Cash Retainer and Annual Stock Retainer mgfé
signed election form with the Administrator no lattean 30 days after the

Director first becomes eligible to participate e tPlan. Such election shall be effective only wispec
to the Director's Annual Retainer earned afterfilhrey of such election. The election shall becoimmevocable
with respect to the Service Period covered by kaetien on the 30th day following the date on whilca
Director first becomes eligible to participate e tPlan. This election relating to initial partiatn in the Plan
is available only to Directors who do not parti¢gpan any other nonqualified deferred compensatientive
account balance plans (within the meaning of Seet@®A) maintained by the Company or any Related
Company. If a Director whose participation in tHarPis terminated again becomes a Director, héh@msay
elect to




4.3

5.1

5.2

defer pursuant to this Section only if the Direct@s ineligible to defer compensation in this Riad all
other Related Company elective account balancesftarthe 24 months preceding the date on which the
Director again became eligible to participate iis lan.

Cancellations of Deferral Elections due to Unforessable Emergencylf a Director experiences an

Unforeseeable Emergency, the Director may subniii@gdAdministrator a written request to cancel Drefis for
the Service Period to satisfy the UnforeseeablerGemey. If the Administrator either approves theebior's
request to cancel Deferrals for the Service Penodpproves a request for a distribution of pDeferrals in
accordance with Section 6.1.3, then effective ab®flate the request is approved the Administsdtal cance
the Director's deferral elections for the remainofathe Service Period. A Director whose Defereaks canceled
in accordance with this section may elect Deferfi@ishe following Service Period.

ARTICLE 5
Accounts

Accounts. The Company will establish notional accounts ar@atcounts for each Director as the
Administrator deems necessary or advisable frore trtime. The Company will establish a Director's
Accounts during the year in which the Directortfeects to defer any amounts. All amounts in &€&ior's
Accounts are fully vested at all times.

Cash Account.

5.2.1 Establishment of Cash Accoun. The Company shall establish and maintain a Casloutddor
each Director who has elected to defer any podidhe Annual Cash Retainer. A Director's C
Account shall be credited as appropriate for CasteiPals and earnings with respect to Cash
Deferrals and debited for distributions from thesiE&ccount.

5.2.2 Timing of Credits to Cash Accounts. No later than the end of the calendar year durihighv
the Company would otherwise have paid the AnnuahQRetainer to the Director but for the
Director's deferral election, the Administrator Isleeedit the Director's Cash Account with an
amount equal to the portion of the Annual Cash iRetahat the Director elected to defer.




5.2.3

5.24

Investments. The Administrator may select investment funds ® fas measuring notional gai
and losses with respect to Cash Deferrals. The Adtnator will establish, from time to time,
rules and procedures for allowing each Directatdsignate which one or more of the selected
investment funds will be used to determine theamati gains and losses credited or debited to tl
Director's Cash Account.

Valuation Date . As of each Valuation Date, each Cash Account velbdjusted to reflect the
effect of notional investment gains or losses, @@, distributions, transfers and all other
transactions with respect to that account sincetbeious Valuation Date.

53 Stock Account.

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.3.3

5.34

Establishment of Stock Accouni. The Company shall establish and maintain a Stododat

for each Director who has elected to defer anyigoef the Annual Stock Retainer. A Director's
Stock Account shall be credited as appropriate&sfock Deferrals and Dividend Equivalents and
debited for distributions from the Stock Accountb¢ Deferrals credited to a Director's Stock
Account shall be used solely as a device for detenignthe number of shares of Common Stock
to be distributed to such Director at a later timaccordance with this Plan. Stock Deferrals
credited (and the Common Stock to which the Direig@ntitled under this Plan) shall be subjec
to adjustment in accordance with Section 5.3.AisfPlan.

Credits to Stock Accounts. The Administrator shall credit a Director's Stoc&cAunt with Stoc
Deferrals as of the day on which the Annual Stoekaier would otherwise have been paid t
Director pursuant to the Stock Plan but for theeDiior's deferral election. The number of Stock
Deferrals credited to the Stock Account shall eqm@alnumber of shares of Common Stock that
would have been issued to the Director pursuatiteédstock Plan in the absence of a deferral
election.

Dividend Equivalents. Stock Deferrals credited to a Director's Stock Actcshall be credited
with Dividend Equivalents equal to cash divideritst tare declared and paid on Common Stock
The Company will credit each Director's Stock Aatowith Dividend Equivalents as of the date
that the Company pays a dividend on its CommonkStad will convert the Dividend
Equivalents into additional Stock Deferrals by dimg the amount of the Dividend Equivalents
by the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stackhat date.

Adjustments in Case of Changes in Common Stoc. If the outstanding shares of Common
Stock of the Company are increased, decreasedgchbarged for a different number or kind of
shares or other securities, or if additional sharagew or different shares or other securities are
distributed with respect to such shares of

Common Stock or other securities, through mergmrsalidation, sale of all or
substantially all of the property of the Comparggrganization or recapitalization,
reclassification, stock dividend, stock split, reseestock split, combinations of shares, rights
offering, distribution of assets or other distribatwith respect to
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6.1

such shares of Common Stock or other securitiesh@r change in the corporate structure or
shares of Common Stock, the number of Stock Ddgeimea Director's Stock Account and the
kind of shares that may be issued under the Plaotbrshall be appropriately adjusted by the
Committee. Any determination by the Committee aartp such adjustment will be final, bindir
and conclusive.

ARTICLE 6
Distributions

Distributions . The Plan provides for distributions in a Specifiéghr, upon a Separation from Service or upor

an Unforeseeable Emergency. As described in Se@tibfi, each Plan Year a Director may elect to ladiver a
portion of the Cash Deferrals, Stock Deferraldyath, attributable to the next Service Period disted in a
Specified Year. With respect to Deferrals not saidje distribution in a Specified Year, the Plaguees
distribution upon Separation from Service at a tand in a form elected by the Director, or for Biggs who
fail to elect, at a time and in a form specifiedtbg Plan. A Director wishing to elect a time aochi of
distribution upon Separation from Service musthattime of the Director's initial Deferrals, sulbi
distribution election, which may provide a diffetéime and form of distribution upon Separatiomfr&ervice
for Cash Deferrals and Stock Deferrals. A Direstdistribution elections are irrevocable and wigrn the
Deferrals to which the election relates until thef@rals covered by the election are paid in fullotil
subsequently changed in accordance with SectiaN@Bvithstanding any elections by a Director, all
distributions are subject to the provisions of &ec6.2.

6.1.1 Specified Year. A Director may elect to receive a distribution aish Deferrals and Stock
Deferrals in the same or different Specified Yeatse Specified Year(s) elected may be no
earlier than the third Plan Year beginning afterdiate on which the Director initially elects to
receive a distribution in a Specified Year. Excapotherwise provided in this subsection or in
Section 6.3, once a Director has elected to re@histribution of Cash Deferrals in a Specified
Year, the Director may not elect to receive a ttigtron of Cash Deferrals in a different Specil
Year and, once a Director has elected to recedistabution of Stock Deferrals in a Specified
Year, the Director may not elect to receive a itigtron of Stock Deferrals in a different
Specified Year. Beginning during the year precedir®pecified Year previously elected by the
Director, the Director may elect to receive a disttion of future Deferrals in a later Specified
Year, subject, however, to the restrictions of guibsection. All amounts distributable in a
Specified Year will be

paid in a single lump sum, in the case of Cash D& or in a single distribution of
Common Stock, in the case of Stock Deferrals.




6.1.2

6.1.3

Separation from Service. A Director may elect to receive a distribution céfBrrals

commencing upon Separation from Service or durmgadd the first five years following the year
of the Separation from Service. A Director may eteaeceive the distribution in the form of a
lump sum, annual installments over a period of {&e ten (10), or fifteen (15) years, or a
combination of both a lump sum and installment®ifector may elect a different time and form
of distribution upon Separation from Service fosB®eferrals and Stock Deferrals.

Unforeseeable Emergenc. A Director may submit a written request for a disition on

account of an Unforeseeable Emergency. Upon appbgvitae Administrator of a Director's
request, the Director's Accounts, or that portibthe Director's Accounts deemed necessary by
the Administrator to satisfy the Unforeseeable Egaacy plus amounts necessary to pay taxes
reasonably anticipated because of the distributiglhpe distributed in a single lump sum in a
manner consistent with Section 409A.

6.2  Additional Distribution Rules .

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

Medium of Payment. All amounts in a Director's Cash Account shall belpn cash. All

amounts in a Director's Stock Account shall be jraithe form of an equivalent number of whole
shares of Common Stock. Fractional shares maydbebdited in cash.

Default Time and Form of Paymenit. If a Director fails timely to elect a time and fowh

payment, the Director's Accounts will be distrilmitgpon any Separation from Service in the 1
of a single lump sum payment.

Rules Applicable to All Distributions . Except as otherwise provided in this section,Dfiigctor

has elected to receive a distribution commenciranupDistribution Event, or if the distribution
is required upon Separation from Service, theitigtion will commence between the date of the
Distribution Event and the end of the year in whicé Distribution Event occurs. If a Director
has elected, or is required, to receive a distivbutommencing upon a Distribution Event, and
the Distribution Event occurs on or after Octoberf & Plan Year, the distribution may, to the
extent permitted by Section 409A, commence afteilstribution Event and on or before the 1-
"day of the third calendar month following the Distition Event, even if after the end of the \
during which the Distribution Event occurs; prowgd@owever, the Director will not be permitt
directly or indirectly, to designate the taxablawyef the distribution. If a Director has elected t
receive a

distribution commencing during any of the firstdiyears following a Separation from
Service, the distribution will commence during ttear elected by the Director. If a Director has
elected to receive a distribution in a Specifieal ¢he distribution will occur during the
Specified Year. Any distribution that complies wittis section shall be deemed for all purposes
to comply with the Plan requirements regardingtitme and form of distributions.




6.3

6.2.4 Installment Payments. If a Director elects to receive distributions imaal installments, the
Director's Account(s) will be paid in substantiadigual installments in consecutive years ovel
period elected by the Director. The Director's CAsbount will be credited or debited with
notional gains and losses based on the investraadsfselected by the Director, from among thi
options provided by the Company, until all amouwnredited to the Director's Cash Account have
been distributed. The Director's Stock Account wdhtinue to be credited with Dividend
Equivalents pursuant to Section 5.3.3, until albants credited to the Director's Accounts have
been distributed. Each annual installment will bel@uring the Plan Year in which it is due. /
installment distribution that complies with thigen shall be deemed for all purposes to compl
with the Plan requirements regarding the time amohfof distributions.

6.2.5 Death After Commencement of Distributions. Upon the death of a Director after distributions
of the Director's Accounts have commenced, thenoalaf the Director's Accounts will be
distributed to the Director's Beneficiary at thensatimes and in the same forms that the Accc
would have been distributed to the Director if Bieector had survived.

Subsequent Changes in Time and Form of Payme. A Director may, in accordance with rules, procedure

and forms specified from time to time by the Admatrator, elect to change the time of payment onghahe
form in which the Director's Accounts are distrgadior both, provided that: (i) the Director elemtseast twelve
(12) months prior to the date on which paymento#nerwise scheduled to commence; (ii) the newtielec
does not take effect for at least twelve (12) msnéimd (iii) with respect to changes applicabldistributions ir
a Specified Year or upon Separation from Servioe distributions must be deferred for at least jigars from
the date the distributions would otherwise havenld, or in the case of installment payments figars fron
the date the installments were scheduled to comenéiar purposes of this section, distributions ccoant of a
Specified Year are considered scheduled to commamdanuary 1 of the Specified Year and distrilmgion
account of a Separation from Service are consideredmmence on the date of the Separation fromi&sgror
if the Director has elected to receive a distributdf Deferrals commencing during any of the finge years
following the year of the Separation from Servig@nuary 1 of the year elected by the Director. sungh
election shall be irrevocable on the date it sdivith the Administrator unless subsequently cedrgursuant
to this Section.




ARTICLE 7
Payment Acceleration and Delay

7.1  Permitted Accelerations of Payment Except as otherwise provided herein or permitte®égtion 409A, the

Plan prohibits the acceleration of the time or dcite of any payment due under the Plan.

7.1.1

7.1.2

7.1.3

7.1.4

Distribution in the Event of Taxation . If, for any reason, all or any portion of any benef
provided by the Plan becomes taxable to a Dirdztoause of a violation of Section 409A prior
to receipt, the Director may file a written requegth the Administrator for a distribution of that
portion of the Plan benefit that has become taxafpn the grant of such a request, which grar
shall not be unreasonably withheld, the Direct@ilsieceive a distribution equal to the taxable
portion of the plan benefit. If the request is dgeal) the tax liability distribution shall be paid
between the date on which the Director's requesppsoved and the end of the Plan Year during
which the approval occurred, or if later, the"day of the third calendar month following the
date on which the Director's request is approved.

Compliance with Ethics Laws or Conflicts of Intere$s Laws. The Administrator may, in its
sole discretion, accelerate the time or scheduéepEyment to the extent necessary to avoid the
violation of any applicable Federal, state, localforeign ethics law or conflicts of interest |as
provided in Treasury Regulations section 1.409A¢&](iii)(B).

Small Accounts. The Administrator may, in its sole discretion, disite the Director's Accounts
in a single lump sum provided: (i) the distributi@sults in the payment of the Director's entire
Accounts and all other account balance plans requo be aggregated with the Director's
Accounts pursuant to Section 409A and (ii) theltdistribution does not exceed the applicable
dollar limit under Code section 402(g)(1)(B). Thdministrator shall notify the Director in
writing if the Administrator exercises its discmtipursuant to this Section. Any payment to a
Director pursuant to this Section must represemttimplete liquidation of the Director's interes:
in the Plan.

Settlement of a Bona Fide Dispute The Administrator may, in its sole discretion, decate the
time or schedule of a distribution as part of dleetent of a bona fide dispute between the
Director and the Company over a Director's righa @histribution provided that the distribution
relates only to the Deferrals in dispute and then@any is not experiencing a downturn in
financial health.

7.2  Permissible Distribution Delays. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the conréo the extent permitted

by Section 409A, the Administrator may, in its sdiscretion, delay distribution to a Director:




7.3

8.1

8.2

7.2.1 If the distribution would jeopardize the Guany's ability to continue as a going concern,
provided that the delayed distribution is distrédmitn the first calendar year in which the
distribution would not have such effect.

7.2.2 If the distribution would violate Federatsgties or other applicable laws, provided that th
delayed distribution is distributed at the earl@aste at which the Administrator reasonably
anticipates that the distribution will not causelsuiolation.

7.2.3 If calculation of the distribution is notrahistratively practicable due to events beyond the
control of the Director, provided that the delayistribution is paid in the first calendar year in
which the calculation of the distribution is adnsinatively practicable.

Suspension Not Allowec. If a Director whose distributions have commencetbbees eligible again to defer
compensation under any plan maintained by a Re@tedpany, distribution of any remaining amountgis
Accounts may not be suspended.

ARTICLE 8
Beneficiary Designation

Beneficiary . Each Director shall have the right, at any timejesignate a Beneficiary(ies) (both primary as
well as contingent) to whom a Director's Accouttitalsbe paid if a Director dies prior to completstdbution
of the Accounts. Each Beneficiary designation sbhalin a written form prescribed by the Administraand
will be effective only when filed with the Adminrsitor during the Director's lifetime. Any Benefigra
designation may be changed by a Director withogitcibnsent of the previously named Beneficiary ligdia
new Beneficiary designation with the Administrafdhe most recent Beneficiary designation receivwethb
Administrator shall control the distribution of ar€ctor's Accounts in the event of the Directoesith.

No Beneficiary Designatior. In the absence of an effective Beneficiary designaor if all designated
Beneficiaries predecease the Director or die fiddhe complete distribution of the Director's Aaats, the
Accounts shall be paid in the following order oépedence: (a) the Director's surviving spouseth@pPDirector’
children (including adopted children), per stirpass(c) the Director's estate.

ARTICLE 9
Claims Procedures

Any Director or Beneficiary, or his or her auth@tizrepresentative, may file a claim for benefite tim or her

under the Plan by written request to the Compaetying forth with specificity the facts and eventsich give rise to
the claim. The Company shall promptly respond, sbast with any legal requirements that might apply




ARTCILE 10
Amendment or Termination

The Company hereby reserves the right to amendifynod terminate the Plan at any time by actiornta
Board, with or without prior notice. No amendmentermination shall reduce any Director's Accouwmithout the
written consent of the affected Director. Notwithreding anything herein to the contrary, to the mxé@nsistent with
Section 409A, the Board may terminate the Plandasitibute to each Director the amount in his arAecounts in a
lump sum; provided that all distributions (i) conmee no earlier than the date that is twelve (12ythfollowing the
termination date (or any earlier date that woulchply with Section 409A) and (ii) are completed hg tate that is
twenty-four (24) months following the terminatioatd (or any later date that would comply with Satd09A). In
addition, distributions may be accelerated upofaa Ermination as provided above only if, to tlkéeat required und
Section 409A, (i) all other nonqualified deferrempensation “account balance plans” (within the mregof
Section 409A), in which any Director participates terminated along with the Plan, and (ii) the @any does not
adopt any new nonqualified deferred compensationdant balance plan” (within the meaning of Secd408A), for
three years following the date of Plan termination.

ARTICLE 11
Miscellaneous Provisions

11.1 Unsecured General Creditor. Directors and their Beneficiaries, heirs, succesaod assigns shall have no
legal or equitable rights, interests or claimsny property or assets of the Company. Any andfah®
Company's assets shall be, and remain, the gena@édged unrestricted assets of the Company. The
Company's obligation under the Plan shall be mehelyof an unfunded and unsecured promise to gaesnir
the future.

11.2 Trust Fund . At its discretion, the Company may establish a Tmgh such trustees as the Company may
approve, for the purpose of providing for the dsttion of benefits owed under this Plan. The Teugssets
shall be held for distribution of all the Compang&neral creditors in the event of insolvency arkdoaptcy. To
the extent any Plan benefits are paid from any Juakt, the Company shall have no further obligegito pay
them. If not paid from the Trust, such benefitslisieanain the obligation of the Company.

11.3 Section 409A Compliance. All provisions of the Plan shall be interpreted aainistered to the extent
possible in a manner consistent with Section 408Athe extent that any provision of the Plan warddse a
conflict with the requirements of Section 409Awmuld cause the administration of the Plan tottagatisfy
Section 409A, such provision shall be deemed mdlaid to the extent permitted by applicable |alething
herein shall be construed as a guarantee of atigydar tax treatment to a Director.

11.4 Company's Liability . The Company's liability for the distribution of ledits shall be defined only by the Plan.
The Company shall have no obligation to a Direetarept as expressly provided in the Plan.
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11.5

11.6

11.7

11.8

11.9

11.10

Nonassignability. Neither a Director nor any other person shall heweright to commute, sell, assign, trans
pledge, anticipate, mortgage or otherwise encuntiarsfer, hypothecate, alienate or convey in ackwat
actual receipt, the amounts, if any, payable hateyror any part thereof, which are, and all rigbte/hich are
expressly declared to be, unassignable and noseférable. No part of the amounts payable shalbypo actual
payment, be subject to seizure, attachment, gana@shor sequestration for the payment of any debts,
judgments, alimony or separate maintenance oweadiyector or any other person, be transferablegsratiol
of law in the event of a Director's or any othersp@'s bankruptcy or insolvency or be transferébke spouse ¢
a result of a property settlement or otherwise.

No Right to Board Position. Nothing in the Plan shall be deemed to create #hgation on the part of the
Board to nominate any of its members for reeledbpithe Company's stockholders, nor confer upon any
Director the right to remain a member of the Bdardany period of time, or at any particular rate o
compensation.

Incompetency. If the Administrator determines that a distributiomder this Plan is to be paid to a minor, to a
person declared incompetent or to a person incapdlfiandling the disposition of that person's prop the
Administrator may direct such distribution to bedotn the guardian, legal representative or petsonng the
care and custody of such minor, incompetent orgabke person. The Administrator may require prdof o
majority, competence, capacity, guardianship dustas a legal representative, as it may deem ppat® prior
to distribution. Any distribution shall be for tlagcount of the Director and the Director's Benafigj as the ca:
may be, and shall completely discharge any lighibt such amount.

Furnishing Information . A Director or his Beneficiary will cooperate withe Administrator by furnishing ar
and all information requested by the Administrand take such other actions as may be requesteden to
facilitate the administration of the Plan and tistributions hereunder.

Notice . Any notice or filing required or permitted undeetRlan shall be sufficient if in writing and if hand-
delivered or sent by telecopy, (ii) sent by regestieor certified mail, or (iii) sent by nationaligcognized
overnight courier. Such notice shall be deemedmgageof (i) the date of delivery if hand-deliver@dsent by
telecopy, (ii) as of the date shown on the postnoarkhe receipt for registration or certificatigindelivery is by
mail, or (iii) on the first business day after diggh, if sent by nationally-recognized overnighticer.

Compliance with Government Regulations. Neither the Plan nor the Company shall be oblig&aedsue any
shares of Common Stock pursuant to the Plan atisr@yunless and until all applicable requirementpased b
any federal and state securities and other laiss and regulations, by any regulatory agencids/@ny stock
exchanges upon which the Common Stock may be lisdgd been fully met. As a condition precedentiyp a
issuance of shares of Common Stock and delivecguificates evidencing such shares pursuant t® ke, the
Board or the Administrator may require a Directotake any such action and to make any such cotgnan

agreements, and representations as the Board Adthaistrator, as the case may be, in its disoreti
deems necessary or advisable to ensure compliatitsweh requirements. The Company shall in no ebven
obligated to register the shares of Common Stotiketable under the Plan pursuant to the Securtief
1933, as amended, or to qualify or register suelneshunder any securities laws of any state upginigsuance
under the Plan or at any time thereafter, or te taky other action in order to cause the issuandelalivery of
such shares under the Plan
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11.11

11.12

11.13

11.14

11.15

11.16

or any subsequent offer, sale, or other transfeuoh shares to comply with any such law, regulaibo
requirement. Directors are responsible for comgjyanth all applicable federal and state securiied other
laws, rules, and regulations in connection with affgr, sale, or other transfer of the shares ah@on Stock
issued under the Plan or any interest therein dnefy without limitation, compliance with the regyeion
requirements of the Securities Act of 1933 as amérfdnless an exception therefrom is availablayithr the
provisions of Rule 144 promulgated thereunderpgl@able, or any successor provisions. Certifisdte shares
of Common Stock may be legended as the Administsdtall deem appropriate.

Exchange Act Exemption. It is the intent of the Company that transactionsspant to this Plan satisfy and be
interpreted in a manner that satisfies the applecedguirements of Rule 16b-3 promulgated undeEtkehange
Act (“Rule 16b-3") so that, to the extent electi@re timely, the crediting of Stock Deferrals angi@end
Equivalents, the distribution of shares of Commtotk and any other event with respect to Stock Dalfe
under the Plan will be entitled to the benefitfafe 16b-3 or other exemptive rules under Sect®oflhe
Exchange Act and will not be subjected to liabititereunder.

Gender and Number. Except when otherwise indicated by context, wonde masculine gender shall inch
the feminine and neuter genders, the singular st@ilde the plural, and the plural shall inclute singular.

Headings. The headings contained in this Plan are for corarer@ only and will not control or affect the
meaning or construction of any of the terms or miowns of this Plan

Applicable Law and Construction . This Plan shall be governed by, construed and adtared in accordance
with the laws of the State of Minnesota, other thataws respecting choice of law.

Invalid or Unenforceable Provisions. If any provision of this Plan shall be held invatidunenforceable, such
invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect anyher provisions hereof and the Administrator rakect in its
sole discretion to construe such invalid or unesdable provisions in a manner that conforms toiegiple law
or as if such provisions, to the extent invaliduoenforceable, had not been included.

Successor:. This Plan shall bind any successor (whether doeeatdirect, by purchase, merger, consolidatio
otherwise) to all or substantially all of the biess or assets of the Company, in the same mandé¢o éme sanr
extent that the Company would be obligated undsrRhan if no succession had taken place. In te odany
transaction in which a successor would not by the

foregoing provision or by operation of law be bouaydthis Plan, the Company shall require such
successor expressly and unconditionally to assurdeagree to perform the obligations of the Compamy
each Company under this Plan, in the same mandeioahe same extent that the Company and each &ogmp
would be required to perform if no such succeshiah taken place.
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ARTICLE 12
Definitions

The following terms shall have the meanings sehfbelow:

“Account” or “Accounts” shall mean a Director's [Befal Account, Stock Account, or both, as the cxige
requires.

“Administrator” means the Executive Compensatiomm@uottee of the Board.
“Annual Cash Retainer” means that portion of theeBtior's Annual Retainer payable in cash.

“Annual Retainer” means the compensation, congjstirthe Annual Cash Retainer and the Annual Stock
Retainer and excluding perquisites and reimbursé&npaid to a Director pursuant to the Stock Ptarsérvice on the
Board and any committee of the Board.

“Annual Stock Retainer” means that portion of adbtor's Annual Retainer payable in Company Stock.

“Beneficiary” means one or more persons, truststes or other entities, designated in accordarittetins
Plan, that are entitled to receive Plan benefittnupe death of a Director.

“Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company

“Cash Account” means the bookkeeping account miaietiaby the Company for each Director that is d¢esti
with Cash Deferrals, and such other accounts ofasabunts as the Administrator deems necessampoopriate.

“Cash Deferral” means any portion of a Directorfm@al Cash Retainer that a Director elects to defer
accordance with the Plan.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,may be amended from time to time.
“Common Stock” means the common stock of ALLETE. In

“Company” means ALLETE, Inc., a Minnesota Corparatiand any successor to all, or substantiallyoélihe
Company's assets or business.

“Deferrals” means the Cash Deferrals, Stock Delgrax both, that a Director elects to defer inadance with
the Plan, as the context so requires.
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“Director” means a member of the Board who is noemployee of any Related Company.

“Distribution Event” means a Specified Year, a Sapan from Service or the Administrator's deteration
regarding the occurrence of an Unforeseeable Emeyge

“Dividend Equivalent” means the amount of cashahwids or other cash distributions paid by the Camoea
that number of shares of Common Stock equal tatimeber of Stock Deferrals credited to a Direct8St@ck Account
as of the applicable record date for the dividendtber distribution, and which shall be creditedhie form of
additional Stock Deferrals to the Director's Stéacount, as provided in Section 5.3.3.

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Adi9S#4, as amended from time to time.

“Fair Market Value” means the closing sale priceeggmrted in the composite reporting system dhefe is no
such sale on the relevant date, then on the lastqus day on which a sale was reported.

“IRS” means the Internal Revenue Service.

“Plan” means the ALLETE, Inc. Amended and Rest&ed-Employee Director Compensation Deferral Plai
as amended from time to time.

“Plan Year” means a period beginning on Januarieiaoh calendar year and continuing through Dece@be
of such calendar year.

“Related Company” means the Company and all perathsvhom the Company would be considered a singl
employer under Code section 414(b) (employees mtiralbed group of corporations), and all personthwrhom such
person would be considered a single employer u@dde section 414(c) (employees of partnershipqrgtmrships,
etc., under common control); provided that in apygyCode sections 1563(a)(1), (2), and (3) for pags of
determining a controlled group of corporations urdede section 414(b), the language “at least 50ep¢” is used
instead of “at least 80 percent” each place it appa Code sections 1563(a)(1), (2), and (3),iarpplying Treasury
Regulations section 1.414(c)-2 for purposes ofrd@teng trades or businesses (whether or not irmated) that are
under common control for purposes of Code sectig{@), “at least 50 percent” is used instead oféast 80 percent”
each place it appears in Treasury Regulationsosettd14(c)-2.

“Section 409A” means section 409A of the Code (amygl successor provision), and regulations and other
guidance issued by the Treasury Department anchalt®evenue Service thereunder.

“Separation from Service” means that the Direceases to perform services as a Director and thep&oyn
does not then anticipate that the Director willtoaune to perform services in any capacity for a®jaed Company.
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“Service Period” means, with respect to the AnrCah Retainer, a Plan Year, and with respect tatmzial
Stock Retainer, the 12-month period beginning oreJuof each Plan Year or, with respect to a Dareeho first
becomes eligible to participate in the Plan aftere]1 of a Plan Year, such lesser period beginminthe date the
Director joins the Board and ending on the follogviMay 31.

“Specified Year” means the year specified by a @oeas the year in which the Director will receave
distribution payment of all or a portion of his Axmt(s). The Specified Year must be at least tvayyafter the year
the Annual Retainer would have been paid but feirector's deferral election.

“Stock Account” means the bookkeeping Account naidd by the Company for each Director that is iteeld
with any Stock Deferrals and Dividend Equivalentthwespect to such Stock Deferrals, and such @beounts or sub-
accounts as the Administrator deems necessarypooaiate.

“Stock Deferral” means a non-voting unit of measoeat, which is deemed solely for bookkeeping puepos
under this Plan to be equivalent to one outstanslirage of Common Stock. No Director shall be esdtitb any voting
or other stockholder rights with respect to Stoeddprals credited under this Plan.

“Stock Plan” means the ALLETE Director Stock Pldated May 9, 1995, as amended, or any predecessor 0
successor plan.

“Trust” means one or more trusts established puntsioethe ALLETE, Inc. Non-Employee Director
Compensation Trust Agreement, effective Octobe2004, between the Company and the trustee nameegirthas
amended from time to time.

“Unforeseeable Emergency” means an unanticipatextgancy that is caused by an event beyond theataritr
the Director that would result in severe finantiatdship to the Director resulting from (i) an @ks or accident of the
Director or the Director's spouse, the Directoeaddiciary, or the Director's dependent (as defineddode section 152,
without regard to Code sections 152(b)(1), (b)é2d (d)(1)(B)), (ii) a loss of the Director's profyedue to casualty, or
(i) such other similar extraordinary and unforeabkle circumstances arising as a result of evaysra the control of
the Director, all as determined in the sole diseretf the Administrator.

“Valuation Date” means each day that the U.S. stoakkets are open or such other dates as may by ted
Administrator from time to time.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, ALLETE, Inc. has caused thesespnts to be signed and its corporate seal tetsihto
affixed by its duly authorized officers, effectias of July 24, 2012.

ALLETE, Inc.:

/s/ Alan R. Hodnik

Alan R. Hodnik
Chairman, President & Chief Executive Officer

ATTEST:

/s/ Deborah A. Amberg

Deborah A. Amberg
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Segretar
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Exhibit 10(p)2

ALLETE, INC. AMENDED AND RESTATED
DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TRUST AGREEMENT

Effective December 15, 2012




ALLETE, INC. AMENDED AND RESTATED
DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TRUST AGREEMENT

This Grantor Trust Agreement (th&tust Agreement”) is made this 15th day of December, 2012 by agtgvben
ALLETE, INC. (“the Company”) andWELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION (“the Trustee”) anc
hereby amends and restates the ALLETE, Inc. Dirg€tompensation Trust Agreement (th@riginal Trust
Agreement”), effective October 11, 2004.

Recitals

(a) WHEREAS , the Company has adopted the nonqualified def@wetpensation plans and agreements (the “
Arrangements”) attached hereto as Attachment A, which may beraded from time to time;

(b) WHEREAS , the Company has incurred or expects to incuiliiplunder the terms of such Arrangements with
respect to the individuals participating in suclaligements or beneficiaries designated by sucicipants
who are entitled to receive benefits under the sesfrsuch arrangements as the result of the déditie o

participant (collectively, the Participants”);

(c) WHEREAS , the Company hereby establishes a Trust (fhest ”) and shall contribute to the Trust assets
shall be held therein, subject to the claims ofGenpany's creditors in the event the Company besom
Insolvent, as defined in Section 3(a), until paidParticipants in such manner and at such timspedfied in
the Arrangements and in this Trust Agreement;

(d) WHEREAS , it is the intention of the parties that this Trskall constitute an unfunded arrangement and shal
not affect the status of the Arrangements as anngl&d plan maintained for the purpose of providiatgrred
compensation for a select group of non-employescthrs of ALLETE, Inc.;

(e) WHEREAS , it is the intention of the parties that this Trslkall be interpreted in all respects to complghwi
Internal Revenue Code Section 409A (IRC SectiorAJ@d applicable authorities promulgated thereuade
may change from time to time; and

(H WHEREAS , it is the intention of the Company to make cdmnittions to the Trust to provide itself with a sa
of funds (“theFund ") to assist it in satisfying its liabilities und#re Arrangements.

NOW, THEREFORE , the parties do hereby establish the Trust anelesiipat the Trust shall be comprised, held and
disposed of as follows:
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Section 1. Establishment of The Trust

(a) The Trust is intended to be a Grantor Trust, ofolwlihe Company is the Grantor, within the meanihgubpart

E, part |, subchapter J, chapter 1, subtitle Aheflnternal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended haticbe
construed accordingly.

(b) The Company shall be considered a Grantor for tlpgses of the Tru:

(c) Subject to Section 1(i), the Trust hereby establisis irrevocabls

(d) The Company hereby deposits with the Trustee thesets previously held under the Original Truste&gnent,

which assets are listed in Attachment B hereto ‘{tigal Contribution”) which shall become the pdipal of
this Trust to be held, administered and disposdalydhe Trustee as provided in this Trust Agreement

(e) The principal of the Trust, and any earnings thergmall be held separate and apart from other fohtise

(f)

Company and shall be used exclusively for the asdspurposes of Participants and general creditoleerein
set forth. Participants shall have no preferreaclan, or any beneficial ownership interest in, asgets of the
Trust. Any rights created under the Arrangementsthis Trust Agreement shall be unsecured contahcights
of Participants against the Company. Any assets ihethe Trust will be subject to the claims of general
creditors of the Company under federal and statarigdhe event the Company is Insolvent, as defineslectiol
3(a) herein.

The Company, in its sole discretion, may at ame, or from time to time, make additional dejposf cash or
other property acceptable to the Trustee in thetltruaugment the principal to be held, administened
disposed of by the Trustee as provided in this fT/Agseement. Prior to a Change in Control (as aefim
Section 15) or, if earlier, a Potential Change anttol (as defined in Section 15) (&tiggering Event, ” as
such term is more fully defined in Section 15) tinei the Trustee nor any Participant shall haverayht to
compel additional deposits.

(9) In addition to the Initial Contribution, the Compashall make such other contributions as shall ftione to

time be authorized by due corporate action. Anjhquayments made by the Company may be in casletiey |
of credit or, prior to the date as of which a Teggg Event, occurs, in such property (includinghaut
limitation, securities issued by the Company) aGompany may determine. The Company shall keejraiec
books and records with respect to the interestoli &xecutive in any Arrangement and shall procmges of
such books and records to the Trustee at any tntleeaTrustee shall request.

(h) Upon a Triggering Event, the Company shall, as ssopossible, but in no event longer than thirg@) (kays

following the occurrence of the Triggering Evengka a contribution to the Trust in an amount teaufficient
(taking into account the Trust assets, if any, ltegufrom prior contributions) to fund the Trust an amount
equal to no less than 100% of the Required Funaimbthe Expense Reserve. The Required Fundingtshall
equal to the amount necessary to pay each Paritdipa benefits to which Participants would beteadi
pursuant to the terms of the Arrangements as ofigie on which the Triggering Event occurred. Thpdase
Reserve shall
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(i)

()

be equal to the greater of: 1) the estimated teusiel record-keeper expenses and fees for oneyaafifty
thousand dollars ($50,000). Annually, the Comparaflsecalculate the Required Funding and the Espen
Reserve as of December 31 of the preceding yeailifahe assets of the trust are less than theduine
Required Funding and the Expense Reserve, the Gongball make a contribution to the Trust in an ano
equal to no less than 100% of the Required Funaimthe Expense Reserve.

In the event a Change in Control does not oedgthin two years of a Potential Change in Contglearlier if,
within such two year period, the Chief Executivdi€r of the Company determines that the Pote@iange ii
Control no longer exists in accordance with Seclib(b), the Company shall have the right to recavsr
amounts contributed to and remaining on hand inTtiist pursuant to a payment made upon the ocargreha
Potential Change in Control in accordance with iBact(h).

At the direction of the Company, the Trustbaltestablish separate subtrusts for separatangeraents or
groups of Participants covered by the Trust. Atdiseretion of the Company, such subtrusts magcet
segregation of particular assets or may reflectrativided interest in the assets of the Trustrequiring any
segregation of assets. If a Triggering Event ocdbes Trustee shall establish a separate subtrustlfthen-
existing Participants in the Arrangement (or, atwritten direction of either the Company or thee&ixtive
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directdne (tCommittee "), for each Participant in the
Arrangement who is covered by the Trust). The sigbtestablished for all then-existing Participamien a
Triggering Event shall require segregation of gattr assets. However, individual subtrusts esthbtl for eac
Participant may reflect an undivided interest ia #ssets of the subtrust for all then-existingi€ipants and
shall not require segregation of particular asaeteng particular individual subtrusts. Wheneveiasaig
subtrusts are established, the then-existing asé#te Trust or affected portion thereof shalldiecated, as
directed by the Committee, in proportion to thetedsaccrued benefits, and, then, if any assetsinemha
unvested (if any) accrued benefits of the Partidipaffected thereby, in both instances as of tigead the
month immediately preceding such allocation. Webprect to any new contributions to the Trust by the
Company after separate subtrusts have been eb&hlihie Company shall designate the subtrust fiazhwsuct
contributions are made. Except as provided in 8ed&(b) herein, after separate subtrusts are edtabl assets
allocated to one subtrust may not be utilized twvjgle benefits under any other subtrust until ahéfits payab
under such subtrust have been paid in full. Paysntengeneral creditors in the event of the Compgaagoming
Insolvent shall be charged against the subtrugtsaportion to their account balances, exceptphgtnent of
benefits to a Participant as a general creditdit bbacharged against the subtrust for that P pdiai.

(k) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions or anyestprovision of the Arrangements, no contributibalsbe

required or made if such contribution would viol#te provisions of IRC Section 409A and any apjpliea
authorities promulgated thereunder.
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Section 2Payments to Participant:

(a) Prior to a Triggering Event, any distributions froine Trust shall be made by the Trustee to Paaitgpat the
direction of the Company. Prior to a Triggering Biygéhe entitlement of a Participant to benefitdemthe
Arrangements shall be determined by the Committed,any claim for such benefits shall be considaret
reviewed under the procedures set out in the Agarants. Prior to a Triggering Event, the Company ma
appoint a third-party administrator TPA ") to direct the Trustee with respect to the amamd timing of such
payments. After a Triggering Event, the TPA pregigwappointed by the Company shall continue urdess
until the Trustee shall appoint a new TPA to acitemehalf in directing the Trustee with respectite amount
and timing of payments from the Trust.

(b) The Company may direct the Trustee to make paynuétenefits to Participants, or the Company makena
payments of benefits directly to Participants &ythecome due under the terms of the Arrangementsnay
obtain full or partial reimbursement for such bengdéyments from the Trust (or offset required citmitions to
the Trust) within twelve (12) months following thate such payments are made. In addition, if thecipal of
the Trust, and any earnings thereon, are not serfititco make payments of benefits in accordanchke thig terms
of the Arrangements, the Company shall make thansal of each such payment as it falls due in aecoel
with the Arrangements. The Trustee shall notify@mempany when principal and earnings are not safftao
make payments the Trustee has been directed to Inyatke Company, the Committee, or the TPA. Nothing
this Agreement shall relieve the Company of itbiliaes to pay benefits due under the Arrangementsept to
the extent such liabilities are met by applicatdmassets of the Trust.

(c) The Company shall deliver to the Trustee a scheafubenefits, to include state and federal tax kolding
guidelines, due under the Arrangements on an atrasd. Immediately, as soon as administrativedgicable
after a Potential Change in Control and before anglk in Control, the Company shall deliver to tinestee an
updated schedule of benefits due under the Arraag&nAfter a Triggering Event, the Trustee shall p
benefits (unless Company pays pursuant to Sec{lm) @ue in accordance with such schedule. After a
Triggering Event, the TPA shall make the deterniamabf benefits due to Participants and shall pevthe
Trustee with an updated schedule, to include stadiefederal tax withholding guidelines, of benefits;
provided however, a Participant may make applicatiothe Trustee for an independent decision #seto
amount or form of their benefits due under the Agements. In making any determination requiredeomytted
to be made by the Trustee under this Section, thstde shall, in each such case, reach its owmpertent
determination, in its absolute and sole discretaato the Participant's entitlement to a paymergdmder. In
making its determination, the Trustee may consitlt and make such inquiries of such persons, inctuthe
Participant, the Company, legal counsel, actuaniegher persons, as the Trustee may reasonabhy dee
necessary. Any reasonable costs incurred by thetdeun arriving at its determination shall be faimsed by
the Company and, to the extent not paid by the Gmmppvithin a reasonable time, shall be chargetdortrust.
The Company waives any right to contest any ampaiut over by the Trustee hereunder pursuant tamd go
faith determination made by the Trustee notwithditagn any claim by or on behalf of the Company (abse
legal violation or manifest abuse of discretionthg Trustee) that such payments should not be made.

5




ALLETE, Inc. Amended and Restated Director Compensation Trust Agreement

(d) The Trustee agrees that it will not itself ins&t@ny action at law or at equity, whether in theireaof an
accounting, interpleading action, request for datatory judgment or otherwise, requesting a court
administrative or quasi-judicial body to make tleedmination required to be made by the Trusteeutinls
Section 2 in the place and stead of the Trustee.Tfastee may (and, if necessary or appropriatdl) shstitute
an action to collect a contribution due the Tradibiving a Triggering Event or in the event that thrust shoul
ever experience a short-fall in the amount of @ssetessary to make payments pursuant to the tériing
Arrangements.

Section 3.

Trustee Responsibility Regarding Paymen
To The Trust Beneficiary When The Company Is Insolent

(a) The Trustee shall cease payment of benefits tacReamts if the Company is Insolvent. The Compamgilsbe
considered ‘Insolvent” for purposes of this Trust Agreement if (i) ther@pany is unable to pay its debts as
they become due, or (ii) the Company is subjeet pending proceeding as a debtor under the Unitgd<S
Bankruptcy Code.

(b) At all times during the continuance of this Trukg principal and income of the Trust shall be sabjo claims
of general unsecured creditors of the Company ufedieral and state law as set forth below.

(1)

(2)

3)

The Board of Directors and the Chief Executive €¥fiof the Company shall have the duty to inform
Trustee in writing that the Company is Insolveha person claiming to be a creditor of the Company
alleges in writing to the Trustee that the Complhay become Insolvent, the Trustee shall determine
whether the Company is Insolvent and, pending sietérmination, the Trustee shall discontinue
payment of benefits to Participants.

Unless the Trustee has actual knowledge llga€bmpany is Insolvent, or has received noticen fitoe
Company or a person claiming to be a creditor allgthat the Company is Insolvent, the Trusteelshal
have no duty to inquire whether the Company isliresd. The Trustee may in all events rely on such
evidence concerning the Company's solvency as mdyrhished to the Trustee and that provides the
Trustee with a reasonable basis for making a détetiman concerning the Company's solvency.

If at any time the Trustee has determined tt@Company is Insolvent, the Trustee shall disoae
payments to Participants and shall hold the asdete Trust for the benefit of the Company's gaher
creditors. Nothing in this Trust Agreement shalaimy way diminish any rights of Participants togue
their rights as general creditors of the Comparth vaspect to benefits due under the Arrangements o
otherwise.
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4) The Trustee shall resume the payment of bsnefiParticipants in accordance with Section thisf
Trust Agreement only after the Trustee has detexchthat the Company is not Insolvent
is no longer Insolvent).

(c) Provided that there are sufficient assets, if thestee discontinues the payment of benefits framitust
pursuant to Section 3(b) hereof and subsequerglymmes such payments, the first payment followirgnsu
discontinuance shall include the aggregate amduait payments due to Participants under the teshibe
Arrangements for the period of such discontinualess, the aggregate amount of any payments made to
Participants by the Company in lieu of the paymentsided for hereunder during any such period of
discontinuance.

Section 4Payments When a ShodFall of The Trust Assets Occur

(a) If there are not sufficient assets for the paynodmurrent and expected future benefits pursuaBeiction 2 or
Section 3(c) hereof and the Company does not otkemvake such payments within a reasonable tinee aft
demand from the Trustee, the Trustee shall allat&td rust assets among the Participants of acpéati
subtrust in the following order of priority:

(1) vested Participants; a
(2) nonvested Participan

(b) Within each category, assets shall be allocatedaisowith respect to the total present value oefiemexpecte
for each Participant within the category, and payiseue under the terms of the Arrangements to each
Participant shall be made to the extent of thetasdl®cated to each Participant. For purposeblefdregoing,
calculations of present values shall be performgkinvnormal actuarial practice and within the mostrent
Actuarial Standards of Practice.

(c) Upon receipt of a contribution from the Companyessary to make up for a short-fall in the payments, the
Trustee shall resume payments to all the Partitspamder the Arrangements. Following a Triggeringii, the
Trustee shall have the right and duty to comperdrdoution to the Trust from the Company to malefar any
short-fall.

Section 5. Payments to the Company

(a) Except as provided in Section 1(i), Section 2, acd, Section 5(b), and Section 8 hereof, the Camshall
have no right or power to direct the Trustee tameto the Company or to divert to others any efThust asse
before all payment of benefits have been made ttiic@nts pursuant to the terms of the Arrangement
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(b) In the event that the Company, prior to a Trigggiivent, or the Trustee in its sole and absolgerdtion, afte
a Triggering Event, determines that the Trust asseteed one-hundred twenty-five percent (125%)ef
anticipated benefit obligations and administragxpenses that are to be paid under the Arrangeraedtthat
all of the subtrusts' assets exceed one-hundregmefl00%) of the anticipated benefit obligatiansl
administrative expenses that are to be paid um@eAtrangements, the Trustee, at the written doeacif the
Company, prior to a Triggering Event, or the Tregteits sole and absolute discretion, after agaetmg Event,
shall distribute to the Company such excess podfdfrust assets. For purposes of the foregointerevent
that the Company, prior to a Triggering Event,ler Trustee in its sole and absolute discretioey aft
Triggering Event, determines that the Trust agsedsparticular subtrust exceed one-hundred pe(d®@o) of
the anticipated benefit obligations and administeaéxpenses that are to be paid under the Arraagenirom
such subtrust, such excess amounts may be allowatekder subtrusts whose assets are less thahumtred
percent (100%) of the anticipated benefit obligagiand administrative expenses that are to beyraidr the
Arrangements from such subtrust.

Section 6. Investment Authority

(a) Prior to a Triggering Event, the Company shall hédneeright, subject to this Section, to direct Tmastee
with respect to investments.

(2) The Company may direct the Trustee to segeegjabr a portion of the Fund in a separate invesit
account or accounts and may appoint one or moestment managers and/or an investment committe
established by the Company to direct the investrardtreinvestment of each such investment accan
accounts. In such event, the Company shall ndigyTrustee of the appointment of each such inved
manager and/or investment committee. No such imexst manager shall be related, directly or
indirectly, to the Company, but members of the streent committee may be employees of the
Company.

(2) Thereatfter, until a Triggering Event, the Tagsshall make every sale or investment with respesuch
investment account as directed in writing by theeBtment manager or investment committee. It seall
the duty of the Trustee to act strictly in accoawith each direction. The Trustee shall be under
duty to question any such direction of the investhmeanager or investment committee, to review any
securities or other property held in such investnaegount or accounts acquired by it pursuant ¢t su
directions or to make any recommendations to thiestment managers or investment committee with
respect to such securities or other property.

3) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee, withobtaining prior approval or direction from
investment manager or investment committee, shwadist cash balances held by it from time to time in
short term cash equivalents including, but nottiahito, through the medium of any short term commol
collective, or commingled trust fund established araintained by the Trustee subject to the instnime
establishing such trust fund, U.S. Treasury Bdtsnmercial paper (including such forms of commercia
paper as may be available through the Trustee's Department), certificates of deposit (including
certificates issued by the Trustee in its separatporate capacity), and similar type

8




ALLETE, Inc. Amended and Restated Director Compensation Trust Agreement

(4)

securities, with a maturity not to exceed one yaad, furthermore, sell such short term investmasts
may be necessary to carry out the instructionsof@estment manager or investment committee
regarding more permanent type investment and eidedistributions.

The Trustee shall neither be liable nor resgaa for any loss resulting to the Fund by reasioany sale
or purchase of an investment directed by an invelstrmanager or investment committee nor by reaso
of the failure to take any action with respectny avestment which was acquired pursuant to ay su
direction in the absence of further directionswaflsinvestment manager or investment committee.

a. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to tloatrary, the Trustee shall be indemnified .
saved harmless by the Company from and againstmdhyall personal liability to which the
Trustee may be subjected by carrying out any doestof an investment manager or investmen
committee issued pursuant hereto or for failuradioin the absence of directions of the
investment manager or investment committee inclydihexpenses reasonably incurred in its
defense in the event the Company fails to provisén slefense; provided, however, the Trustee
shall not be so indemnified if it participates knogly in, or knowingly undertakes to conceal, ar
act or omission of an investment manager or investrnommittee, having actual knowledge the
such act or omission is a breach of a fiduciarydotovided further, however, that the Trustee
shall not be deemed to have knowingly participatear knowingly undertaken to conceal an act
or omission of an investment manager or investroemtmittee with knowledge that such act or
omission was a breach of fiduciary duty by meregnplying with directions of an investment
manager or investment committee or for failuredbima the absence of directions of an
investment manager or investment committee. Thet&éeumay rely upon any order, certificate,
notice, direction or other documentary confirmafpamporting to have been issued by the
investment manager or investment committee whiehTttustee believes to be genuine and to
have been issued by the investment manager ortimeas committee. The Trustee shall not be
charged with knowledge of the termination of thp@ptment of any investment manager or
investment committee until it receives written netthereof from the Company.

b. The Company, prior to a Triggering Event, magat the Trustee to invest in securities
(including stock and the rights to acquire stoakdhbligations issued by the Company.

9
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C. All rights associated with respect to any investiieid by the Trust, including but not limited
exercising or voting of proxies, in person or byigel or limited proxy, shall be in accordance
with and as directed in writing by the Companytsrauthorized representative.

(b) Following a Triggering Event, the Trustee shallé#ve power in investing and reinvesting the Fumidsi
sole discretion, unless otherwise provided below:

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)
(5)

To invest and reinvest in any readily markktaimmmon and preferred stocks (including any stwck
security of the Company), bonds, notes, debenfimelsiding convertible stocks and securities but no
including any stock or security of the Trustee othean a de minimus amount held in a mutual fund),
certificates of deposit or demand or time depdsitduding any such deposits with the Trustee)ijtkich
partnerships or limited liability companies, pr@gtlacements and shares of investment companigs, a
mutual funds, without being limited to the claseeproperty in which the Trustees are authorized to
invest by any law or any rule of court of any statel without regard to the proportion any such ertyp
may bear to the entire amount of the Fund. Withiouitation, the Trustee may invest the Trust in any
investment company (including any investment comgaarcompanies for which Wells Fargo Bank,
N.A. or an affiliated company acts as the investnaglvisor {Special Investment Companies”}) or, any
insurance contract or contracts issued by an inseraompany or companies in each case as the &rus
may determine provided that the Trustee may ieate discretion keep such portion of the Trustashc
or cash balances for such reasonable periods asramyime to time be deemed advisable pending
investment or in order to meet contemplated paysehbenefits;

To invest and reinvest all or any portiontod Fund collectively through the medium of any pietary
mutual fund that may be established and maintaoyettie Trustee;

To commingle for investment purposes all or anytiporof the Fund with assets of any other simitasi
or trusts established by the Company with the Beusbr the purpose of safeguarding deferred
compensation or retirement income benefits ofimpleyees and/or directors;

To retain any property at any time received byTthestee

To sell or exchange any property held by puatblic or private sale, for cash or on creditgtant and
exercise options for the purchase or exchangedhdreexercise all conversion or subscription tsgh
pertaining to any such property and to enter imip @venant or agreement to purchase any property i
the future;

10
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(6)

(7)

(8)

9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

To participate in any plan of reorganizatioonsolidation, merger, combination, liquidationotiner
similar plan relating to property held by it andctansent to or oppose any such plan or any action
thereunder or any contract, lease, mortgage, psecisale or other action by any person;

To deposit any property held by it with anptective, reorganization or similar committee, &bedjate
discretionary power thereto, and to pay part ofekigenses and compensation thereof for any
assessments levied with respect to any such pyojezebe deposited;

To extend the time of payment of any obligatiordhay it;

To hold uninvested any moneys received byithout liability for interest thereon, but only in
anticipation of payments due for investments, restments, expenses or disbursements;

To exercise all voting or other rights, a threction of the Company, with respect to anyprty held
by it and to grant proxies, discretionary or othisey

For the purposes of the Trust, to borrow money faihers, to issue its promissory note or notesetoe,
and to secure the repayment thereof by pledgingpeoperty held by it;

To employ suitable contractors and counskl may be counsel to the Company or to the Truatea,
to pay their reasonable expenses and compensatiortiie Fund to the extent not paid by the Compar

To register investments in its own name dha&name of a nominee; and to combine certificates
representing securities with certificates of thmsassue held by it in other fiduciary capacities$oo
deposit or to arrange for the deposit of such seesiwith any depository, even though, when so
deposited, such securities may be held in the rarttee nominee of such depository with other seigs
deposited therewith by other persons, or to depoga arrange for the deposit of any securitisaesl or
guaranteed by the United States government, oageagcy or instrumentality thereof, including
securities evidenced by book entries rather thacebtjficates, with the United States Departmerthef
Treasury or a Federal Reserve Bank, even thougén wb deposited, such securities may not be held
separate from securities deposited therein by qt@esons; provided, however, that no securitieg imel
the Fund shall be deposited with the United StBtgsartment of the Treasury or a Federal Reservé& Be
or other depository in the same account as anyithahl property of the Trustee, and provided, farth
that the books and records of the Trustee shall &itnes show that all such securities are pathef
Trust Fund,

To settle, compromise or submit to arbitnatamy claims, debts or damages due or owing tooon the
Trust, respectively, to commence or defend suitegal proceedings to protect any interest of thesi
and to represent the Trust in all suits or legatpedings in any court or before any other body or
tribunal; provided, however, that the Trustee shatlbe required to take any such action unlesisaili
have been indemnified by the Company to its redslersatisfaction against liability or expenses igm
incur therefrom;
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(15) Subject to Section 7, to hold and retaingeed of life insurance, annuity contracts, and ofireperty of
any kind which policies are contributed to the Thugthe Company or any subsidiary of the Compan

are purchased by the Trustee;

(16) To hold any other class of assets which neagdntributed by the Company and  that is deemed
reasonable by the Trustee, unless expressly ptediberein;

(17) Toloan any securities at any time held kp ibrokers or dealers upon such security as malebmed
advisable, and during the terms of any such logetmit the loaned securities to be transferrea tim¢

name of and voted by the borrower or others; and

(18) Generally, to do all acts, whether or notregply authorized, that the Trustee may deem nagess
desirable for the protection of the Fund.

(c) Following a Triggering Event, the Trustee shalldéve sole and absolute discretion in the manageohdine
Trust assets and shall have all the powers sét torder this Section 6(c). In investing the Trissteds, the

Trustee shall consider:

(1) the needs of the Arrangemel

(2) the need for matching of the Trust assets witHi#tlities of the Arrangements; a
(3) the duty of the Trustee to act solely in the betrests of the Participar

(d) In no event may the Trustee invest in offshore sees or any other investments prohibited by IR€®N
409A.

(e) The Trustee shall have the right, in its sole @Bon, to delegate its investment responsibilitato
investment manager who may be an affiliate of thestee. In the event the Trustee shall exerciseritint,
the Trustee shall remain, at all times responddy¢he acts of an investment manager. The Trugta# have
the right to purchase an insurance policy or aruymto fund the benefits of the Arrangements.
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() The Company shall have the right at any timsubstitute assets (other than securities issudkebyrustee or
the Company) of equal fair market value for anyeaibeld by the Trust, provided, however, that nchsu
substitution shall be permitted unless the Trudetermines that the fair market values of the switstl assets
are equal (which determination shall be made amely basis).

Section 7. Insurance Contracts

(a) To the extent that the Trustee is directed by tbm@any prior to a Triggering Event to invest parab of the
Trust Fund in insurance contracts, the type anduathereof shall be specified by the Company. Tihstee
shall be under no duty to make inquiry as to tleppety of the type or amount so specified.

(b) Each insurance contract issued shall provide teaftustee shall be the owner thereof with the pdave
exercise all rights, privileges, options and etawdigranted by or permitted under such contraahder the rule
of the insurer. The exercise by the Trustee ofinagents of ownership under any contract shaigrgo a
Triggering Event, be subject to the direction & @ompany. After a Triggering Event, the Trusteaidiave all
such rights.

(c) The Trustee shall have no power to name a bensfiofahe policy other than the Trust, to assiga plolicy (as
distinct from conversion of the policy to a diffatdorm) other than to a successor Trustee, avda to any
person the proceeds of any borrowing against amanse policy held in the Trust Fund.

(d) No insurer shall be deemed to be a party to thetTmd an insurer's obligations shall be measurd
determined solely by the terms of contracts andratlgreements executed by the insurer.

Section 8. Disposition of Income

(a) Prior to a Triggering Event, all income receivedthy Trust, net of expenses and taxes, may benegtuo the
Company or accumulated and reinvested within thestlat the direction of the Company.

(b) Following a Triggering Event, all income receivedthe Trust, net of expenses and taxes payablbebyrust,
shall be accumulated and reinvested within thetTrus

Section 9. Accounting by The Trustee

The Trustee shall keep accurate and detailed readrall investments, receipts, disbursements adimather
transactions required to be made, including suekifp records as shall be agreed upon in writiagpMeen the
Company and the Trustee. Within forty-five (45) sldgilowing the close of each calendar year antiwitorty-five
(45) days after the removal or resignation of thesiee, the Trustee shall deliver to the Companyitéen account of
its administration of the Trust during such yeadoring the period from the close of the last pd&tg year to the date
of such removal or resignation setting forth alldetments, receipts, disbursements and other ttimisa effected by it,
including a description of all securities and inwesnts purchased and sold with the cost or netgaids of such
purchases or sales
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(accrued interest paid or receivable being showarsgely), and showing all cash, securities andrqthoperty held in
the Trust at the end of such year or as of the afadach removal or resignation, as the case may e Company may
approve such account by an instrument in writingvdeed to the Trustee. In the absence of the Caowyipdiling with
the Trustee objections to any such account withmltundred and eighty (180) days after its recthptCompany shall
be deemed to have so approved such account. Ircasehor upon the written approval by the Compdrany such
account, the Trustee shall, to the extent permhiteldw, be discharged from all liability to the i@pany for its acts or
failures to act described by such account. Thegfwirey, however, shall not preclude the Trustee fh@aving its
accounting settled by a court of competent jurisoiic The Trustee shall be entitled to hold anddmmingle the asse
of the Trust in one Fund for investment purposdsabthe direction of the Company prior to a Chamg€ontrol, the
Trustee shall create one or more sub-accounts.

Section 10. Responsibility of The Trustee

(a) The Trustee shall act with the care, skill, prugeand diligence under the circumstances then pieydhat a
prudent person acting in like capacity and famivah such matters would use in the conduct of r@emrise of
a like character and with like aims, provided, hegrethat the Trustee shall incur no liability toygperson for
any action taken pursuant to a direction, requeapproval given by the Company which is contengaldiy,
and in conformity with, the terms of the Arrangertseor this Trust and is given in writing by the Quamy. In
the event of a dispute between the Company andty pize Trustee may apply to a court of competent
jurisdiction to resolve the dispute, subject, hogrew Section 2(d) herec

(b) The Company hereby indemnifies the Trustee aghkiases, liabilities, claims, costs and expense®mmection
with the administration of the Trust, unless raaglfrom the negligence or willful misconduct ofubtee. The
Trustee hereby indemnifies the Company againsiitiab, claims, costs and expenses resulting fragligence
or willful misconduct of the Trustee. The Trustéalsnot be liable under any circumstances forricti
incidental, consequential, punitive, or special dgas in connection with the administration of thigst. To the
extent the Company fails to make any payment oowatoof an indemnity provided in this Section 10{h)a
reasonably timely manner, the Trustee may obtagmpat from the Trust. If the Trustee undertakedejends
any litigation arising in connection with this Ttus to protect a Participant's rights under theaAgements, the
Company agrees to indemnify the Trustee againsithstee's costs, reasonable expenses and liedbiliti
(including, without limitation, attorneys' fees aexpenses) relating thereto and to be primarilyiéidor such
payments. If the Company does not pay such cogienses and liabilities in a reasonably timely neginthe
Trustee may obtain payment from the Trust.

(c) The Trustee may consult with legal counsel (who ailag be counsel for the Company generally) witipeet
to any of its duties or obligations hereunder.
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(d) The Trustee may hire agents, accountants, actuarestment advisors, financial consultants oebth
professionals to assist it in performing any ofliigies or obligations hereunder and may rely gn an
determinations made by such agents and informatiovided to it by the Company.

(e) The Trustee shall have, without exclusion, all pereonferred on the Trustee by applicable law, ssle
expressly provided otherwise herein.

() Notwithstanding any powers granted to the Trustesyant to this Trust Agreement or to applicable e
Trustee shall not have any power that could giieThust the objective of carrying on a business @iniding
the gains therefrom, within the meaning of sec80a.7701-2 of the Procedure and Administrative Regns
promulgated pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code.

Section 11. Compensation and Expenses of The Trustee

The Trustee's compensation shall be as agreedtingvirom time to time by the Company and the Tees The
Company shall pay all administrative expenses hadtustee's fees and shall promptly reimbursdthstee for any
fees and expenses of its agents. If not so patldmiiirty (30) days of being invoiced, the feesl &xpenses shall be
paid from the Trust.

Section 12. Resignation and Removal of The Trustee

(a) Prior to a Triggering Event, the Trustee may resigany time by written notice to the Committeejchishall
be effective sixty (60) days after receipt of sndtice unless the Committee and the Trustee aghesvase.
Following a Triggering Event, the Trustee may radigrty-six (36) months or more after the TriggeyiEvent
by written notice to the Committee, which shalldfective sixty (60) days after receipt of suchicebr upon
shorter notice as the Committee and the Trustemea@r, following a Triggering Event, the Trusteaymesign
twenty-four (24) months or more after the TrigggriEvent if a successor Trustee has been appoigtdteb
Committee in accordance with Section 13 or the fBibas received written consent from a Majorityhef
Participants as defined in Section 15.

(b) Prior to a Triggering Event, the Trustee may beaesd by the Committee on sixty (60) days writtetigeoor
upon shorter notice accepted by the Trustee. Affetiggering Event, the Trustee may be removedby t
Committee with written consent from a Majority betParticipants.

(c) If the Trustee resigns following a Triggering Evand if the Committee fails to appoint a succe3sastee
within a reasonable period of time following suekignation, the Trustee shall apply to a courtoofijpetent
jurisdiction for the appointment of a successorsiea which satisfies the requirements of SectioarX8r
instructions.
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(d) Upon resignation or removal of the Trustee and app®nt of a successor Trustee, all assets shadlesently
be transferred to the successor Trustee. The @nasiséll be completed within sixty (60) days afesreipt of
notice of resignation, removal or transfer, unkkesCommittee extends the time limit.

(e) If the Trustee resigns or is removed, a successmtde shall be appointed by the Committee, inraerwe witl
Section 13 hereof, by the effective date of redigneor removal under paragraph(s) (a) or (b) & gection. If
no such appointment has been made, the Trusteeppdy to a court of competent jurisdiction for appiment
of a successor or for instructions. All expensethefTrustee in connection with the proceedingldiehllowed
as administrative expenses of the Trust.

Section 13. Appointment of Successor

(a) If the Trustee resigns or is removed in accordavitie Section 12 hereof, the Committee may appaimbject tc
Section 12, any third party national banking asstomi with a market capitalization exceeding $26,000 to
replace the Trustee upon resignation or removad.skitcessor Trustee shall have all of the righdspavers of
the former Trustee, including ownership rightsha Trust. The former Trustee shall execute anyunstnt
necessary or reasonably requested by the Comroitte successor Trustee to evidence the transfer.

(b) The successor Trustee need not examine the reanddsacts of any prior Trustee and may retain qragis of
existing Trust assets, subject to Section 9 anket8of. The successor Trustee shall not be redgerfer and
the Company shall indemnify and defend the succé3sstee from any claim or liability resulting froany
action or inaction of any prior Trustee or from antlier past event, or any condition existing attime it
becomes successor Trustee.

Section 14Amendment or Termination

(a) The Board of Directors and the Trustee may ameisdlitust Agreement at any time by a written insteunn
executed by both parties. No such amendment shiafllict with the terms of the Arrangements or simadlke th:
Trust revocable, except as provided in Section)14o amendment shall cause the principal and imcofrthe
Trust to fail to be subject to claims of the Comgameneral unsecured creditors under federal el w in
the event the Company becomes Insolvent as deifin8dction 3(a). No amendment may violate the [sions
of IRC Section 409A.

(b) Following a Triggering Event, the Trust shall netrhinate until the date on which Participants haeeived all
of the benefits due to them under the terms andittions of the Arrangements, except as provide8antion 14
(c). Notwithstanding the foregoing, after individisabtrusts have been created, an individual ssbimay be
terminated on the date on which all Participanigehaceived all of the benefits due to them unkertérms and
conditions of the Arrangements covered by suchraabt
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(c) Upon written approval of all Participants entitledpayment of benefits pursuant to the terms of the
Arrangements, the Company may terminate this Tpuist to the time all benefit payments under the
Arrangements have been made. All assets in tha &tgsrmination shall be returned to the Company.

Section 15. Definitions

(a) For purposes of this Trust, the following termslsba defined as set forth belc

(1) “ Potential Change in Control” shall mear

the purchase or other acquisition by any pereatity or group of persons, within the meaning
of Section 13(d) or 14(d) of the Securities ExchleaAgt of 1934 (“Act”), or any comparable
successor provisions, other than the trustee ob#mr trust or plan maintained for the benefit
of employees of the Company, of beneficial owngrghiithin the meaning of Rule 13d-3
promulgated under the Act) of 20% or more of eitineroutstanding shares of common stoc
the combined voting power of the Company's thestantling voting securities entitled to vote
generally;

the announcement by any person of an intentioake actions which might reasonably resu
a business combination between the Company andtay which has a market capitalization
equal to or greater than 80% of the Company;

the issuance of a proxy statement by the Compathyrespect to an election of directors for
which there is proposed one or more directors whaat recommended by the Board of

Directors of the Company or its nominating comneiftehere the election of such proposed
director or directors would result in a Change on€ol as defined in Section 15(a)(2)(iii); or

submission to the individuals who, as of the da&te=bf, constitute the Board of Directors, of
nominations which, if approved, would change thedttive Officer configuration of the
Company (at the Executive Vice President level @malve) by 50% or more.

(2) “Change in Control” shall mean the earliest

the date any one person, or more than one p&sting as a group (as the term “group” is use
in Treasury Regulations section 1.409A-3(i)(5)(V)(Excquires ownership of stock of the
Company that, together with stock previously heldhe acquirer, constitutes more than fifty
(50%) percent of the total fair market value oatetting power of Company stock. If any one
person, or more than one person acting as a gimuapnsidered to own more than fifty (50%)
percent of the total fair market value or totalingtpower of Company stock, the acquisition o
additional stock by the same person or personsgas a group does not cause a Change in
Control. An increase in the percentage of stockemMoy any one person, or persons acting as
group, as a result of a transaction

ALLETE, Inc. Amended and Restated Director Compensation Trust Agreement

in which Company acquires its stock in exchangefoperty, is treated as an
acquisition of stock;

the date any one person, or more than oneopeasting as a group (as the term “group” is use
in Treasury Regulations section 1.409A-3(i)(5)(Y)(Ecquires (or has acquired during the
twelve (12) month period ending on the date ofrtizest recent acquisition by that person or



persons) ownership of Company stock possessirggst thirty (30%) percent of the total vol
power of Company stock;

the date a majority of the members of the Compaigésd of directors is replaced during any
twelve (12) month period by directors whose appoaerit or election is not endorsed by a
majority of the members of the board of directaismto the date of appointment or election

. the date any one person, or more than one persioig @s a group (as the term “group” is usec

in Treasury Regulations section 1.409A-3(i)(5)(V)(Excquires (or has acquired during the
twelve (12) month period ending on the date ofrtizest recent acquisition by that person or
persons) assets from the Company that have agimtss fair market value equal to at least fi
(40%) percent of the total gross fair market vadtiall the Company's assets immediately prio
to the acquisition or acquisitions. For this pugdgross fair market value” means the value c
the corporation's assets, or the value of the @bsatg disposed of, without regard to any
liabilities associated with these assets.

In determining whether a Change in Control occilms attribution rules of Internal
Revenue Code Section 318 apply to determine steclership. The stock underlying a vested
option is treated as owned by the individual whidlhdhe vested option, and the stock
underlying an unvested option is not treated asealy the individual who holds the unvestec
option.

For purposes of this Section 15(a), the individwdi®, as of the date hereof, constitute
the Board of Directors, by a majority vote, shall/a the power to determine on the basis of
information known to them (a) the number of shdmeseficially owned by any person, entity
group; (b) whether there exists an agreement, @eraent or understanding with another as to
matters referred to in this Section 15(a); (c) Wkepersons are acting as a group (as the tern
“group” is used in Treasury Regulations sectiord@4+3(i)(5)(v)(B)); and (d) such other
matters with respect to which a determination isessary under this Section 15(a).
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3) “Majority of the Participants ” shall mean Participants whose combined vestediandsted
account balance(s) and accrued benefits withiithengements exceed 67% of the total Trust
liability.

(4) “Triggering Event ” shall mean a Change in Control or, if earlieRa@ential Change in Control.

However, a Potential Change in Control will ceasbé a Triggering Event and the Trust Agreemer
will be interpreted as if no such Triggering Evbatl occurred, if a Change in Control does not occ
within two years of the Potential Change in Contoif, within such two year period, the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company determines thatRiotential Change in Control no longer exists |
accordance with Section 15(b).

(b) The Chief Executive Officer of the Company shalldn¢he specific authority to determine whether a
Potential Change in Control or Change in Contral thanspired, and to determine whether the Potentia
Change in Control no longer exists under the gudant this Section 15 and shall be required to tiee
Trustee notice of a Potential Change in Controg Ghange in Control, or if a Potential Change ami@bl
no longer exists. The Trustee shall be entitlestlp upon such notice, but if the Trustee receivatice of a
Potential Change in Control or Change in Controifrfranother source, the Trustee shall make its own
independent determination.

Section 16. Confidentiality

(a) This Trust Agreement and certain information relgtio the Trust is “Confidential Information” puest to
applicable federal and state law, and as suctalt BB maintained in confidence and not disclosised or
duplicated, except as described in this sectiomidfnecessary for the Trustee to disclose Centiid
Information to a third party in order to perfornetiirustee’s duties hereunder, the Trustee shalbdesonly
such Confidential Information as is necessary tmwhshird party to perform its obligations to theuStee and
shall, before such disclosure is made, ensuresthdithird party understands and agrees to thaedsontfality
obligations set forth herein. The Trustee and tbm@any shall maintain an appropriate informatiocusity
program and adequate administrative and physiéadjsards to prevent the unauthorized disclosursyse,
alteration or destruction of Confidential Infornmatj and shall inform the other party as soon asibplesof any
security breach or other incident involving possibhauthorized disclosure of or access to Confidient
Information. Confidential Information shall be rated to the disclosing party upon request. Confiden
Information does not include information that isigeally known or available to the public or thahat treated
as confidential by the disclosing party, provideodwever, that this exception shall not apply to paklicly
available information to the extent that the disal@ or sharing of the information by one or badftips is
subject to any limitation, restriction, consentpeotification requirement under any applicable fedler state
information privacy law or regulation. If the reeigig party is required by law, according to theiad\wf
competent counsel, to disclose
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Confidential Information, the receiving party may sb without breaching this section, but shalltfifsfeasible
and legally permissible, provide the disclosingyparith prompt notice of such pending disclosurdtsad the
disclosing party may seek a protective order oeo#ppropriate remedy or waive compliance with the
provisions of this section.

Section 17. Miscellaneous

(a) Any provision of this Trust Agreement prohibited lay shall be ineffective to the extent of any such
prohibition, without invalidating the remaining pisions hereof.

(b) The Company hereby represents and warrants that thik Arrangements have been established, magdain:
administered in accordance with all applicable lawsluding without limitation, ERISA. The Compahgreby
indemnifies and agrees to hold the Trustee harnfilessall liabilities, including attorney's feeglating to or
arising out of the establishment, maintenance andarastration of the Arrangements. To the exteet th
Company does not pay any of such liabilities ie@sonably timely manner, the Trustee may obtaimeay
from the Trust.

(c) Benefits payable to Participants under this Trugte&ment may not be anticipated, assigned (eitlaweor in
equity), alienated, pledged, encumbered or sulgjdctattachment, garnishment, levy, execution beolkegal ©
equitable process.

(d) This Trust Agreement shall be governed by and coedtin accordance with the laws of North Caro
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF , this Amended and Restated Director CompensatrastTAgreement has been execi
on behalf of the parties hereto on the day and fpestrabove written.

ALLETE, INC. WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION as TRUSTEE

By: /s/ Alan R. Hodnik By: /s/ Michael D. Hill

Its:  Chairman, President & Chief Executive Officer Its:  Senior Vice President

ATTEST: ATTEST:

By: /s/ Deborah A. Amberg By: /s/ Tonya M. Inscore

Its:  Senior Vice President, General Counsel & Secretary Its:  Senior Vice President
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Attachment A

The following Arrangements are covered by this Trus
ALLETE Director Compensation Deferral Plan

ALLETE Non-Employee Director Compensation DefefP&n Il
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Attachment B
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Exhibit 12

ALLETE
Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed ChargegUnaudited)

Year Ended December 31, 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Millions
Earnings are defined:
Pretax Income Before Non-Controlling Interest $135.( $129.. $119.: $91.5 $126.¢
Add: Fixed Charges 51.Z 47.€ 43.4 38.: 30.2
Undistributed Income from Less than 50 percent Qivne
Equity Investment 3.8 3.8 3.4 3.7 3.8
Earnings as defined: $182.« $173.( $159.. $126.: $152.¢

Fixed Charges:

Interest on Long-Term Debt $47.( $43.1 $39.7 $34.2 $27.¢
Other Interest Charges 0.4 1.€ 1.C 1.€ 0.4
Interest Component of All Rentdls) 3.6 2.¢ 2.7 2.t 2.t
Total Fixed Charges $51.2 $47.¢ $43. $38.< $30.:
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 3.5¢€ 3.6: 3.67 3.2¢ 5.0t

(@) Represents interest portion of rents estimatedalt/3 percent



SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
(As of December 31, 2012)
(Reported Under Item 601 of Regulation S-K)

Exhibit 21

Name of Organization

State or Country

ALLETE, Inc. (d.b.a. ALLETE; Minnesota Power; Minnesota Powag, ]
Minnesota Power & Light Company; MPEX; MPEX A Dieisof Minnesota Power)
ALLETE Automotive Services, LLC
ALLETE Capital Il

ALLETE Capital Il
ALLETE Properties, LLQd.b.a. ALLETE Properties)

ALLETE Commercial, LLC
Cape Coral Holdings, Inc.

Lake Swamp, LLC
Lehigh Acquisition Corporation
Florida Landmark Communities, LLC
Lehigh Corporation
Mardem, LLC
Palm Coast Holdings, Inc.

Port Orange Holdings, LLC
Interlachen Lakes Estates, LLC

Palm Coast Land, LLC
Tomoka Holdings, LLC

ALLETE Water Services, Inc.
Florida Water Services Corporation
Energy Replacement Property, LLC
Energy Land, Incorporated
Lakeview Financial Corporation |
Lakeview Financial Corporation I

Logistics Coal, LLC
Minnesota Power Enterprises, Inc.

ALLETE Renewable Resources, Inc.

ALLETE Clean Energy, Inc.
BNI Coal, Ltd.

Minnesota

Minnesota

Delaware
Delaware

Minnesota
Florida

Florida

Florida

Delaware

Florida

Florida

Florida

Florida
Florida

Florida
Florida

Florida

Minnesota

Florida

Minnesota

Wisconsin

Minnesota

Minnesota
Minnesota

Minnesota

North Dakota
Minnesota

Nnrth Nalkntz



MP Affiliate Resources, Inc.
Rainy River Energy Corporation
Rainy River Energy Corporation - Wisconsin
Upper Minnesota Properties, Inc.
Upper Minnesota Properties - Development, Inc.

Upper Minnesota Properties - Irving, Inc.

Upper Minnesota Properties - Meadowlands, Inc.

MP Investments, Inc.
RendField Land Company, Inc.

Superior Water, Light and Power Company

Minnesota

Minnesota

Wisconsin

Minnesota

Minnesota

Minnesota

Minnesota

Delaware

Minnesota

Wisconsin



Exhibit 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢ke Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N88-1%66515, 333-170289) and Forn8S-
(Nos. 333-91348, 333-183051, 333-162890) of ALLETES. of our reportdated February 15, 2013, relating to the finanstatement:
financial statement schedule and the effectiven&sgernal control over financial reporting, whieppears in this Form 6.

s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
February 15, 2013



Exhibit 31(a)

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification by the ChiefExecutive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

[, Alan R. Hodnik, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form lfaikthe fiscal year ended December 31, 204PALLETE, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortémstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntsts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, @her financial information included in this repdfairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as defin
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) imtednal control over financial reporting (as @efil in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to u
others within those entities, particularly duriig teriod in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reéipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttie reliability of financial reporting and tieeparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeabepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thegstegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

5. The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxon our most recent evaluation of internal @bmiver financial reportin
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitibthe registrant’'s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrastinterna
control over financial reporting.

Date: February 15, 2013 /sl Alan R. Hodnik
Alan R. Hodnik
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31(b)

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification by the ChiefExecutive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, Mark A. Schober, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form lfoikthe fiscal year ended December 31, 204RPALLETE, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortémstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntsts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, @her financial information included in this repdfairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as defin
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) imtednal control over financial reporting (as @efil in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to u
others within those entities, particularly duriig teriod in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reéipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttie reliability of financial reporting and tieeparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeabepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thegstegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

5. The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxon our most recent evaluation of internal @bmiver financial reportin
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitibthe registrant’'s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrastinterna
control over financial reporting.

Date: February 15, 2013 /sl Mark A. Schober
Mark A. Schober
Senior Vice President and Chief Financialiceif




Exhibit 32

Section 1350 Certification of Periodic Report
By the Chief Executive Officer and Chief FinancialOfficer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarba@etey Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, eachhef undersigned officers of ALLETE, It
(ALLETE), does hereby certify that:

1.The Annual Report on Form 10-K of ALLETE for thedal year ended December 31, 20{Report) fully complies with the requireme
of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act384 (15 U.S.C. 78m); and

2.The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadi and results of operations
ALLETE.

Date: February 15, 2013 /sl Alan R. Hodnik
Alan R. Hodnik
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 15, 2013 /sl Mark A. Schober
Mark A. Schober
Senior Vice President and Chief Financiali¢gif

This certification shall not be deemed “fileftir purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exglafict of 1934 or otherwise subject to liabi
pursuant to that section. Such certification shatlbe deemed to be incorporated by referenceaimydiling under the Securities Act of 193:
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except teettient that ALLETE specifically incorporates it tsference.

A signed original of this written statement reqditegy Section 906, or other document authenticaticgnowledging, or otherwise adopting
signature that appears in typed form within thecteteic version of this written statement requited Section 906, has been provide:
ALLETE and will be retained by ALLETE and furnish&mlthe Securities and Exchange Commission otaf§ gpon request.



Exhibit 95

Mine Safety Disclosure

Received | Received
Total Notice of Notice of Legal

Section Total Dollar [ Number off Pattern of | Potential to| Actions Legal Legal

Mine or Operating| Section | Section| 104(d) | Section 11(] Section Value of Mining Violation |Have PatterhPending a$ Actions Actions
Name/MSHA 104 S&S| 104(b) | Citations (b)(2) 107(a) MSHA Related Under Under of Last Initiated | Resolved

Identification Citations | Orders [and Order$ Violations | Orders | Assessmentg Fatalities| Section 104 Section 104 Day of During During
Number #) #) #) #) #) Proposed ($) # (e) (yes/no)| (e) (yes/no)| Period (#)| Period (#)| Period (#)

Center Mine /

3200218 2 — — — — $2,874 — No No — — —

For the year ended December 31, 2102, BNI CoaleowhCenter Mine, received nine citations undesti®a 104(a) of the Mine Safety A
two of which were significant and substantial (S&8ations. The total penalties assessed on BN1 meispect to the nine citations were $2,
For the year ended December 31, 2012 there weo#atmns, orders, violations or notices receiveder Sections 104(b), 104(d), 107(a), 10
(e) or 110(b)(2) of the Mine Safety Act and therrevno fatalities.



Exhibit 99
For Release: February 15, 2013

A LLETE o Investor Contact: Tim Thorp

218-723-3953
tthorp@allete.com

NEWS

ALLETE reports 2012 earnings of $2.58 per share
Results in upper end of guidance range

Duluth, Minn. ALLETE, Inc. (NYSE: ALE) today reported 2012 eargsof $2.58 per share compared with $2.65 per sh&t@11. Excluding
two non-recurring items, ALLETE's pro-forma earrsrig 2011 were $2.39 per share.

The company recorded net income of $97.1 millioB@42 compared with $93.8 million a year ago, amease of 3.5 percent. Operating
revenue was $961.2 million this year versus $92@lkon in 2011.

Income from ALLETE'sSRegulated Operationssegment decreased by $4.3 million in 2012 comptr@@11, however, last year's results
included the benefit of two nomecurring items: the reversal of a $6.2 million18rcents per share, deferred tax liability an@.8 $nillion, or €
cents per share, income tax benefit. Excludingelitesns, Regulated Operations increased by $41&mil

Continued strong retail and municipal sales, higlust recovery revenue and renewable energy talitsrl contributed to the year-over-year
increase. Minnesota Power electric sales to indlistnstomers increased by nearly two percent 20&4 to more than 7.5 million kilowatt-
hours. These increases were partially offset byeeed operating and maintenance, depreciatiomterdst expenses, as well as higher costs
under the Square Butte power purchase agreement.

Thelnvestments and Othersegment recorded net income of $1 million in 20d&pared to a net loss of $6.6 million in 2011, drenarily to
lower state income tax and interest expense.

Earnings for 2012 were diluted by 16 cents pereshae to issuances of common shares needed torfajod capital investments.

“I'm pleased with our 2012 financial and operatigmerformance as we executed our multi-faceted tratrategies,” said ALLETE President,
Chairman and CEO Al Hodnik. “Our year-end resul&sevin the upper end of our $2.50 to $2.60 guidaange.”

Hodnik said he was confident in ALLETE's abilitydeliver continued earnings growth in 2018/& expect another strong year of energy ¢
as our regional economy grows and we will contittumake needed capital investments to ensure ii@ljadnd meet state renewable and
environmental mandates.”

ALLETE will host a conference call and webcast@i00 a.m. Eastern time today to discuss detaiits dinancial performance for 2012, and
outlook for 2013. Interested parties may lister oy calling (877) 303-5852, or by accessing thbaast at www.allete.com. A replay of the
call will be available through February 18, 2013dayling (855) 859-2056, pass code 89501500.

ALLETE is an energy company headquartered in DulMtimn. ALLETE's energy businesses include Minnagebwer, Superior Water, Light
& Power Co., BNI Coal and ALLETE Clean Energy. Maméormation about the company is available at wallete.com.

The statements contained in this release and stattnthat ALLETE may make orally in connection with release that are not historical
facts, are forwartlooking statements. Actual results may differ mallg from those projected in the forward-lookistatements. These
forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertaingied investors are directed to the risks discussaetbcuments filed by ALLETE with
the Securities and Exchange Commission.

ALLETE's press releases and other communications ntdyde certain non-Generally Accepted Accountingn&iples (GAAP) financial
measures. A "non-GAAP financial measure" is defased numerical measure of a company's financigbp@ance, financial position or cash
flows that excludes (or includes) amounts thatiacduded in (or excluded from) the most directlyngarable measure calculated a
presented in accordance with GAAP in the compdmascial statement:




Nor-GAAP financial measures utilized by the Compawijuite presentations of earnings (loss) per shatd.ENE's management believes that
these non-GAAP financial measures provide usefatrimation to investors by removing the effect afareces in GAAP reported results of
operations that are not indicative of changes ia fisndamental earnings power of the Company's dipeim Management believes that the
presentation of the n-GAAP financial measures is appropriate and enabigsstors and analysts to more accurately compla@ecompany's
ongoing financial performance over the periods preasd.




ALLETE, Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Income

For the Periods Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Millions Except Per Share Amounts

Quarter Ended

Year to Date

2012 2011 2012 2011
Operating Revenue $256.C $239.2 $961.2 $928.2
Operating Expenses
Fuel and Purchased Power 80.0 76.8 308.7 306.6
Operating and Maintenance 102.3 104.9 397.1 381.2
Depreciation 25.8 23.3 100.2 90.4
Total Operating Expenses 208.1 205.0 806.0 778.2
Operating Income 47.9 34.2 155.2 150.0
Other Income (Expense)
Interest Expense (12.1) (11.0) (45.5) (43.6)
Equity Earnings in ATC 5.1 4.7 194 18.4
Other 2.6 2.1 6.0 4.4
Total Other Expense (4.4) 4.2) (20.1) (20.8)
Income Before Non-Controlling Interest and Income Bxes 435 30.0 135.1 129.2
Income Tax Expense 14.6 10.9 38.0 35.6
Net Income 28.9 19.1 97.1 93.6
Less: Non-Controlling Interest in Subsidiaries — — — (0.2)
Net Income Attributable to ALLETE 28.¢ $19.1 $97.1 $93.8
Average Shares of Common Stock
Basic 38.t 36.C 37.€ 35.3
Diluted 38.¢ 36.1 37.¢ 35.4
Basic Earnings Per Share of Common Stock $0.76 $0.53 $2.59 $2.66
Diluted Earnings Per Share of Common Stock $0.75 $0.53 $2.58 $2.65
Dividends Per Share of Common Stock $0.46 $0.44¢E $1.84 $1.78
Consolidated Balance Sheet
Millions
Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 31,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Assets Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Cash and Short-Term Investments $80.8 $101.1 Current Liabilities $283.4 $163.1
Other Current Assets 192.4 175.9 Long-Term Debt 933.6 857.9
Property, Plant and Equipment 2,347.€ 1,982.7 Deferred Income Taxes 423.8 373.6
Regulatory Assets 340.3 345.9 Regulatory Liabilities 60.1 43.5
. Defined Benefit Pension & Other Postretirement
Investment in ATC 107.3 98.9 Benefit Plans 228.2 253.5
Investments 143.5 132.3 Other Liabilities 123.3 105.1
Other 41.5 39.2 Shareholders' Equity 1,201.C 1,079.2




Total Assets $3,253.«  $2,876.C Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity $3,253.¢  $2,876.(




Quarter Ended

Year to Date

ALLETE, Inc. December 31, December 31,
Income (Loss) 2012 2011 2012 2011
Millions
Regulated Operations $28.0 $19.9 $96.1 $100.4
Investments and Other 0.9 (0.8) 1.0 (6.6)
Net Income Attributable to ALLETE $28.9 $19.1 $97.1 $93.8
Diluted Earnings Per Share $0.75 $0.53 $2.58 $2.65
Statistical Data
Corporate
Common Stock
High $42.0¢ $42.54 $42.6€ $42.54
Low $37.72 $35.14 $37.73 $35.14
Close $40.9¢ $41.9¢ $40.9¢ $41.9¢
Book Value $30.5C $28.77 $30.5C $28.77
Kilowatt-hours Sold
Millions
Regulated Utility
Retail and Municipals
Residential 303 294 1,132 1,159
Commercial 352 360 1,436 1,433
Municipals 262 256 1,020 1,013
Industrial 1,877 1,895 7,502 7,365
Total Retail and Municipal 2,794 2,805 11,09C 10,97C
Other Power Suppliers 512 514 1,999 2,205
Total Regulated Utility 3,306 3,319 13,08¢ 13,175
Non-regulated Energy Operations 33 30 113 105
Total Kilowatt-hours Sold 3,339 3,349 13,202 13,28C
Regulated Utility Revenue
Millions
Regulated Operations
Retail and Municipals
Residential $28.1 $26.€ $104.5F $109.:
Commercial 29.C 28.7 116.Z 116.¢
Municipals 15.€ 14.¢ 60.¢€ 61.2
Industrial 100.] 98.¢ 393.¢ 390.2
Total Retail and Municipals 172.¢ 168.¢ 674.7 677.
Other Power Suppliers 18.€ 18.t 73.1 78.71
Other 41.C 32.2 126.¢ 95.¢
Total Regulated Utility Revenue $232.«  $219.¢ $874.. $851.¢

This exhibit has been furnished and shall not be dened “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Secities Exchange Act of 1934, nor
shall it be deemed incorporated by reference in anffling under the Securities Act of 1933, except ashall be expressly set forth by

specific reference in such filing.



